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The Author  
- It was Anthony Hope Hawkins who wrote “The Prisoner of Zenda ". 
- Anthony Hope was born in 1863 in London, England. 
- Hope was educated and got  first-class degrees in classics, philosophy 
and ancient history.           

- Hope maintained   ؽفظ  a great interest in politics  ٗا١ٌَبٍظ throughout 
his life.  
- Hope published around thirty fictional works in his lifetime, but it was 
The Prisoner of Zenda that made him famous, enabling  him to become a 
full-time writer and literary man.  
- Hope died of throat cancer  in 1933. 

haractersC  The 
Rudolf Rassendyll 
 He is rich Englishman. 
 He is 29 years old. The narrator of the story. 
 He is well-educated and intelligent. 
 He does not believe in working for a living because he is comfortable 
with his inheritance and social status. 
 He is fun-loving and adventurous He is kind and compassionate. 
 He agrees to impersonate Rudolf the Fifth to help him save his 

throne ُاٌؼو.  

 He is a man of honour. He is a brave warriorِؾظبهة who risks٠قظبٛو his 
life to rescue the King. 
 

King Rudolf the Fifth   (Rudolf Elephberg) 

 He's the  king of Ruritania  who loves good wine and hunting. 
 He's not respected by many of his people as he is always abroad. 
 He‘s Carefree and humorous. He laughs loudly and easily. 
 He's kidnapped and imprisoned by his brother, Duke Michael. 
 He‘s Saved by Rudolf and regains his throne. 
 He becomes a more responsible King after his traumatic ordeal. 
 He marries Princess Flavia. 

 

Colonel Sapt 
 He's short and with a grey moustache. He's the King‘s chief adviser. 
 He's firm but kind .He is wise , intelligent, and careful. He's dutiful, 
loyal and faithful to King Rudolf. 
 He persuades Rudolf to impersonate the King to save his throne. 
 He helps and guides Rudolf in all his formal duties. 
 He's brave warrior and would not hesitate to sacrifice his life for the 
King. 
 He believes in fate as he believes it is fates that have sent Rudolf to save 
the King. 
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Fritz von Tarlenheim 
 He is the king‘s (Rudolf ) right-hand man.He is a loyal friend 

and advisor to the King. 
 He helps Rudolf in his role as an impersonator.He helps 

Colonel Sapt to rescue the King. 
 He is and quieter than Colonel Sapt.He is brave and daring in 

the rescue mission to save the King. 
 

Princess Flavia 
 She is a beautiful princess who is engaged to the King.  
 She is a cousin to King Rudolf the Fifth. 

 She is observant and She notices some differences between 
Rudolf Rassendyll and King Rudolf. 

 She does not know that Rudolf Rassendyll is an impersonator. 

She worries about Rudolf‘s safety and welfare. 
 She will not hesitate to go to Rudolf when she hears that he is 

ill or in trouble. 

 She marries the King and becomes the queen of Ruritania. 
 

Duke Michael 
 He is half-brother of Rudolf the Fifth. He is the Duke of 
Strelsau in Ruritania. 

 He spends a lot of time with the people. He is popular and 
many people want him to be King. 

 He ambitious, scheming, cunning, wicked, evil and cruel. He 
kidnapped King Rudolf with the intention of killing him. 

 He has loyal supporters especially his devoted ‗Famous Six ‘. 
 He is killed by Rupert of Hentzau. 

  

Mauban Antoinette de 
 She is beautiful, tall and dark French widow. She is about 30 years old 
and is deeply in love with the Duke. 
 she tries to find a way to stop Duke Michael from becoming King and 
therefore marrying Princess Flavia. 
 She is aware of Duke‘s wickedness and evil scheme to kill the King. 

 She betrays ْٛرقظ the Duke when she informs Rudolf of the Duke‘s plan 
to kill the king 

 She helps Rudolf to escape from his enemies. 

‟Men  The „Famous Six 
 These are the personal bodyguards of the Duke . 
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 They are fearless, ruthless, cruel and will not hesitate to kill. 
 They consist of three Ruritanians and three foreigners. 
 They are involved in the kidnapping of the King. Three of them guard 
the King and three follows the Duke wherever he goes. 

 The Six are   1) De Gautet -> French  

                      2) Bersonin -> Belgian 

  >Englishman -Detchard3)                           

> Ruritanian-(leader) uof Hentza tperRu4)                           

> Ruritanian-   Lauvengram5)                           

n> Ruritania-         Krafstein6)                          

Robert Rassendyll (Lord Burlesdon)   
 He is Rudolf Rassendyll's brother. 

Rose Rassendyll 
 She is Rudolf Rassendyll's sister-in-law.  

He is an English friend of Rudolf Rassendyll who  George Featherly 
works in the Paris embassy.  

Bertram Bertrand 
 He is an English journalist who works in Paris 

Marshal Strakencz 
 He is an important person in the King of Ruritania' s army. 

.to the king . He was killed by Michael‘s men He is a servant -Josef 
He is a servant at the King's palace.  -Freyler 

He is an important Englishman who is about to  -Sir Jacob Borrodaile

become an ambassador.  
in the Castle of Zenda. He is a servant who works - Johann Holf 

He is Johann's brother who works for Duke Michael. - Max Holf 

Places of Incidents 
     The setting  in the novel The Prisoner of Zenda is in 
Ruritania, a country in Central Europe. The adventures in the 

story take place in Strelsau (Capital of Ruritania) and Zenda     
(a small town with an ancient castle). 
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dining room َؽغوح اٌطؼب prepare for ي ٌظ ِٙ  ٠َزؼل / ٠ُغ
egg spoon هلعمح لفصل الثيض الوطلوق عن المشرج The Alps عجبي الأٌت 

position in society ِىبٔخ فٟ اٌّغزّغ social problems ِْىلاد اعزّبػ١خ 

Lord )ٌٟٛهك )ٌمت أٚهٚث Get into politics ٠ؼًّ ثب١ٌَبٍخ 

Countess )ٟوٛٔز١َخ )ٌمت أٚهث book ٠ؾغي 

Except ِبػلا check ٔ٠فؾ 

Member ٛٚػ call on )ٔ٠يٚه )ّق 

Annoy ٠يػظ / ٠ٚب٠ك The French Capital اٌؼبّٕخ اٌفو١َٔخ 

Explain ٠ْوػ / ٠فَو journalist ٟٕؾف 

German University عبِؼخ أٌّب١ٔخ wealth صوٚح 

German اٌٍغخ الأٌّب١ٔخ ambition ُّٛػ ُٛ 

Italian اٌٍغٛ الا٠طب١ٌخ Duke )ٟكٚق )ٌمت أٚهٚث 

Spanish اٌٍغخ الأٍجب١ٔخ half-brother أؿ غ١و ّم١ك 

Gun ثٕلل١خ favourite son ًُِٚف  اثٓ 

Swordsman ِجبهى ثب١ٌَف coronation ؽفً رز٠ٛظ 

riding  horses ًهوٛة اٌق١ Get on the train ٠َزمً اٌمطبه 

Different from ِٓقزٍف ػ Get off the train ٠ٕيي ِٓ اٌمطبه 

Realize ٠لهن fashionably-dressed أ١ٔمخ فٟ ٍِجَٙب 

Responsibilities َِئ١ٌٛبد wonder ٠زَبءي 

Opportunities ٓفُو further أثؼل 

Ambassador ٍف١و borders ؽلٚك 

Embassy ٍفبهح guards ًؽُوا 

Refuse ٘٠وف passports عٛاىاد اٌَفو 

sister-in-law ىٚعخ الأؿ stare at ٟ٠ُؾٍّك ف 

Moreover ٚػلاٚح ػٍٟ مٌه In two days' time ٓفٟ فلاي ١ِٛ٠ 

sound interesting   ٠جلٚ ِّزؼب excitement ِزؼخ 

be in a position to ِٓ ٕٗ٠ىْٛ فٟ ٚٙغ ٠ّى particular فبٓ / ِؾلك 

the royal family الأٍوح اٌّبٌىخ castle لٍؼخ 

make a promise ٠ؼَِل remain ٟ٠جم 

the Elphbergs ػبئٍخ إٌفجوط Inn فٕلق ٕغ١و 

have an interest in ٌل٠ٗ ا٘زّبَ ثظ responsible for َِٓئٛي ػ 

in fact فٟ اٌؾم١مخ forest ثخغب 

Paintings ٕٛه / ٌٛؽبد hotel owner ٕبؽت اٌفٕلق 

Descendants أؽفبك servant َفبك 

a straight nose ُأٔف َِزم١ care about ٠ٙزُ ثظ 

Appearance ًِظٙو/ّى stranger غو٠ت 

make a decision ٠زقن لواه hunting lodge  ِْٕٚظظيي ٕظظغ١و ٠ُمظظ١ُ ثظظٗ اٌٖظظ١بك
 ِؤلزب  

The Times Newspaper عو٠لح اٌزب٠ّي step back in surprise ٠زواعغ فٟ كْ٘خ 

Celebrations اؽزفبلاد stairs ٍٍُ 

joyous occasion ِٕبٍجخ ث١ٙغخ Conversation ِؾبكصخ 

Event َؽلس ٘ب relaxed َِزوؿ / َِزو٠ؼ 

Chapter 1 
 



 

- 6 - 

wealthy trader ٞربعو صو enormous ً٘بئ 

Contact ٠زًٖ ثظ luggage اٌؾمبئت 

set off ٠جلأ اٌوؽٍخ tough  َِزْلك -ٕبه 

Moat )فٕلق ِبئٟ )٠ُؾ١ٜ ثمٍؼخ ِضلا medium height ِزٍٜٛ اٌطٛي 

Mansion  ِٕيي أؽل الأصو٠بء –لٖو extraordinary  اٍزضٕبئٟ -هائغ 

country home ِٟٕيي ه٠ف Identical twins َِزطبثك رٛأ 

Drawbridge عَو ِزؾون personality ّق١ٖخ 
lie against a tree ٠ٕبَ َِزٕلا إٌٟ ّغوح sword ١ٍف 

well-defended ٓع١ل اٌزؾ١ٖ amazement  اٍزغواة -كْ٘خ 

Shade ًاٌظ alike ِٗزْبث 

The Text 
1- I was eating breakfast in the dining room of my brother's house one 
sunny morning, thinking about what I would do that week, when my 
brother's wife Rose came into the room. 
"Rudolf, you're 29 years old," she said. 
 "Are you ever going to do anything useful?" 
 "Rose," I answered, putting down my egg spoon, "why should I do 
anything? I have nearly enough money to do anything I want to (no 
one ever has quite enough money to do that, of course), and I enjoy an 
important position in society: my brother's Lord Burlesdon and you 
are a countess." 

.في صباح يوم مشمس, كنت أتناول الإفطار في غرفة الطعام في منزل أخي وأفكر فيما سأفعمو ذلك الأسبوع عندما دخمت الحجرة زوجة أخي, روز  

قالت روز, "رودولف, أنت الآن تبمغ من العمر تسع وعشرون عاما, ألا تنوي أبدا أن تفعل شيئا مفيدا؟" فأجبتُ وأنا أضع ممعقة البيض عمى 
المنضدة, " لماذا ينبغي عميّ أن أفعل أي شيئ يا روز؟ أنا أمتمك من المال تقريبا ما يكفي لعمل أي شيئ أريده )بالطبع لا أحد يمتمك مطمقا مالا 

 كافيا لعمل ذلك(, كما أنني أتمتع بمركز مرموق في المجتمع, فأخي ىو المورد بيرلسدون وأنت كونتيسة."
2-"But you've done nothing except……" 

  "Be lazy? It's true. I'm a member of the Rassendyll family and   our 
family don't need to do things." 

 This annoyed Rose, because her family were rich but less important than 
the Rassendylls. At this moment, my brother Lord Burlesdon (who we were 
happy to call simply Robert) came into the room.  
"Robert, I'm so happy you're back!" cried Rose. 
"What's the matter, my dear?" Robert asked her. 
"She's angry because she thinks I don't do anything," I explained to my 

brother. 
 فقالت روز, "ولكنك لم تفعل أي شيئ عدا ......"

قاطعتيا قائلا, "عدا أن أكون كسولا؟ ىذا حقيقي. فأنا أحد أعضاء عائمة راسيندل وعائمتنا ليست بحاجة إلى القيام بعمل أي شيئ." ىذا الكلام أغضب 
ىذه المحظة, دخل إلى الحجرة أخي المورد بيرلسدون )الذي كان روز حيث أن عائمتيا كانت غنية ولكنيا لم تكن عائمة مرموقة كعائمة راسيندل. في 

يسعدنا أن نناديو ببساطة باسم روبرت(, فصاحت روز, "روبرت, أنا سعيدة لمغاية بعودتك." فسأليا روبرت, "ما الأمر يا عزيزتي؟" فشرحتُ الأمر 
 لأخي قائلا, "إنيا غاضبة لأنيا تعتقد أنني لا أقوم بعمل أي شيئ."

3-At this point, I should explain that I had not been lazy all my life. I had 
studied hard and learned a lot when I was at a German school and German 
university. I spoke German as well as I spoke English, and I also knew how 
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to speak French, Italian and Spanish. I was good with a gun and a strong 
swordsman. I was also very good at riding a horse. 

امعة عند ىذه النقطة, يجب أن أشرح أنني لم أكن كسولا طوال حياتي, فأنا درستُ عمى نحوٍ جاد وتعممت الكثير عندما كنت في مدرسة ألمانية وج
يب بالمسدس و ألمانية. وتحدثتُ الألمانية بالإضافة إلى الإنجميزية, وكذلك تعممتُ كيف أتحدث الفرنسية والإيطالية والأسبانية. وكنت ماىرا في التص

 وكنت مبارزا قويا بالسيف, كما أنني كنت بارعا جدا في ركوب الخيل.

4-"It's not just your red hair that makes you different from your 
brother," said Rose. "He also realises his position in society has 
responsibilities. You only see opportunities in yours." 
 "To a man like me, opportunities are responsibilities," I explained.  
"Good, because I have some news for you," said Rose. "Sir Jacob 
Borrodaile tells me he'll offer you a real opportunity. He's going to be 
an ambassador in six months' time, and he says he's happy for you to 
work for him. I hope you'll take this job, Rudolf." 

  قالت روز, "إن شعرك الأحمر ليس ىو فقط ما يجعمك مختمفا عن أخيك, فيو يدرك أيضا أن مركزه في المجتمع لو مسئوليات. أما أنت فترى
في مركزك الإجتماعي الفرص فقط." فقمت ليا مفسّرا, "بالنسبة لرجل مثمي, الفرص تعتبر مسئوليات." فقالت روز, "ىذا جيد, لأن عندي بعض الأخبار 
لك. أبمغني السيد جاكوب بوروديل أنو سيعرض عميك فرصة حقيقية. فيو سيصبح سفيرا في خلال ستة أشير, وىو يقول أنو يسعده أن تعمل معو. 

 أتمنى أن تحصل عمى ىذه الوظيفة يا رودولف."
5-My sister-in-law has a way of asking people to do things which is 
impossible to refuse. Moreover, I thought this job sounded quite interesting, 
so I said, "If in six months' time I'm in a position to take this job, then 
I'll certainly say yes." 
   "Oh, Rudolf, how good of you!" said Rose. 
"Where will he be working?" I asked. 
"Sir Jacob doesn't know which country it will be, but he's sure it will be 
a good embassy." 
"For you I'll do it, even if it's a terrible embassy," I replied. 

  زوجة أخي ليا أسموب تطمب بو من الآخرين عمل الأشياء من المستحيل رفضو. علاوة عمى ذلك, كان في اعتقادي أن ىذه الوظيفة مثيرة
للاىتمام ل   لغاية, لذلك قمت, "إذا كنتُ في خلال ستة أشير في وضع يجعمني أحصل عمى ىذه الوظيفة, فأنا بالتأكيد سأقبميا." فقالت روز, "إنو 

شيئ رائع منك يا رودولف." فسألتيا قائلا, "وأين سيعمل؟" فقالت, "السيد جاكوب لا يعرف في أي دولة سيكون العمل, ولكنو متأكد أنيا ستكون سفارة 
 جيدة." فقمت, "سوف أحصل عمى ىذه الوظيفة لأجل خاطركِ أنتِ حتى ولو كانت سفارة في غاية السوء."

6-Now, I had made my promise to Rose, but there were still six months to go 
before the job would start, and I began to think about what I could do in this 
time. I decided that I would visit Ruritania, a small country in the middle of 
Europe. My family have always had an interest in that country because in 
1733, Countess Amelia Rassendyll married a member of the Ruritanian royal 
family, the Elphbergs. In fact my brother has paintings of her and her 
descendants on his walls: many of them have the same red hair and straight 
noses as the Elphbergs; I am the latest one to have the appearance of the 
Ruritanian royal family. 

المدة. الآن قطعتُ وعدا عمى نفسي أمام روز, ولكن كان ىناك ستة أشير للانطلاق قبل أن أبدأ الوظيفة. وبدأت أفكر فيما يمكن أن أفعمو في ىذه 
تزوجت الكونتيسة أميميا  3311سط أوروبا. عائمتي كانت دائما ميتمة بيذه الدولة لأنو في عام قررتُ أن أزور روريتانيا, وىي دولة صغيرة في و 

لو. يوجد راسيندل من أحد أعضاء العائمة المالكة لدولة روريتانيا, عائمة إلفبرج. في الواقع, يضع أخي لوحات لمكونتيسة وأحفادىا عمى جدران منز 
والأنف المستقيمة التي يتسم بيا أفراد عائمة إلفبرج. أنا آخر فرد في عائمتي لو نفس شكل العائمة المالكة لدى الكثيرين منيم نفس الشعر الأحمر 

 لروريتانيا.



 

- 8 - 

7-My decision was helped a few days later when I read in The Times 
newspaper that Rudolf the Fifth was to become King of Ruritania in the next 
three weeks, and that amazing celebrations were planned for this joyous 
occasion. I thought how fantastic it would be to see such an event and began 
to prepare for my journey. 
     I do not like to tell people where I go on my travels, so I told Rose that I 
was going walking in the Alps. I did not want her to think I was being lazy 
either, so I told her I was going to write a book about social problems in the 
country. 

تانيا في حدث شيئ بعدىا بأيام قميمة دعّم قراري بالسفر إلى روريتانيا, فقد قرأت في جريدة التايمز أن رودولف الخامس كان سيصبح ممكا عمى روري
شيئا رائعا, وبدأتُ خلال الأسابيع الثلاثة القادمة, وأنو تم الإعداد لاحتفالات رائعة بيذه المناسبة السعيدة. فكرتُ أن مشاىدة مثل ىذا الحدث سيكون 

ي جبال أعدّ لرحمتي.أنا لا أحب أن أخبر أحدا عن الأماكن التي أذىب إلييا في رحلاتي, لذلك فقد أخبرتُ روز أنني ذاىب لممارسة رياضة المشي ف
ماعية في الريف.الألب. ولأنني لم أكن أريدىا أن تعتقد أنني كنت كسولا أيضا, فأخبرتيا أنني أنوي تأليف كتاب عن المشكلات الاجت  

8-"You're going to write a book? That would be such a good thing to do, 
wouldn't it, Robert?" said Rose. 
"Yes, indeed. Writing a book's the best way to get into politics," agreed 

Robert, and he should know, as he has written many books himself. 
"You're right," I said to them both. However, I had no plan to really write a 

book, which shows how little we know about the future. Because here I am 
now, writing a book as I had promised to do, even if the book has nothing to 
do with the social problems in the Alps. But let me begin near the start of my 
journey to Ruritania. 

  قالت روز, "ىل تنوي تأليف كتاب؟ ىذا سيكون شيئا جيدا تقوم بو, أليس كذلك يا روبرت؟" فوافقيا روبرت الرأي قائلا, "نعم, بالطبع. إن تأليف
 كتاب ىو أفضل طريقة للانخراط في السياسة." بالتأكيد روبرت يعرف ذلك حيث أنو شخصيا قام بتأليف العديد من الكتب.

فقمت ليما, "معكما حق." وبالرغم من ذلك, لم تكن لديّ نية أن أقوم بتأليف كتاب حقا, وىذا يبين أن معرفتنا بالمستقبل ضئيمة لمغاية. فيا ىو أنا 
بدأ بالحديث الآن أقوم بتأليف كتاب كما وعدتُ, عمى الرغم أن ىذا الكتاب لا علاقة لو بالمشكلات الاجتماعية في منطقة الألب. ولكن اسمحوا لي أن أ

ن بدايةع  رحمتي إلى روريتانيا. 
9-My Uncle William always said that no man should ever pass through Paris 
without spending twenty-four hours in the city, so I took his advice and 
booked a night at The Continental Hotel. As soon as I had checked in, I 
called on some old friends that I knew in the French capital: George 
Featherly, who worked at the embassy, and Bertram Bertrand, who was 
now a famous journalist in the city. That evening, we all ate in a restaurant 
and they told me all about the latest exciting events in Paris. 
  كان عمي ويميام يقول دائما أنو لا ينبغي عمى أي شخص أن يمر عمى باريس دون أن يقضي بيا أربع وعشرين ساعة, لذلك عممتُ بنصيحتو

, وحجزتُ ليمة في فندق كونتيننتال. بمجرد وصولي لمفندق, زرت بعض أصدقائي القدامى الذين أعرفيم في العاصمة الفرنسية وىما جورج فيذرلي
يعمل بالسفارة, وبرترام برتراند, الذي كان الآن صحفيا شييرا في باريس. ذلك المساء, تناولنا الطعام في أحد المطاعم, وأخبروني بكل الذي كان 

 الأحداث المثيرة التي وقعت مؤخرا في باريس.
10-"We've had quite a few important people visiting the city recently," 

said Bertram. 
 "Anyone I'd know?" I asked. 
 "Well, I met Antoinette du Mauban today," Bertram replied. "You've 
probably heard of her. She's a lady who's well known for her wealth 
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and ambition. But she's leaving Paris today, we don't know where she's 
going to next."  
"So why did she come to Paris?" I asked. 
"She was a guest of the Duke of Strelsau," said George. "I met him at 
the embassy yesterday. He's the half-brother to the King of Ruritania. 
People say he was his father's favourite son. He's gone back for the 
coronation, although I don't think he'll enjoy it very much because he 
probably wishes he were the king. I don't think he likes being only a 
Duke."  

"I hear he's a clever man, though," said Bertram. 
"He's extremely clever, I'd say," agreed George. 

 ".قال برترام, "لقد كان ىناك القميل جدا من المشاىير الذين قاموا بزيارة باريس مؤخرا 
فسألتو, "ىل بينيم أي شخص أعرفو؟" فأجاب برترام, "حسنا, أنا قابمتُ أنطوانيت دو موبان اليوم, ربما تكون قد سمعتُ عنيا. إنيا سيدة نبيمة 

تشتير بثروتيا وتطمعاتيا, ولكنيا سوف تغادر باريس اليوم ولا نعرف إلى أين ستكون وجيتيا القادمة." فسألتو, "ولماذا جاءت إلى باريس؟" فقال 
جورج, "كانت ضيفة عند دوق ستريمسو. أنا قابمتو في السفارة بالأمس. إنو الأخ غير الشقيق لممك روريتانيا. يقول الناس أنو كان الابن المفضل 

لدى أبيو. ولقد عاد لحضور حفل التتويج بالرغم أنني لا أعتقد أنو سيكون مستمتعا بيذه المناسبة لأنو يودّ لو أنو ىو الممك. أنا لا أعتقد أنو يحب 
 أن يكون مجرد دوق." وقال برترام, "ورغم ذلك أنا سمعت أنو رجل ماىر." فوافقو جورج قائلا, "أتفق معك تماما أنو ماىر لمغاية."

11-The next day, George came with me to the station and I bought a ticket to 
my next stop, Dresden. I did not tell him that I was going to Ruritania. If I 
had, the news would have gone immediately to Bertram and then it would 
have been in all the newspapers within days. 
 ة واشتريت تذكرة إلى محطتي التالية مدينة دريزدن. لم أخبر جورج أنني كنت ذاىبا إلى روريتانيا, في اليوم التالي, أتى جورج معي إلى المحط

 لأنني لو فعمتُ ذلك لانتقل الخبر عمى الفور إلى برترام ومن ثم لانتقل إلى كل الصحف في غضون أيام.

12-Just as I was about to get on the train, George suddenly smiled and 
walked away to talk to a beautiful, tall and fashionably dressed woman of 
about thirty who was standing at the ticket office with two younger women. I 
thought these must be her servants. 
"You have an important person to travel with," George told me when he 

returned a few minutes later. "That's Antoinette du Mauban and she's 
also going to Dresden." 

  بينما كنت عمى وشك ركوب القطار, ابتسم جورج فجأة وذىب ليتحدث مع امرأة جميمة وطويمة القامة ترتدي ملابس عصرية تبمغ من العمر
 حوالي ثلاثين عاما, والتي كانت تقف عند مكتب بيع التذاكر مع امرأتين شابتين, كانتا في تقديري خادمتين ليا.

 عندما عاد جورج بعد دقائق قميمة قال لي, "إنك ستسافر مع إحدى الشخصيات المرموقة. إنيا أنطوانيت دو موبان وىي أيضا متجية إلى دريزدن."

13-Paris was soon behind me. It was a long and boring journey and I 
wondered if I would see Antoinette du Mauban in the dining car when I ate in 
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the train that evening, or perhaps at breakfast the next morning. However, I 
did not see the lady again until the following day, when both she and I got on 
the next train from Dresden to Ruritania. She was further up the train, 
however, and did not see me. 

اريس خمفنا. كانت الرحمة طويمة ومممة وتساءلت إذا كنت سأرى أنطوانيت دو موبان في عربة الطعام عندما أتناول طعامي في القطار سريعا, تركنا ب
قطار المتجو ذلك المساء, أو ربما أراىا وقت الإفطار في الصباح التالي. ومع ذلك لم أر السيدة مرة أخرى حتى اليوم التالي عندما صعد كلانا إلى ال

 من دريزدن إلى روريتانيا. ولكنيا كانت تبعد عني بمسافة في القطار فمم تراني.

14-A few hours later, the train arrived at the Ruritanian border where we 
stopped so the guards could check our passports. I was surprised when the 
guards stared at me and my passport for some time before letting me into the 
country. Once in Ruritania, I bought a newspaper and read that the King's 
coronation was to be in two days' time, which was much earlier than I had 
thought. The newspaper described the excitement in the country and in 
particular the capital city, Strelsau, where it said all the hotels were full with 
people who wanted to see the event. 

 بعد ساعات قميمة, وصل القطار إلى حدود روريتانيا حيث توقفنا لكي يفحص الحراس جوازات سفرنا. اندىشتُ عندما حدّق الحراس في وجيي وفي
ي يتم فجواز سفري لبعض الوقت قبل أن يسمحوا لي بدخول البمد. بمجرد أن دخمتُ روريتانيا, اشتريت جريدة وقرأت فييا أن حفل تتويج الممك كان س

و, حيث خلال يومين. ىذا التوقيت كان مبكرا جدا عمّا كنت أعتقد. وصفت الجريدة حالة الإثارة الموجودة في الدولة لا سيّما في العاصمة ستريمس
 قالت الجريدة أن كل الفنادق كانت تمتمئ بالأشخاص الذين كانوا يريدون مشاىدة ىذه المناسبة.

15-On reading this, I decided it would be best to stop at Zenda, a small 
town eighty kilometres from the capital, and about ten kilometres from the 
border. Here I could walk in the hills and see the town's famous castle, then 
I could take the train for the day to Srelsau to see the coronation. As I got 
off the train at Zenda, I saw Antoinette du Mauban, who remained on the 
train for its journey to the capital, but she did not look at me. 

عن عندما قرأتُ ذلك, قررتُ أنو من الأفضل أن أتوقف في زندا, وىي مدينة صغيرة تبعد ثمانين كيمومترا عن العاصمة, وحوالي عشر كيمومترات 
حفل  اىدالحدود. في ىذه المدينة أستطيع أن أتمشى في التلال وأشاىد القمعة الشييرة بالمدينة, ثم أركبُ القطار في ذات اليوم إلى ستريمسو لأش
نظر إليّ.التتويج. بينما كنت أىبط من القطار في زندا, رأيتُ أنطوانيت دو موبان التي ظمّت في القطار لتواصل الرحمة إلى العاصمة, ولكنيا لم ت  

16-I was welcomed at the inn in Zenda by an old woman who ran it with her 
two daughters. She said she was not very interested in what happened in 
the capital, but she loved the Duke of Strelsau, who she called Duke 
Michael. He was the man who was responsible for the land around Zenda 
and its castle. In fact, the hotel owner said she wished the Duke was the 
new King and not his brother. 

ب دوق رحّبت بي في الفندق الريفي امرأة عجوز التي كانت تديره مع ابنتييا. قالت لي أنيا لم تكن ميتمة بما يحدث في العاصمة ولكنيا كانت تح
ة ستريمسو الذي كانت تطمق عميو الدوق مايكل. إنو كان الرجل المسئول عن الأرض داخل زندا والقمعة الموجودة بيا. في الحقيقة, كانت صاحب

 الفندق تتمنى لو أن الدوق كان ىو الممك الجديد وليس أخيو.
17-"We all know Duke Michael," she explained. "He's always lived in 
Ruritania and he cares about the people, so people like him. As for 
the King, well, he's almost a stranger. He's been abroad for most of 
his life and not many people even know what he looks like. Now the 
King's staying in a hunting lodge in the forest, very near to Zenda. 
From there he'll travel to the capital for his coronation." 
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  شرحت المرأة قائمة, "نحن جميعا نعرف الدوق مايكل, فيو كان دائما يعيش في روريتانيا وييتم بأمر شعبيا, ولذلك يحبو الناس. أما بالنسبة
لمممك, حسنا, إنو تقريبا غريبٌ عنا. فقد قضى معظم حياتو خارج البلاد كما أن الكثير من الناس لا يعرفون حتى شكمو. الآن الممك يقيم في كوخ 

 يستخدمو عند الصيد في الغابة, وىو قريب جدا من زندا, وسوف يسافر من ىناك إلى العاصمة من أجل تتويجو."
18-I was interested to hear this, and decided I would walk in the forest the 
next day so that I might see him. "I wish he'd stay there in the forest," 

continued the woman. 
 "People say he only likes hunting and good food. He should let the 
Duke become our King. And there are many others who think the 
same." 
"Well I don't like Duke Michael," said her older daughter. "They say the 
King has red hair just like you!" 
"Many men have red hair like me," I laughed. 
"How do you know the King has red hair?" The old woman asked her 

daughter. 
"Johann, the Duke's servant, told me," she explained. "He's seen the King 
at the hunting lodge." 

  .كنت ميتما لسماع ذلك وقررتُ أن أمشي في الغابة في اليوم التالي لعمّي أراه. واصمت المرأة كلاميا قائمة, "أتمنى لو أنو يبقى ىناك في الغابة
الناس يقولون أنو يحب فقط الصيد والطعام الجيد. يجب عميو أن يسمح لمدوق أن يصبح ممكنا الجديد, وىناك الكثير من الناس الذين لدييم نفس 
الرأي." فقالت ابنتيا الكبرى, "حسنا, أنا لا أحب الدوق مايكل. إنيم يقولون أن الممك لو شعر أحمر مثمك تماما." فقمت ضاحكا, "الكثير من الرجال 

لدييم شعر أحمر مثمي."سألت المرأة العجوز ابنتيا, "كيف عممتِ أن الممك شعره أحمر؟" فشرحت ليا الابنة, "أخبرني بذلك جوىان, خادم الدوق, فقد 
 شاىد الممك عند كوخ الصيد."

19-"But why's the King here, if it's the Duke's land?" I asked. 
"The Duke invited him, sir," explained the old lady. 
"The Duke's in Strelsau, preparing for the coronation." 
"So they are good friends?" 
"I don't know if you can be good friends if you want the same thing." 
"What do you mean?" 
"Duke Michael would like to be King, too, I'm sure." 
"Well!," I said "I feel quite sorry for the Duke, but it's right that the 
older brother becomes king." 

  سألتيما قائلا, "لماذا يتواجد الممك ىنا إذا كانت ىذه ىي أرض الدوق؟" فشرحت السيدة العجوز, "لقد قام الدوق بدعوتو يا سيدي. الدوق
موجود في ستريمسو ليقوم بالإعداد لحفل التتويج." فقمتُ, "ىما صديقان إذا؟" فردّت العجوز, "لا أعرف إذا كان من الممكن أن تكونا صديقين إذا 

كنتما تريدان نفس الشيئ." قمت ليا, "ماذا تقصدين؟" فقالت, "أنا واثقة أن الدوق مايكل يودّ أن يكون الممك أيضا." فقمتُ, "حسنا, أنا أشعر بالحزن 
 تماما عمى الدوق, ولكن من حق الأخ الأكبر أن يصبح ىو الممك."

20-"Who's talking of the Duke?" said a deep voice from outside the door. 
"We have a guest, Johann," called the old lady, as a man entered the room. 

When he saw me, he took off his hat and stepped back in surprise, as though 
he had seen something amazing. 
"What's the matter, Johann?" asked the old lady. 
"This gentleman's come to our country to see the coronation." 
"It's the red hair," said one of the daughters. "We don't often see it in our 
country unless you're part of the King's family, the Elphbergs. Many of 
them have red hair." 
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  قال صوت جيير من خارج الباب, "من الذي يتحدث عن الدوق؟" فقالت السيدة العجوز عندما دخل رجلٌ الحجرة, "عندنا أحد الضيوف يا
جوىان." عندما رآني الرجل, خمع قبعتو وتراجع خطوة لمخمف مندىشا كما لو أنو رأى شيئا مذىلا. فسألتو السيدة العجوز, "ماذا بك يا جوىان؟ لقد 
حضر ىذا السيد النبيل إلى بمدنا ليشاىد حفل التتويج." فقالت إحدى بناتييا, "إنو مندىش من الشعر الأحمر. نحن لا نرى الشعر الأحمر كثيرا في 

 بمدنا إلا إذا كنت جزءا من عائمة الممك, عائمة إلفبرج. الكثير منيم شعره أحمر."
21-The man continued to stare at me, but said, "Good evening, sir. I'm 
sorry, I didn't expect to see any new guests here." 
"Don't worry," I said.  
"It's late and time I went to bed. I wish you all a good night. Thank 
you, ladies, for our conversation." I stood up to go to my room, when 
Johann suddenly said, "Sir, have you ever seen our King?" 
"No, I've never seen him, but I hope to do so on Wednesday at the 
coronation." 

Johann said no more, but I felt his eyes on me as I walked up the stairs. 
  .استمر الرجل في التحديق في, ولكنو قال, "مساء الخير يا سيدي. أنا آسف, فمم أكن أتوقع أن أرى أي ضيوف جدد ىنا." فقمت لو, "لا عميك
الوقت تأخر وحان موعد نومي. طابت ليمتكم جميعا. شكرا لكم سيداتي عمى محادثتنا." وقفت لكي أذىب إلى غرفتي عندما قال جوىان فجأة, "سيدي, 
ىل سبق لك رؤية ممكنا؟" فقمت لو, "لا, لم يسبق لي رؤيتو مطمقا, ولكني آمل أن أفعل ذلك يوم الأربعاء في حفل التتويج." لم يقُل جوىان أي شيئ 

 آخر, ولكني شعرت أنو يحممق في ببصره بينما كنتُ أصعدُ درجات السمّم.
22-The next morning, Johann seemed much more relaxed. When he heard 
that I was going to Strelsau, he said I could stay at his sister's house. She 
was married to a wealthy trader and she had invited him to stay with them 
for the coronation, but he was unable to go. I was very happy to have this 
opportunity and accepted his offer, so he said he would contact his sister at 
once and tell her to expect me that day. 

  في الصباح التالي, بدا جوىان أقل توترا بكثير. عندما عمم أنني ذاىب إلى ستريمسو قال أن بإمكاني أن أقيم في منزل شقيقتو التي كانت
ذلك قبمتُ متزوجة من أحد التجار الأثرياء ودعت جوىان لمبقاء معيما لحضور التتويج, لكنو لم يتمكن من الذىاب. كنتُ سعيدا لمغاية بيذه الفرصة و 

 العرض. قال لي جوىان أنو سيتصل بشقيقتو عمى الفور ويطمب منيا أن تنتظرني في ذلك اليوم.
23-I decided, however, that I still wanted to see the forest where the King was 
staying, so first I planned to walk for sixteen kilometres through the forest to 
the next station along the line, where I could catch a train to the capital. I 
did not tell Johann about this plan, as I did not think it would be important 
if I arrived at his sister's later in the day. So I sent my luggage on to the 
station and said goodbye to the old lady and her daughters, and set off up 
the hill towards the castle. After that, it was a short walk to get into the 
forest. 

  رغم ذلك, قررت أنني مازلت أرغب في مشاىدة الغابة التي كان يقيم فييا الممك, لذلك خططتُ في البداية أن أمشي عبر الغابة لمسافة ستة
أن أعتقد عشر كيمومترا عمى طول الطريق حتى المحطة التالية حيث يمكنني أن أركب قطارا إلى العاصمة. لم أخبر جوىان بيذا الترتيب لأنني لم أكن 

لرحمة صعودا وصولي إلى منزل شقيقتو متأخرا ذلك اليوم شيئا ذا أىمية. لذلك, أرسمتُ حقائبي إلى المحطة وودعتُ السيدة العجوز وابنتييا ثم بدأتُ ا
 إلى التل باتجاه القمعة. بعد ذلك, كانت ىناك مسافة قصيرة أقطعيا سيرا عمى الأقدام حتى أدخل الغابة.

24-Half an hour later, I reached the castle. It was very old but well built, with 
a moat all around it. Behind it was a large modern mansion, which was used 
by the Duke of Strelsau as his country home. The mansion was reached by a 
wide road, but the old castle could only be reached by a drawbridge between 
it and the mansion. I was pleased to see that the Duke had such a well-
defended house, even if he were not to become King. 
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  بعد ذلك بنصف ساعة, وصمتُ إلى القمعة. كانت قديمة جدا ولكن كان بناؤىا متينا, ويحيطيا خندق مائي من كل الجوانب. خمف القمعة كان
ىناك قصر حديث والذي كان يستخدمو دوق ستريمسو كمنزلو الريفي. كان يتم الوصول إلى القصر بواسطة طريق عريض, ولكن كان يمكن الوصول 

القديمة فقط عن طريق جسر متحرك يربط بين القمعة والقصر. كنتُ سعيدا عندما رأيتُ أن الدوق يمتمك مثل ىذا المنزل جيد التحصين  إلى القمعة
 عمى الرغم أنو لن يصبح الممك.

25-Soon I reached the dark forest and I walked for about an hour, pleased 
that the tall trees gave me cool shade: not much sun reached the ground 
through the many leaves. It was a beautiful place and after a time I decided 
to rest by lying against one of the enormous trees. It was so quiet and 
peaceful in the forest that I soon fell into a deep sleep, forgetting all about the 
train I should have caught to Strelsau and my luggage that would be waiting 
at the station. I was just dreaming about living in the Castle of Zenda when a 
voice woke me: 

   "Why, look at at him! It's amazing! He looks just like the King!" 
  ,فمم وصمتُ إلى الغابة المظممة بسرعة ومشيت فييا لمدة ساعة تقريبا. كنت مسرورا لأن الأشجار العالية كانت تمنحني ظلا يبعث عمى البرودة

ى تكن الشمس تصل كثيرا إلى الأرض بسبب أوراق الأشجار الكثيرة. كان المكان جميلا, وبعد فترة من الوقت, قررتُ أن أستريح متكئا عمى إحد
ذي الأشجار الضخمة. كان الجو ىادئا جدا ويبعث عمى الطمأنينة في الغابة لدرجة أنني دخمتُ في سُبات عميق, ونسيت كل شيئ بخصوص القطار ال

 قظتكان عميّ أن أركبو إلى ستريمسو, وكذلك حقائبي التي كانت تنتظرني في المحطة. كنتُ أحمم في منامي أنني أسكن في قمعة زندا عندما استي
 عمى صوتٍ ما يقول, "يا لمعجب, أنظر إليو! ىذا مذىل! أنو يشبو الممك تماما!"

26-I opened my eyes slowly and found two men looking at me. Both carried 
guns and were dressed for hunting. One of them was short but looked very 
tough with light blue eyes, and he looked like a soldier. The other was 
younger, thin and of medium height, and he looked like a gentleman. I later 
found out that my guesses were both correct. 

 قصيرا ولكنو بدا قوي البنية  فتحتُ عيني ببطء ووجدتُ رجمين ينظران إلي. كان يحمل كلا منيما بندقية ويرتديان ملابس الصيد. كان أحدىما
شفت فيما تماما, وكان لون عينيو أزرق فاتح, وكان يبدو وكأنو جندي. أما الآخر فكان أصغر عمرا, ونحيفا ومتوسط الطول, وكان يشبو النبلاء. واكت

 بعد أن تخميناتي عن كمييما كانت صحيحة.
27-The older man walked up to me and raised his hat to me politely, so I 
stood up. "He's about the same height as the King, too!" he said. "This 
really is extraordinary. What's your name, sir?" 
"Perhaps you can tell me what your names are first?" I asked them. 
The gentleman stepped forward with a smile and said, "Of course. This is 
Colonel Sapt, and my name's Fritz von Tarlenheim. We both work for 
the King of Ruritania." 

  اقترب مني الرجل الأكبر سنا ورفع قبعتو لي بأدب, فوقفتُ عمى قدميّ. قال الرجل, "إنو تقريبا في نفس طول الممك أيضا, إن ىذا شيئ مذىل
حقا. ما اسمك يا سيدي؟" فسألتيما, "لعمكما تخبراني باسميكما أولا؟" فتقدم الرجل النبيل خطوة وىو يبتسم وقال, "بالطبع, ىذا ىو العقيد سابت, وأنا 

 أدعى فريتز فون تارلنيايم. كلانا يعمل لدى ممك روريتانيا."
28-I shook their hands and told them, "I'm Rudolf Rassendyll. I'm a 
traveller from England and was an officer in the Queen's army." 
"Well, we're officers for our King, so we understand each other well!" 

said Tarlenheim. 
"Rassendyll, Rassendyll," said Colonel Sapt quietly. "I know! Are you one 
of the Burlesdons?" 
"My brother's the new Lord Burlesdon," I explained. 
"So, do I really look like the King?" 
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"You could be twins," said Fritz. 
"Although you look like identical twins, you do not have identical 
personalities or skills. You two seem very different. If you were an 
officer for the Queen's army, Rassendyll, you must be good with a 
sword!" laughed Sapt. 

  صافحتيما وقمتُ ليما, "اسمي رودولف راسيندل. أنا مسافر وقادم من إنجمترا وكنت ضابطا في جيش الممكة." فقال تارلنيايم, "حسنا, نحن
 ضابطان لدى ممكنا, إذا فنحن نفيم بعضنا جيدا."

قال العقيد سابت بيدوء, "راسيندل, راسيندل, أنا أعرف ذلك, ىل أنت أحد أفراد بيرلسدون؟" فشرحتُ لو, "أخي ىو المورد بيرلسدون الجديد." ثم 
سألتيما, "ىل أنا بالفعل أشبو الممك؟" فقال فريتز, "ربما تكونا توأمين." وقال سابت ضاحكا, "عمى الرغم أنكما كالتوأمين المتماثمين إلا أنكما لستما 

متماثمين في الشخصية أو في الميارات. أنتما تبدوان مختمفين تماما. فإذا كنتَ ضابطا 
 في جيش الممكة يا راسيندل, فأنت بالتأكيد بارع في المبارزة بالسيف."

1. "Is the King not a fighting man?" I 

asked. 
 "The King likes to live well," said Fritz. 
"Let's say he prefers eating to action, but 
he's a kind man and he's our King. We'd 
do anything for him." 
"Perhaps we are alike then," I said, 
"because I like to have an easy life, too!" 

At this moment, a voice came from the trees 
behind us. "Fritz? Where are you, Fritz?" 
 Fritz looked worried, and then said quietly 
to me, "It's the King! He's coming here 
now." 

  سألتيما, "أليس الممك رجل مقاتل؟" فقال فريتز, "الممك يحب أن يعيش بشكل
جيد. يمكن أن نقول أنو يفضل تناول الطعام أكثر من خوض المعارك, ولكنو رجل 

عطوف وىو ممكنا, ونحن عمى استعداد أن نفعل أي شيئ من أجمو." فقمتُ ليما, "إذا ربما نكون متشابيين لأنني أحب أن أعيش الحياة السيمة أيضا." في 
ىذه المحظة, جاء صوت من بين الأشجار خمفنا يقول, "فريتز, أين أنت يا فريتز؟" بدا القمق عمى فريتز, ثم قال لي بصوت ىادئ, "إنو الممك, إنو قادم إلى 

 هنا الآن."
29-A young man then came out from behind a tree in the forest and stood 
in front of us. As I looked at him, I gave out a loud cry at the same time as 
he stood back in amazement to see me. Except perhaps for a centimetre 
or two difference in height, we looked so alike that the King of Ruritania 
might have been me, Rudolf Rassendyll, and I might have been him, the 
King of Ruritania. 
  ثم ظير شاب من خمف إحدى الأشجار في الغابة ووقف أمامنا. عندما نظرت إليو, صدرت مني صرخة عالية في نفس الوقت الذي تراجع ىو فيو

ون ائز أن يكلمخمف في حالة ذىول من رؤيتي. فباستثناء وجود اختلاف في الطول بمقدار سنتيمتر أو اثنين, كنا نبدو متماثمين تماما لدرجة أنو من الج
 ممك روريتانيا ىو أنا, رودولف راسيندل, كما أن من الجائز أن أكون أنا ىو, ممك روريتانيا.
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Questions & Answers 
 

1- Who is Rudolf Rassendyll? 

  - He is a wealthy English gentleman and the narrator ٞٚها of the story. 

 
2- What did Rose Rassendyll blame Rudolf for? 
  - She blamed him for being lazy and for not doing anything useful.  

 
3- Why doesn't Rudolf Rassendyll work? 
  - Because he has nearly enough money to do anything he wants to, and he 
enjoys an important position in society. He is a member of the Rassendyll 
family. 

 
4- Who is Robert Rassendyll? 
  - He is Rudolf Rassendyll's brother and he is Lord Burlesdon. 

 
5- Why was Rose Rassendyll annoyed when Rudolf said that his family 
didn't need to do things? 
  - Because her family were rich but less important than the Rassendylls. 

 
6- Rudolf Rassendyll had he not been lazy all his life. Explain. 
- He had studied hard and learned a lot when he was at a German school and 
university. 

-  He spoke French, German, Italian and Spanish. 

-  He was very good at using guns and swords and riding horses. 

 
7- How was Rudolf Rassendyll different from his brother? 

 Rudolf had red hair, but Robert didn't. 

 Robert realized his position in society had responsibilities, but Rudolf only 
saw opportunities in his position. 

 
8- What kind of work does Rose suggest Rudolf should do? 
  - She suggests that he should work for Sir Jacob Borrodaile who was going 

to be an ambassador ٍف١و in six months' time. 

 
9- Who was Sir Jacob Borrodaile? 

- He was to be an ambassador in six months. 

 
10- Rose Rassendyll was a very persuasive person. Explain. 
   - She had a way of asking people to do things which is impossible to refuse. 
She persuaded Rudolf to work for Sir Jacob Borrodaile. 

 
11- Why did Rudolf Rassendyll agree to work for Sir Jacob Borrodaile? 
   - Because he thought the job sounded quite interesting and Rose persuaded him. 
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12- Why has the Rassendyll family been interested in the Elphberg 
family? 

- Because Countess Amelia Rassendyll married a member of the Ruritanian 
royal family, the Elphbergs. 

 
13- Whose paintings لوحاخ هن did Lord Burlesdon have on his walls? 
  - He had paintings of Countess Amelia Rassendyll and her descendants. 

 
14- What did many of Countess Amalia's descendants have in common? 
  - Many of them had the same red hair and straight noses as the Elphbergs. 

 
15- Where did Rassendyll decide to travel to? What did he tell his family 

about his plans? 
  - He decided to visit Ruritania. He told them that he was going walking in 
the Alps and that he was going to write a book about the social problems in 
the country. 

16- Why didn't Rudolf tell his family about his plans to travel to 

Ruritania? 
   - Because he never liked to tell them where he was going on his travels. 

- He didn't want them to stop him.   

 
17- Why did Robert praise Rudolf for his idea of writing a book ? 
-Because he thought that Writing a book's the best way to get into politics. 

18- What was Uncle William's advice for those passing through Paris? 
  - It was to spend a day in the city. 

 
19- Who did Rudolf Rassendyll call on in Paris? 
  - He called on two old friends: George Featherly, an English friend of Rudolf 
who worked in the English embassy in Paris and Bertram Bertrand, an 
English journalist who worked in Paris. 

 
20- Who was Antoinette de Mauban? 
   - She was a French lady who was well known for her wealth and ambition. 
She was a beautiful, tall and fashionably dressed lady of about thirty. She 
loved Duke Michael. 

 
21- Why did Antoinette de Mauban go to Paris? 
  - Because she was a guest of the Duke of Strelsau. 

 
22- Who was Duke Michael Elphberg? 
  - He was Rudolf Elphberg's half-brother. 

 
23- Why didn't George Featherly think that the Duke of Strelsau 

wouldn't enjoy the coronation of his half brother Rudolf? 
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  - Because he thought that Michael didn't like being only a duke so he 
wished he were the king. 

 
24- Why didn't Rudolf Rassendyll tell George that he was going to 

Ruritania? 
   - If he had told him, he would have told Bertram (a journalist) and the 
news would have been in all the newspapers within days. 

 
25- Who did Rudolf see on the train to Dresden? 
  - He saw Antoinette de Mauban.  

 
26- Why did the guards at the Ruritanian border stare at Rudolf 

Rassendyll? 
  - Because he looked very much like Rudolf Elphberg, the King of Ruritania. 

 
27- What news did Rudolf read in the paper? 
  - He read the news that the King's coronation was to be in two days' time 
and that all the hotels were full with people who wanted to see the king's 
coronation.  

 
28- What is the capital of Ruritania? 
   - Strelsau is the capital of Ruritania. 

 
29- Why couldn't Rudolf Rassendyll stay in the capital city, Strelsau? 
 - Because all the hotels there were full with people who wanted to see the 
coronation. 

 
30- What do you know about Zenda? 
   - It's a small town, 80 kilometers from the capital and about 10 kilometers 
from the border. It has a famous ancient castle. 

 
31- What does the owner of the inn think of Michael, the Duke of 
Strelsau? 

- She loves him. She says he has always lived in Ruritania and he cares 
about the people, so people like him. She wishes the Duke was the King and 
not his brother. 

 
32- What does the owner of the inn think of the king? 
   - She thinks he is almost a stranger. He's been abroad for most of his life 
and not many people even know how he looks like. 

 
33- Why was the King at the Duke's hunting lodge at Zenda? 
  - Because Duke Michael invited him to rest there until the day of the 
coronation. 
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34- Why was Duke Michael at Strelsau? 
   - He was there to make preparations for the coronation. 

 
35- Why did Rassendyll decide to walk through the forest the next day? 
   - He decided to do that so that he might see the king. 

 
36- Who is Johann Holf? 
   - He is a servant who works in the castle of Zenda. 

 
37- Why did Johann step back in surprise as soon as he saw Rudolf? 
  - Because Rudolf looked exactly like the King. 

 
38- Why did Johann invite Rudolf Rassendyll to stay at his sister's 

house? 
   - Because all the hotels were full in Strelsau and Johann was unable to go. 

 
39- The castle of Zenda was well-defended……illustrate. 

- It was very old but well-built. 

-  There was a moat all around it. 

-  Behind There was a large modern mansion. It could only be reached by a 
drawbridge between it and the mansion.  

40- Who did Rassendyll meet in the forest? Why were they surprised to 

see him? 
  - He met Colonel Sapt and Fritz von Tarlenheim who worked for the king. 
They were surprised to see him because he looked like the king.  

 
41- Who is Colonel Sapt? What does he look like? 
  - He is an old soldier who works for the King of Ruritania. He is short but 
looks very tough with light blue eyes. He looks like a soldier. 

 
42- Who is Fritz von Tarlenheim? What does he look like? 
  - He is a gentleman who works for the King of Ruritania. He is thin and of 
medium height. He looks like a gentleman. 

43- What happened when Rudolf and the king met for the first time? 

Why? 
  - Rudolf gave a loud cry and the King stood back in amazement looking at 
Rudolf because they looked alike. 

 
44- How were Rudolf Rassendyll and the King of Ruritania alike?   

- They looked so alike except perhaps for a centimetre or two difference in 
height. They did not have identical personalities or skills. 
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Quotations 
 

1- "Why should I do anything?"  
1- Who said these words to whom? 
       - Rudolf Rassendyll said these words to Rose, his brother's wife. 

2- When did the speaker say these words?   
       - He said these words when Rose wanted to know when he was going to do 
something. 

3- Why doesn't Rudolf the speaker work? 
       - Because he has nearly enough money to do anything he wants to, and he enjoys 
an important position in society.  

 
2- "But you've done nothing except..." 

1- Who said these words to whom? 
       - Rose Rassendyll said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- What did the speaker blame the addressed person for? 

  - She blamed him for being lazy and not doing anything useful. 
3- What was the addressed person's reaction? 

       - He said he was lazy but he was a member of the Rassendyll family and our family 
didn't need to do things. 
 
3- "She's angry because she thinks I don't do anything."  

1- Who said these words to whom? 
  - Rudolf Rassendyll said these words to his brother, Robert. 

2- Where were they? 
  - They were in the dinning room. 

3- When did the speaker say these words? 
  - He said these words when Robert asked his wife what the matter was. 
 
4-  "He also realises his position in society has responsibilities. You only see 
opportunities in yours." 

1- Who said these words to whom? 

    - Rose said these words to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- What was the speaker talking about? 

  - She was talking about the difference between her husband and Rudolf. 
3- What was the addressed person's reply? 
    - He said that opportunities are responsibilities. 

 
5- "Good, because I have some news for you" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Rose said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- What was the good news the speaker had? 

    - Sir Jacob Borrodaile was going to be an ambassador and he wanted Rudolf 
Rassendyll to work for him. 
3- What was the addressed person‟s reaction? 

    - He agreed to take the job offered to him. 
 
6- "He's going to be an ambassador in six months' time, and he says he's happy 
for you to work for him."  

1- Who said these words to whom? 

       - Rose said these words to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Who is the speaker talking about? 
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       - She is talking about Sir Jacob Borrodaile. 

3- Did the addressed person accept that offer? Why / Why not? 
       - Yes, he did because the job sounded interesting. 
 
7-" If in six months' time I'm in a position to take this job, then I'll certainly say 
yes." 

1- Who said these words to whom? 
       - Rudolf Rassendyll said these words to Rose. 
2- Why did the speaker accept the job?  

  - Because the job sounded interesting 
3- What did the speaker decide to do during the six months before starting his 
new job?   

       - He decided to visit Ruritania to attend the coronation of King Rudolf the Fifth 
8-"Yes, indeed. Writing a book's the best way to get into politics" 

1- Who said this to him? 
       - Robert Rassendyll said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
    2- When did the speaker say this sentence? 

      - The speaker said this sentence when Rudolf said he was going to write a book 
about social problems in the country. 

   3- What kind of books did the addressed person actually write? 
     - He wrote a book about his journey to Ruritania. 
 

 
9-"He's the half-brother to the King of Ruritania. People say he was his father's 
favourite son." 

1- Who said these words to whom? 
      - George Featherly said these words to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

    2- Who are they talking about? 
      - They‘re talking about Michael, the Duke of Strelsau. 
    3- Why do people like Michael more than the King? 

      - Because he has always lived in Ruritania and he cares about the people, but the 
King is almost a stranger and he‘s been abroad most of his life. 
  
10 -"I don't think he likes being only a Duke."  

1- Who said these to whom? 

       - George Featherly said these words to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
    2- Who were they talking about? 
      - They were talking about the Duke of Strelsau. 

    3- Why didn't he like being only a Duke? 
      - Because he wished he were the king. 

 
11-"You have an important person to travel with." 

1- Who said these words to whom? 

       - George Featherly said these words to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
    2- Who was that important person? 
      - Antoinette de Mauban.  

    3- What was that person travelling? 
      - She was travelling to Ruritania. 
12 -"He's always lived in Ruritania and he cares about the people, so people like 
him." 

1- Who said this to whom? 

    - The owner of the inn said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Who is the person talking about? 
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    - Duke Michael. 

3- What more does the speaker think about the person? 
    - She wished the Duke was the new King and not his brother and that many people 
also wanted the same thing. 

 
13- "He's almost a stranger." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
       - The owner of the inn said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
    2- Who were they talking about? 

      - They were talking about the King of Ruritania. 
    3- Why was that person “almost a stranger”? 
      - Because he had been abroad for most of his life and not many people even knew 

what he looked like. 
 
14 -"How do you know the King has red hair?"  

1- Who said these words to whom? 
       - The old woman said these words to her daughter. 

    2- Who told the daughter that the king has red hair? 
      - Johann, the Duke's servant.  

    3- How did the addressed person know that the king had red hair ?  
      - He's seen the King at the hunting lodge." 
 
15-"I don't know if you can be good friends if you want the same thing." 

1- Who said these words to whom? 
      - The old woman said these words to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

    2- What did the speaker mean by these words? 
      - She meant that both the King and the Duke wanted to be King of Ruritania, so 

they could be enemies, not friends.  
    3- According to the addressed person, who had the right to that thing? 
      - Rassendyll thought it was the older brother's right to become king. 
16-"This gentleman's come to our country to see the coronation." 

1- Who said these words to whom? 
      - The owner of the inn said these words to Johann. 

    2- Who did the speaker mean by "this gentleman"? 
      - She meant Rudolf Rassendyll. 

    3- Whose coronation was going to take place? 
      - The coronation of Rudolf the Fifth, king of Ruritania was going to take place. 
 
17-"Perhaps we are alike then because I like to have an easy life, too!" 

1- Who said these words to whom? 

         - Rudolf Rassendyll said these words to Fritz. 
2- Where did this conversation take place? 
       - It took place in the forest, near the Castle of Zenda. 

3- How were the speaker and the king alike? 

- They both had red hair. They both liked to live well. They both looked like identical twins. 

 
Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences 
1-  Rudolf Rassendyll was thirty-nine and he had done nothing except being lazy.      
      Rudolf Rassendyll was twenty-nine and he had done nothing except being lazy.    

2-  Rudolf Rassendyll thinks that everybody ever has enough money to do what they 
want. 
     Rudolf Rassendyll thinks that no one ever has enough money to do what they 

want. 
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3-  Rose was happy when Rudolf Rassendyll said that his family didn't need to do 

things. 
     Rose was annoyed when Rudolf Rassendyll said that his family didn't need to do 
things. 

4-  Countess Amelia's family were rich but less important than the Rassendylls. 
     Countess Rose's family were rich but less important than the Rassendylls. 

5-  Rudolf Rassendyll is Lord Burlesdon. 
     Robert Rassendyll is Lord Burlesdon. 
6-  Rudolf Rassendyll studied at a German school and German embassy. 

     Rudolf Rassendyll studied at a German school and German university. 
7-  Rudolf speaks neither German nor English. 
     Rudolf speaks both German and English. 

8-  Rudolf was bad with a gun and a weak swordsman. 
     Rudolf was good with a gun and a strong swordsman. 

9-  Rudolf was very good at riding a bicycle. 
     Rudolf was very good at riding a horse. 
10-  It's only the red hair that makes Rudolf different from his brother. 

       It's not only the red hair that makes Rudolf different from his brother. 
11-  Robert didn‘t realize that his position had responsibilities. 

       Rudolf didn‘t realize that his position had responsibilities. 
12-  George realises his position in society has responsibilities. 
       Robert realises his position in society has responsibilities. 

13-  Sir Jacob Borrodaile was going to become a king in six months' time. 
       Sir Jacob Borrodaile was going to become an ambassador in six months' time. 
14-  Rose Rassendyll was so persuasive that Rudolf Rassendyll agreed to work for 

Josef. 
       Rose Rassendyll was so persuasive that Rudolf Rassendyll agreed to work for Sir 

Jacob Borrodaile. 
15-  Rose Rassendyll has a way of asking people to do things which is possible to 
refuse. 

       Rose Rassendyll has a way of asking people to do things which is impossible to 
refuse. 
16-  Sir Bertram didn't know which country he would be working in. 

       Sir Jacob Borrodaile didn't know which country he would be working in. 
17-  Rudolf decided to visit Dresden, a small country in the middle of Europe. 

       Rudolf decided to visit Ruritania, a small country in the middle of Europe. 
18-  Countess Rose Rassendyll married a member of the Ruritanian royal family. 
       Countess Amelia Rassendyll married a member of the Ruritanian royal family. 

19-  Lord Burlesdon had paintings of Countess Amelia Rassendyll and her ancestors. 
       Lord Burlesdon had paintings of Countess Amelia Rassendyll and her 

descendants. 
20-  Many of Countess Amelia's descendants have the same black hair and straight 
noses as the Elphbergs. 

       Many of Countess Amelia's descendants have the same red hair and straight 
noses as the Elphbergs. 
21- Rudolf Rassendyll had the appearance of the Romanian royal family. 

      Rudolf Rassendyll had the appearance of the Ruritanian royal family. 
22-  Rudolf Rassendyll got his red hair from one of his descendants. 

       Rudolf Rassendyll got his red hair from one of his ancestors. 
23-  The Times newspaper said that Rudolf the Fifth was to become King of England 
in the next three weeks. 

       The Times newspaper said that Rudolf the Fifth was to become King of Ruritania 
in the next three weeks. 
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24-  Amazing celebrations were planned in Ruritania for the murder of the new King. 

        Amazing celebrations were planned in Ruritania for the coronation of the new 
King. 
25-  Rudolf Rassendyll thought it would be boring to see the coronation of the new 

King. 
       Rudolf Rassendyll thought it would be fantastic to see the coronation of the new 

King. 
26-  Rudolf Rassendyll did not like to tell people where he went on my studies. 
       Rudolf Rassendyll did not like to tell people where he went on my travels. 

27-  Rudolf Rassendyll told his family that he was going to Ruritania. 
       Rudolf Rassendyll didn't tell his family that he was going to Ruritania. 
28-  Rudolf Rassendyll did not want Rose to think he was being active either. 

       Rudolf Rassendyll did not want Rose to think he was being lazy either. 
29-  Rudolf Rassendyll told his family that he was going to write a book about his 

visit to Ruritania. 
       Rudolf Rassendyll told his family that he was going to write a book about the 
social problems in the country. 

30-  Robert said that writing a book is the best way to get into economics. 
       Robert said that writing a book is the best way to get into politics. 

31-  Rose and Robert discouraged Rassendyll from writing a book. 
       Rose and Robert encouraged Rassendyll from writing a book. 
32-  Rudolf Rassendyll called on some old ambassadors that he knew in Paris. 

       Rudolf Rassendyll called on some old friends that he knew in Paris. 
33-  George Featherly is an English friend of Robert Rassendyll who works in the 
Paris embassy. 

       George Featherly is an English friend of Rudolf Rassendyll who works in the 
Paris embassy. 

34-  Bertram Bertrand is an English diplomat who works in Paris. 
       Bertram Bertrand is an English journalist who works in Paris. 
35-  Countess Rose is a lady who's well known for her wealth and ambition. 

       Antoinette de Mauban is a lady who's well known for her wealth and ambition. 
36-  Michael Elphberg was the half-cousin to the King of Ruritania. 
       Michael Elphberg was the half-brother to the King of Ruritania. 

37-  It was said that Rudolf Elphberg was his father‘s favourite son. 
       It was said that Michael Elphberg was his father‘s favourite son. 

38-  The Duke of Strelsau is said to be a stupid man. 
       The Duke of Strelsau is said to be a clever man. 
39-  At the Ruritanian border, the guards stared at Rudolf Elphberg. 

       At the Ruritanian border, the guards stared at Rudolf Rassendyll. 
40-  In Ruritania, Rassendyll read in the newspaper that the King's coronation was to 

be in three weeks' time. 
       In Ruritania, Rassendyll read in the newspaper that the King's coronation was to 
be in two days' time. 

41-  Dresden was the capital city of Ruritania. 
       Strelsau was the capital city of Ruritania. 
42-  The owner of the inn wasn‘t interested in the execution of the new King. 

       The owner of the inn wasn‘t interested in the coronation of the new King. 
43-  Lord Burlesdon was responsible for the land around Zenda and its castle. 

       Duke Michael was responsible for the land around Zenda and its castle. 
44-  Robert Rassendyll has always lived in Ruritania and he cares about the people. 
       Rudolf Elphberg has always lived in Ruritania and he cares about the people. 

45-  Not many people even knew what the Duke of Strelsau looked like. 
       Not many people even knew what King Rudolf the Fifth looked like. 
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Homework  ((A)) 
A)Answer the following questions: 
1- How old was Rudolf Rassendyll? 

2-What relation was Rose to Rassendyll? 

3-What did Rassendyll take pride in? 

4-Why was Rose so angry with Rassendyll ? 

5-How far was Rassendyll completely passive ? 

6- What qualifications has Rassendyll had? 

7- When would Jacob Borrodaile become an ambassador? 

8- Rudolf Rassendyll and Robert were two different characters.Explain 

9- Rose was very persuasive . Give examples 

10- How did Rassendyll know about about the coronation in Ruritania? 

11- Rudolf Rassendyll had to lie to Rose. Give reasons. 

12- Why did Robert praie Rassendyll for writing a book? 

13- Why did Rassendyll stop at Paris? 

14- What do you Know about George Featherly and Bertram Bertrand? 

15- According to George Featherly, Why was Antoinette in Paris? 

16- Why wouldn't the duke enjoy the coronation? 

17- Why didn't Rassendyll tell featherly that he was going to Ruritania? 

18- Who took the same train with Rassendyll? What do you know about her? 

19- How did the news he read in the paper affect his plans? 

20- Why did the guards at the train stared at Rassendyll? 

21- How far was Rassendyll similar to the descendants of countess Amelia? 

22- Why did Rassendyll want to visit Ruritania? 

23- The Rassendylls had great interest in the royal family in Ruritania . Discuss. 

24- What relation was the Duke to the king? 

25- What was Rassendyll going to write a book about? 

 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
  1- "She's angry because she thinks I don't do anything.” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What does the pronoun " she" refer to? 
 c) Why was she angry? 

2- " To a man like me , opportunities are responsibilties .” 
 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b) What was the listener point of view? 
c) What good news did the listener have for the speaker? 
3- " Where will he be working?” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b) What does " he" refer to? 
c) What job was " he " going to do? 
4-"He also realize his position in society has responsiblities. " 

a) Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b) What does the underlined pronoun "he " refer to? 
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c) What else is different between them? 

5-" I don't think he likes being only a Duke. " 
a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does the underlined pronoun "he " refer to? 
c)Why didn't this person like being only a Duke? 
6-" You have an important person to travel with. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Who is this important person? 
c)Where did the addressee say he was  travelling? 
 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- Rose wanted Rassendyll to do something useless. 
2-Rassendyll was leading a miserable life. 
3- Rassendyll's brother was a prince. 
4- Rassendyll had got black hair. 

5-The Rassendylls were the royal family of Ruritania. 

6- Rassendyll was having dinner when Rose came into the room. 
7- Rassendyll studied at an English school and university. 
8- Sir Jacob was going to be an adviser in six months. 
9-Rose thought that writing a book is good way to get into politics. 
10- George Featherly thought that Duke Michael is a humble man. 
11-Antoinette was traveling with her officers. 

12- Rassendyll told Featherly that he was traveling to Strelsau. 
13-Bertram was a famous politician in Paris. 
14- The guards at the Ruritaian borders were sad to see Rassendyll 
 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- How was Rassendyll received at the inn in Zenda? 

2- The Duke was popular with people . Give reasons 
3- The king didn't have wide popularity among the Ruritaian. Say why 
4- The old lady and her daughter had different opinions concerning the new king 
. Discuss 
5- How did the innkeeper's daughter know that the king had red hair? 
6- Why was Johann surprised when he saw Rassendyll at the hotel? 

7- Why did Rudolf Rassendyll feel sympathy towards Duke Michael? 
8- How did Johann behave when he saw Rassendyll? 
9- How was Johann generous to Rassendyll? 
10- What made Rassendyll accept Johann's offer to stay at his sister's house? 

11- Both the king an the Duke wanted the same thing. Explain 
12- Where was the king staying before the coronation? 

13- According to the old woman, why was the king at Zenda? 
14- Where did Rassendyll send his luggage? What was his plan? 
15- Why didn't the king tell Johann about his plan? 
16- Rassendyll went to the forest of Zenda for two reasons. What are they? 
17- The old castle was a completely fortified building. Explain 
18- How could the old castle and the manision be reached? 

19- Where would Rassendyll stay when he reached Strelsau? 
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20- Why was Rassendyll surprised when he saw the king? 
21- The Duke was absent from the king's company in the hunting lodge. Explain 

why 
22- What are the similarities and differences between Rassendyll and the king? 

23- What did Rassendyll tell Sapt and Fritz about himself? 
24- What was the effect of surprise on both Rassendyll and the king? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- " I wish he'd stay there in the forest .” 
  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)Who is the speaker talking about? 
  c) Why did the speaker wish he'd stay there in the forest ? 

2- " Let's say he prefers eating to Action .” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b) Who is the speaker talking about? 
 c)What does this show about this person's character ? 
3- " From there he will travel to the capital for his coronation.” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b) What does " there" refer to? 
c)Where did that conversation happen? 
4-"No, I've never seen him, but I hope to do so on Wednesday  " 
 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
 b)Who is the speaker talking about? 
 c)Where would the speaker really meet this person? 
5-" This gentleman's come to our country to see the coronation. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b) Whom did the speaker refer to? 
c)What was the listener's impression at that time? 
6-" He's about the same height as the king, too. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does the pronoun "he" refer to? 
 c) What did the speaker ask the listner about? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- The coronation was much later than Rassendyll  thought. 
2-  Duke Michael was almost a stranger to the people of Ruritania. 
3- Rudolf Elephberg was his father's favourite. 
4- Johann invited Rassendyll to stay with his brother in Strelsau. 

5- The castle of Zenda was surrounded by a river. 
6- The journey from Paris to Zenda by train was interesting. 

7- There was a famous old park in Zenda. 
8- Duke Michael wanted to be the minister. 
9- The old lady thought that the king should have the coronation. 
10- Rassendyll once served the princess in the army. 
11- The new castle could only be reached by a drawbridge. 

12- The king was a cruel man, so Sapt and Fritz would do anything for him. 
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Silence ّٕذ Hide ٠قزجئ 

Bow ٟٕ٠ٕؾ Cellar )ٕٝلجٛ )غوفخ ٌٍزقي٠ٓ أٍفً ِج 

Patiently ثٖجو Search ِ٠فز 

stare at ٝ٠ؾلق إٌظو ف Guard ً٠ؾو 

Forgive ٓ٠ٖفؼ ػ Meanwhile صٕبء مٌهفٟ أ 

step up to ٌٝرملَ فطٛاد إ walk off ٠ّْٟ ِجزؼلا 

Double ّٗج١ Lock ٌ٠ؾج 

Palace لٖو set off ٠جلأ اٌوؽٍخ 

Can't help ٓلا ٠َزط١غ أْ ٠زٛلف ػ immediately فٛها 

Wooden ٟفْج Interests ١ِٛي / ا٘زّبِبد 

Personal ّٟٖق weaknesses ٔمبٛ ٙؼف 

a table had been laid out أػلد اٌّبئلح Behave ٠زٖوف 

generous amounts و١ّبد ٚافوح at my side ٟإٌٝ عبٔج 

Delicious ٌُن٠ن اٌطؼ station guard اٌَّئٛي ػٓ اٌمطبه 

a guard of soldiers ًِغّٛػخ ِٓ اٌؾوا Towers أثواط 

Guards ًؽوا breathe deeply ٠زٕفٌ ثؼّك 

Hungrily ُٕٙث Cheer ٠ٙزف 

covered in water ِجًٍ رّبِب ثبٌّبء Marshal )١ِْو )هرجخ ػَىو٠خ 

wake him up ٗ٠ٛلظ Nervous لٍك/فبئف 

breathe heavily ٠زٕفٌ ثٖؼٛثخ Support ٠ؤ٠ل/٠َبٔل 

Pulse ٘إٌج Tiny ٕغ١و علا 

Poisoned َُِّ freezing cold ٓثوك لبه 

make the most of it ٠ًَزغٍٙب الاٍزغلاي الأِض Square ْ١ِلا 

Crown  ٠زٛط colorful ribbons أّوٛخ ٍِٛٔخ 

take the crown ُ٠َزٌٟٛ ػٍٝ اٌؼو colored flags  أػلاَ ٍِٛٔخ 

Perfect َوبًِ / رب call out ٠ٖوؿ/٠َزٕغل 

Forgive ٠َبِؼ nevertheless ِٚغ مٌه 

have no choice ١ٌٌ ٌل٠ٗ افز١به Actually فٟ اٌٛالغ 

expression  رؼج١و Delighted ٍؼ١ل/َِوٚه 

1- It was a very strange feeling for me to be standing in a forest in the 
middle of Ruritania in front of a person who looked exactly the same as 
me. For a few minutes, the future King of Ruritania and I stood looking at 
each other in silence. Then I bowed to him and he finally spoke.  

قادم لبضعة كان شعورا غريبا بالنسبة لي أن أكون واقفا في إحدى الغابات في دولة روريتانيا أمام شخص يشبيني تماما. وقفتُ أنا وممك روريتانيا ال
م ىو أخيرا.             دقائق ننظر إلى بعضنا البعض  في صمت, ثم انحنيتُ لتحيتو, وتكم  

2-"Colonel, Fritz: who is this gentleman?" I was about to answer when 

Colonel Sapt stepped forward and spoke quietly to the King. As the Colonel 
talked, the King listened patiently, staring at me now and then. While they 
were talking, I examined him carefully. He certainly looked very like me, 
although there were some differences: his mouth was perhaps less wide 
and my face was a little thinner. But in most ways we were identical.  

Chapter 2 

 
 



 

- 28 - 

  قال الممك, "أييا العقيد, فريتز, من ىذا السيد النبيل؟" كنتُ عمى وشك أن أجيب عندما تقدم العقيد سابت خطوة للأمام وتحدث مع الممك
ة. بالتأكيد بيدوء. بينما العقيد كان يتحدث, كان ينصت لو الممك بتفيم وكان يحدّق في بين الحين والآخر. بينما كانا يتحدثان, كنت أفحص الممك بدق

. الاختلافات بيننا, ففمو كان أقل عرضا, ووجيي كان أنحف قميلا, ولكن بوجو عام كنا متماثمينكان يشبيني بدرجة كبيرة عمى الرغم من وجود بعض 
          
 3-Colonel Sapt stopped talking and 
the King suddenly began to laugh loudly. 
Then he stepped up to me, still laughing, 
and said, "It's good to meet you, 
cousin! You must forgive me if I 
seemed surprised, as it's not every 
day that you see your double!"  

       "I hope you're not angry," I said. 
"Whether I like it or not, you can't help 
looking like me. No, I'll happily help 
you. Where are you travelling to?"  
"To Strelsau, sir. To the coronation." 

The King looked at the two other men and 
smiled. "What would my brother Michael 
think if he saw us two together!" he 

cried. 
  توقف العقيد سابت عن الحديث, وفجأة بدأ الممك يضحك بصوت عالٍ, ثم تقدم خطوات ناحيتي وىو مازال يضحك وقال, "أنا سعيد بمقابمتك يا
ابن العم. أرجو أن تسامحني لأن الدىشة كانت تبدو عميّ, فأنت لا تقابل مثيمك كل يوم." فقمت, "أرجو ألا يكون ذلك أغضبك." فقال, "سواء أحببتُ  
ذلك أم لا, فلا مفر من أن تكون شبييا لي. أنا لستُ غاضبا, ويسعدني أن أقدم لك مساعدة, إلى أين أنت مسافر؟" فقمت, "إلى ستريمسو, أنا ذاىب 

 إلى حفل التتويج." نظر الممك إلى الرجمين الآخرين وابتسم ثم صاح قائلا, "ما الذي سيخطر ببال أخي مايكل إذا رآنا نحن الاثنين معا." 
4-"But sir," said Fritz von Tarlenheim, "I don't think it would be a good 
idea for Mr Rassendyll to visit Strelsau now."  
"Really? What do you think?" the King asked Colonel Sapt. 
"I agree. He mustn't go," said the old soldier. 
 "Don't worry, sir. I understand the problem," I said. "I'll leave 
Ruritania today." 
 "You don't need to go now!" said the King. "Please, first you must eat 
with me tonight. You don't meet a new cousin every day!"  
  قال فريتز فون تارلنيايم, "ولكن يا سيدي, أنا لا أعتقد أنيا ستكون فكرة جيدة أن يذىب السيد راسيندل إلى ستريمسو الآن." فسأل الممك العقيد
سابت, "حقا؟ ما رأيك؟" فقال الضابط الكبير سنا, "أنا أتفق مع فريتز. لا يجب أبدا أن يذىب راسيندل إلى ىناك." فقمتُ, "لا عميك يا سيدي, أنا متفيم 
المشكمة. سوف أغادر روريتانيا اليوم." فقال الممك, "لا داعي أن تغادر اليوم. من فضمك, لابد أولا أن تتناول معي الطعام الميمة. أنت لا تقابل ابن 

 عم جديد كل يوم." 

5-"Remember, sir, that we have an early start tomorrow," said Colonel 

Sapt. 
"We can still eat well," said the King, "and good food is more 
important than sleep! Now Mr Rassendyll, what's your first name?" 
"The same as yours," I answered, bowing again. 
"Come, then, cousin Rudolf. I don't have a house here, but I'm staying 
in the place my brother Michael uses for hunting. It's not the palace 
that I'm used to, but it will do for a few days." 
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So I walked with the King for half an hour through the forest, talking 
happily until we reached a small wooden hunting lodge between the trees. 
The King's personal servant came out to meet us. The other servant was 
the mother of Johann, the man who I had met earlier at the inn. 
  .قال العقيد سابت, "تذكر يا سيدي أن يومنا سيبدأ مبكرا غدا." فقال الممك, "ومع ذلك يمكننا أن نأكل جيدا, كما أن الطعام الجيد أىم من النوم
يا سيد راسيندل, ما اسمك الأول؟" فأجبتُ وأنا أنحني لو مرة ثانية, "ىو نفس اسمك." فقال, "تعالى إذن يا ابن العم رودولف. أنا لا أمتمك منزلا ىنا, 

 ولكني أقيم في المكان الذي يستخدمو أخي مايكل أثناء الصيد. إنو ليس كالقصر الذي اعتدت عميو, ولكنو يفي بالغرض لبضعة أيام."
حدث بلا تكمّف حتى وصمنا إلى كوخ خشبي صغير يُستخدم عند الصيد ويقع بين وىكذا, قمتُ بالسير مع الممك لمدة نصف ساعة عبر الغابة نت

 الأشجار. خرج خادم الممك الشخصي لملاقاتنا. كانت الخادمة الأخرى ىي والدة جوىان, الرجل الذي قابمتو في الفندق الريفي.       
6-"Is dinner ready yet, Josef?" the King asked the servant. 

The servant said it was and showed us into a dining room where a table 
had been laid out with generous amounts of food. After my walk I was 
hungry, so I ate a lot and the food was delicious, but I noticed that Colonel 
Sapt and Fritz von Tarlenheim did not want to eat too much because of the 
events the next day. 
"The Colonel and I have to leave here at six tomorrow morning," Fritz 
explained. "We ride to Zenda and return with a guard of soldiers to 
take the King to the station." 
"It's very good of my brother to let me use his guards," said the King. 
"But Rudolf, forget these two men! We don't need to get up so early, 
so eat some more, cousin!" 

  سأل الممك الخادم, "ىل العشاء جاىز يا جوزيف؟" ردّ الخادم بالإيجاب, ورافقنا إلى غرفة الطعام حيث كانت ىناك منضدة معدّة وعمييا كمية
أن العقيد سابت وفيرة من الطعام. كنتُ جائعا بعد المسافة التي قطعتيا سيرا عمى الأقدام, لذلك أكمتُ كثيرا من الطعام الذي كان شييا. ولكني لاحظتُ 

وفريتز فون تارلنيايم لم يرغبا في تناول الكثير بسبب الفعاليات التي ستحدث في اليوم التالي. شرح لي فريتز قائلا, "سو ف نغادر أنا والعقيد سابت 
ىنا في السادسة من صباح الغد. سنمتطي خيولنا إلى زندا ثم نعود ومعنا أحد الجنود الحراس لنصطحب الممك إلى محطة القطار." قال الممك, "إنو 

شيئ طيب جدا من أخي أن يسمح لي باستخدام حراّسو. ولكن يا رودولف, لا تشغل بالك بيذين الرجمين! فنحن لسنا بحاجة إلى الاستيقاظ مبكرا عمى 
 ىذا النحو. إذا, تناول المزيد من الطعام يا ابن العم!"

7-We continued to eat and Josef continued to bring in more food. "The 
Duke said I was to give you this at the end of your meal," said the 

servant, putting some cakes in front of us. 
"Well done, Michael! He knows me well!" said the King happily, and he 

ate the cakes hungrily, as if they were the first thing he had eaten all day. I 
ate one of the cakes, but I had really eaten enough, and when the King 
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seemed to have finally finished eating, I asked to go to bed. That is all I 
remember of that evening.   
  واصمنا تناول الطعام وواصل جوزيف إحضار المزيد منو. قال الخادم وىو يضع أمامنا بعض الكعك, "قال لي الدوق أنو يجب عميّ أن أقدم لك
ىذا في نياية وجبتك." فقال الممك سعيدا, "أحسنت صنعا يا مايكل. إنو يعرفني جيدا." ثم أكل الكعك بنيم كما لو كان ىو أول شيئ يأكمو طوال اليوم. 

ذا كل ما أتذكره أنا أكمت كعكة واحدة فقط حيثُ كنتُ قد أكمتُ ما يكفي بالفعل. وعندما بدا أن الممك قد فرغ أخيرا من الطعام, طمبتُ أن أذىب لمنوم. ى
 في ذلك المساء.        

8-The next thing I remember, I woke up suddenly covered in water. I 
looked up and saw Colonel Sapt standing in front of me, with Fritz von 
Tarlenheim next to him. "That wasn't funny," I said, when I realised the 

Colonel had thrown water over me. 
 "Nothing else would wake you up. It's five o'clock," said Sapt. "Five 
o'clock? But it's early and ... " 
"Rassendyll," said Fritz in a worried voice, "you must come and look at 
this." He took my arm and led me to the next room. The King was lying on 

the floor. His face was red and he was breathing heavily. 
 ز فون تارلنيايم, الشيئ التالي الذي أتذكره ىو أنني استيقظتُ فجأة وقد غطى الماء وجيي. رفعتُ رأسي لأعمى فرأيتُ العقيد سابت يقف أمامي وبجواره فريت

فقمت عندما أدركت أن العقيد قد نثر الماء فوقي, "لم يكن ىذا شيئا مضحكا." فقال سابت, "لم تكن ىناك أي وسيمة أخرى لتوقظك من النوم. الساعة الآن الخامسة." 
فقمت, "الخامسة؟ ولكن الوقت مبكر و..." فقال فريتز بصوت يبدو عميو القمق, "راسيندل, يجب أن تأتي وتنظر إلى ىذا." وأخذني من ذراعي وقادني حتى الغرفة 

 التالية. كان الممك ممقى عمى الأرض ولون وجيو أحمر ويتنفس بصعوبة.       
9-"We've been trying to wake him up for half an hour, but we can't," 

explained Fritz. I bent down and felt his pulse, which was very weak and 
slow. "It must've been those cakes that he ate last night! Do you think 

he was poisoned?" I asked. 
"We don't know," said Sapt. 
"We must get a doctor." 
"There's no doctor for 
fifteen kilometres and 
even a thousand doctors 
won't make him better 
today," said Fritz. 
"But what about the 
coronation?" I cried. 
"We must tell the people of 

Ruritania that he's ill," said Fritz. 
"If he's not crowned today, I don't think he'll ever be King," said Sapt. 

"But why?" I asked. 
"The whole country's waiting for him today. Most of the army is 
waiting too, with Duke Michael leading it. They won't be happy," said 

Sapt.  
  ,شرح فريتز لي قائلا, "نحن نحاول إفاقتو منذ نصف ساعة ولكننا لم نستطع." انحنيتُ إلى أسفل وقمتُ بجس نبضو فوجدتو ضعيفا وبطيئا لمغاية. قمتُ ليما

"إنو بالتأكيد ذلك الكعك الذي أكمو الميمة الماضية. ىل تعتقدان أنو تعرّض لمتسمم؟" فقال سابت, "لا نعمم. يجب أن نحضر طبيبا." فقال فريتز, "لا يوجد طبيب 
لمسافة خمسة عشر كيمومترا, وحتى لو ىناك ألف طبيب فمن يستطيعوا شفائو اليوم." فصرختُ قائلا, "ولكن ماذا عن حفل التتويج؟" فقال فريتز, "عمينا أن نخبر 
شعب روريتانيا بأنو مريض." قال سابت, "لو لم يتم تتويجو اليوم, فلا أعتقد أنو سيكون ممكا بعد ذلك عمى الإطلاق." فسألتو, "ولكن لماذا؟" فقال سابت, "الدولة 

 كميا تنتظره اليوم. ومعظم الجيش, الذي يقوده الدوق مايكل, يترقب أيضا, إنيم لن يكونوا سعداء بذلك."     
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10-"We must tell everyone what's happened and make the most of it," 

said Fritz, getting up to leave. Sapt stopped him. 
 "Do you think that he was poisoned?" he asked me. 
 "Yes, I do," I answered. 
 "Then who did it?" 
"It must have been Duke Michael!" Fritz said angrily. 
"Yes, he did this so that his brother cannot be crowned," continued 
Sapt. "You don't know what the Duke is like, do you, Rassendyll? If 
Rudolf doesn't become King, Duke Michael will take the crown." 

 We all sat in silence while we thought about what we could do. Then Sapt 
suddenly stood up. "I have an idea! It was lucky that we met you 
yesterday," he said excitedly, looking at me, "because you can go to 
Strelsau to be crowned!" 
  قال فريتز وىو ينيض استعدادا لممغادرة, "يجب أن نخبر الجميع بما حدث ونستغل ذلك لصالحنا." فأوقفو سابت الذي سألني, "ىل تعتقد أنو تم
دس السم لو؟" فأجبتو بأنني أعتقد ذلك, فتساءل, "إذا من الذي فعل ذلك؟" فأجاب فريتز غاضبا, "إنو بالتأكيد الدوق مايكل." فاستطرد سابت قائلا, 
"نعم, إنو فعل ذلك حتى لا يمكن تتويج أخيو. أنت لا تعرف شخصية الدوق يا راسيندل, أليس كذلك؟ لو لم يصبح رودولف ممكا, فسوف يستولي 

الدوق مايكل عمى التاج."جمسنا جميعا صامتين نفكر فيما يمكننا عممو. ثم نيض سابت فجأة وقال بحماس وىو ينظر لي, "عندي فكرة. لقد كان من 
 حسن الحظ أن نقابمك بالأمس, لأنك تستطيع أن تذىب إلى ستريمسو لكي يتم تتويجك!"

11-"Me? That's impossible!" I laughed. "People would realise that I'm 
not the King! And don't forget that I'm English!" 
"It would be easy to forget that," said Fritz, "because your German's 
perfect. And if we dress you in different clothes, no one will know." 
"If you don't go to Strelsau, Duke Michael will be King tonight, and 
the King will either be dead or in prison," said Sapt. 
"I understand what you're saying, but the King would never forgive 
me if I..." "Our country needs this!" cried Sapt. 

Standing up, I walked round the room in silence. The clock ticked sixty 
times, then seventy, eighty. I looked at the poor King lying on the floor and 
realised I had no choice. Sapt clearly read my expression, because he 
smiled even before I said quietly, "Very well, I'll go." 
  قمتُ ضاحكا, "أنا؟ ىذا مستحيل. سيلاحظ الناس أنني لستُ الممك, ولا تنسى أنني إنجميزي." فقال فريتز, "من السيل أن نغض الطرْف عن ذلك

ذا قمنا بإلباسك ملابس مختمفة, لن يعرف أحد." قال سابت, "لو لم تذىب إلى ستريمسو, سيصبح الدوق مايكل ممكا  لأن لغتك الألمانية ممتازة, وا 
الميمة, والممك إما أن يموت أو يتم الزج بو في السجن." فقمت, "أنا متفيم ما تقولان, ولكن لن يغفر لي الممك مطمقا إذا..." فصرخ سابت مقاطعا, "إن 
بمدنا تحتاج ذلك." فوقفتُ, ومشيتُ في أنحاء الحجرة في صمت. أصدرت ساعة الحائط تكاتيا ستين مرة, ثم وصل العدد إلى سبعين, فثمانين. نظرتُ 

بت تعبير وجيي بوضوح لأنو ابتسم حتى قبل أن أقول بيدوء, إلى الممك المسكين الممقى عمى الأرض وأدركتُ أنو ليس أمامي بديل آخر. قرأ سا
 "حسنا جدا, سأذىب."     

12-"We won't wait for Michael's guards but leave for Strelsau at 
once," said Sapt. "We can hide the King in the cellar so when the 
guards arrive they'll think no one's here," said Sapt. 
"What if they search the building?" asked Fritz. 
"Josef will say the hunting lodge is empty," said Sapt. "This is our 
only chance."  
"How will we get the King to Strelsau?" I asked. 
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"Tonight we sleep in the palace," said Sapt. "As soon as we are alone 
in the King's bedroom, you and I will leave and come back here on 
our horses. Fritz can stay and guard the King's bedroom in the 
palace, and I will tell Josef to get the King ready for the journey 
back. The King will then return to the palace with me in the dark. 
Meanwhile, you will ride as fast as you can to the border and try to 
leave the country before it's light. Do we all agree on this plan?" 
"I agree," I said. 

"It's a good plan," said Fritz.   
  قال سابت, "لن ننتظر حراس مايكل, بل سنغادر إلى ستريمسو في الحال. يمكن أن نخبئ الممك في القبو, بحيث عندما يصل الحراس يعتقدون
أنو لا يوجد أحد ىنا." فسألو فريتز, "ماذا لو قاموا بتفتيش المبنى؟" فقال سابت, "سوف يقول ليم جوزيف أنو لا يوجد أحد في كوخ الصيد. ىذه ىي 
فرصتنا الوحيدة." فسألتُ, "كيف سنأخذ الممك إلى ستريمسو؟" فقال سابت, "الميمة, نبيتُ في القصر وبمجرد أن نصبح بمفردنا في حجرة نوم الممك, أنا 

وأنت نغادر عائدين إلى ىنا عمى ظير الخيل. فريتز سيبقى في القصر ليحرس حجرة نوم الممك, وأنا سأبمغ جوزيف أن يجيز الممك لرحمة العو دة. 
بعد ذلك سيعود الممك معي في الظلام إلى القصر. وفي ىذه الأثناء, تمتطي أنت الجواد بأسرع ما يمكنك لتصل إلى الحدود وتحاول أن تغادر البمد 

 قبل طموع النيار. ىل نحن جميعا موافقون عمى ىذه الخطة؟" فقمت لو أنني موافق, وقال فريتز, "إنيا خطة جيدة."         
13-Sapt and Fritz picked up the King and began to carry him out of the 
room, but we realised we were being watched by Johann's mother, who 
looked at us with a strange expression before walking off. "I think she 
heard us," said Sapt. "After we've moved the King, I'll speak to her." 

Meanwhile, Josef began to dress me in some of the King's clothes. When 
Fritz returned, he looked at me and said, "You know, I think we can do 
this." "What happened to Johann's mother?" I asked. 
"She's locked in the cellar with the King," said Fritz. "Josef will let her 
out later, after Michael's gone. But I'm sure, when they find that the 
King is not here, Michael will realise we know about his plan."  
"Let's go," said Sapt, returning into the room.  
"Is all safe here?" asked Fritz. 
"No, nothing's safe anywhere, but we must do our best," answered 

Sapt.    
  قبل أن سابت وفريتز قاما برفع الممك وحممو إلى خارج الحجرة, ولكننا أدركنا أن والدة جوىان كانت تراقبنا ونظرت لنا وعمى وجييا تعبير غريب

تنصرف. قال سابت, "أعتقد أنيا سمعتنا. بعد أن نقوم بنقل الممك, سوف أتحدث معيا." في ىذه الأثناء, بدأ جوزيف يساعدني في ارتداء بعض 
ملابس الممك. عندما عاد فريتز, نظر إلي وقال, "أعتقد أننا سننجح." فسألتو, "ماذا حدث لوالدة جوىان؟" فقال, "تم احتجازىا في القبو مع الممك. 

سوف يطمق جوزيف سراحيا فيما بعد, بعد مغادرة مايكل. ولكني متأكد أنيم عندما يجدوا أن الممك غير موجود ىنا, سيُدرك مايكل أننا نعرف خطتو." 
قال سابت عندما عاد إلى الحجرة, "ىيا بنا نغادر." فسألو فريتز, "ىل كل شيئ آمن ىنا؟" فأجاب سابت, "لا, لا شيئ آمن في أي مكان, ولكن يجب 

 عمينا بذل قصارى جيدنا." 

14-We were now all in uniforms and set off on horses. It was a cool 
morning and Sapt immediately began to tell me the history of the King's 
life: of his family, likes, interests, weaknesses, friends and servants. He 
told me how I should behave in the palace and said he would always be at 
my side to tell me who the people were that I met. Soon we reached the 
station. Fritz told the surprised-looking station guard that the King had 
changed his plans, and we got on the train to the capital. I looked at my 
watch – or I should say, the King's watch – and asked Fritz if he thought 
Duke Michael had found the King. "I hope not," said Fritz. After a short 
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time we passed the towers and buildings of the capital and I could see we 
were near the station.   

  يحكي لي قصة حياة الممك. كنا جميعا الآن نرتدي الزي الرسمي, وبدأنا الرحمة عمى ظير الخيل. كان صباحا باردا, وبدأ سابت عمى الفور
حكى لي عن عائمتو والأشياء التي يحبيا واىتماماتو ونقاط ضعفو وأصدقائو وخدمو. وأخبرني كيف يجب أن أتصرف في القصر, وقال أنو سيكون 

بدا مندىشا أن الممك قد دائما إلى جواري ليحدثني عن الأشخاص الذين سوف أقابميم. سريعا, وصمنا إلى المحطة. قال فريتز لحارس المحطة الذي 
دوق غير خططو, وصعدنا إلى القطار متجيين إلى العاصمة. نظرتُ في ساعتي, أو يجب أن أقول في ساعة الممك, وسألت فريتز إذا كان يعتقد أن ال
 مايكل قد وجد الممك, فقال, "أتمنى ألا يكون قد حدث ذلك." بعد وقت قصير مررنا بأبراج ومباني العاصمة ورأيتُ أننا كنا نقترب من المحطة.   

15-"How are you feeling?" asked Sapt. "Nervous," I replied. "I'm not 
made of stone, you know." 
"You'll be fine. But we are an hour earlier than they expect, so 
there'll be no one to meet us. We must send word to the palace. So 
meanwhile ... " 
"Meanwhile, I'll have some breakfast!" I cried. "The King is hungry!" 
Sapt smiled at me, then took my hand. "Let's hope we're all alive 
tonight." 

The train stopped and I breathed deeply as we stepped out onto the station 
at Strelsau. A moment later and everything was suddenly busy: men ran 
up to us, then ran away again, soldiers rode off on horses, other men 
showed me to the station restaurant. As I ate my breakfast, I could hear 
music and people cheering "God save the King!" in preparation for the 
coronation. 
"God save both Kings," said Sapt.   
  سألني سابت, "ما ىو شعورك الآن؟" فقمت, "متوتر. فأنا بشر من لحم ودم." فقال, "ستكون عمى ما يرام. ولكننا وصمنا ساعة مبكرا عما كانوا
يتوقعونو, لذلك فمن يكون ىناك أحد في استقبالنا. يجب أن نرسل تنبييا بوصولنا إلى القصر, وفي ىذه الأثناء ..." فصرختُ فيو مقاطعا, "في ىذه 

الأثناء, سأتناول الإفطار. الممك جوعان." ابتسم لي سابت, وأمسك يدي قائلا, "دعنا نأمل أن نكون جميعا عمى قيد الحياة اليوم." توقف القطار 
عد ذلك بدقيقة واحدة أصبح كل شيئ مميئ بالحركة, جرى رجال نحونا ثم جروا وأخذتُ نفسا عميقا بينما كنا نخطو لمخارج إلى المحطة في ستريمسو. ب

شخاص مبتعدين مرة أخرى, امتطى جنودا خيوليم وابتعدوا, ورافقني رجال آخرون إلى مطعم المحطة. وأثناء تناول إفطاري, سمعتُ أصوات موسيقى وأ
 ييتفون قائمين, "حفظ الله الممك", كانوا يستعدون لحفل التتو يج. قال سابت, "حفظ الله كِلا الممكين."  

16-When we left the restaurant, we saw that a group of soldiers had 
arrived to welcome us. It was led by a tall old man whose jacket was 
covered in medals. "That is Marshal Strakencz," said Sapt, so that I 

knew who he was: a very important person in the army. The Marshal 
greeted me and said he was sorry that the Duke could not meet me at the 
station but that he would see me shortly. I answered as politely and 
formally as I could, and began to feel less nervous when no one seemed to 
realise that I was not the real King. But I saw that Fritz was still very 
nervous when he shook the Marshal's hand.   

  عند مغادرة المطعم, رأينا مجموعة من الجنود الذين وصموا لمترحيب بنا. كان قائد المجموعة رجل طويل وكبير سنا, وكانت سُترتو تمتمئ
بالأنواط. قال سابت لكي أعرف من ىو, "ىذا ىو المارشال ستراكنتش." إنو شخص ميم جدا في الجيش. قام المارشال بتحيتي واعتذر لي لأن الدوق 

دما لم يتمكن من استقبالي في المحطة, وقال أنو سيقابمني قريبا. كنت أرد بطريقة ميذبة ورسمية قدر استطاعتي, وبدأت أشعر بأنني أقل توترا عنلم 
 يبدو أن أي شخص قد أدرك أنني لست الممك. ولكني رأيتُ أن فريتز كان مازال متوترا لمغاية عندما قام بمصافحة المارشال. 

17-The soldiers led us out of the station, where we got onto horses that 
were waiting outside. I began to ride through the capital with the Marshal 
on my right and Sapt on my left. As we were riding, I saw that the city was 
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partly old and partly new. There were wide, modem streets where the rich 
people lived in big houses. These were the people who had always lived well 
under the King's father, and who would support the new King because they 
knew that nothing would change.   

 ل سار الجنود أمامنا حتى خرجنا من المحطة, ثم امتطينا الخيول التي كانت تنتظر بالخارج. بدأتُ أتجول عبر العاصمة راكبا, وكان المارشا
عة واس عمي يميني وسابت عمى يساري. بينما كنا نتجول بالخيول رأيتُ أن جزءا من المدينة كان قديما والجزء الآخر كان جديدا. كانت ىناك شوارع

يساندون حديثة حيث يعيش الأثرياء في منازل كبيرة. ىؤلاء ىم الناس الذين كانوا يعيشون دائما حياة جيدة في عيد والد الممك, وىم الذين كانوا 
 الممك الجديد لأنيم يعرفون أنو لن يحدث تغيير في أي شيئ.  

18-But behind the modem streets was a very different area that made up 
the old town. Here thousands of people were crowded into tiny houses 
which were old and hot in the summer, freezing cold in the winter. These 
narrow streets were where the city's many poor people lived, and these 
people did not want things to stay the same. For that reason, they did not 
like the King and supported Duke Michael, who told them he wanted 
things to be different and gave them hope for a better future. I knew that 
this area would not be very safe for me, the King. 

  ولكن خمف الشوارع الحديثة كانت ىناك منطقة مختمفة تماما والتي كانت تمثل المدينة القديمة. ىنا كان يكتظ الآلاف من الناس في منازل
, لفقراءصغيرة جدا والتي كانت قديمة وفييا الحرارة مرتفعة في الصيف والبرودة قارصة في الشتاء. كان يسكن في ىذه الشوارع الضيقة الكثير من ا
أنو يريد أن وىؤلاء الناس لم يكونوا يريدون أن تظل الأوضاع عمى حاليا. وليذا السبب, ىم لم يحبوا الممك وكانوا يؤيدون الدوق مايكل الذي أخبرىم 

 يجعل الأمور مختمفة وأعطاىم أملا في حياة أفضل. كنت أعرف أن ىذه المنطقة لم تكن آمنة بالنسبة لي, بصفتي الممك.       
19-We continued towards a great square where the palace stood. There 
were coloured flags and colourful ribbons everywhere and people lined the 
streets, clapping and cheering. I waved to them as we passed and people 
threw flowers down from the balconies above me. One flower fell on my 
horse, so I picked it up and stuck it onto my coat. Seeing me do this, the 
Marshal looked at me, but I could not tell from his expression whether he 
was happy or angry. 

  واصمنا السير باتجاه ميدان كبير حيث كان يوجد القصر. كانت ىناك رايات وشرائط ممونة في كل مكان, وكان الناس يصطفون في الشوارع
يا يصفقون وييتفون. لوّحتُ ليم بيدي أثناء مرورنا, وكان الناس يمقون بالورود فوقي من الشُرفات. سقطت إحدى الورود عمى حُصاني, فالتقطت

  تثبيتيا في معطفي. نظر المارشال إليّ عندما رآني أفعل ذلك, ولكني لم أستطع أن أحدد من خلال تعبير وجيو إذا كان سعيدا أم غاضبا.   وقمتُ ب

20-Nevertheless, I smiled happily at the Marshal. I have written "happily" 
but that is really how I felt. The truth is, at that moment, I really believed 
that I was actually the King. I looked up and laughed, delighted to see so 
much colour and so many happy faces. Then I looked again in surprise: 
there, on a balcony above me, was the proud smile of the traveller on the 
train, Antoinette de Mauban. As she stared at me, her expression changed. 
Surely she knew who I was. Surely she would call out, "That is not the 
real King!"     

ة صدّقتُ ورغم ذلك, ابتسمتُ لممارشال بسعادة. كتبتُ كممة "بسعادة" لكن كان ىذا ىو الإحساس الذي انتابني حقا. فالحقيقة ىي أنني في تمك المحظ
. ثم نظرتُ مرة أنني الممك بالفعل. رفعتُ بصري لأعمى وضحكت, كنت مسرورا لرؤية ىذا الكم اليائل من الألوان وىذا العدد الكبير من الوجوه السعيدة
دّقت في, تغير أخرى مندىشا, فيناك في إحدى الشُرفات العالية, رأيتُ الابتسامة الواثقة لممسافرة التي كانت في القطار, أنطوانيت دو موبان. عندما ح

 تعبير وجييا. بالتأكيد عرفت حقيقتي, بالتأكيد كانت ستصرخ قائمة, "ىذا ليس ىو الممك الحقيقي.
 
" 
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Questions & Answers 
 
1- What slight differences فررقق ففيفرح did Rudolf Rassendyll notice 

between him and the king of Ruritania? 
   He noticed that the king‘s mouth was less wide and Rudolf‘s face was a 
little thinner. 

 
2- Why did the king of Ruritania seem surprised when he saw Rudolf 

Rassendyll? 
   Because Rudolf Rassendyll looked exactly the same as him. 

 
3- Why do you think Fritz says that it is not a good time for 

Rassendyll to visit Strelsau? 
   Because he looked exactly like the king and that may cause problems 
for Rudolf and for the King. 

 
4- What did the king invite Rudolf to do? 
  - He invited him to have dinner with him in the hunting lodge. 

 
5- Where was the king staying in the forest? 
  He was staying in the hunting lodge. 

 
6- Who was Josef? 
   - He was a servant to the king of Ruritania. 

 
7- What did Colonel Sapt advise the King to do concerning  تخصرو 

dinner in the hunting lodge? Why? 
  He advised him not to eat too much because they had to leave early the 
next day. 

 
8- Why did Rassendyll eat a lot when the King invited him to dinner? 
  Because he was hungry after his long walk, and the food was delicious  

 
9- What did the King's servant bring him at the end of his meal? 
  He brought the king some cakes. 

 
10- Why didn't Fritz and Sapt eat very much? What advice did they give 
the King? 

  They didn‘t want to overeat َ٠ىضو ِظٓ رٕظبٚي اٌطؼظب because they had to get up 
early the next day. They advised the King not to eat too much. 
 

11- How did Colonel Sapt wake Rudolf Rassendyll up? 
   He threw water over him. 
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12- Why couldn't Colonel Sapt and Fritz wake up the king the next 

morning in the hunting lodge? 

   It seemed ٚوبْ ٠جل that the king had been poisoned ّٗرُ ر١َّ by the cakes 
he ate the night before. 

 
13- The cakes that the king ate in the hunting lodge had a very bad 

effect on him. Explain. 

  His face was red and he was breathing heavily. ٠زٕفٌ ثٖؼٛثخ His pulse was 

weak and slow. إٌج٘ ٙؼ١ف ٚثطٟء 
 

14- Why was it difficult to bring a doctor to help the king? 
     Because there was no doctor for 15 kilometers and even a thousand 
doctors wouldn't make him better that day as he was too ill. 

 
15- Why did the Duke poison يطون the King? 
He hoped that the King would miss the coronation and that he (the Duke) 
would become the King instead. 

 
16- Why wasn‟t  Rassendyll as sick as the King? 
    Because he ate only one cake, ,but  The King ate more, so he received 
more poison. 

 
17- According to Colonel Sapt, what would happen if Rudolf Elphberg 

wasn't crowned on the specified day اليوم الوحذد? 
   He wouldn't ever be the king. 

 
18- What would happen if Duke Michael managed to take the crown? 
  Rudolf Elphberg (the king) would either be dead or in prison. 

 
19- What did Colonel Sapt suggest to prevent Duke Michael from taking 

the crown? 

  He said that Rudolf Rassendyll could go to Strelsau to be crowned ٠زظٛط as 
he was exactly like the king. 

 
20- Why was Rudolf Rassendyll the ideal  هثرال person to replace  يحرل

 ?the king هحل
  He looked exactly like the king. His German was perfect. 

 
21- At first, Rudolf Rassendyll objected to  اعررر replacing the king for 

two reasons. What were they? 

  People would realise ٠ظلهن that he wasn't the king. He was English. He 
wasn't a Ruritanian. 
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22- Why did Fritz and Colonel Sapt hide يخثئ the king in the cellar المثو 

of the hunting lodge? 

  The king was unconscious ٟفبلل اٌٛػ and they didn't want Duke Michael's 
guards to find him. 
 

23- What was Colonel Sapt's plan to get the ill king back to the palace? 
  Sapt, Fritz and Rudolf Rassendyll would go to the palace. Sapt and Rudolf 
would go back to the hunting lodge to bring the king while Fritz would stay 

in the palace to guard ً٠ؾو the king's bedroom. Then Rudolf would leave the 
country. 

 
24- What was Johann's mother job? 
  She was a servant of the Duke. 

 
25- Why was Johann's mother locked حثطد in the cellar with the king? 
  She was locked in the cellar because she overheard Colonel Sapt's plan to 

rescue ٠ٕمن the king. 

 
26- Why do Sapt, Fritz and Rudolf Rassendyll go to the station early 

instead of waiting for Duke Michael's guards? 
   They wanted to get out of the lodge and be on their way to the capital 
before the Duke‘s men came. 

 
27- What things did Sapt tell Rudolf Rassendyll about the King on their 

way to the palace? 
  He told him about the history of the King's life, of his family, likes, 

interests ا٘زّبِبد, weaknesses ٔمبٛ اٌٚؼف, friends and servants. 

 
28- What did Fritz tell the station guard حراسش to justify يُثررس their early 

coming to the station? 
   He told him that the King had changed his plans. 

 
29- What is the first thing Fritz, Sapt and Rudolf Rassendyll do when 

they reach the capital?  
  The first thing they do is eat breakfast at the train station.  

 
30- Why weren't the people from the palace at the station in Strelsau to 

meet Rudolf Rassendyll, Fritz and Sapt? 
   because the King (Rassendyll) arrived earlier than planned. 

 
31- Who was Marshal Strakencz? 
  He was an important person in the Ruritanian army. 
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32- Why did Fritz feel very nervous  عصرث when he shook Marshal 

Strakencz's hand? 
  He was afraid that the Marshal might discover that Rudolf Rassendyll 
wasn't the real King. 

 
33- What kind of life did rich people live in the capital of Strelsau? 
  They lived a comfortable life in big houses built in wide, modern streets. 

 
34- What kind of life did poor people live in Strelsau? 

  They lived a hard life. People were crowded ِيكؽّظخ into tiny ٕظغ١وح houses 

which were old and hot in summer, freezing cold ّظل٠لح اٌجظوٚكح in winter. The 
streets were narrow. 

 
35- Why did the rich of Strelsau support يؤيذ: the King ? 
  They supported the King as they had always lived well under the King's 
father and they knew that nothing would change. 

 
36- Why did the poor people of Strelsau support Duke Michael?  
   -Because they didn't want things to stay the same. 
      -Duke Michael told them he wanted things to be different  
      -He gave them hope for a better future. 
      - He cared for them. 

 
37- Why was Rassendyll afraid when he saw Antoinette de Mauban 

staring at him in Strelsau? 

Her expression رؼج١ظو changed, so he thought she recognised رؼظوف that he is 
not the real King. He wasafraid that she would shout out and tell others. 

Quotations 
1- "What would my brother Michael think if he saw us two together!" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
    - The king said this to Colonel Sapt and Fritz von Tarlenheim. 
2- Who were the two people referred to here? 
    - They were the king of Ruritania and Rudolf Rassendyll. 
3- Why did the speaker say this? 
    - Because he and Rudolf looked exactly alike, so Duke Michael wouldn‘t 
believe it. 
 
2- "But sir, I don't think it would be a good idea for Mr Rassendyll to 

visit Strelsau now." 
1- Who said these words to whom? 
    - Fritz said these words to the King. 
2- Why did the speaker think it wasn't a good idea for Rassendyll to 
do so? 
    - Because it wouldn't be nice for the people to see a double of their King. 
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3- Why did the speaker have to change his opinion hours later? 
   - Because the King was poisoned and if he wasn't crowned that day, 
Michael would take the crown. So Rassendyll was asked to take the King's 
place. 
 
3- "You don't need to go now! Please, first you must eat with me 
tonight. You don't meet a new cousin every day!" 

1- Who said these words to whom? 
  - The king said these words to Rudolf Rassendyll.  
2- Where was the addressed person going? 
  - He was going to Ruritania to attend the coronation. 
3- Where did they have dinner? 
  - They had dinner at the hunting lodge. 
 
4- "Remember, sir, that we have an early start tomorrow."  

1- Who said these words to whom? 
    - Colonel Sapt said these words to the King. 
2- What did the addressed person want to do that made the speaker 
say so? 
    - He wanted to have dinner and invited Rassendyll to eat with him. 
3- What was addressed person's reply? 
    - He said they could eat well, and good food is more important than sleep. 

 
5- It's not the palace that I'm used to, but it will do for a few days." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - The King said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Which place was the speaker talking about? 
     - He was talking about the hunting lodge of Duke Michael. 
3- Why was the speaker staying at that place? 
     - Duke Michael invited him to stay there for a few days before the 
coronation. 
 
6- "The Colonel and I have to leave here at six tomorrow morning." 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Fritz said this to Rassendyll. 
  2- Where were they? 
    - They were at the hunting lodge. 
 3- Where will they leave for? Why? 
    - They will leave for Zenda to bring a guard of soldiers to take the King 
to the station. 
 
7- "The Duke said I was to give you this at the end of your meal" 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Josef, the King's servant, said this to the King. 
  2- What was the speaker talking about?  
    - He was talking about some cakes. 
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  3- What happened at the end of the meal? 
    - The King was poisoned and fell unconscious. 
 
8- "Do you think he was poisoned?"  
1- Who said this to whom? 
  - Rassendyll said this to Colonel Sapt. 
2- Who was the speaker talking about? 
  - He was talking about the king. 
3- Why was that person poisoned? 
  - He was poisoned so that he couldn't be crowned. 
9- "We must tell the people of Ruritania that he's ill."  

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Fritz said this to Sapt and Rassendyll. 
  2- Who was ill? Why? 
    - The King was ill ass he was poisoned by the cakes that Duke Michael 
had sent him.  
  3- Who objected to the speaker's idea? Why?  
    - Sapt objected as if the King was not crowned that day, he would never 
be King.  
 
10- "If he's not crowned today, I don't think he'll ever be King." 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Colonel Sapt said this to Fritz and Rassendyll. 
  2- What made the speaker think so? 
    - The whole country was waiting for the King that day. Most of the army 
was waiting too, with Duke Michael leading it. They wouldn't be happy.  
  3- How was the king prevented from being crowned that day? 
    - He was poisoned by the cakes that Duke Michael had sent him.  
 

11- "We must tell everyone what's happened and make the most of it,"  

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Fritz said this to Rudolf Rassendyll and Colonel Sapt. 
  2- Where was this said and when? 
     - This was said in the hunting lodge when they found the King 
unconscious in the morning. 
  3- What must they tell everyone? 
     - They must tell everyone that the King was ill and wouldn't be able to 
go to the coronation. 
 

12- "It must have been Duke Michael!"  

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Fritz said this to Colonel Sapt and Rassendyll. 
  2- What did Duke Michael do? 
    - He poisoned the King.  
  3- Why did Duke Michael do such a thing?  
    - To stop the King's wouldn't be coronation. 
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13- "You don't know what the Duke is like, do you?"  

  1- Who said this to whom? 
        - Colonel Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- According to the speaker, what was the Duke like? 
     - He was an evil man who wanted to be the King instead of his brother. 
  3- What did the Duke do to prevent his brother from taking the crown? 
     - He ordered the servant to give his brother poisonous cakes. 
 
14- "Do we all agree on this plan?'' 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Colonel Sapt said this to Fritz and Rassendyll.   
  2- What was the plan?  
    - After the coronation, Sapt and Rassendyll would go back to the hunting 
lodge. Fritz would guard the King's bedroom. The King and Sapt would 
return to the palace and Rassendyll would leave the country.  
  3- What was the listeners' opinion of that plan? 
     - They agreed on it saying that it was a good plan. 
 
15- "No, nothing's safe anywhere, but we must do our best." 
1- Who said this to whom? 
- Colonel Sapt said this to Fritz. 
2- Which place were they talking about? 
- They were talking about the hunting lodge in the forest near Zenda. 
3- Why was it important for that place to be safe? 
   - It was important for that place to be safe because the King was left 
unconscious there and they didn't want Duke Michael and his men to know 
about that. 
 
16- "Nervous. I'm not made of stone, you know." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
- Rassendyll said this to Colonel Sapt.   
2- Why was the speaker nervous?   
    - Because he pretended to be the King of Ruritania. He was afraid that he 
might be discovered.  
3- When did the speaker begin to feel less nervous? 
- He began to feel so when no one seemed to realise that he was not the real 
king. 
 
17- "God save both Kings."  

1- Who said this and where was he? 
    - Sapt said this in the restaurant at the train station in Strelsau. 
2- What did the people say just before this? 
  - The people said, "God save the king!" 
3- Why does the speaker say "both Kings"? Who is he talking about? 
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  - He‘s talking about the real King who is in the lodge at Zenda and about 
Rassendyll who is pretending to be the King for the coronation. He is worried 
about the safety of both men, the real King and the pretend King. 

 

Find the mistake in each of the following sentences and correct it 
1-  Rassendyll's face is a little different from the duke's face. 

     Rassendyll's face is a little different from the king's face. 
2-  The king's mouth was less wide and Rudolf's face was a little fatter. 
     The king's mouth was less wide and Rudolf's face was a little thinner. 
3-  The king said that Rassendyll was his 'pair'.  

 The king said that Rassendyll was his 'double'.  
4-  The King invited Rassendyll to eat with him in Strelsau. 
     The King invited Rassendyll to eat with him in the hunting lodge. 
5-  The King used the hunting lodge for hunting. 
     Duke Michael used the hunting lodge for hunting. 
6-  Sapt and Fritz would ride to Strelsau and return with a guard of soldiers to take the King 
to the station. 

 Sapt and Fritz would ride to Zenda and return with a guard of soldiers to take the King to the 
station. 

7-  Rassendyll ate a lot of cakes but the king ate only one cake. 
 The king ate a lot of cakes but Rassendyll ate only one cake. 
8-  Sapt throws flowers at Rassendyll to wake him up. 
     Sapt throws water at Rassendyll to wake him up. 

9-  Rassendyll thought that the cakes he and the king ate were delicious.  
 Rassendyll thought that the cakes he and the king ate were poisonous.  
10-  Fritz said that they had to tell the people of Mauritania that the king was ill. 
   Fritz said that they had to tell the people of Ruritania that the king was ill. 
11-  Sapt and Fritz believed that Duke Robert had poisoned the King. 
       Sapt and Fritz believed that Duke Michael had poisoned the King. 
12-  If Rudolf wasn't crowned on the specified day, the king would take the crown.  

       If Rudolf wasn't crowned on the specified day, Duke Michael would take the crown. 
13-  Fritz asked Rassendyll to pretend to be the King. 
       Sapt asked Rassendyll to pretend to be the King. 
14-  If Duke Michael didn't go to Strelsau, the King would either be dead or in prison. 
       If Rassendyll didn't go to Strelsau, the King would either be dead or in prison. 
15-  Michael's men hid the King in the cellar. 
       Sapt and Fritz hid the King in the cellar. 

16-  They planned to bring the false King back to Strelsau that same night. 
       They planned to bring the real King back to Strelsau that same night. 
17-  Josef and Johann's mother were locked in the cellar. 
       The king and Johann's mother were locked in the cellar. 
18-  Johann dressed Rassendyll in the King's clothes. 
       Josef dressed Rassendyll in the King's clothes. 
19-  On their way to the station, Sapt told Fritz the history of the King's life. 

       On their way to the station, Sapt told Rassendyll the history of the King's life. 
20-  Marshal Strakencz realised that Rassendyll is not the King. 
       Marshal Strakencz didn't realise that Rassendyll is not the King. 
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Homework  ((A)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- Rassendyll and the king were speechless on looking at each other. Say why. 

2- What differences could Rassendyll notice between him and the king? 
3- What nickname did the king give to Rassendyll? 
4- What was Sapt and Fritz's opinion about Rassendyll going to strlsau? 
5- Why did Sapt and Fritz object to Rassendyll's visit to Strelsau? 
6- How was the king generous to Rassendyll? 

7- Why didn't Sapt and Fritz eat too much? 
8- Fritz and Sapt felt worried when the king started to eat. Illustrate 
9- What was the king fond of? 
10- How far was the king fond of food? 
11- Why did Rassendyll eat much at dinner? 
12- Which kind of food was sent by the Duke to the king? 
13- The king was so kind that he couldn't see his brother's evil act. Explain 

14- What did Sapt and Fritz do to wake Rassendyll up? 
15- What happened to the king after eating the cakes sent by Duke Michael? 
16- Why didn't Sapt agree to Fritz's opinion of telling people the truth about 
the king? 
17-What did Rassendyll do to examine the king? 
18- Why did Rassendyll think the king was poisoned? 

19- Why would it be useless ٜٚثلا عل to fetch ٠ؾٚو    a doctor to save the king? 

20-What harm would the king have in  case of his absence during the coronation? 

21- The Duke's illegal ambitions made him a criminal . Say why. 
22- Why wasn't Rassendyll as sick as the king ? 

23- What would happen if the king wasn't crowned that day? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- " To Strelsau,sir. To the coronation .” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)Where did the speaker come from? 
  c)Where would the speaker stay in strelsau ? 

2- " Well done, Michael ! He knows me well .” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What did the speaker mean by such words? 
c)What happened to the speaker soon after that ? 
3- " Do you think he was poisoned .” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b Why did the speaker guess that " he" was poisoned? 
c)Why was it impossible to get a doctor? 
4-"I agree. He mustn't go. " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Who was the speaker talking about ? 
 c) What did the speaker agree that he  didn't have to go ? 
5-"We must tell everyone what's happened and make the most of it. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b) Where was this said ? When? 
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c)What must they tell everyone? 
6-"You don't know what the Duke is like, do you? " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b) According to the speaker, what was the Duke like? 
 c) What did the Duke do to prevent his brother from taking the crown ? 

C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- The king woke up but only after throwing water over him. 

2- Ruritania was waiting for the king in Paris. 
3- Rassendyll met the king in the desert. 
4- The king was pleased to meet his couple in the forest. 
5- Rassendyll hoped to go Zenda to attend the coronation. 
6- Sapt and Fritz were against the king's going to Strelsau. 
7- The king's guards would take the king to attend the coronation in Strelsau. 

8- When Rassendyll woke up , he found himself covered in mud. 
9- The Duke's pulse was very weak and slow. 
10- Even a thousand paramedics wouldn't make the king better that day. 

11- Fritz suggested telling people of Ruritanianthat the king was  well. 
12- Michael didn't want Rassendyll to attend the coronation. 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- What was Sapt's plan concerning ٖٓٛثق the coronation? 
2- How did Sapt and Fritz persuade Rassendyll to replace the king at the 
coronation? 
3- Why was it important for Sapt and Fritz to leave before Michael's men 
arrived? 
4- Where was the king hidden so as not to be found by Michael's men ? 
5- How would they get the king to Strelsau after the coronation? 
6- Why did Rassendyll think it would be impossible for him to replace 
the king? 
7- How would Micheal benefit from the king's absence during the 
coronation? 
8- Why was Johan's Mother locked with the king ? 
9- What did they do with Johann's mother who was overhearing them? 
10- What was Josef's role in Sapt's plan? 
11- How did Sapt help Rassendyll to play his role as the king well? 
12- What did Fritz tell the surprised-looking station guards? 
13-Why didn't Sapt, Fritz and Rassendyll expect anyone to meet them at 
the station? 
14- How was Rudolf Rassendyll received at Strelsau Station? 
15- What do you know about Marshal Stakencz ? 
16- class Distinction was evident in Strelsau. Illustrate 
17- What did Rassendyll do when a flower fell on his horse? What was 
the Marshal's reaction? 
18- What was the attitude of the people of the new part towards the  
new king ? 
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19- The people of the old part of Strelsau had much cconfidence in 
Michael. Illustrate 
20-Why did Rassendyll feel frightened when he saw Antoinette de 
Mauban? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- " What if they search the building ?” 
  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)Who is the speaker talking about? 
  c) What would they search the building for ? 
2- " Is all safe here?” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b) What does " here ' refer to? 
 c)What was the listener's reply ? 
3- "Nervous, I'm not made of stone.” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Why was the speaker nervous? 
 c)Why did the speaker's feeling change soon after that ? 
4-" Let's hope we're all alive tonight. " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
 b)Why did the speaker hope they are all alive that night? 
 c) Where was that said? 
5-" Josef will say the hunting lodge is empty.This is our only chance . " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b) Who was Josef ? 
c)What did the speaker mean by saying "this is our only chance"? 
6-"God save both kings . " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)When did the speaker say this? 
 c) Who was the speaker talking about? 

C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-The real king would be either dead or prisoner if Rassendyll became the 
king. 
2- It was a brave thing of Rassendyll to agree to attend the wedding. 
3- Rassendyll went from Zenda to Strelsau by plane. 
4- The king was hidden in the ditch in the hunting lodge. 
5- It was planned to go back to Strelsau to fetch the king after the 
coronation. 
6- Sapt and Fritz made use of the differences between Rassendyll and the 
king. 
7- When Amelia saw the Rassendyll, her face expression changed. 
8- People throw stones down from balconies above the king( Rassendyll) 
9- Rassendyll rode through the capital with the Marshal on his right and 
Fritz on his left. 
10-Fritz persuaded Rassendyll to take the king's place saying that his 
English was perfect. 
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Dressed as ....ٜ٠زٕىو فٟ ى Pretend ٝ٠زظب٘و / ٠لػ 

Recognize ٍٝ٠زؼوف ػ let him in ٠َّؼ ٌٗ ثبٌلفٛي 

Loyal ٍِٔق Proudly ثفقو 

Route ٛو٠ك set off ٠جلأ هؽٍخ 

ahead of َأِب Panel ٌٛؽخ / عيء ثبهى ِٓ اٌغلاه 

Support  ٠ؤ٠ل Passage ِّو 

think carefully ٠فىو ثؼٕب٠خ Unlock ٠فزؼ 

Trust ٟ٠ضك ف stay low  

shook his head ٍٗ٘ي هأ Gates ثٛاثبد 

Nevertheless ِغ مٌه ٚ knock on ٍٝ٠طوق ػ 

Act like a king ٠زٖوف وٍّه be relieved ٠ْؼو ثبٌواؽخ 

Anxious ٟلٍك / ػٖج Coin ػٍّخ 

Position ِٛلف Danger فطو 

Out of sight ثؼ١ل ػٓ ِوِٝ اٌجٖو Celebrate ٠ؾزفً ثظ 

lined with  ِٖطف ػٍٝ اٌغبٔت clear night ١ٌٍخ ٕبف١خ 

Cheer ٝ٠ؾ١ slow down ٠جطئ 

close to ِٓ لو٠ت Eventually فٝ إٌٙب٠خ 

Skin عٍل Fork ِفزوق / ٛوق 

Angrily ثغٚت Whisper ٌّٙ٠ 

Anger غٚت Trap ١ِٖلح 
Get off the horse ْ٠ٕيي ِٓ ػٍٝ اٌؾٖب lift up  ٠وفغ 

Briefly ثبفزٖبه point at ٍٝ٠ْبٚه ػ 

expression رؼج١و shoot / shot / shot ٍٝ٠طٍك إٌبه ػ 

Relief هاؽخ Puzzle ٌغي 

Crown اٌزبط Torn ِّيق 

Details ًرفب١ٕ Handkerchiefs ًِٕبك٠ 

promises ٚػٛك Candle ّّؼخ 

announce ٍٓ٠ؼ Fight لزبي / ّغبه 

most of all ػلاٚح ػٍٝ مٌه Meanwhile فٝ رٍه الأصٕبء 

Anyway ػٍٝ أ٠خ ؽبي Kidnap )ٔ٠قطف )ّق 

Coach ًػوثخ ٠غو٘ب اٌق١ Collect ٠غّغ 

wedding ىفبف tie up ٠م١ل 

Serious عبك / فط١و Fasten ٜ٠ضجذ / ٠وث 

appreciate ٠مله Cheeks فلٚك 

exhausted ِو٘ك / ِٕٙه all of a sudden فغأح 

Popular with ِٜؾجٛة ٌل Place ٠ٚغ 

Permit رٖو٠ؼ Notice  ٠لاؽ 

Form ٚص١مخ Success ٔغبػ 

Sign ٍٝ٠ٛلغ ػ Safely ْثأِب 

signature رٛل١غ Somehow إٌٝ ؽل ِب 

copy = imitate ٠َٕـ / ٠مٍل Ambassador ٍف١و 

Chapter 3 
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The Text  
1-Dressed as the King of Ruritania, I rode on through the streets of 
Strelsau towards the palace, expecting to hear Antoinette de Mauban tell 
everyone that I was not really the King. Yet I heard no one calling out, and 
I did not look back. Perhaps she had not recognised me after all. 
I heard Marshal Strakencz give an order to his men and we suddenly 
entered a poor part of the town where the people were loyal to Duke 
Michael. 
"Why have we changed our route?" I asked the Marshal. 
"It's better this way," he explained. 

Surely this way, however, was into a part of town where the people 
supported Duke Michael? How could this be a better way for the King? I 
stopped my horse and thought carefully. 

دو  كنت مرتدٌا زٌا وكؤننً ملك رورٌتنٌا ، سرت راكبا الجواد فً شوارع العاصمة سترلسو متجها إلى القصر وكنت متوقعا أن اسمع انتونٌت  -ٔ
ش ٌعطً موبان تخبر الجمٌع أننً لست الملك الحقٌقً. لكن لم ٌحدث شٌبا من ذلك ، لذا لم انظر خلفً . ربما لم تتعرف علً. سمعت المشٌر ستراكنت

غٌٌر وجهتنا؟".  أمرا لرجاله وفجؤة دخلنا منطقة من المدٌنة فقٌرة وبدابٌة حٌث كان الناس هناك موالٌن للدوق ماٌكل. سؤلت المشٌر "لماذا قمنا بت
كٌف ٌمكن فؤوضح لً قابلا "من الأفضل أن نسلك هذا الطرٌق " بالتؤكٌد بدأت أتساءل إذا كان الناس بهذا الجزء من المدٌنة موالٌن للدوق ماٌكل؟ ف

 أن ٌكون أفضل طرٌق للملك؟ أوقفت جوادي وبدأت أفكر بعناٌة

2-Perhaps this was the Marshal's plan to test me. 
"Tell your soldiers to ride ahead of me," I told the Marshal. "I don't 
need them or you. You can wait here until I've continued through the 
old town alone. I want the people who live here to see that their King 
trusts them." 

Sapt looked worried and shook his head. I could see that he thought that 
this was a very bad idea. Nevertheless, if I was to be a king, I decided I 
wanted to act like a king. All of my people should like me, not just a few. 
"Don't you understand me? Tell your soldiers to go!" I shouted. 

The Marshal looked surprised but gave the orders for his soldiers to go 
ahead, and Sapt's face looked even more anxious. I realised that if I were 
killed in this part of town, Sapt's position would become very difficult. 

أخبرت المشٌر: "أجعل جنودك ٌتقدمون حٌث انه لا حاجة لً بهم. ٌمكنم الانتظار هنا لأننً أرٌد أن أسٌر  ربما كانت هذه خطة المشٌر لاختباري.-
انه ٌعتقد  بمفردي فً هذا الجزء من المدٌنة. أرٌد الناس الذٌن ٌعٌشون هنا أن ٌدركوا أن ملكهم ٌثق بهم". بدا العقٌد سابت قلقا وهز رأسه. أدركت

ٌة. ومع ذلك، قررت أن أتصرف مثل الملك ، ٌنبغً لجمٌع شعبً أن ٌحبنً، ولٌس فقط القلٌل منهم. صرخت فً المشٌر أن هذه الفكرة سٌبة للغا
وجه العقٌد  قابلا: "ألا تفهمنً؟ أخبر جنودك ان ٌذهبوا بعٌداً!" بدأت الدهشة تعلو وجه المشٌر ولكنه أعطى الأوامر لجنوده على المضً قدما،  وبدا

أدركت من قلقه هذا أنه إذا قتلت فً هذا الجزء من المدٌنة، فان موقفه سٌصبح صعبا للغاٌة.سابت أكثر قلقا.   

3-When all the soldiers were 
out of sight, I rode on my own 
through the streets of the old 
town. Now that I was alone on 
my horse, I realised how white, 
how clean my uniform seemed 
compared to the old buildings 
around me. The narrow streets 
were lined with hundreds of 
people and I could feel their 

eyes on me. First people talked quietly, but then I started to hear cheering. 
I was so close to the people in this poor area that I could easily hear what 
the people were saying about me. 
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"I'm surprised that he's on his own, but he's taller than I thought," 

said one. 
"His skin's very white," said another.  

Although some people smiled and cheered, others were quiet and looked at 
me angrily. I saw many paintings of the Duke in their windows and I knew 
what they thought of me. 
Despite their anger, I reached the outside of the palace safely and I got off 
my horse. Briefly I saw Sapt, whose expression was one of relief that I was 
still alive. 

بالمبانً عندما أصبح الجنود بعٌدا عن الأنظار، بدأت أسٌر وحدي فً شوارع البلدة القدٌمة. ولقد أدركت حٌنبذ مدي نصاعة ثٌابً ونظافتها مقارنة 
هدوء، القدٌمة من حولً فً هذا الجزء من المدٌنة. واصطف المبات من الناس فً الشوارع الضٌقة ولقد شعرت بعٌونهم علً. بداٌة تحدث الناس ب

حدهم: ولكن بعد ذلك بدأت اسمع الهتاف. كنت قرٌبا جدا من الناس فً هذه المنطقة الفقٌرة لدرجة أننً كنت أسمع بسهولة ما ٌقولونه عنً. قال ا
وٌهتف ،   "أنا مندهش أنه بمفرده، لكنه أطول مما كنت أعتقد"، وقال آخر: "إن جلده ناصع البٌاض "   و بالرغم من أن بعض الناس كان مبتسما

جٌش فً إلا أن البعض الآخر بدا علٌه الهدوء وكان ٌنظر إلً بغضب. رأٌت العدٌد من الصور واللوحات للدوق ماٌكل معلقة فً النوافذ وأدركت ما ٌ
لأننً مازلت  خاطرهم نحوي. ، وصلت إلى خارج القصر بؤمان على الرغم من غضبهم ونزلت من على جوادي. بدا الارتٌاح ٌعلوا وجه العقٌد سابت

 على قٌد الحٌاة.

4-It was now almost time for the coronation and a group of soldiers led me 
inside a beautiful building. There were so many people that I did not know 
who was doing what. But I remember a beautiful young woman with red 
hair, who I knew was Princess Flavia, and a man with red cheeks, dark 
eyes and dark hair who I knew must be Michael. When he saw me, his face 
became white: until that moment, I do not think he realised that the King 
had come to Strelsau. 
What can I remember of that coronation that was so important to the 
future of Ruritania? Very little, except the golden crown being placed on 
my head and a few other details. I remember the promises I was asked to 
read out, and the beautiful music that played when someone announced 
that Rudolf the Fifth was now King of Ruritania. Most of all, I remember 
being greeted by Duke Michael, whose hands shook with anger when he 
took his hand in mine, and who would not look at my eyes as he coldly 
said, "Congratulations." 

لتتوٌج رافقتنً مجموعة من الجنود داخل مبنى جمٌل. كان هناك العدٌد من الناس لدرجة أننً لم أكن أعرف ما الذي كان ٌقوم وقد حان الوقت الآن ل
أكٌد  به كل منهم. ولكن أتذكر امرأة شابة جمٌلة ذات شعر احمر، وعلمت أنها الأمٌرة فلافٌا، ورجل ذو خدود حمراء، وأعٌن وشعر داكن علمت أنه

أصبح وجهه شاحبا للحظة عندما رآنً لدرجة أننً ظننت انه لم ٌصدق أن الملك قد جاء إلى العاصمة سترلسو . كل ما أتذكره فٌما  الدوق ماٌكل.
أسً ٌتعلق بهذا التتوٌج هو أنه كان ذا أهمٌة بالغة لمستقبل رورٌتنٌا؟ كذلك اذكر القلٌل جدا، من الطقوس مثل التاج الذهبً حٌن وضع على ر

صٌل الأخرى. أتذكر أٌضا بعضا من العهود  والعود التً طلب منً أن أتلوها على المستمعٌن، والموسٌقى الجمٌلة التً تم عزفها عندما وبعض التفا
 قام شخصا معلنا أن رودولف الخامس قد أصبح الآن ملك رورٌتنٌا. والأهم من ذلك كله، أتذكر استقبال وترحٌب الدوق ماٌكل ، حٌنما مد ٌده

وهو ٌعلوه الغضب ، ومتجنبا  النظر فً عٌنً مرددا ببرود: "تهانٌنا". لٌصافحنً  

5-However, no one else, not even the Princess, seemed to realise that I was 
not the real King. So there I stood in the palace for an hour, as if I had 
always been a king, greeting the many ambassadors and important people 
who came to see me. I became worried when a man I knew from England, 
Lord Topham, also came to greet me, but his eyes were so poor that he 
probably would not have noticed me anyway. 
It was now time for me to go in a coach around the streets with the 
Princess. "When's the wedding?" I heard someone call, and I wished I had 

asked Sapt the answer to that very question. 
At that moment, the Princess looked at me and said, "Do you know, 
Rudolf, you look different today? You look more tired and serious, 
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and I think you're thinner. I can't believe that you really have 
changed today." 
"I think I want to change now that I'm King," I replied. 
"Perhaps you already have. I heard that you rode through the old 
town alone," she continued. "That surprised me. The people there 
must really have appreciated what you did." 
I smiled. "I hope I'll make a good King," I said. 

ملك فعلا، ومع ذلك، لا ٌبدو أن ثمة أحد آخر، ولا حتى الأمٌرة، أدرك أننً لم أكن الملك الحقٌقً. لذلك وقفت فً القصر لمدة ساعة، كما لو كنت ال
نت أعرفه استقبل التهانً والتحٌة من العدٌد من السفراء والأشخاص المهمٌن والذٌن جاءوا لرإٌتً. أصبحت قلقا عندما رأٌت رجلا من إنجلترا ك

ٌرة فً ٌدعى ، لورد توفام، جاء لتحٌتً ، ولكنه كان ضعٌف النظر لدرجة أنه لم ٌتعرف علً. وقد حان الوقت لً الآن الذهاب فً سٌارة برفقة الأم
ل بالذات. فً شوارع المدٌنة. ولقد سؤل سابل وقال:"متى حفل الزفاف؟" وتمنٌت لو كنت قد طلبت من العقٌد سابت معرفة الجواب على هذا السإا

أستطٌع أن  تلك اللحظة، نظرت الأمٌرة إلً وقالت: "أتعلم، ٌارودولف، أنك تبدو مختلفا الٌوم؟ فؤنت تبدو متعبا وأكثر جدٌة، وأعتقد أنك شاحبا. لا
ه"ربما تغٌرت بالفعل. لقد أصدق أن كنت حقا قد تغٌرت الٌوم ". فقلت لها "اعتقد أننً ٌجب أن أتغٌر الآن بعد أن أصبحت الملك،". استطردت قابل

أنا  سمعت أنك سرت بمفردك فً البلدة القدٌمة "، "لقد أدهشنً ذلك كثٌرا واعتقد أن الناس هناك قدروا صنٌعك هذا "." ابتسمت. وقلت لها "آمل
 أكون ملكا صالحا".

6-The coach had now arrived back at the palace and, once inside the 
building, I took my seat at my own table, next to Duke Michael, with Sapt 
behind me and Fritz nearby. I felt like a king, but I also thought, where is 
the real King and what is he doing now? 
Later that afternoon, I sat down on my bed feeling exhausted. Sapt and 
Fritz were still by my side, now looking very happy that our plan had been 
a success. 
"That was a day to remember!" said Fritz. "I think I'd like to be King 
for a day. But Rassendyll, you mustn't try too hard. I'm not sure it 
was a good idea to ride alone through the old town. Duke Michael 
won't like it if you become too popular with his people, you know." 
"Well, in a few hours, I'll become Rudolf Rassendyll once more," I said, 
remembering that I would be King only until that night. 
"Only if you stay alive as long as that," said Sapt. "Michael's had news 
from Zenda and he's almost certainly planning something. You must 
leave the country as soon as you can. But you need a permit to leave 
the city." 

ملك عادت الآن السٌارة إلى القصر، و بداخل المبنى، أخذت مقعدي على طاولة ، بجوار الدوق ماٌكل ، ومن ورابً سابت وفرٌتز. شعرت وكؤننً ال
 رتحقا، ولكن فً ذات الوقت ظللت أفكر فً الملك الحقٌقً ، أٌن هو وماذا ٌفعل الآن؟ فً وقت لاحق بعد ظهر ذلك الٌوم، جلست على سرٌري وشع

ى!". ببعض التعب. وكان سابت وفرٌتز لا ٌزالان بجانبً، وبدا فً غاٌة السعادة حٌث أن خطتنا كانت ناجحة. وقال فرٌتز: "إن ذلك الٌوم لن ٌنس
ٌمة "أعتقد أننً كنت أحب أن أصبح الملك ولو لٌوم واحد، ولكن ٌاراسندل، ٌجب علٌك ألا تجازف ، فلم تكن فكرة سٌرك بمفردك فً المدٌنة القد

جٌدة على ما أظن. كما أن الدوق ماٌكل لن ٌرضً أن تصبح  ذا شعبٌة فً مناطق نفوذه"  ،قلت له "حسنا، فً غضون ساعات قلٌلة، سوف أصبح 
ة "، لٌلرودولف راسندل مرة أخرى،"  وأتذكر جٌدا أننً الملك حتى هذه اللٌلة فقط " فقال العقٌد سابت "ذلك إن بقٌت على قٌد الحٌاة حتى هذه ال

لمغادرة "فلقد تلقى ماٌكل أخبار من زندا  ومن المإكد انه ٌخطط لشًء ما، لذا ٌجب أن تغادر البلاد فً أقرب وقت ممكن. ولكنك بحاجة إلى تصرٌح 
 المدٌنة".

7-"Who can I get a permit from?" I asked. 
"The King, of course," said Sapt, putting on a table a form for me to sign 
and a paper with the King's signature for me to copy. 
"Look, I can pretend to be the King because I look like him," I said. 
"That doesn't mean I can write like him too!" 
"Oh, it's not hard to copy," said Sapt, and he did it easily for me. 
"Now, remember our plan. I'll go with you, Rassendyll," said Sapt. 
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"Now, Fritz, you will tell everyone that the King's gone to bed and 
that he's not to be woken by anybody until nine o'clock tomorrow 
morning. Do you understand, Fritz? No one." 
"I understand," said Fritz. 
"Michael may try to visit," continued Sapt, "but you mustn't let him in, 
even if your life depends on it." 
"I don't need to be told that," said Fritz, proudly. 
"Here, put on this big coat and hat," Sapt said to me. 

ى هذا التصرٌح؟" فقال لً: "الملك، بطبٌعة الحال،"  ووضع على الطاولة استمارة على أن أوقع علٌها  فسؤلته: "مِن مَن ٌمكننً الحصول عل
نً ٌمكن وبعض الأوراق التً تحمل توقٌع الملك وكان على أن أقلدها فقلت له"انظر، أستطٌع أن أدعً أننى الملك لأننً أشبهه،ولكن هذا لا ٌعنً أن

بلا: " لٌس من الصعب أن تقلد وقام بتقلٌد التوقٌع بنفسه وبسهولة" وقال لً: "الآن، تذكر خطتنا. سؤذهب معك، فصاح فً قا أن أكتب مثله أٌضا!"
فهم، ٌا ٌا راسندل"، "وأنت ٌا فرٌتز علٌك أن تخبر الجمٌع أن الملك قد ذهب إلى فراشه، وأنه لن ٌستٌقظ حتى التاسعة من صباح الٌوم الغد. هل ت

فرٌتز "أنا أفهم"،وتابع سابت حدٌثه مخاطبا فرٌتز قابلا "ماٌكل قد حاول زٌارة الملك ولكن ٌجب ألا تسمح له بذلك، حتى لو فرٌتز؟ لا أحد." فقال 
"كلفك هذا الأمر حٌاتك" فقال فرٌتز، وبفخر "أنا لست بحاجة إلى أن تذكرنً بذلك" قال لً سابت " ارتدي هذا المعطف الكبٌر وهذه القبعة   

8-"Now, are you ready to go?" Sapt said to me 
"I'm ready," I said. I shook Fritz's hand and set off – not through the door 

but through a panel in the wall which led to a dark passage. 
"In the old King's time, I knew all about this secret passage," Sapt 

explained. 
I followed Sapt down the long, dark passage which ended in a heavy 
wooden door. Sapt unlocked it and we went out into a quiet street which 
ran along the back of the palace gardens. A man was waiting for us with 
two horses. Without saying anything, we climbed onto the horses and rode 
away. 
At that time of the day, the town was busy and full of noise, but we took 
the quiet back streets. My coat and hat covered my face and hair, and I 
tried to stay low on the horse so no one would recognise me. 

ولكن لٌس من خلال الباب ولكن من خلال  –أنت على استعداد للذهاب؟"فؤخبرته "أنا مستعد،". صافحت فرٌتز وانطلقت  وقال لً أٌضا "الآن، هل
باب خلفً فً الجدار ٌإدي إلى ممر مظلم." وأوضح لً سابت قابلا "منذ عهد الملك السابق وأنا أعرف كل شًء عن هذا الممر السري". تبعت 

ل والمظلم والذي كان ٌنتهً بباب خشبً ضخم ففتحه وخرجنا إلى شارع هادئ على امتداد الجزء الخلفً من حدابق العقٌد سابت عبر الممر الطوٌ
المدٌنة القصر. كان هناك رجل فً انتظارنا ومعه اثنٌن من الخٌول. دون أن نقول أي شًء، ركبنا الخٌول وانطلقنا. فً ذلك الوقت من الٌوم، كانت 

ولكننا سلكنا الشوارع الخلفٌة الهادبة. ولقد غطً معطفً وجهً وشعري، وحاولت أن أظل منخفضا على الحصان حتى لا مزدحمة وملٌبة بالضجٌج، 
 ٌتعرف علً أحد.

9-"Take your gun," said Sapt. "You may need it to get through the city 
gates. They'll all be closed at this time of day." 

It was half past six and still light when we reached one of the tall wooden 
gates through the city walls. Sapt knocked on the gate, and we were very 
relieved when a few seconds later, a girl of about fourteen appeared. 
"My father's not here, I'm afraid. He's gone to see the King," she said. 
"Your father should have stayed here," said Sapt. 
"But he told me not to open the gate for anyone," said the girl. 
"Then you must give me the key to open it," said Sapt. "Here's a form 
from the King himself. You can show it to your father when he 
returns." Sapt then gave the girl the signed form and a coin and took the 

key from her hand. We quickly opened the gate, led our horses out, and 
closed it again behind us. 
"Now we must move quickly," Sapt told me as we got back on the horses. 

قال سابت "خذ مسدسك معك فقد تحتاج إلٌه عند الخروج من خلال بوابات المدٌنة. سوف تكون جمٌعا مغلقة فً هذا الوقت من الٌوم." كانت و
والضوء لا ٌزال موجودا عندما وصلنا إلى واحدة من البوابات الخشبٌة العالٌة. طرقت سابت على باب ، وهدأت أعصابنا  ٖٓ:ٙالساعة لا تزال 
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فتحت لنا فتاة ، وهً حوالً فً الرابعة عشر من عمرها قابلة: "للأسف والدي لٌس هنا، انه ذهب لرإٌة الملك"،فقال لها سابت "والدك كان عندما 
تفضلً ٌجب أن ٌبقى هنا" قالت لنا: "لكن والدي اخبرنً ألا أفتح البوابة لأي أحد" فقال لها سابت"إذا علٌك أن تعطٌنً المفتاح لأفتح بنفسً و

اح من استمارة موقعة من الملك شخصٌا ، وٌمكنك أن تعطٌها  لوالدك عندما ٌعود." ثم أعطى الفتاة الاستمارة الموقعة وعملة معدنٌة وأخذ المفت
علٌنا أن ٌدها. وفتحنا الباب بسرعة، وأخرجنا الخٌول، وإغلاقنا الباب مرة أخرى وراءنا. اخبرنً سابت عندما عدنا إلى الخٌول قابلا: "ألان ٌجب 

 نتحرك وبسرعة،".

10-Once we were outside the city, there was little danger, as nearly 
everyone was in the streets celebrating the coronation. It became a clear 
night, with a shining moon, and soon we began to talk. 
"What do you think the Duke knows about our plan?" I said. 
"I don't know," said Sapt. 

A little later, we stopped at an inn so that our horses could have a drink, 
and this lost us half an hour. We then continued and had gone around 
forty kilometres from the city when Sapt suddenly stopped. It was nearly 
half past nine. 
"Listen," he cried. "I can hear something." 

Far behind us we could just hear the noise of horses coming towards us. I 
looked at Sapt and saw worry on his face. 
"We're lucky that the wind's blowing towards us so we can hear 
them. Come on!" he called, and we set off fast. After some time, we 

stopped again and could not hear the other horses, so we slowed down and 
thought we could relax. However, a little farther we stopped once more and 
this time we heard them. 

مدٌنة، كان هناك خطر ضبٌل، حٌث كان الجمٌع تقرٌبا فً الشوارع للاحتفال بالتتوٌج. كما أن اللٌلة كانت قمرٌة ، وسرعان ما بدأنا عندما كنا خارج ال
بعد قلٌل، توقفنا فً نُزل )فندق صغٌر( لتشرب الخٌول، ولكن هذا ضٌع  الحدٌث فقلت لسابت "ما رأٌك هل ٌعلم الدوق بخطتنا؟"فقال لً "أنا لا أعرف"

ف. صاح علٌنا نصف ساعة وبعد ذلك تابعنا المسٌر لمسافة نحو أربعٌن كٌلومترا من المدٌنة وفجؤة توقف سابت ، وكانت الساعة حوالً التاسعة النص
لذي سابت قابلا "استمع" " ٌمكننً أن أسمع شٌبا ما." فسمعنا وراءنا صوت ضجٌج من الخٌول متجهه نحونا ورأٌت القلق قد ظهر على وجه سابت ا

ننا لم نتمكن قال"نحن محظوظون أن الرٌاح تهب فً تجاهنا وهذا ٌجعلنا نسمعهم. هٌا بنا! "وانطلقنا بسرعة. وبعد مرور بعض الوقت، توقفنا مرة أخرى لك
رة سمعنا ضجٌج الخٌول.من سماع الخٌول الأخرى، لذلك سرنا ببطء وظننا انه بإمكاننا الاسترخاء قلٌلا. ، ولكن بعد قلٌل توقفنا مرة أخرى وهذه الم  

11-Sapt got off his horse and put his ear to the ground. "I think there're 
two horses," he said. "They're about two kilometres behind." 

We went on quickly and eventually we reached the tall, dark trees of the 
forest of Zenda and stopped at a fork in the road. One road went deep into 
the forest, the other went outside the forest towards the town.  
"To the right's our road, to the left's the castle. Now, get off your 
horse." 
"Get off? But they'll catch us!" I said. 
"Get off your horse!" he repeated angrily, and I did what he asked. We 

took the horses into the dark trees and waited quietly where we could see 
the road, but they (whoever they were) could not see us. I saw that Sapt 
had a gun in his hand. 
"Do you want to see who they are?" I whispered. 
"Yes, and where they're going," Sapt answered. 

بنا نزل سابت عن حصانه ووضع أذنه على الأرض. وقال: " أعتقد أن هناك اثنٌن من الخٌول" وقال: "إنهم على بعد حوالً كٌلومترٌن وراءنا." ذه
ن زندا وتوقفنا عند مفترق الطرٌق. كان هناك طرٌق ٌإدي إلى عمق بسرعة وفً النهاٌة وصلنا إلى الأشجار طوٌلة القامة، من الغابة المظلمة م

نزل؟ ولكنهم الغابة، والطرٌق الأخر ٌإدي إلى المدٌنة. فقال سابت"إلى الٌمٌن طرٌقنا وإلى الٌسار القلعة. الآن، انزل من على الحصان." فقلت له "ا
فعلت ما طلب منً. أخذنا الخٌول فً ظلام الأشجار وانتظرنا بهدوء حٌث سوف ٌلحقون بنا!" فكرر سابت غاضبا: "انزل من على الحصان!" ، ف

"هل ترٌد ٌمكننا أن نرى الطرٌق، لكن )أٌا كان المار بالطرٌق( لا ٌمكن أن ٌرانا. رأٌت أن سابت كان ٌحمل مسدسا فً ٌده. فهمست لسابت قابلا له:
 أن ترى من هم؟" فقال لً: "نعم، وأٌن هم ذاهبون"
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12- Soon we could hear the horses getting nearer and nearer. The moon 
was full now so we could see the road clearly. "Here they come!" Sapt 
whispered. "Look, it's the Duke!" 
On the road through the forest, I could see the Duke and a strong-looking 
man who Sapt later told me was Max Holf, brother to Johann who I had 
seen at the inn. When they reached the fork in the road, they stopped. 
"Which way?" asked Duke Michael. 

"I think. we should go to the castle where we can learn the truth," 

said Max. 
"Why not the hunting lodge?" said Michael. 
"If all's well, why go there? And if all isn't well, I fear there'll be a 
trap." 

The Duke did not move and seemed to be listening. 
"I thought I heard something," he said quietly. 

ا. كان القمر مكتملا الأمر الذي مكننا من أن نرى الطرٌق بوضوح. فهمس سابت و بعدها مباشرة استطعنا أن نسمع الخٌول وهى تقترب شٌبا فشٌب
فً  قابلا "هاهم قد وصلوا!"  فقلت لسابت "انظر، انه الدوق!" على الطرٌق عبر الغابة، رأٌت الدوق ورجل قوي المظهر الذي اخبرنً عنه سابت 

النزل )الفندق الصغٌر(. توقفوا عندما وصلوا إلى مفترق طرق. فسؤل الدوق ماٌكل وقت لاحق انه ماكس هولف، شقٌق جوهان الخادم الذي رأٌته فً 
إلى "أي الطرق نسلك؟". فقال له ماكس هولف "اعتقد، ٌجب أن نذهب إلى القلعة حٌث ٌمكننا معرفة الحقٌقة"، فقال له الدوق: "ولماذا لا نذهب 

اذا نذهب هناك؟ وان لم ٌكن الأمر كذلك أخشى أن ٌكون هناك فخ." لم ٌتحرك الدوق وبدا كوخ الصٌد؟" فقال ماكس: "إذا كان الأمر على ما ٌرام فلم
 وكؤنه ٌستمع إلى شًء ما فقال بهدوء: "ظننت أننً سمعت شٌبا".

13-I saw Sapt lift up his gun, but the Duke then said, "To Zenda, then," 

and they set off once more. 
I could see that Sapt still held up his gun and was pointing it at the Duke, 
but although I knew he would have loved to shoot, he realised it would not 
have helped the King at this moment. He put his gun away once more. 
We waited silently for ten minutes before we came out from the trees. 
"So, he's had news that all is well," said Sapt. 
"What does that mean?" I asked. 
"I wish I knew," said Sapt. "It's a real puzzle." 

We rode on through the forest as fast as our tired horses would allow. We 
said nothing, and I thought about what the Duke had said. What did "all is 
well" mean? Was all well with the King? 
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It did not take us long to reach the hunting lodge where we had left the 
King and quickly jump off our horses. The lodge was dark and quiet and no 
one came out to meet us. All of a sudden, Sapt took hold of my arm. 
"Look there!" he said, pointing at five or six torn and dirty handkerchiefs 

on the ground. 
 "That's what I used to tie up the old woman. Fasten the horses and 
let's see what's happened." 

رأٌت سابت ٌرفع مسدسه، ولكن الدوق قال: "إلى زندا إذاً" وانطلقا مرة أخرى. ورأٌت أن سابت ما زال مصوبا مسدسه نحو الدوق، ولكن على 
رنا الرغم من أننً أعرف أنه تمنى أن ٌطلق النار، إلا انه أدرك أن ذلك  لن ٌساعد الملك فً هذه اللحظة. فوضع مسدسه بعٌدا مرة أخرى. انتظ

ا ٌعنً دوء لمدة عشر دقابق قبل أن نخرج من بٌن الأشجار. فقل سابت "إذا قد تلقى ماٌكل إخبارا تقول له، أن كل شًء على ما ٌرام" فسؤلته "ماذبه
الدوق. انطلقنا خلال الغابة وبؤقصى سرعة رغم تعب الخٌول. لم نقل شٌبا، وفكرت فً ما قاله  ذلك؟" فقال لً " لٌتنى اعلم"، "انه لغز حقٌقً."

كنا  "وماذا تعنً عبارة كل شًء على ما ٌرام" هل كل شًء على ما ٌرام فٌما ٌتعلق بالملك ؟ لم نستغرق وقتا طوٌلا للوصول إلى كوخ الصٌد حٌث
ل لً "انظر قد تركنا الملك ونزلنا بسرعة من على الخٌول وكان الكوخ مظلما وهادبا ولم ٌؤتً أي احد لاستقبالنا. فجؤة امسك سابت بذراعً وقا

ما هناك!" مشٌرا إلى خمسة أو ستة منادٌل ممزقة وقذرة على الأرض. "هذا ما كنت قد استخدمته لربط المرأة العجوز. اربط الخٌول ودعنا نرى 
 حدث."

14-The front door to the lodge was not locked and we went into the room 
where I had eaten the night before. Plates and cups were still on the table. 
"Come on," said Sapt, and we ran down the passage towards the cellar 

where we had left the King. But the door to the cellar was open. 
"So they found the old woman," I said. 
"I realised that when I saw the handkerchiefs," said Sapt. 
"Where's Josef and the King?" I asked. 

We found another door inside the cellar that was locked, and it took a lot of 
work to get it open. It was dark inside and completely silent and I could see 
Sapt was looking very worried. He loved the King and would have hated 
anything bad to have happened to him. So I told him to stay where he was 
and went inside the room with a candle. 
There were a lot of things on the floor of the dark room, as if there had 
been a fight. I held up the candle and saw spiders on the walls, then, far in 
one comer, I saw a body. 
I slowly went back outside the room to tell Sapt what I had seen. 
"It's not good news. I'm afraid he's dead," I said. 
"The King?" he cried, putting his hand over his mouth. 
"No, the body's Josef. The King's not there." 

ولة.فقال سابت لم ٌتم قفل الباب الأمامً للكوخ وذهبنا إلى الغرفة حٌث تناولنا العشاء فً اللٌلة الماضٌة. وكانت الأطباق والكإوس لا تزال على الطا
قد وجدوا المرأة العجوز،" فقال لً  "هٌا"،  وأسرعنا لأسفل الممر نحو القبو حٌث تركنا الملك. ولكن كان باب القبو مفتوحا. فقلت لسابت "إذا

حه. "أدركت ذلك عندما رأٌت منادٌل"فسؤلته "أٌن جوزٌف والملك؟" وجدنا باب آخر داخل القبو ولكنه كان مغلقا، واستغرق الكثٌر من الوقت لفت
أن ٌصٌبه مكروه. فطلبت منه البقاء بالخارج  وكان الظلام والهدوء ٌخٌمان على المكان بالداخل كان سابت قلق للغاٌة فقد كان ٌحب الملك وكان ٌكره

لى ودخلت الغرفة وبٌدي شمعة. كان هناك العدٌد من الأشٌاء بؤرضٌة الغرفة المظلمة، كما لو كان هناك قتال. أمسكت الشمعة ورأٌت العناكب ع
أٌت فقلت له" إنها لٌست اخبار سارة. أخشى أنه الجدران، ورأٌت جسدا بؤحد أركان الغرفة. ذهبت ببطء مرة أخرى خارج الغرفة لأخبر سابت عما ر

 مٌت،"فصاح قابلا "الملك؟" ووضع ٌده على فمه. فقلت له "لا، انه جسد جوزٌف و الملك لٌس هناك."

15-I closed the heavy door behind me and we walked with heavy hearts 
back from the cellar to the dining room. 
"So, they've got the King!" said Sapt, sitting down heavily with his hands 

over his face. 
"That's why they said that all's well. But when did they find out?" I 

asked. 
"Michael must've known all day," said Sapt. 
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"What did he think when he met me, then? He knew I was not the 
real King!" 
"It doesn't matter what he thought then," said Sapt. "What matters is 
what he thinks now!" 
"We must get back and collect every soldier in Strelsau. Michael will 
have to be caught before the King is killed." 
"Wait," said Sapt. "We need to think. It must've been the old woman 
who told them what had happened somehow. I understand now. They 
came here to kidnap the King and they found him in that room in 
the cellar. If we hadn't escaped to Strelsau, we would've been killed." 
"So where's the King now?" I asked. 
"I have no idea," he said. "But you could see at the coronation that 
Duke Michael's really worried. Let's think about how we can worry 
him a bit more." 

هم  أغلقت الباب ورابً ومشٌنا بقلوب ترتعد خوفا ونحن عابدٌن من القبو إلى غرفة الطعام. فقال سابت وهو ٌجلس واضعا ٌده على وجهه: "إذاً،
منذ  لمٌتحفظون على الملك!" "لهذا السبب قالوا إن كل شًء على ما ٌرام هنا.فسؤلته "ولكن متى علموا بذلك؟"فؤجابنً قابلا "أكٌد ماٌكل كان ٌع

لحٌن،". "ما بداٌة الٌوم "فتساءلت "ماذا كان ٌظن عندما قابلنً، حٌنبذ؟ علم أننً لم أكن الملك الحقٌقً!" فقال سابت"لا ٌهم ماذا كان ٌعتقد ذلك ا
فقال سابت: "مهلا" ٌهم هو ما ٌفكر فٌه الآن!" "ٌجب علٌنا أن نعود ونجمع كل جندي فً سترلسو. ماٌكل لابد أن ٌقبض علٌه قبل أن ٌقتل الملك." 

لك ووجدوه وأضاف قابلا: "إننا بحاجة إلى التفكٌر، أكٌد المرأة العجوز أخبرتهم بخطتنا بطرٌقة أو بؤخرى.لقد فهمت ألان. جاءوا إلى هنا لخطف الم
"لٌس لدي فكرة،". وأضاف "لكنك فً تلك الغرفة فً القبو. وإذا لم نكن قد غادرنا إلى سترلسو لقتلنا ". فسؤلته: "فؤٌن الملك الآن؟ "فقال لً: 

 ٌمكنك أن تدرك أن الدوق ماٌكل كان ٌبدو علٌه القلق أثناء التتوٌج. دعنا نفكر كٌف ٌمكننا أن نجعله ٌقلق أكثر قلٌلا."

16-A clock in the house struck one as Sapt stood up with a smile, and I 
could see that he had another plan. 
"We'll go back to Strelsau," he said excitedly. "The King will be back in 
the capital again tomorrow!" 
"How is that possible if we don't know where he is?" 
"We'll go back to Strelsau and continue with the game we started. 
You've done a good job until now, so why not continue?" 
"Do you mean you want me to be the King again?" I asked. 
"Yes, I do!" he cried. 

دقت الساعة المعلقة بالمنزل تمام الواحدة ووقف سابت مبتسما، وأدركت انه لدٌه خطة أخرى. فقال بحماس: "إننا سوف نعود إلى سترلسو" 
وأضاف أن: "الملك سوف ٌعود مرة أخرى إلى العاصمة غدا!" فسؤلته: "كٌف ٌكون ذلك ممكنا ونحن لا نعرف أٌن هو؟" فقال "سوف نعود إلى 

مر فً اللعبة التً بدأناها. لقد قمت بدور الملك بشكل جٌد حتى الآن، لذلك لماذا لا نستمر؟"فقلت له: "هل تعنً انك ترٌد منً أن أكون سترلسو ونست
 الملك مرة أخرى؟" فصاح قابلا: "نعم"

Questions & Answers 
 
1- What order أهرر did Marshal Strakencz give to his men? What was 

Rassendyll's opinion سأى of that?  

 He gave an order to his men to change route اٌطو٠ظك and enter the poor 

part of the town. He thought that perhaps the Marshal was testing ٠قزجظو 
him. 

 
2- What kind نوع of people lived in the old part of the city?  
  The people in the old part were poor and many of them were loyal to 
Duke Michael. 
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3- Why did Rudolf Rassendyll want to ride on his own  توفررد through 

the poor area هنطمح of Strelsau?  
He wanted the people who lived there to see that their King trusted them 

 .٠ضك ثُٙ

4- Why were the poor people in the old town happy to see the King 
(Rudolf Rassendyll)? 
  They hadn't seen him before. They felt the he trusted them and cared 
about them. 

 
5- Why was Sapt so anxious للرك about Rassendyll‟s decision لرراس to 

ride alone through the old town? 
  He knew that the people in the old town supported the Duke and he 

was afraid that Rassendyll would be hurt ٜ٠ٖظبة ثظأم or attacked  َٛ٠ظزُ اٌٙغظ

 .there ػ١ٍٗ

 
6- What was the poor people‟s reaction سد فعرل when they saw Rudolf 

Rassendyll? 

  Some of them were cheering ٝ٠ؾ١ and smiling but others were quiet and 
looked at him angrily. 

 
7- What made the king (Rudolf Rassendyll) think that Duke Michael 

was popular هحثوب in the old town? 
  Rassendyll saw many paintings of the Duke in their windows and he 
knew what they thought of him. 

 
8- What could Rudolf Rassendyll remember of the coronation later on? 

  He could remember the golden crown ربط which was put on his head. He 

could also remember the promises ٚػظٛك he was asked to read out and the 

beautiful music that played when someone announced ٍٓأػ that Rudolf the 
Fifth became King of Ruritania. 

 
9- Who was Princess Flavia? 

  She was a royal ٍِٝىظ cousin to Rudolf Elphberg and She was engaged 
to him. 

10- What was Duke Michael‟s reaction سد فعررل when he saw Rudolf 

Rassendyll before the coronation? 

  His face became white ٗإٔجؼ ّبؽت اٌٛع. 

 
11- Why did Duke Michael‟s face turn white أصرث  اراحثا when he saw 
“the King” (Rassendyll)? 
  He thought that the King was still in Zenda because he had poisoned him 

 .so he was surprised to see the King there at the coronation ,ثَّّٗ

 
12- What did Rassendyll do after the coronation الررويج? 
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  He stood in the palace for an hour greeting ٝ٠ؾ١ظ many ambassadors 

  .and important people who came to see him اٌَفواء

 
13- Why did Rudolf Rassendyll feel worried when he saw a man he knew 

from England? 
  He felt worried because he didn‘t want anyone to recognize him ٗ٠زؼوف ػ١ٍ. 

 
14- What did Princess Flavia think about Rudolf Rassendyll ride through 

the old town alone? 

  She thought the people there must have appreciated ٠مظله what Rassendyll 
had done. 

 
15- According to حطرة سأى Flavia, how did the King (Rudolf Rassendyll) 

look different on the day of coronation? 

  She thought he looked more tired and serious عبك.  

 
16- Why was Fritz against the idea that the King (Rassendyll) should 

become popular with هحثوب هن the poor people? 
  Because Duke Michael wouldn‘t like it. 

 
17- Why did Rassendyll and Sapt need a permit  ذصري  to leave the city? 

  Michael controlled ٝ٠َظ١طو ػٍظ the city and he had had news from Zenda, 
so he wouldn‘t want people to leave the city.  

 
18- How did Rassendyll and Sapt get a permit from the King to leave the 
city? 

  Sapt could write like the King and he signed ٍٝٚلغ ػ the paper. 

 
19- What did Fritz do while Sapt and Rassendyll went to Zenda? 

  He stayed and guarded ًوظبْ ٠ؾظو the bedroom. He must not let ٠َظّؼ 
anyone inside the room. 
20- How did Sapt and Rassendyll get out of the palace? 

 They went through a secret passage ِّٜظو ٍظو in the wall and out of a 
secret back door.  

 
21- What did Rudolf Rassendyll do so as not to be recognized while he 

was going with Sapt to bring the King back? 
  His coat and hat covered his face and hair and he tried to stay low on the 
horse. 

 
22- What did Colonel Sapt do to persuade  يمنر the guard's daughter at 
the gate to give him the key? 

  He gave her a form ١مظخٚص  from the King to give to her father and gave her a 
coin. 
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23- Why was nearly ذمريثا everyone in Strelsau in the streets? 

  Everyone in Strelsau was in the streets to celebrate ً٠ؾزفظ the coronation 

 .اٌزز٠ٛظ

 
24- Why could Sapt and Rassendyll hear the people coming behind 

them? 

   Because the wind was blowing رٙت towards them. 

 
25- Why did Colonel Sapt get off his horse and put his ear to the 

ground? 
  He wanted to make sure if there was anyone coming behind them. 

 
26- Who else was riding to Zenda other than Sapt and Rassendyll? 
  Duke Michael and his servant Max Holf were riding to Zenda.  

 
27- Why didn't Colonel Sapt shoot يطلك الناس علري Duke Michael when he 
saw him in the forest with Max Holf? 

  He realized أكهن that it wouldn‘t have helped the King at that moment.     

 
28- What do you think the message سضالح “all is well” means ذعني? 

  It means that the King was kidnapped ٗرظُ افزطبفظ from the hunting lodge 
and locked in the castle of Zenda. 

29- What did Sapt and Rudolf find when they reached the hunting 

lodge? 
  They found that it was dark and quiet and no one came out to meet them. 

The King was kidnapped ٗرُ افزطبف and Josef was killed. 

30- Who kidnapped خطف King Rudolf the Fifth? Why? 

  Duke Michael kidnapped him because he wanted to take the crown اٌزظبط 
and be the king. 

 
31- Why does Rudolf Rassendyll suggest collecting every soldier in 

Strelsau? 
  To catch Duke Michael before he kills the King. 

32- Why didn't Rudolf Rassendyll leave Ruritania on the same day of the 

coronation الررويج as planned كوا هو هخطط? 

  Because the King had been kidnapped ٗرظُ افزطبفظ by Duke Michael's men, 
so Rudolf Rassendyll agreed to go back to Strelsau and continue to pretend 

  to be the King so that Michael wouldn't take the crown ٠زظب٘و

 
33- What did Sapt ask Rassendyll to do after they discovered that the 

King had been kidnapped ذن اخرطافه? 

  He asked him to continue to pretend ٠زظظب٘و to be the King as he had 
another plan to save the King. 
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Quotations 
1- Why have we changed our route فريك? 

1- Who said this to whom? 

    - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Marshal Strakencz. 
2- Where were they going at that time? 

    - They were going to the palace اٌمٖو. 
3- What was the addressed person's answer? 

     - He said it was better that way. 
 
2- "Don‟t you understand me? Tell your soldiers to go!" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
    - The king (Rudolf Rassendyll) said this to Marshal Strakencz. 

2- Why did the speaker want to ride alone? 

    - He wanted to go through the old town alone ٖثّفظوك to show ٓ٠جظ١ the people that he 

trusted them ُٙ٠ضك ث. 

3- Why was the addressed person reluctant ِزوكك to carry out ٠ٕفن the order? 

    - Marshal Strakencz did not want the king (Rassendyll) to ride alone through the old 

town because people there supported ٠ؤ٠ل Duke Michael and he could be killed there. 
 
3- “Look, I can pretend to be the King because I look like him. That doesn‟t mean 

I can write like him too!” 
1- Who said this to whom? 

    - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Colonel Sapt. 
2- Where and when was this said? 

    - This was said in the royal palace ٟلٖظو ٍِىظ when Rudolf Rassendyll and Colonel 

Sapt were getting ready to go to the hunting lodge ٟاٌج١ذ اٌو٠ف to get the king back. 
3- What was the speaker asked to write? 
    - He was asked to write the king's name on a form so that he could leave the city. 
 
4- "Michael may try to visit, but you mustn't let him in even if your life depends 

on it." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Colonel Sapt said this to Fritz von Tarlenheim. 
2- What was the addressed person asked to do? 

   - He was asked to guard ً٠ؾظو the king's bedroom in the royal palace and stop 

anyone trying to get in ً٠لف even if زٝ ٌٛؽ  it were the Duke himself.  Meanwhile فٟ أصٕظبء  

 .  Sapt and Rassendyll would go and bring back the King from the hunting lodge ,مٌه
3- What does the phrase 'even if your life depends on it' mean? 

     - It means that Fritz mustn't allow ٠َظّؼ anyone to enter the king's bedroom even if 
he has to die for it. 
5- "My father is not here, I'm afraid. He's gone to see the King." 

1- Who said this to whom? 

     - The little girl whose father guarded ً٠ؾوthe city gate ثٛاثخ said this to Colonel Sapt. 

2- What was the duty of the person's father? 

     - It was to prevent ٠ّٕظغ anyone from going through the gate without the King's 

permit رٖو٠ؼ. 
3- Where was the addressed person going? 
    - He was going to the hunting lodge with Rudolf Rassendyll. 

 
6- "But he told me not to open the gate for anyone." 

1- Who said this to whom? 

    - The little girl whose father guarded ً٠ؾو the city gate ثٛاثخ said this to Colonel Sapt. 
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2- Who told the speaker not to open the gate for anyone? 

    - Her father, the guard of the city gate. 
3- Why did the addressed person want the gate to be opened? 
    - He and Rudolf Rassendyll were going to the hunting lodge to bring back the King. 

 
7- "I think we should go to the castle where we can learn the truth." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Max Holf said this to Duke Michael. 
2- Which truth was the speaker talking about? 

    - It was the truth about the King who was kidnapped ٗرظُ افزطبفظ from the hunting 
lodge by the Duke's men. 
3- What was the addressed person planning to do? 

    - Perhaps he was planning to kill the King or put him in prison ٓ٠ٚظؼٗ فظٝ اٌَظغ and 

take the crown اٌزبط. 
 

8- “If all‟s well, why go there? And if all isn‟t well لريص علري هرا يررام, I fear   يخرا 

there‟ll be a trap هصيذج.” 

1- Who says this to whom? 
    - Max Holt says this to Duke Michael. 
2- Where are they? 

   - They are on the road between Strelsau and Zenda or on the way to Zenda. 

3- What is “there”? What do you think he means ٕٝ٠ؼ by “all‟s well”? 

   - ―There‖ means the hunting lodge. ―All‘s well‖ probably هثّظب means that the Duke‘s 

plan has gone ahead رُ رمل٠ُ ِٛػل٘ب and that the King is kidnapped. 

 

9- "Look there! That‟s what I used to tie up the old woman. Fasten يررتط the horses 
and let‟s see what‟s happened." 

1- Who said this to whom? 

     - Colonel Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Who was the old woman and what did she do? 

  - The old woman was Johann's mother. She overheard ٝ٠زٕٖظذ ػٍظ Sapt's plan to 

prevent رّٕغ Duke Michael from taking the crown اٌزبط. 

3- What did the speaker use to tie up ٜ٠وث the old woman? 

     - He used some dirty handkerchiefs ِٕبك٠ً لنهح. 
 
10-  “We‟ll go back to Strelsau. The King will be back in the capital again 

tomorrow!” 
1- Who says this to whom? 

- Sapt says this to Rassendyll. 
2- Where are they and what has happened? 
    - They are in the hunting lodge near Zenda. They have found Josef dead and the 

King is gone ٝافزف. 
3- How will the King be back in the capital tomorrow? 

    - Rassendyll will continue to pretend ٠زظظب٘و to be the King. Sapt wants Rassendyll to 
continue to pretend to be the King. 

Find the mistake in each sentence and correct it 
1-  Dressed ِزٕىظوا as king of England, Rassendyll rode on through the streets of Strelsau 
towards ٛٔؾ the palace. 

 Dressed as king of Ruritania, Rassendyll rode on through the streets of Strelsau towards the 
palace. 

2-  Rassendyll expected ٠زٛلظغ Flavia to call out رٖظ١ؼ and tell everybody that he was not the 
real King. 
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     Rassendyll expected Antoinette de Mauban to call out and tell everybody that he was 
not the real King. 

3-  People in the poor part of the town were disloyal غ١و أٚف١بء to Duke Michael. 
     People in the poor part of the town were loyal to Duke Michael. 
4-  It is Marshal Strakencz’s idea for the King to ride through the old part of town alone. 

     It is the King's (Rassendyll") idea to ride through the old part of town alone. 
5-  People in the part of the town supported أ٠لٚا the king. 
     People in the poor part of the town supported Duke Michael. 
6-  Princess Amelia said that Rudolf looked different but she thought he was the real King. 
      Princess Flavia said that Rudolf looked ٚوظبْ ٠جظل different but she thought he was the real 
King. 

7-  Fritz thinks it was a good idea for Rassendyll “the King” to become popular with the 
people. 

      Fritz thinks it was not a good idea for Rassendyll “the King” to become popular with the 
people. 

8-  People were angry to see the king (Rassendyll) on his own ٖثّفوك.  
      People were surprised to see the king (Rassendyll) on his own.  
9-  Some people smiled اثزَظّٛا and cheered ؽ١ظٛا but others looked at the Marshal angrily 
 .ثغٚت

      Some people smiled and cheered but others looked at Rassendyll angrily. 
10-  Rassendyll rode in a horse with Princess Flavia. 
       Rassendyll rode in a coach with Princess Flavia. 
11-  Lord Topham that Rassendyll was not the real King. 
       Duke Michael knew that Rassendyll was not the real King. 
12-  Josef rode with Duke Michael from Strelsau. 

       Max Holf rode with Duke Michael from Strelsau. 
13-  Princess Flavia was a beautiful young woman with black hair. 
       Princess Flavia was a beautiful young woman with red hair. 
14-  Duke Michael's hands shook ا٘زيد with anger ثغٚت when he greeted ؽ١ب the Marshal. 
       Duke Michael's hands shook with anger when he greeted Rudolf Rassendyll. 
15-  Rassendyll was happy when he saw Lord Topham from England. 
       Rassendyll was worried when he saw Lord Topham from England. 
16- Lord Topham' eyes were too sharp to recognize Rassendyll. 
      Lord Topham' eyes were too poor to recognize Rassendyll. 
17- Duke Michael wouldn't like it if Sapt became popular with his people. 
       Duke Michael wouldn't like it if the King became popular with his people. 
18-  Rassendyll couldn't leave the city without a permit from the duke. 

       Rassendyll couldn't leave the city without a permit from the King. 
19-  Sapt told Fritz not to let Rassendyll into the King’s bedroom. 
       Sapt told Fritz not to let Michael into the King’s bedroom. 
20-  Sapt and Rassendyll went out of the palace through a secret window. 
       Sapt and Rassendyll went out of the palace through a secret door. 
21-  Sapt gave the guard's daughter a frame from the King and a coin. 
       Sapt gave the guard's daughter a form from the King and a coin. 

22-  Sapt and Rassendyll went to the palace to bring back the King. 
       Sapt and Rassendyll went to the hunting lodge to bring back the King. 
23-  Max Holf was brother to Josef who Rassendyll had seen at the inn. 
       Max Holf was brother to Johann who Rassendyll had seen at the inn. 
24-  Sapt found torn and dirty shirts on the ground. 
       Sapt found torn and dirty handkerchiefs on the ground. 
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Homework  ((A )) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- What did Rassendyll expect Antoinette to do ? 

2- What did the Marshall order his men to do? 
3- Give two reasons for Rassendyll's insistence to ride alone in the old part  
4- How did the people have different feelings when they saw Rassendyll ? 
5- How far was the Duke popular with the poor people? 

6- People in the old part supported Duke Michael. Give reasons. 

7- Why were people in the new part of the town pro-the king ِؤ٠ل٠ٓ ٌٍٍّه? 
8- What was Sapt's feeling while the king was riding through the Old part? 
9- Who did Rassendyll see inside the beautiful coronation building? 

10- What important things could Rassendyll remember well during the coronation? 

11- How did Duke Michael feel when he saw Rassendyll (the pretend King)? 
12- When did Rassendyll become worried at the coronation? 
13- Why couldn't Lord Topham recognize Rassendyll? 

14- Show the princess was a good observant. 
15-Both the princess and Fritz had different opinions about what Rassendyll 

did in the Old part of the town . Discuss 
16- Why did Sapt want Rassendyll to leave Ruritania as soon as he could ? 
17-How did Rassendyll get the King's permit to leave the city that night? 
18-What part would Fritz play to hide Rassendyll's leaving the palace at night? 

19-How did Sapt and Rassebdyll leave the palace secretly after the coronation? 

20- Why did Sapt ask Rassendyll to take his gun? 

21- Where were Sapt and Rassendyll heading for soon after the coronation?why? 

22- What did Rassendyll do so as not to be recognized in the street? 
 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- " Don't you understand me ? Tell your soldier to go! ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What did the speaker want to do? 
  c)What was the effect of that on people there ? 
 
2- "When's the wedding? ” 

 a)Who asked this question? 
 b)Acording to Rassendyll, who could answer that question? 
c)Why couldn't Rassendyll answer that question ? 
 
3- "Why have we changed our route?  ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where were they going at that time ? 
c)What was the addressed person's answer? 
 
4-" I think I want to change now that I'm king " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
 b)Which change did the listener notice? 
 c) Where were they ? 
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5-" I want the people who live here to see that their king  trusts them. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does " here' refer to ? 
c)What was wrong with that place? 
 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- People of the old town wanted Rassendyll to be their king. 
2- Rassendyll was a man with dark hair and dark deep eyes. 
3- Michael was surprised and deeply happy to see Rassendyll. 
4- During the wedding, Rassendyll did all the right things. 

5- Princess Flavia noticed that Rassendyll looked similar as he was more serious. 

6- The Duke of Strelsau was the king's cousin. 
7- Sapt was happy when the king rode through the streets of the old part. 
8- The king rode with soldiers through the streets of the old part. 
9- The Marshal didn't like the king to be popular with people. 

10- Rassendyll was wearing a big coat and hat to cover his black hair. 

11- Sapt and Rassendyll left the palace through a tunnel in the wall. 
12- Some people smiled and cheered the king , others looked happily at him. 
13- On seeing Rassendyll at the coronation, Michael's face turned red.  
 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- Why did Sapt and Rassendyll have to leave Strelsau for Zenda ? 
2- Why did the girl at the city gate refused to open the gate at first? 
3- How did Rassendyll and Sapt leave the king's room? 
4- Why did Sapt get off the horse and put his ears to the ground? 
5- What did Sapt order Rassendyll at the fork? 

6- Where did the Duke and Max ride to? 
7- Why didn't Max prefer going to the hunting lodge? 
8- At the fork, Sapt would love to shoot Duke Michael but he didn't, say why. 

9-Sapt and Rassendyll were surprised on reaching the hunting lodge. Discuss 

10- Why did Rassendyll ask Sapt to stay and went inside the cellar with a 

candle? 

11- How did Josef meet his end? What happened to the king? 
12- Why did Rassendyll want to go back to the capital ?  
13- What did Sapt realize when he saw the torn handkerchiefs? 
14- What was Sapt's plan after the disappearance of the king? 
 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "My father isn't here. I'm afraid . He's gone to see the king.” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What was the duty of the speaker's father? 
  c)Where was the addressed person going ? 
 
2- " Get off ? But they'll  catch us  ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What does " they" refer to? 
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c)Where were they ? 
 
3- "I realized that when I saw the handkerchiefs. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What did the speaker realize? 
c)What were the handkerchiefs used for ? 
4-"Michael must've known all day. " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What was Michael's source of information? 
 c) What was the occasion? 
 
5-" We're lucky that the wind is blowing towards us. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Why were they lucky that the wind was blowing towards them? 
c)Where were they going ? and Why? 
 
6-"So, he's had news that all is well. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does " he " refer to? 
 c)What news might he have? 
 
7-"If all's well , why go there? And if all isn't well, I fear there'll be a trap " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b) Where were they ? 
  c)What does " there" refer to? 
 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- To leave the city, one should have a form signed by the duke. 
2- The girl told Sapt that her father went to see the Duke. 

3- Sapt said that there were four people coming behind them. 
4- Duke Michael and Max Holf rode to the lodge. 
5- The old woman was no longer in the room, she had died. 
6- Fritz was found dead on the floor of the cellar. 
7- If Rassendyll agreed to go back to Strelsau, the king would be killed. 
8- When he saw the torn scarf, Sapt knew that the old woman disappeared. 

9- Sapt wouldn't kill the king as long as Rassendyll was in the palace. 
10- One had to get a permit to leave Zenda. 
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Mad ِْٕٛغ hold … prisoner ٌ٠ؾج 

Shoulder وزف Duties ٚاعجبد 

Protest ٠ؾزظ documents ٚصبئك / َِزٕلاد 

Guilt َمٔت / عو Accuse ُٙ٠ز 

Doubts ّىٛن Kidnap ٠قطف 

Surely ثبٌزأو١ل in public ػلا١ٔخ 

Risk فطو / ِغبىفخ stalemate ِأىق / ٛو٠ك َِلٚك / ٚهٛخ 

Within ٟفلاي ف nervously ثمٍك ٚفٛف 

Act ٠زٖوف Distant ثؼ١ل 

Moonlight ٙٛء اٌمّو attract attention ٔزجب٠ٖغنة ا 

Spade عبهٚف guest room ؽغوح ا١ٌٚٛف 

Hide / hid / hidden  ٠قزجئ Mirror ِوآح 

evil work ػًّ ّو٠و push off his horse ْ٠لفغ ِٓ ػٍٝ اٌؾٖب 

Look shocked َٚ٠جلٚ ِٖل Admit ٠ؼزوف 

knock off a horse ْ٠َُمٜ ِٓ اٌؾٖب unfortunately  ٌَٛء اٌؾ 

be trapped ٠زُ الإ٠مبع ثٗ / ٠ؾزغي Assure ٠ُؤول 

Gap فغٛح / صغوح Steps فطٛاد 

a terrible pain أٌُ فظ١غ permission  ْإم 

Hurt badly ٠ؤٌُ ثْلح Rules لٛاػل 

catch up with ٠ٍؾك ثظ otherwise إلا ٚ 

Breathless لا٘ش bite/bit/bitten ٘٠ؼ 

Bandage ّٙبكح Splendid هائغ 

head off ٠ن٘ت / ٠ٕطٍك Bow ٟٕ٠ٕؾ 

Foreigners أعبٔت Fighter ِؾبهة 

Trust صمخ / ٠ضك poisonous ٍَب 

Serious فط١و Accent ٌٙغخ 

The Text 
1-It had not been easy to escape from Strelsau and return to the hunting 
lodge without anyone seeing us, so when Sapt suggested that I return to 
the capital and continue pretending to be the King, I let him know exactly 
what I thought. 
"You're mad!" I said to Sapt. "The plan's too dangerous!" 

Walking up to me, Sapt put his hand on my shoulder and then looked deep 
into my eyes. 
"Listen, if you're a man, you can save the King. Go back and pretend 
to be him." 
"But the Duke knows where the real King is, and all his men know!" I 

protested. 
"Yes, but they can't say anything," said Sapt. "Listen! We've got them! 
They can't say anything without showing their guilt. They cannot 

Chapter 4 
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say, 'This isn't the real King because we've kidnapped him and killed 
his servant.' Will they say that?" 

I realised that Sapt was right 
السهل الهروب من سترلسو والعودة إلى كوخ الصٌد دون أن ٌرانا أحد ، لذلك عندما اقترح العقٌد سابت أن أعود إلى العاصمة واستمر فً لم ٌكن من 

م نظر القٌام بدور الملك ،أردت أن اجعله ٌعلم ما ٌدور بخلدي. فقلت له "أنت مجنون!". "الخطة خطٌرة جدا!"  فاقترب منً ووضع ٌده على كتفً ث
هذا مق فً عٌناي وقال لً" اسمع أٌها الرجل انه بإمكانك إنقاذ الملك" "عد إلى العاصمة واستمر فً القٌام بدور الملك" فقلت له محتجا على بع

 ناالاقتراح "لكن الدوق ورجاله ٌعلمون أٌن الملك الحقٌقً،!" فقال لً"نعم، لكنهم لا ٌستطٌعون قول أي شًء". ثم أضاف "أنصت إلً! لقد علم
ادمه "هل خطتهم! إنهم لا ٌستطٌعون قول أي شًء دون أن ٌظهروا جرٌمتهم ، فهم لا ٌمكن أن ٌقولوا "هذا لٌس الملك الحقٌقً لأننا خطفناه وقتلنا خ

 ممكن أن ٌقولوا ذلك؟ " أدركت أن العقٌد سابت كان محقا.

2-Even if Michael knew who I was, he could not say he knew, but I still 
had doubts. 
"Sapt, surely someone in Strelsau will realise I'm not the real King," I 
said. "The Princess has already said she thinks the King's changed. 
She'll certainly realise." 
"Of course it's a risk, but we must have a King in Strelsau, or the city 
will belong to Michael within twenty-four hours. You must do it, for 
Ruritania!" 
"What if the King's already dead?" 
"If the real King's already dead, then you shall stay King! But I think 
the King's still alive, and I don't think they'll do anything to him if 
you're in the capital. They'd know that you would stay King if they 
killed him!" 

شخص فحتى لو علم ماٌكل من أنا ، فانه لن ٌستطٌع الإفصاح بذلك، لكن كان لا ٌزال لدي بعض الشكوك. فقلت للعقٌد سابت: "بالتؤكٌد سوف ٌوجد 
ابعت حدٌثً قابلا " إن الأمٌرة قالت أنها تعتقد أن الملك قد تغٌر بالفعل. ومن ثم فإنها سوف تعرف فً سترلسو ٌدرك أننً لست الملك الحقٌقً" وت

اٌكل فً حقٌقتً." فقال لً "بالطبع إنها مجازفة، ولكننا ٌجب أن ٌكون لدٌنا ملك فً سترلسو، وإلا ستنتقل مقالٌد الحكم فً المدٌنة إلى الدوق م
علٌك أن تفعل ذلك من اجل رورٌتانٌا !" فقلت له "ماذا لو كان الملك الحقٌقً قد مات بالفعل؟" فقال لً: "إذا غضون أربع وعشرٌن ساعة.لذا ٌجب 

أنهم سوف كان الملك الحقٌقً قد مات بالفعل، ٌجب علٌك الاستمرار فً دور الملك! ولكننً أعتقد أن الملك ما زال على قٌد الحٌاة، وأنا لا أعتقد 
 مت أنت فً العاصمة، فهم ٌعلمون انك ستظل الملك إذا قتلوا الملك الحقٌقً! "ٌفعلون أي شًء له ماد

3-It was a mad plan, even madder than the first plan, which had been a 
success, but as I listened to Sapt, I saw that it could work. 
"I still worry that someone will realise," I said again. 
"Anything is possible, but come, Rassendyll! Let's go to Strelsau. We'll 
be caught if we stay here." 
"All right, Sapt, I'll try," I said. 
"Good man!" said Sapt. "I'll go and get the horses." 
But seconds later, he came back. "Look out of the window." 

Through the window I could see in the moonlight a big group of men 
coming down the road from Zenda: four were on horses, another four or 
five were walking. I knew they must be Michael's men, and they seemed to 
be carrying spades, coming to the house to hide their evil work. 
I remembered poor Josef's body and said, "Sapt, we should make sure 
that some of those evil men join Josef." 
"Very well," said Sapt. "As a soldier, I've had a lot of fights like this. 
I'll show you what to do." 

ثر خطورة من الخطة الأولى، التً كانت ناجحة بالفعل، ولكن عندما استمعت إلى العقٌد سابت، علمت أننا سننجح فً لقد كانت خطة خطٌرة، بل وأك
لً ذلك. فقلت له مرة أخرى "أنا لا زلت قلقا أن شخصا ما سوف ٌدرك أننً لست الملك الحقٌقً،". فقال لً"كل شًء ممكن، ولكن هٌا بنا نذهب إ

تم القبض علٌنا إذا بقٌنا هنا." فقلت له "حسنا، ٌا سابت، سؤحاول،". فقال لً "أحسنت ٌا رجل!" "سؤذهب واحضر سترلسو ٌاراسندل،!. سوف ٌ
قادمة الخٌول." ولكن بعد ثوان عاد العقٌد سابت وقال لً. "انظرا من النافذة." رأٌت من خلال النافذة فً ضوء القمر مجموعة كبٌرة من الرجال 

عة منهم كانوا على الخٌول، وأربعة أو خمسة كانوا ٌمشون. كنت أعرف أنهم من رجال الدوق ماٌكل، وٌبدو أنهم كانوا على الطرٌق من زندا: أرب
بعض ٌحملون معدات الحفر، متجهون إلى المنزل لإخفاء معالم جرٌمتهم. تذكرت حٌنبذ جثمان جوزٌف المسكٌن ، وقلت لسابت "علٌنا التؤكد من أن 
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لحقوا بجوزٌف". فقال لً"حسنا وأنا بصفتً العسكرٌة ، قد مر بً الكثٌر من هذه المواقف، وسوف أبٌن لك ما ٌجب القٌام هإلاء الرجال الأشرار 
 به."

4-We went out of a back door and climbed onto our horses with our swords 
ready. We could hear the men arrive at the front of the hunting lodge, and 
one called out, "Go and get the body." 
"Now!" cried Sapt, and we drove our horses fast to the front of the building. 

The men looked shocked to see us and were not prepared. I easily knocked 
one man off his horse, then hit another big man with my sword as he 
moved towards me. But there were only two of us and within seconds I 
realised there were people all around me. Just as I was about to be 
trapped, I saw a gap between the men and saw my chance to escape. I 
turned my horse and quickly rode through the gap towards the forest. My 
horse was fast but as I left, I heard a gun and I was almost shot. I could 
see Sapt on his horse ahead of me, and went as quickly as I could towards 
him, waving. Then I heard another shot and felt a terrible pain in my 
finger. Someone shot again, but now we were too far away for them to hit 
us. At last I caught up with Sapt, who was breathless but laughing. 

"Well done!" he said. "That was very brave. Do you think: they saw 
who you were?" 
"Yes, one of the men said 'It's the King' before I pushed him off his 
horse." 
"Good!" said Sapt. "That will give Michael something to worry about." 

اذهبوا خرجنا من الباب الخلفً وركبنا خٌولنا وسٌوفنا جاهزة. وسمعنا صوت الرجال عندما وصلوا إلى مقدمة مبنى كوخ الصٌد فنادي احدهم قابلا "
" حٌنبذ صاح العقٌد سابت قابلا "الآن" وانطلقنا بالخٌول سرٌعا. وصدم الرجل لرإٌتنا فلم ٌتوقعوا مقابلة احد. اسقطت احدهم واحضروا الجثمان.

بسهولة من على جواده وضربت رجلا ضخما آخر بسٌفً عندما اتجه نحوي،. لكننا كنا اثنٌن فقط وفً غضون ثوان أحاطونً. وقبل أن ٌمسكوا بً 
من بٌنهم نحو الغابة. وكان حصانً سرٌع ولكن عندما غادرت، سمعت طلق ناري كاد أن ٌصٌبنً. كنت أرى العقٌد سابت على  اهرب  استطعت أن

، حصانه أمامً، وذهبت بؤسرع ما ٌمكن نحوه ملوحا بٌدي. ثم سمعت طلقة أخرى وشعرت بؤلم فظٌع فً إصبعً. وأطلق احدهم النار للمرة الثالثة
ا جدا. أخٌرا التحقت بالعقٌد سابت، الذي كان ٌضحك وهو ٌلتقط أنفاسه. فقال لً"أحسنت صنعا! " وأضاف متسابلا " هل تعتقد: ولكننا الآن كنا بعٌد

"هذا أنهم تعرفوا علٌك؟" فقلت له "نعم لقد تعرفوا علً فقد سمعت احدهم ٌقول:"انه الملك" وذلك قبل أن أسقطه من على جواده" فقال "حسنا!". 
 قلقا."سٌجعل ماٌكل 

5-After a time, we stopped so that Sapt could put a bandage on my finger, 
which now hurt badly. We moved on in silence, as quickly as our poor 
horses were able to, until we arrived at a farm just as the sun was rising 
on a cold, clear day. I covered my face, saying to the farmer that I had a 
bad tooth before we asked for food. 
The farmer was kind and let us rest, but we knew we could not wait for 
long and soon headed off. Some hours later, we saw the buildings of 
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Strelsau ahead of us. It was about nine o'clock and at this time of day, the 
city gates were open, so we went back through the gate that we had left 
from. 
وبعد مرور بعض الوقت، توقفنا لكً ٌضمد سابت إصبعً الذي كان ٌإلمنً بشدة. وسرنا فً صمت، سرٌعا بقدر طاقة خٌولنا المنهكة من شدة 

ا التعب، حتى وصلنا إلى مزرعة مع شروق الشمس. غطٌت وجهً، وقلت للمزارع أن أسنانً تإلمنً قبل أن نطلب الطعام. كان المزارع طٌبا وتركن
اعة ولكننا كنا نعلم أننا لا ٌمكن أن تنتظر لفترة طوٌلة وانطلقنا سرٌعا. وبعد بضع ساعات، رأٌنا مبانً العاصمة سترلسو أمامنا. كانت الس نسترٌح،

 حوالً التاسعة صباحا، وكانت أبواب المدٌنة مفتوحة، فذهبنا إلى البوابة الخلفٌة التً كنا قد غادرنا منها.

6-The streets of the city were very quiet, as most of the people were resting 
after the celebrations, and we saw almost no one until we were back at the 
palace. Here, one of Sapt's servants was waiting for us. 
"Is all well, sir?" he asked. 
"Yes, Freyler, all is well," answered Sapt. 
"But the King's hurt?" he said, seeing my finger. 
"It's nothing," I said. 
"He caught his finger in a door," Sapt explained. "Now remember, say 
nothing about this. All young men like to ride their horses now and 
then, so why not the King?" 

رجال العقٌد  كانت شوارع المدٌنة هادبة جدا، لأن معظم الناس كانوا ٌسترٌحون بعد الاحتفالات، وتقرٌبا لم نر أحدا حتى دخلنا القصر. و هنا كان احد
ما ٌرام".  سابت فً انتظارنا. فسؤل العقٌد سابت قابلا "هل كل شًء على ما ٌرام، ٌا سٌدي؟"فؤجابه سابت قابلا  "نعم ٌا فرٌلر، كل شًء على

ه فتساءل فرٌلر عند رإٌة إصبعً قابلا "لكن الملك مصاب؟" فقلت له "انه شًء بسٌط،". فقال له سابت موضحا "لقد قفل الباب على إصبعه وذكر
 ألا ٌخبر أحدا عما رأي فجمٌع الشبان ترغب فً ركوب خٌولهم بٌن الحٌن والآخر، فلماذا لا ٌفعل الملك ذلك ؟! "

7-As the servant led our horses away, Sapt said quietly to me, "Freyler's a 
good servant, but sometimes it's best not to trust even the best of 
men." 

Sapt put the key in the secret door and we went back inside the palace, 
down the passage to the King's room. Back inside, Fritz, who had been 
asleep, jumped up when he heard us and cried, "My King, you're safe! I'm 
so pleased." He then bowed down in front of me. 
"Even Fritz thinks you're the real King!" laughed Sapt. "I think we can 
do this." 
"Oh! Rassendyll?" said Fritz in surprise. "But what's happened to your 
hand? Are you hurt?" 
"It's nothing serious. What's more important is what we have to tell 
you." 
"What is it? Where's the real King?" he cried. 
"Be quiet, Fritz!" said Sapt. "Don't speak so loudly! People will hear 
us." 

Suddenly there was a knock at the door, so Sapt took me by the arm. 
"Quick! Go into the bedroom, take your hat and boots off and climb 
into bed. Cover yourself up so people think you're asleep." 
بت ولما ذهب فرٌلر بالخٌول قال لً سابت بهدوء "فرٌلر خادم جٌد، ولكن فً بعض الأحٌان من الأفضل عدم الثقة حتى فً أفضل الرجال." وضع سا

سعٌد  ننًالمفتاح فً الباب السري ودخلنا القصر، من خلال الممر إلى غرفة الملك. وعندما سمعنا فرٌتز الذي كان نابما قفز ،وصاح قابلا " سٌدي إ
" فقال لسلامتك وانحنى أمامً." ضحك سابت قابلا: " حتى فرٌتز ٌعتقد أنك الملك الحقٌقً!" وأضاف قابلا. "أعتقد أننا ٌمكن أن ننجح فً مهمتنا.

ما ٌجب  فرٌتز مندهشا "أوه! ٌا راسندل؟"وأضاف متسابلا "لكن ماذا حدث لك؟ هل أنت مصاب؟" فقلت له "إنه شًء بسٌط ولكن الأكثر أهمٌة هو
. وفجؤة أن نقوله لك." فصاح متسابلا "ما هو؟ أٌن الملك الحقٌقً؟". فقال له سابت "كن هادبا، ٌا فرٌتز! لا تتحدث بصوت عال! الناس قد تسمعنا"

ا حتى ٌظن كان هناك طرق على الباب، فؤخذنً سابت من ذراعً وقال لً. "بسرعة! اذهب إلى غرفة النوم، واخلع نعلٌك وقبعتك وغطً نفسك جٌد
 الناس انك نابم"

8-I did as I was told, but a minute later Sapt came into the bedroom and 
smiled. He introduced me to a polite young gentleman who came up to my 



 

- 68 - 

bed and told me that he was a servant of Princess Flavia, who had sent 
him to find out how the King was feeling after the coronation. 
"Send her my thanks," I said, "and tell her that I've never felt better in 
my life." 
"The King's had a good long sleep," said Sapt. 

The servant bowed and left, and I smiled at Sapt. But Fritz still looked very 
serious. 

مٌرة فعلت كما قٌل لً، ولكن بعد دقٌقة واحدة جاء سابت إلى غرفة النوم مبتسما. وقدم لً رجل شاب مهذب جاء إلى سرٌري وقال لً أنه خادم الأ
قٌد سابت: عفلافٌا ، أرسلته الأمٌرة لمعرفة كٌف كان شعور الملك بعد التتوٌج. فقلت له"بلغها تحٌاتً، واخبرها أننً فً أتم صحة وحال" وقال له ال

 "إن الملك قد نام نوما عمٌقا لٌلة أمس". انحنى الخادم وانصرف، ابتسمت للعقٌد سابت. ولكن فرٌتز مازال جادا جدا.

9-"Tell me, is the King dead?" he asked quietly. 
"We don't think so," I answered. "But Duke Michael's holding him 
prisoner." 

The next day, it took Sapt three hours to tell me all about the King's 
duties. It seems that a king's life is quite hard, but a pretend king's life is 
even harder. At least Sapt stayed with me to tell me what I ought to do and 
what I ought not to do, and what I should say to the many important 
people I had to meet during the day. I was worried when I met the French 
ambassador and he asked me a question which I could not answer, but 
later Sapt told me that I should not worry, as the real King would not have 
been able to answer either. I also had to tell everyone that I could not write 
because of my finger, so many important documents were not completed. 

التالً،  وتساءل بهدوء: "قولوا لً، هل مات الملك؟". فؤجبته قابلا "نحن لا نعتقد ذلك". وأضفت "لكن الدوق ماٌكل ٌحتجزه كسجٌن." وفً الٌوم
ى أٌة ظل العقٌد سابت قرابة ثلاث ساعات ٌخبرنً بكل شًء عن واجبات الملك. وبدا لً أن حٌاة الملوك صعبة جدا، ولكن تقلٌدهم أكثر صعوبة. وعل

خصٌات المهمة حال وقف العقٌد ثابت بجواري لٌرشدنً إلى ما ٌجب علً أن افعله وما لا ٌجب علً أن افعله. ، كذلك ما ٌنبغً علً أن أقوله للش
حق طمبننً التً أقابلها على مدار الٌوم. وكنت قلقا ذات ٌوم عندما التقٌت بالسفٌر الفرنسً وسؤلنً سإال لم أستطع الإجابة علٌه، ولكن فً وقت لا

أننً لا ٌمكننً التوقٌع على سابت قابلا لا داعً للقلق فحتى الملك الحقٌقً لٌس لدٌه القدرة على الإجابة أٌضا. وكان لزاما على أن اخبر الجمٌع 
 العدٌد من المستندات المهمة نظرا لإصابتً بإصبعً.

10-After many hours of meetings, I was finally alone with my friends once 
more. I asked a new servant, who had never met the real King, for a drink 
and then asked Sapt if I could rest at last. I was not used to such hard 
work. 
"Rest? No! We mustn't waste any time! Shouldn't we plan how to 
attack Michael?" asked Fritz. 
"Let's take things slowly," said Sapt. 
"So aren't we going to do anything?" said Fritz. 
"We aren't going to do anything dangerous," answered Sapt. 
"If people find out who I am," I said, "then I'll fight with the Duke. But 
at the moment, let's wait to see what the Duke does." 
"He'll kill the King," said Fritz. 
"He won't," said Sapt. "If he kills the King, he knows that Rassendyll 
will stay as King instead. And he cannot accuse Rassendyll of 
anything because then people will know that he's kidnapped the 
King." 
"And we cannot accuse him in public without admitting that I'm not 
the real King," I explained. 
"So no one can do anything! It's a stalemate!" cried Fritz. "But wait. 
Half of Michael's Six Men are in Strelsau with the Duke." 
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"Only half? Then that means the other half are guarding the King," 

said Sapt. 
"Yes, you're right," said Fritz. "So that means the King must be alive. If 
the King were dead, all the Six Men would be here with the Duke." 

وبعد عدة ساعات من الاجتماعات، أصبحت فً نهاٌة المطاف وحدي مع أصدقابً مرة أخرى. طلبت من احد الخدم الجدد والذي لم ٌلتق الملك 
ٌح قلٌلا . فانا لم اعتد على مثل هذا العمل الشاق. فتساءل فرٌتز قابلا الحقٌقً قط ، أن ٌحضر لً مشروبا ثم طلبت من العقٌد سابت أن أستر

الأمر". "تسترٌح؟ لا! ٌجب علٌنا ألا نضٌع الوقت! ألا ٌجب علٌنا أن نخطط لكٌفٌة مواجهة الدوق ماٌكل؟" فرد علٌه سابت قابلا " دعنا نترٌث فً 
"نحن لن تفعل أي شًء خطٌر" فقلت له"إذا علم الناس حقٌقتً حٌنبذ سنقاوم الدوق فقال له فرٌتز"لو تمهلنا فلن نفعل أي شًء؟"فقال له سابت. 

ٌكل لن ولكن حالٌا، دعونا ننتظر لنرى ماذا سٌفعل دوق". فقال لً فرٌتز " أن الدوق ماٌكل سوف ٌقتل الملك" فقال له العقٌد سابت" إن الدوق ما
دل ٌقوم بدور الملك ولن ٌمكنه اتهام راسندل بؤي شًء لأن الناس سوف تعلم انه قد خطف ٌقتل الملك لأنه ٌعلم انه إذا فعل ذلك فسوف ٌظل راسن

ذا لا الملك الحقٌقً" فقلت موضحا "ونحن أٌضا لا ٌمكن أن نتهمه بؤي شًء علنا دون الاعتراف بؤننً لست الملك الحقٌقً." فصاح فرٌتز قابلا "ل
ابلا مهلا ٌا سادة نصف رجال ماٌكل الستة فً العاصمة سترلسو مع الدوق ماٌكل". فقال العقٌد ٌمكن لكلانا أن ٌفعل أي شًء! إنه مؤزق! وأضاف ق

ٌَكُونَ  عْنً أن الملكَ لابد أنَْ  ٌَ ا. فلو كان سابت " النصف فقط؟ فهذا ٌعنً أن النصف الأخر ٌحرس الملك" فقال له فرٌتز "نعم، أنت على حق، وهذا  اٌ  ح
 لستّة هنا مَع الدوقِ."الملكِ قد مات، لكان الرجال ا

11-"Excuse me, but who are the Six Men?" I asked. 
"Unfortunately I fear you'll soon be meeting them," said Fritz. "They're 
six special soldiers who Michael keeps in his house at all times. 
They're completely loyal to him. Three are from Ruritania, one is 
Belgian, one French, and one's from your country." 
"They'll do whatever Michael asks them to do," continued Sapt. 
"Would they try to kill me?" I asked nervously. 
"Without a doubt. Which three are here in Strelsau, Fritz?" asked 

Sapt. 
'The three foreigners: De Gautet, Bersonin and Detchard." 
"So they were not the men we saw at the hunting lodge?" I asked. 
"I wish they were," said Sapt, "because then there'd only be four and 
not six of them." 

"إنهم ستّة من فقلت لهما متسابلا "عفوا، ولكن مَنْ هم الرجال الستّة؟ " فقال لً فرٌتز "لسوء الحظ أخشى أنّك سَتُقابلهُم قرٌباً" ، وأضاف قابلا: 
، وآخر فرنسً الحرس الخاص بالدوق ماٌكل وهو ٌحتفظ بهم دابما فً منزله وهم موالون له تماما. ثلاثة منهم مِنْ دولة رورٌتانٌا ، وواحد بلج ًُ ٌك

ٌُح اولونَ قَتْلً؟" والثالث مِنْ بلادِكَ." وواصل الحدٌث العقٌد سابت قابلا " إنهم ٌفعلون كل ما ٌطلبه منهم الدوق ماٌكل " فتساءلت بعصبٌة: "هَلْ س
سترلسو؟" فؤجابه فرٌتز قابلا " الأجانب  فؤجاب العقٌد سابت قابلا: "بدون شَكّ." وسؤل سابت فرٌتز قابلا "من هم الثلاثة الموجودون الآن بالعاصمة

ؤجابنً الثلاثة : وهم )دي جاتت( و)برسونن( و)دٌتشارد(" فسؤلت العقٌد سابت قابلا "إذا إنهم لٌسوا الرجال الذٌن شاهدناهم فً كوخ الصٌد ؟" ف
 سابت قابلا: "أتَمنّى لو كانوا هم لأنه فً هذه الحالة سٌكون هناك أربعة منهم ولٌس ستة."

12-I now decided that I should act – perhaps like all real kings do – by 
keeping some secrets even from the people I could trust the most. My plan 
was to make myself as popular as I could, and say nothing bad about 
Michael. In this way, I could hope to stop the poorer people of Strelsau 
from thinking badly about me. Then, if there were a fight, perhaps people 
would not want to follow Michael, although of course I hoped there would 
not be such a fight. Perhaps I could actually enjoy my game in Strelsau 
and something good would come from it. Michael would not grow stronger 
while the game lasted. 

وذلك عن طرٌق الاحتفاظ ببعض الأسرار حتى عن الناس الذٌن أثق بهم كثٌرا. وكانت  –ربما مثل كل الملوك الحقٌقٌٌن  -قررت حٌنبذ أن أتصرف 
ً قدر الإمكان، وألا أتحدث بسوء عن أخً الدوق ماٌكل. وبهذه الطرٌقة، ٌمكن أن نؤمل فً منع خطتً أن اجعل لنفسً شعبٌة وقبولا لدى شعب

الطبع الفقراء الموجودون بالعاصمة من سوء الظن بً. ومن ثم، إذا كان هناك قتال، ربما ٌمتنع هإلاء الناس عن الانضمام لماٌكل ، على الرغم ب

وانه قد ٌؤتً شًء جٌدا منه. كما أن ماٌكل لن ٌصبح أقوى  ,ا بدأت فعلا أستمتع بما أقوم به فً سترلسوأننً  كنت آمل ألا ٌكون هناك صداما. وربم
  إذا إستمرٌت فً القٌام بدور الملك.

13-My plan began the next day, when I rode my horse through the park 
with Fritz and waved to everyone who bowed to me. The more my people 
saw of me, the more they would realise I cared about them and their lives. I 
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was not going to be a distant king who people only heard about. And as I 
had done before the coronation, I wanted to be seen most in the old town, 
where most of the poor people lived. 
Riding through some of the narrowest and oldest town streets, I stopped to 
buy flowers from a poor young girl with a gold coin. This attracted a lot of 
interest, and soon hundreds of people were following me on my way to the 
home of Princess Flavia. 
I knew the Princess was very popular and the people seemed very pleased 
that I had gone to see her. Moreover, if I had the support of the Princess, 
this could only help me. Fritz also thought this was a good idea and came 
with me on my visit to the Princess's palace. 

. فمما لاشك فٌه كلما رآنً شعبً أسٌر بٌنهم  -وبدأت خطتً فً الٌوم التالً، وذلك عندما ركبت جوادي من خلال الحدٌقة مع فرٌتز وكنت ألوح لكل من ٌنحنً لً 
قبل التتوٌج، أردت أن أتفقد الجزء القدٌم  ، كلما أدركوا أكثر أننً أهتم بهم وبحٌاتهم. لم أكن أرٌد أن أكون ملكا بعٌدا عن شعبه ٌسمع فقط الناس عنه. وكما فعلت

ة ودفعت إلٌها عملة من المدٌنة ، حٌث ٌقٌم معظم الناس الفقراء. وأثناء تفقدي لبعض الشوارع الضٌقة والقدٌمة، توقفت لشراء بعض الزهور من فتاة شابة فقٌر
نً المبات منهم فً طرٌقً إلى منزل الأمٌرة فلافٌا. كنت اعلم أن الأمٌرة تتمتع ذهبٌة. ولقد جذب صنٌعً هذا الكثٌر من اهتمام الناس البسطاء، وسرعان ما تبع

زز من موقفً،. ولقد بشعبٌة كبٌرة جدا لذا بدا الناس فً غاٌة السعادة عندما ذهبت لرإٌتها. فضلا عن ذلك، فإننً إذا حصلت على دعم الأمٌرة لً فان ذلك سٌع
  دة، وجاء معً فً زٌارتً لقصر الأمٌرة.اعتقد فرٌتز ذلك أٌضا واعتبرها فكرة جٌ

14-I was shown into a guest room full of enormous mirrors, paintings and 
beautiful furniture, and soon the Princess arrived with her servants. I 
knew that I had to be very careful when I talked to the Princess. I needed 
the Princess to trust me, but I did not want to say too much to her, or she 
would realise I was not the real King. And although I wanted to show her 
that I trusted her, she must not think she could say what she liked to me, 
because I was not the man she thought I was. 
"You have completely changed since you became King, sir," she said. 
"You need not call me 'sir'," I told her. "For after all, we are still 
cousins." 
She looked at me, then said, ''I'm proud to do so, Rudolf. But I think 
your face has changed." 
I needed to talk about something else, so I said, "My brother's back in the 
city, I hear. He went away for a while, didn't he?" 
"Yes, I hear he's back in Strelsau." 
"That's good. The nearer he is to me, the better." 
The Princess looked at me. "Do you want him to be near you so that you 
know what he's doing?" 
"I'd like him to be near me because he's my half-brother. We're 
family!" I answered. "We need to help and support each other. 
Unfortunately, I've heard he can't stay in Strelsau for very long." 
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ً ٌجب أن أكون أخُذت الى غرفة الضٌوف والتً كانت ملٌبة بالمراٌا الضخمة واللوحات والأثاث الجمٌل، وسرعان ما وصلت الأمٌرة مع خدمها. كنت أعرف أنن
بذلك أننً لست الملك الحقٌقً. وعلى حذرا جدا عندما أتحدث إلٌها. وكنت بحاجة إلى كسب ثقتها، ولكن لم أكن أرٌد أن أتحدث إلٌها أكثر من اللازم ، لأنها قد تدرك 

حقٌقً. فقالت لً: "لقد تغٌرت الرغم من أننً أردت أن أظهر لها أننً أثق بها، إلا أنها لا ٌجب أن تعتقد أنها قادرة على أن تقول ما تحب لً، لأننً لم أكن الملك ال
ً لً 'ٌا سٌدي'،". "فعلى أٌة حال، فإننا لا نزال أبناء عمومة". فنظرت إلً ثم قالت: تماما منذ أن أصبحت الملك، ٌا سٌدي،". فقلت لها: "لست بحاجة إلى أن تقول

ى المدٌنة، سمعت انه '' أنا فخورة بذلك، ٌارودولف. ولكن أعتقد أن وجهك قد تغٌر." أردت أن أغٌر الموضوع ، لذلك قلت لها، "لقد عاد أخً ماٌكل مرة أخرى إل
؟" فقالت لً "نعم، سمعت أنه عاد إلى سترلسو ". فقلت لها "هذا أمر جٌد. فكلما كان قرٌبا منً كلما كان ذلك أفضل." فنظرت ذهب بعٌدا لبعض الوقت، ألٌس كذلك

. وان كان غٌر شقٌق إلً وقالت. "هل ترٌد له أن ٌكون بالقرب منك حتى ٌتسنى لك معرفة ما ٌخطط لفعله؟" فقلت لها "أود منه أن ٌكون على مقربة منً لأنه أخً
 لفترة طوٌلة."فنحن أسرة واحدة!" وتابعت حدٌثً قابلا "نحن بحاجة إلى مساعدة ودعم بعضنا البعض، وللأسف، لقد سمعت أنه لا ٌستطٌع البقاء فً سترلسو 

15-She looked at me strangely when I said this, but at that moment there 
was a loud cheer from the streets outside. The Princess ran to the window, 
then she turned to me, looking anxious. 
"It's him!" she said. "It's the Duke of Strelsau! He's coming here now." 

I was surprised by this news and did not know what to say. For several 
minutes, Princess Flavia and I sat in silence. Her servants also stood 
silently, with their heads bowed. We could hear steps outside the door and 
I expected Michael to enter, but then the steps stopped, so we continued to 
talk again. I cannot remember what we talked about, but I found it very 
easy to talk to the Princess and time passed. 

إلً وبدا علٌها فنظرت إلى باستغراب عندما قلت ذلك، ولكن فً تلك اللحظة كان هناك من ٌهتف بصوت عال بالخارج. فؤسرعت الأمٌرة إلى النافذة، ثم تحولت 
ر، ولم أدرى ماذا أقول. لعدة دقابق، جلست أنا و الأمٌرة فلافٌا فً صمت تام ووقف القلق. فقالت: "انه هو! الدوق ماٌكل قادم إلى هنا ألان". اندهشت بهذا الخب

الخطوات، لذلك أٌضا خدمها فً صمت، ورإوسهم منحنٌة تحٌة إلى قدوم الدوق. سمعنا طرق خطوات خارج الباب وكنت أتوقع دخول ماٌكل ، ولكن بعد ذلك توقفت 
 طٌع أن أتذكر ما كنا نتحدث عنه، ولكننً وجدت أنه من السهل جدا التحدث مع الأمٌرة ومر الوقت.واصلت الحدٌث مرة أخرى مع الأمٌرة. لم أست

16-I thought it was strange that Michael had not come into the room, but 
we did not talk about him at all until the Princess suddenly jumped up and 
said, "You do know that Michael will be very angry. Is that a good 
idea?" 
"What do you mean? How am I making him angry?" I asked. 
"You haven't asked him to come in. He's been waiting outside the 
room for a long time." 
"But of course he can come in," I said, realising I had made a serious 

mistake. 
"How funny you are," she said. "You know that no one can enter 
without your permission." 
"Of course," I said. ''I'd forgotten!" But the Princess looked at me in a way 

that made me think she realised something was wrong. 
"I was never very good at remembering all the rules," I continued, 
wishing that Fritz had told me about this, "but I'll go and get him myself 
at once." 

ٌدا أن ماٌكل سٌكون غاضبا جدا اعتقدت أنه أمر غرٌب أن ماٌكل لم ٌدخل الغرفة، ولكننا لم نتحدث عنه على الإطلاق حتى وقفت الأمٌرة فجؤة وقالت: "أنت تعرف ج
منذ فترة طوٌلة." بذلك فهل هذه فكرة جٌدة ؟! "فسؤلتها "ماذا تقصدٌن؟ كٌف لً أن اجعله غاضبا؟" فقالت لً. "أنت لم تطلب منه الدخول وهو ٌنتظر بالخارج 

نت مضحك ٌارودولف أنت تعرف أنه لا ٌمكن لأحد أن ٌدخل الغرفة فقلت لها "لكن بالطبع إنه ٌمكنه الدخول" أدركت أننً قد ارتكبت خطؤ فادحا. فقالت لً "كم أ
فتابعت حدٌثً قابلا  دون إذن منك." فقلت لها "بالطبع،  كنت قد نسٌت ذلك! "لكن الأمٌرة نظرت إلً بطرٌقة جعلتنً أعتقد أنها أدركت أن ثمة شًء خطؤ قد حدث.

 تز قد اخبرنً أن أخً بالخارج  ولكنً سؤذهب واحضره بنفسً فى الحال.""أنا لم أكن أبدا جٌدا فً تذكر جمٌع القواعد ٌا لٌت فرٌ

17-I opened the door and went out of the guest room to greet Michael. He 
was sitting at a table looking very angry. All his men were standing next to 
him. I held out my hand and Michael stood up slowly and took it, then I 
showed him into the Princess's guest room. 
"Brother," I said, "I'm so sorry. I didn't know you were waiting, 
otherwise I'd have asked you in sooner." 
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He thanked me, but coldly. Michael did not seem to be good at hiding his 
feelings, and I could see that he was angry with me. I could also see he was 
trying to pretend that he thought I was the real King. 

ٌدي ووقف فتحت الباب وخرجت من غرفة الضٌوف لتحٌة ماٌكل. وكان ٌجلس على طاولة بالخارج وٌعلوه الغضب الشدٌد. وجمٌع رجاله ٌقفون بجانبه. مددت 
وإلا كنت قد طلبت منك ماٌكل ببطء وصافحنً، ثم رافقته إلى غرفة الضٌوف الخاصة بالأمٌرة. فقلت له " أنا آسف جدا ٌا أخً لم أكن اعلم انك تنتظر بالخارج 

أنه كان ٌحاول  الدخول فً الحال." فقدم الشكر لً ولكن ببرود. فهو لم ٌكن جٌدا فً إخفاء مشاعره، واستطعت أن أرى أنه كان غاضبا جدا منى. ورأٌت أٌضا
 التظاهر بؤنه ٌعتقد أننً الملك الحقٌقً.

18-We sat down with the Princess. 
"You've hurt your hand," he said. 
"Yes, an animal bit me," I explained. "It'll be fine." 
"Is there any danger from the bite?" Flavia asked. 
"Not from this," I said looking at Michael, "but if I gave him the chance 
to bite again, it would be different." 
"Did you kill the animal?" Flavia asked. 
"No," I said. "We're waiting to see if his bite's poisonous." 
"And if it is?" said Michael, smiling coldly, clearly understanding who I 

was really talking about. 
"He'll be knocked on the head," I said. 
"But he might bite again," said Michael. 
"I'm sure he'll try," I replied, smiling. Then, worried that Michael would 

say something I did not want to hear, I decided to change the subject. I 
told him how fine his soldiers were and thanked him for the splendid 
coronation. I thanked him for the great time I had had at the hunting lodge 
in the forest. When he heard this, he jumped to his feet and angrily walked 
towards the door. Then he stopped and said, "Three of my friends would 
very much like to meet you, sir. They're waiting outside." 

فلافٌا: "هل هناك جلسنا مع الأمٌرة. وسؤلنً ماٌكل قابلا: "لقد أصٌبت ٌدك،" فقلت له "نعم، لقد عضنً حٌوان و سوف أكون على ما ٌرام." فسؤلتنً الأمٌرة 
ون مختلف". فقالت لً:"هل خطورة من العضة؟" فقلت لها وأنا انظر إلى ماٌكل. "لٌس من أول مرة ولكن إذا أعطٌته فرصة لٌعضنً مرة أخرى، فإن الأمر سٌك

الحٌوان ساما؟"  فقلت  قتلت الحٌوان؟"فقلت لها "لا نحن ننتظر لنرى إذا كانت لدغته سامة". فقال ماٌكل وهو ٌبتسم ببرود وٌعلم ٌقٌنا عن من أتحدث: "وإذا كان
ف ٌحاول". ثم، قررت أن أغٌر الموضوع خشٌة أن ٌقول ماٌكل له: "سٌلقى حتفه" فقال لً: "لكنه قد ٌعضك مرة أخرى" فؤجبته مبتسما: "أنا متؤكد من أنه سو

خ الصٌد بالغابة. شٌبا لا أود أن اسمعه. فقلت له كم كان جنوده ظرفاء وشكرته على حفلة التتوٌج الرابعة. كما شكرته على الوقت الجمٌل الذي قضٌته فً كو
 : "ثلاثة من أصدقابً ٌودون أن ٌلتقوا بكم، ٌا سٌدي. إنهم ٌنتظرون بالخارج".وعندما سمع ذلك وقف مسرعا، وسار نحو الباب غاضبا. ثم توقف وقال

19-So I walked up to Michael and took his arm and we entered the outside 
room like best friends. Michael asked the three men to come forward. 
"These gentleman are the most loyal and honest of the King's 
servants, and are my great friends." 
"I'm very pleased to meet them," I said. 
They bowed before me one at a time: first De Gautet, a tall, thin French man with 
straight hair; then Bersoni, the Belgian, who was large and about thirty years old; and 

finally Detchard, the Englishman, who had a thin face, strong shoulders and very short 
hair. He looked like a good fighter and a bad character. I spoke to him in English with a 

pretend foreign accent, and I am sure I saw him smile when I spoke. 
So, Detchard knows my secret, I thought. And if he knew, surely all the Six Men knew 
as well. How dangerous were these special soldiers? And how safe was I, even in the 

palace of Strelsau? 
طلب ماٌكل من الرجال الثلاثة التقدم إلى الأمام. فقال لً ماٌكل: "هإلاء فسرت إلٌه وأخذت بٌده ودخلنا الغرفة الخارجٌة وكؤننا أصدقاء أعزاء. و

أولهم  الراجل هم الأكثر ولاء وأمانة للملك، وهم أٌضا اعز أصدقابً" فقلت له: "وأنا مسرور للقابهم". انحنى الرجال أمامً فً وقت واحد :وكان
اتٌت والثانً رجل بلجٌكً ضخم وعمره ٌناهز الثلاثون عام وكان ٌدعى برسونً رجل فرنسً رفٌع وطوٌل القامة ذو شعر ناعم وكان ٌدعى  دي ج

حدثت وأخٌرا دٌتشارد ، الانجلٌزي، الذي كان نحٌف الوجه ، و قوي الكتفٌن وشعره قصٌر جدا. وبدا علٌه انه مقاتل جٌد ولكن ذو شخصٌة سٌبة. ت
ً رأٌته ٌبتسم عندما كنت أتحدث. فاعتقدت انه ٌعرف حقٌقتً، وإذا كان ٌعرف حقٌقتً ، إلٌه باللغة الإنجلٌزٌة ولكن بلكنة غرٌبة، كنت واثق من أنن

 فبالتؤكٌد جمٌع الرجال الستة ٌعرفون أٌضا. فما اخطر هإلاء الجنود الخاصة؟ وما مدى سلامتً ، حتى وأنا فً قصر سترلسو؟
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Questions & Answers 
 
1- Why did Rudolf Rassendyll think that Sapt's second plan was too 

dangerous? 
  .Because the Duke and his men knew that he wasn't the real King. 

 
2- Why couldn't the duke say anything about Rassendyll even though 

he knew Rassendyll was not the real King? 

  Because his men kidnapped ٗرُ افزطبف the King and killed his servant. If 
he told people that Rassendyll wasn't the real King, people would ask him 

where the real King was and he would appear guilty ِنٔت.  

 
3- What did Sapt plan to do if the real King was dead? 

  He planned that Rassendyll would remain ٠ًظ  as King. 

 
4- According to Sapt, why was it important to have a King in 

Strelsau? 

  King Rudolf Elphberg was held prisoner ٍٓظغ١ at the Castle of Zenda. If 

they didn't have a King in Strelsau, Michael would take the crown  ٌٝٛ٠َظز

 .ػٍٝ اٌزبط

 
5-  According to Sapt, when would Rudolf Rassendyll stay king for 

life?  

  He would stay king for life if the real King (Rudolf Elphberg) was killed. 

 
6- Why did Michael's men go back to the hunting lodge  الثيرد الريفر 

carrying spades  جاسق? 

  They went back to bury ٓ٠لف Josef's body so as to hide their evil work. 

 
7- What did Rassendyll mean that some of those evil men should join 

Josef? 
  He meant that some of them should be killed. They should join Josef in 
death. 

 
8- Why couldn't Rudolf Rassendyll continue fighting  لررا Michael's 

men? 

  There were men all around him and he was about to be trapped  ُ٠ظز

 .الإ٠مبع ثٗ

 
9- What did Rudolf Rassendyll do during the fight against Michael's 

men at the hunting lodge? 

  He knocked one man off أٚلظغ his horse then hit another big man with 
his sword. 
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10- How did Rudolf Rassendyll escape when Michael's men were about to 

trap him ٗػٍٝ ّٚه الإ٠مبع ث? 

  - Rudolf Rassendyll saw a gap صغظوح between the men. He turned his horse 

and quickly rode through the gap صغوح towards the forest. 

 
11- How was Rudolf Rassendyll injured أصرية in the fight  لررا against 

Michael's men? 

  One of Michael's men shot him أٍٛك ػ١ٍٗ إٌبه and he felt a terrible pain  ٌُأ

 .in his finger فظ١غ

 
12- What did Sapt do to help Rudolf Rassendyll whose finger hurt badly? 

  Sapt put a bandage ّٙبكح on Rudolf Rassendyll's finger إٕجغ. 

 
13- How did Rudolf Rassendyll hide his identity اخصريره when he and 

Sapt reached a farm on their way back from the hunting lodge? 

  He covered ٝغط his face, saying to the farmer that he had a bad tooth. 

 
14- How did Sapt explain Rassendyll's injured finger to Freyler? 
  Sapt said that Rudolf Rassendyll had caught his finger in a door. 

 
15- Who was Freyler? 
  He was a servant at the King's palace. 

 
16- Where was King Rudolf Elphberg?  

  He was held prisoner ٍٓغ١ by Duke Michael at the Castle of Zenda. 

 
17- Who told Rudolf Rassendyll about the King's duties ٚاعجبد? 

  Sapt told Rudolf Rassendyll about the King's duties ٚاعجظبد. He told him 

what he ought to ْ٠غت أ do and what he ought not to do. 

 
18- Why did Rudolf Rassendyll feel worried when he met the French 

ambassador ٍف١و? 
  Because the French ambassador asked him a question that he couldn't 
answer. 

 
19- Why did Sapt think that Duke Michael wouldn't kill the King? 
  Because the Duke knew that if he killed the King, Rudolf Rassendyll 
would stay as King instead. 

 
20- Why couldn't Michael accuse يرهن Rudolf Rassendyll of anything? 

  Because if he did, people would know that he had kidnapped فطظف the 
King. 
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21- Who are the Six Men? Where are they from? 
  They are six special soldiers that Duke Michael keeps in his house all the 
time. Three are from Ruritania, one is French, one is Belgian, and one is 
English. 

 
22- Rassendyll decided to keep some of his plans secret from Sapt and 

Fritz. What were those plans? 

  He planned to make himself as popular ِؾجظٛة as he could, and not to say 

anything bad about Michael. This way, if there were a fight لزظبي, some of the 

people would support ٠ؤ٠ل him (the King) and not Michael.  

 
23- How did Rassendyll plan to make use of Flavia's popularity ّؼج١خ? 
  He went to see Princess Flavia. The poor people seemed very pleased that 
he had visited the Princess. 

 
24- What did Rudolf Rassendyll tell Michael about the cause ضثة of the 

injury إصاتح in his hand? 

  Rudolf Rassendyll said that an animal bit him ٗٚػ. 

 
25- What did Rassendyll tell Princess Flavia and Duke Michael about his 

injured هصاتح hand? 

  He said he had been bitten ٗػٚظ by a wild ٜثظو animal and if it bites ٘٠ؼظ 

again he would knock ٠ٚوة it on the head. 
 

26- Why was Rassendyll worried when he met three of Michael‟s Six 

Men?  

  Because he realised أكهن that they knew he was not the real King and was 

worried for his safety ِٓأ. 

 
27- How did Rassendyll know that the Six Men also know his secret ٍو? 
  He knew because of the way Detchard smiled at him when he was 

presented َ٠مل to him. Rassendyll knew that if one of the Six Men knew, they 
would all know. 

 

Quotations 
1- "You're mad! The plan's too dangerous!" 

1- Who says this to whom? 
    - Rassendyll says this to Colonel Sapt. 
2- Where are they? 

   - They are at the hunting lodge near ِٓ ثبٌموة Zenda. 
3- What is the dangerous plan? 

   - Sapt wants Rassendyll to continue to pretend ٠زظظب٘و to be the King and 
to return to Strelsau that night. 
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2- "We've got them! They can't say anything without showing their 
guilt." 

1- Who says this to whom? 
    - Sapt says this to Rassendyll. 
2- Why does he say this? 

          - He is trying to persuade ٠مٕغ Rassendyll to continue to be the King. 
3- Who is "them"? What does the speaker mean by "We've got them"? 
      - ―Them‖ is Duke Michael and his men. The speaker means that they 
have trapped the Duke and his men. The Duke can‘t say anything against 

Rassendyll because he would have to admit ٠ؼزظوف that he is guilty ِظنٔت of 

kidnapping فطف the real King. 
 
3- "Surely someone in Strelsau will realise I'm not the real King." 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Rudolf Rassendyll said that to Sapt. 
  2- Who was the real King? 
    - Rudolf Elphberg was the real King. 

  3- Why did the speaker pretend ٠زظب٘و to be the King? 

     - He looked exactly رّبِظب like the King. The King was held prisoner by 
Duke Michael. If there were no King in Strelsau, Michael would take the 

crown ٠َزٌٛٝ ػٍٝ اٌزبط. 
 

4- "Of course it's a risk هجازفرح, but we must have a King in Strelsau. 
You must do it, for Ruritania!" 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

  2- What did the speaker mean ٠مٖل by "it's a risk ِغبىفخ"? 

    - He meant that someone might realise ٠ظلهن that Rudolf Rassendyll 

wasn't the real King and his life could be in danger فٝ فطو. 
  2- Why must they have a King in Strelsau? 
    - The real King was held prisoner and if there were no King in Strelsau, 
Duke Michael could take the crown. 
 
5- "They'd know that you would stay King if they killed him!" 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- Who did the speaker mean by "they" and who was meant by "him"? 

     - He meant Duke Michael and his men. "Him" referred to ٝرْظ١و اٌظ the 
real King. 
  3- Where was the King (Rudolf Elphberg) at that time? 
     - He was held prisoner at the Castle of Zenda. 
 
6- "Well done! That was very brave. Do you think they saw who you 

were? 
  1- Who said this to whom? 
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     - Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- When was this said? 
    - This was said after Rudolf Rassendyll and Sapt had a fight against 
Michael's men at the hunting lodge. 
  3- Did they see who the addressed person was? How do you know? 
   - Yes, one of the men said, "It's the King" before Rassendyll pushed him 
off his horse.  
 
7- "Good! That will give Michael something to worry about." 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- When was this said? 
    - This was said after Rassendyll and Sapt had a fight against Michael's 
men at the hunting lodge. One of Michael's men thought that Rudolf 
Rassendyll was the King. 
  3- What would Michael worry about? 
     - He would worry that Rassendyll might do everything he could to 
protect the crown. 
 
8- "My King, you're safe! I'm so pleased." 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Fritz said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rudolf Rassendyll and Sapt came back from the 
hunting lodge. 

  3- The speaker mistook  أفطظأ the addressed person for someone else. 
Explain. 
     - Fritz mistook Rudolf Rassendyll for the King because Rudolf 
Rassendyll looked exactly like the King. 
 
9- "Even Fritz thinks you're the real King!" 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- Why did Fritz think that person was the real King? 
     - He thought so because Rudolf Rassendyll looked exactly like the King. 
  3- Where was the real King at that time? 
     - He was held prisoner by Duke Michael at the Castle of Zenda. 
 
10- "The King's had a good long sleep." 
  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Sapt said this to Princess Flavia's servant. 
  2- Where and when was this said? 

     - This was said at the royal palace ٟاٌمٖظو اٌٍّىظ when Princess Flavia 
sent her servant to find out how the King was feeling after the coronation. 
  3- Did "the King" have a really good long sleep? Why? 
     -  No, he didn't because he had just come back from the hunting lodge. 
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11- "But Duke Michael's holding him prisoner." 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Fritz. 
  2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Fritz asked if the King was dead. 
  3- Why was the King held prisoner by Duke Michael? 

     - He was held prisoner ٍٓظغ١ because Duke Michael wanted to take the 
crown. 
 

12- "Rest? No! We mustn't waste any time! Shouldn't we plan how to 

attack Michael?" 
  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Fritz said this to Rudolf Rassendyll and Sapt. 
  2- Who wanted to rest? Why? 

    - Rudolf Rassendyll wanted to rest ٠َزو٠ؼ because he had a long tiring day 
and he wasn't used to hard work. 
  3- Why did the speaker want to attack Michael? 
     - Because Michael held the King prisoner and Fritz wanted to set the King 
free.  
 
13- "But wait. He'll kill the King" 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Fritz said this to Sapt and Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- Where were the other half of Michael's Six Men and what were they 
doing there? 

    - The other half were at the Castle of Zenda. They were guarding ً٠ؾظو the 
King. 
  3- Who were the Six Men? 

     - They were six special soldiers who were completely loyal أٚف١ظبء to Duke 
Michael. 
14- ""So no one can do anything! It's a stalemate!"  

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Fritz said this to Rudolf Rassendyll and Sapt. 
  2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rudolf Rassendyll, Sapt and Fritz were discussing 
what they should do to stop Michael and save the King. 

 3- What did the speaker mean by "it's a stalemate ٚهٛخ"? 
    - He meant that they couldn't do anything to set the King free and Michael 
couldn't accuse Rassendyll of anything as people would ask where the real 
King was. 
15- "I wasn't going to be a distant King who people only heard about." 

  1- Who said this? 
    - Rudolf Rassendyll said this. 
  2- Why did the speaker want to make himself popular? 
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     - Because he hoped to stop ٠ّٕظغ the poorer people of Strelsau from 

thinking badly about him.  ٗ٠َئ اٌظٓ ث 
  3- What did the speaker do that attracted the attention of many people? 

     - On his way to Princess Flavia's palace, he bought flowers from a poor 
young girl with a gold coin. Soon, hundreds of people followed him on his 
way to the home of the Princess. 
16- "You have completely changed since you became King, sir." 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Princess Flavia said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
  2- Where was this said? 
     - This was said at Princess Flavia's palace. 
  3- What made the speaker think that "the King" had changed? 
     - Princess Flavia didn't realise رظلهن that Rudolf Rassendyll wasn't the real King. The 

real King didn't care about ٠ٙظزُ ثظظ the people. Rudolf Rassendyll wanted the people to see 

that the King trusted ٠ضظك ثظظ them. He wanted them to have a good opinion of the King and 

support ٠ؤ٠ل him. 

17- "You do know that Michael will be very angry. Is that a good idea?" 

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Princess Flavia said this. 
  2- To whom was it said? 
     - It was said to the king (Rudolf Rassendyll).  
  3- What was it that would make Michael very angry? 
     - The king (Rudolf Rassendyll) left him waiting outside the guest room at 
Flavia's house and didn't ask him to come in. 
18- "Yes, an animal bit me. It'll be fine." 

  1- Who said this to whom? Where was this said? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Duke Michael. This was said at Princess 
Flavia's house. 
  2- Was it really an animal that caused the speaker's injury? 
     - No, it wasn't. He was shot by one of Duke Michael's men. 
  3- When was the speaker injured? 
     - He was injured when he was fighting against Michael's men at the 
hunting lodge. 
19- "These gentlemen are the most loyal and honest of the King's 

servants, and are my great friends." 
  1- Who said this to whom? Where was this said? 
     - Duke Michael said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. This was said at Princess 
Flavia's house. 
  2- Who were "these gentlemen"? 
     - They were three of Duke Michael's Six Men. 
  3- Was the speaker right when he said that those gentlemen were loyal 
to the King? Why? Why not? 
     - No, he wasn't because these men were only loyal to Duke Michael who 
wanted to kill the King and take the crown. 

Find the mistake in each sentence and correct it 
1-  It was safe for Rudolf Rassendyll to continue pretending to be the King. 
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 It was dangerous for Rudolf Rassendyll to continue pretending to be the King. 
2-  The Duke's men came to the hunting lodge to kill Sapt and Rassendyll. 

     The Duke's men came to the hunting lodge to bury Josef's body. 
3-  One of Rassendyll's men thought that Rassendyll was the King. 
     One of Michael's men thought that Rassendyll was the King. 
4-  Sapt thought at first that the real King had returned. 
     Fritz thought at first that the real King had returned. 
5-  Rassendyll found the work of being a King easy. 
     Rassendyll found the work of being a King difficult. 

6-  Sapt wanted to hurry and make plans to attack Michael. 
     Fritz wanted to hurry and make plans to attack Michael. 
7-  Michael kept some of his plans from Sapt and Fritz. 
     Rassendyll kept some of his plans from Sapt and Fritz. 
8-  Rassendyll knew that Michael couldn't enter without his permission. 
     Rassendyll didn't know that Michael couldn't enter without his permission. 
9-  Rassendyll's hand was hurt because he was bitten by an animal. 

     Rassendyll's hand was hurt because he was shot. 
10-  Rassendyll met all the Six Men. 
       Rassendyll met only three of them. 
11-  Rassendyll was slightly injured because he was bitten by an animal. 
  Rassendyll was slightly injured because he was shot by one of Michael's men. 
12-  Freyler was Sapt's farmer. 
       Freyler was Sapt's servant. 

13-  Rassendyll realised that Michael's Six Men knew that he was not the real duke. 
       Rassendyll realised that Michael's Six Men knew that he as not the real King. 
14-  Fritz began to worry about his own safety. 
       Rassendyll began to worry about his own safety. 
15-  Sapt and Fritz attacked some of the Duke's men. 
       Sapt and Rassendyll attacked some of the Duke's men. 
16-  Rassendyll warns the animal not to bite again. 

       Rassendyll warns Michael not to bite again. 
17-  Rassendyll decided on a plan to make himself unpopular. 
       Rassendyll decided on a plan to make himself popular. 
18-  Sapt wanted to be more cautious with Fritz. 
       Sapt wanted to be more cautious with Duke Michael. 
19-  Rassendyll was worried when the French prince asked him a question which he couldn't 
answer. 

       Rassendyll was worried when the French ambassador asked him a question which he 
couldn't answer. 

20-  Sapt wanted to hurry and make plans to attack Michael. 
       Fritz wanted to hurry and make plans to attack Michael. 
21-  If Michael killed the King, Rassendyll would stay Duke. 
       If Michael killed the King, Rassendyll would stay King. 
22-  The Six Men are special sailors who Michael keeps in his house at all times. 

       The Six Men are special soldiers who Michael keeps in his house at all times. 
23-  Three of the Six Men are from Britain, but the others are foreigners. 
       Three of the Six Men are from Ruritania, but the others are foreigners. 
24-  Rassendyll stopped to buy bread from a poor young girl with a gold coin. 
       Rassendyll stopped to buy flowers from a poor young girl with a gold coin. 
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Homework  ((A)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- Why did Sapt want Rassendyll to stay king ? 

2-Why did Rassendyll think that returing to the capital was too dangerous? 
3- Why wouldn't Michael say that Rassendyll wasn't the real king? 
4-How did Sapt make Rassendyll overcome his doubts? 
5- What would happen if the real king was dead? 

6- What did Sapt and Rassendyll see from the Hunting Lodge window ? 
7-Why were Michael's men carrying spades when they went to the Hunting Lodge? 

8-Why did Michael's men want to bury Josef's body? 
9- Sapt and Rassendyll were too brave at the Hunting Lodge.  Illustrate 
10-Why was Rassendyll keen on attacking Michael's men at the Lodge? 
11- How did Rassendyll escape from Michael's men? 

12- How was Rassendyll's finger hurt and nursed? 
13- How did Rassendyll justify covering his face to the farmer? 

14- How did Rassendyll know that the men knew him? 
15- Why was Sapt and Rassendyll's arrival at the gates well-timed ? 
16- What did Sapt tell Freyler about the king's hurt finger ? 
17- How did Sapt and Rassendyll get inside the palace? 

18- What was Fritz's reaction on seeing Rassendyll back from Zenda? 

19- Why did Fritz bow  ٕٝ٠ٕؾto Rassendyll? 
20- What did Rassendyll tell the servant of princess Flavia? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1-"You are mad ! The plan is too dangerous ! ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What was the dangerous plan ? 
  c)Why did the speaker protest against that plan? 
2-"He caught his finger in a door” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What made the speaker say so? 
c)How was the pretend king's finger hurt ? 
3- "Listen, if you are aman , you can save the king. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where was this said ? 
c)What would happen if that person refused to replace the king? 
4-"Well done! That was very brave. Do you think they saw who you were? " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
 b)When was that said? 
 c) Did they see who the addressed person was? How do you know? 
5-"Don't speak so loudly! People will hear us " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Why did the speaker want the listener to be quiet? 
c) What was the occasion? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-Rassendyll's shoulder was hit by a bullet . 
2- Michael's men came to the hunting Lodge with guns to bury Josef's body. 
3- Michael's men had killed the king. 
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4- Sapt and Rassendyll took revenge for killing the Duke. 
5- Rassendyll escaped through a wall between the men. 

6- The streets of the town were very busy when Sapt and Rassendyll arrived. 
7- Princess Flavia sent her brother to the king. 

8- Rassendyll refused to carry on as a king. 
9- Josef was about to be trapped by Michael's men. 
10- Fritz was worried lest the real king should be saved. 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- What did Fritz think when he saw Rassendyll returning from Zenda? 
2- Why couldn't Rassendyll write or sign all the documents ? 
3- When did Rassendyll realize that the king's life was quiet hard ? 
4- Why was Rassendyll worried when he met the French ambassador? 

5- Why did Fritz describe the situation as a stalemate ٚهٛخ? 
6- Who were the six men ? 

7- How many of the six men were there in Strelsau? 
8- Why were three of the six kept in Zenda ? 

9- What was Rassendyll's plan to make himself popular? 
10- Rassendyll was keen to go to the house of the princess. Give reasons 
11-On the way to the prince's palace,Rassendyll (the king) made himself more 
popular. Explain 
12- What did Rassendyll tell Michael about his hurt finger? 
13- Why couldn't Michael get into the room where the king was? 

14- How did Rassendyll cover up his mistake? 
15- Whom did Michael introduce to the king at Flavia's palace ? 
16- How did Rassendyll speak to Detchard? 
17- How did Rassendyll know that all the six men knew his identity? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "Would they try to kill me ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What does" they " refer to? 
  c)Who would order them to kill the speaker ? 
2- "My king , You are safe. I'm so pleased ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)When was this said? 
c)The speaker mistook the addressed person for someone else. Explain 
3- "The king's had a good long sleep. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where and when was this said ? 
c)Did "the king" really have a good long sleep? Why ? 
4-"I'm very pleased to meet them " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does " them " refer to? 
 c)Where did that conversation take place? 
5-"You know that no one can enter without your permission " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What were they talking about? 
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c)How did the listner justify making such a mistake? 
6-"That's good. The nearer he is to me , the better. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)About whom was the speaker talking? 
 c)What was the listner's reaction? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-The six men were loyal to the king . 
2- People of England wanted the King to marry the princess. 
3- Rassendyll told the princess that he was bitten by an owl. 
4- Michael told Rassendyll that the animal would try to reward him again. 
5- Part of Rassendyll's plan was to make the Duke as popular as he could. 

6- Rassendyll , the pretend king , was visited by several kings. 
7- Michael was happy for being kept waiting for long at Flavia's palace. 
8- Michael was good at hiding his feelings. 
9- Fritz and Sapt corrected any mistakes made by Michael. 
10- The princess was hated by people. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

say good bye to ٠ٛكع warn ٠ؾنه 

mean / meant / meant ٕٝ٠ؼ proclaim ٠ؼٍٓ ه١ٍّب 

responsibilities َِئ١ٌٛبد get himself into ٟ٠ٛهٛ ٔفَٗ ف 

position ِىبٔخ run a country ٠ل٠و كٌٚخ 

society اٌّغزّغ forgive ٠َبِؼ 

almost رمو٠جب keep up the drawbridge ٠وفغ اٌغَظو 

notice  ٠لاؽ permission إمْ/رٖو٠ؼ 

growing popularity ّؼج١خ ِزيا٠لح rules لٛاػل 

forgive ٠َبِؼ argument علي 

occasional ؽ١ٓ ٢فو ِٓ ambitions ّٛٛؽبد 

decisions لواهاد reluctant  ِّبٔغ 

rescue ٠ٕمن whisper ٌّٙ٠ 

trap ٠ؾزغي ladder ٍٍُ 

imprisoned /ًَِٛغْٛ ِؾج follow directions ٠زجغ اٌزؼ١ٍّبد 

murder ً٠مز stand close to ِٓ ٠مف ثبٌموة 

messenger هٍٛي hold / held / held ٠ؾًّ/٠َّه 

trick فلػخ authority ٍٍطخ 

defend ٓ٠لافغ ػ ruler ُؽبو 

iron table ِْبئلح ِٓ اٌّؼل at the duke's order ثٕبء ػٍٝ أٚاِو اٌلٚق 

bullets ٍٓٛمبد هٕب jump with fright   ٠مفي ٍ٘ؼب 

fire at ٍٝ٠طٍك إٌبه ػ punish ٠ؼبلت 

ball ٔؽفٍخ هل a summer house ِٟٕيي ١ٕف 

fair ػبكي a loyal friend ٟٕل٠ك ٚف 

realise ٠لهن quiet life ؽ١بح ٘بكئخ 

Chapter 5 
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1-I was not sorry to say goodbye to my brother and his soldier friends, 
although I was sad to say goodbye to the Princess. Should I tell her the 
truth? Was I wrong to pretend to be the King? I did not know. 
"Rudolf, be careful, won't you?" the Princess said. 
"Be careful of what?" I asked. 
"I can't say. But think what your life means to the people of 
Ruritania," she said. 

I remembered what Rose had said about my brother Robert back in 
England: "He realises his position in society brings with it 
responsibilities." I had always wanted to have a quiet life, but I suddenly 

realised how many responsibilities I now had here in Ruritania. How on 
earth had I got myself into such a situation? 

حقٌقة؟ وهل كنت . لم أكن آسفاً أن أقول وداعاً لأخً وأصدقاءه الجنود، على الرغم من أننً كنت حزٌنا أن أقول وداعا للأمٌرة. وهل ٌجب أن أقول لها الٔ
ننً أنا الملك؟ لم أكن أعرف. قالت الأمٌرة: " كن حذرا ٌا رودولف، ألٌس كذلك؟". فسؤلتها: "أكن حذراً من ماذا؟" فردت قابلة: "لا مخطباً أن أتظاهر بؤ

كزه درك أن مرٌمكننً أن أقول لك، ولكن فكر كم تعنى حٌاتك بالنسبة لشعب رورٌتانٌا". تذكرت ما قالته روز عن أخً روبرت عند عودته لإنجلترا: "إنه ٌ
نا هنا فً فً المجتمع ٌجلب معه مسإولٌات". كنت قد أردت دابما أن أعٌش حٌاة هادبة، ولكننً أدركت فجؤة قدر المسإولٌات التً على عاتقً الآن و أ

 رورٌتانٌا. ٌا الهً ! كٌف وضعت نفسً فً مثل هذا الموقف ؟

2-After the next few weeks, I am pleased to say that no one seemed to 
notice I was not the real King of Ruritania. Because I looked so like the 
King, it was much easier for me to pretend to be him than to pretend to me 
by neighbour at home, for example. I learnt a lot about how a country is 
run, but I made mistakes, sometimes big ones. I became very good at 
pretending I had forgotten rules or people that I had met, and I hoped my 
growing popularity with the people of Ruritania would help them to forgive 
my occasional bad decisions. 

ٌر الشبه جدا بالملك، . خلال الأسابٌع القلٌلة التالٌة، ٌسرنً أن أقول أنه لا أحد ٌبدو علٌه أنه ٌلاحظ أننً لست الملك الحقٌقً لرورٌتانٌا. لأننً كنت كثٕ
الكثٌر عن كٌفٌة إدارة بلد ما، لكننً  فعلى سبٌل المثال كان من السهل جداً لً أن أدعً أننً الملك أكثر من ادعابى امام جارى فً المنزل بؤننى أنا ، تعلمت

عندي أمل فً أن  ارتكبت أخطاء، وأحٌانا أخطاء كبٌرة و أصبحت متقنا جدا فً التظاهر و كنت قد نسٌت القوانٌن و الناس الذٌن قد قابلتهم من قبل ، وكان 
نت قد اتخذتها فً بعض الأحٌان.شعبٌتً المتزاٌدة بٌن شعب رورٌتانٌا ستجعلهم ٌسامحوننً على قراراتً السٌبة التً ك  

3-One day apt came into my room. "Here's a letter for you," he said. 
"From the writing, I think it's from a woman. I also have some 
important news." 
"What is it?" I asked. 
"We now know that the King's at the Castle of Zenda," he said. 
"How do you know this?" 
"We asked where the rest of the Six Men were, and found out that 
they are all there at the castle: Lauengram, Krafstein and young 
Rupert Hentzau, the three biggest criminals in Ruritania." 
"Do you think the King's definitely there?" I asked. 
"Almost certainly. The three men are always at the castle, and 
people say the drawbridge is nearly always kept up. That is not 
normal. No one goes into the building without the permission of 
Rupert or Michael." 
"Then I must go to Zenda," I said. 
"That wouldn't be a good idea." 
"If not today, then soon. I must go there." 
"You'll probably stay there forever if you do," said Sapt. 

بعض الأخبار الهامة "  . فى أحد الأٌام دخل سابت حجرتى و قال لى : "هذا خطاب لك ، ومن كتابة الخطاب أعتقد أنه مرسل من امرأة ، و عندي أٌضاٖ
ال ، فسؤلته: "ما هً؟" فقال: "نحن الآن نعرف أن الملك فً قلعة زندا" فقلت له: " كٌف عرفت هذا؟" فقال: "نحن سؤلنا عن مكان باقً الستة رج
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هم أكبر مجرمٌن فً رورٌتانٌا." فقلت واكتشفنا أنهم كلهم هناك فً القلعة ، وكان منهم : لوٌنجرام و كرافستٌن و روبرت هنتزو الشاب و هإلاء الثلاثة 
سر متحرك ٌحتفظون له: " هل تعتقد أن الملك فعلا هناك ؟" فقال: "ٌكاد ٌكون من المإكد ذلك. الرجال الثلاثة هم دابما فً القلعة، وٌقول الناس أن هناك ج

إذن من روبرت أو ماٌكل." فقلت: "إذاً ٌجب أن أذهب إلى به بصفة شبه دابمة ، وهذا شًء غٌر عادي. ولا أحد ٌذهب إلى المبنى بدون الحصول على 
"إذا لم ٌكن الٌوم، ففً وقت قرٌب لابد من الذهاب إلى هناك." فقال سابت: "من المحتمل أن تبقى هناك إلى الأبد إذا  زندا" . "هذه لن تكون فكرة جٌدة."

 قمت بذلك."

4-I was silent and I could see that Sapt was studying my face. 
"What's worrying you, Rassendyll?" he asked. 
"Tell me, Sapt, why is it that wherever I go in the capital, I'm 
followed by six people?" 
"Because I've ordered them to follow you." 
"But why?" 
"It would be very useful for Michael if you disappeared. And if you 
disappear, the game's over." 
"I don't need such help," I protested. "I can look after myself." 
"De Gautet, Bersonin and Detchard are in Strelsau, and anyone of 
them could catch you easily, 
صمة ٌقوم كنت صامتا، وكنت أرى أن سابت ٌدرس وجهً. سؤلنً: "ما الذي ٌقلقك ٌا راسندل؟". فقلت له: "أخبرنً ٌا سابت، لماذا عندما أذهب إلى العا .

وإذا أنت اختفٌت ستة أشخاص بمتابعتً؟" فقال"لأننً أمرتهم أن ٌتابعوك." فقلت: "ولكن لماذا؟" فقال: "سٌكون من المفٌد جدا لماٌكل إذا أنت اختفٌت. 
نً طفل صغٌر ، ستنتهً اللعبة ." و اعترضت على هذا قابلا: "أنا لست بحاجة إلى مثل هذه المساعدة، فؤنا أستطٌع الاعتناء بنفسً." فقال لً ،كما لو أن

و دٌتشارد فً سترلسو، وكل واحد منهم ٌمكنه القبض علٌك بسهولة"  "ان دى جوتٌت، وبٌرسونن  

5-He said, as if I were a child. "So, what's that letter?" said Sapt, 

pointing at the one he had given me. 
I opened it and read it aloud: 
If the King wants to know something important, please do what I 
ask. At the end of New Avenue, there is a house in a large garden. 
There is a wall around the garden with a gate at the back. At 
midnight tonight, go through the gate where you will see a statue of 
a horse, turn right and walk twenty metres. There you will find six 
steps up to a summer house. Go into this summer house and someone 
will tell you something very important about your life. But you must 
be alone. If you do not come, your life will be in danger. I am a loyal 
friend to you. Do not show this letter to anyone, or it will put a 
woman in great danger: Michael will punish me. 
"Yes, and Michael can also write a very good letter," said Sapt. 
I thought the same: surely Michael had written this letter to trap me. 

: ) إذا كان و قال سابت و هو ٌشٌر إلى الخطاب الذي أعطانى أٌاه: "إذاً، ما الذي تحتوٌه تلك الرسالة؟" ففتحت الرسالة وأخذت فً قراءتها بصوت عال. ٘
ول الحدٌقة به بوابة الملك ٌرٌد أن ٌعرف شٌبا مهما، فمن فضلك افعل ما أطلبه. ٌوجد فً نهاٌة الشارع الجدٌد ٌوجد منزل فً حدٌقة كبٌرة. وهناك سور ح

د ست فً الخلف. فً منتصف هذه اللٌلة ادخل من البوابة إلى المكان الذي سترى فٌه تمثال لحصان،اتجه ٌمٌناً وامشً عشرٌن مترا. وهناك سوف تج
جب أن تكون بمفردك. و درجات سلم إلى منزل صٌفً. ادخل فً هذا البٌت الصٌفً و سوف تجد شخص سوف ٌقول لك شٌباً مهم جدا عن حٌاتك. ولكن ٌ

ماٌكل إذا لم تؤتً سوف تكون حٌاتك فً خطر. أنا صدٌقا وفٌا لك. لا تظهر هذه الرسالة إلى أي شخص، و الا سوف تكون هناك امرأة فً خطر كبٌر: 
ؤكٌد قد كتب ماٌكل هذه الرسالة لكً سٌعاقبنً." فقال العقٌد سابت."نعم، وٌمكن أن ٌكتب ماٌكل أٌضا رسالة جٌدة جدا"، واعتقدت أنا نفس الشًء : بالت

 ٌوقع بى .

6-Iwas about to throw the letter in the bin, when I saw that there was more 
writing on the other side. 
If you do not believe me, ask Colonel Sapt. 
"What?" said the Colonel, so I read on. 
Ask him what woman has been a guest of the Duke. Ask if her name 
begins with A. 
"It must be Antoinette de Mauban," I cried. 
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"How do you know?" asked Sapt, and I told him all I knew about the 

woman. 
"I've heard that she came to Ruritania with her servants as a guest 
of Michael," Sapt said. "People say she had a great argument with 
Michael, and now she's staying somewhere in Strelsau." 
"So she could be useful to us," I suggested. 
"Perhaps she would be useful if she had information about Michael. 
However, I believe that Michael wrote that letter," said Sapt. 
"So do I, but I'm not certain," I said. "I'll go to the house tonight." 
"No, you mustn't," said Sapt. "Let me go instead." 
"You can come too, but you must wait outside the gate when I go in 
alone." 
"I don't believe this woman and you're mad to go!" said Sapt. 
"I believe this woman, and I will go," I said. "Either I go to the house, 
or I go back to England. We don't have much time. Every day we 
leave the King imprisoned there's more danger. We must move 
quickly," I said. 

Sapt was beginning to know when he could tell me what to do and when he 
could not. So reluctantly he agreed with me. 

)إذا كنت لا . وكنت على وشك أن ألقً الرسالة فً سلة المهملات، إلا اننى رأٌت أن هناك كتابة أكثر مكتوبة على الجانب الآخر. و هذه الكتابة هً : ٙ
أ بحرف العقٌد سابت.(  فقال العقٌد: "ماذا؟" ، لذلك أكملت القراءة : )أسؤله عما إذا كانت المرأة ضٌفة للدوق. أسؤله عما إذا كان اسمها ٌبد تصدقنً، فؤسؤل

Aالـ  المرأة. و  .( فصحت قابلا: "من المإكد أن تكون هذه المرأة هً  أنطوانٌت دي موبان". فسؤل سابت: "كٌف عرفت ذلك؟" فقلت له كل ما عرفته عن
ن هً تقٌم فً قال سابت: "لقد سمعت أنها جاءت لرورٌتانٌا مع خدمها و نزلت ضٌفة عند ماٌكل"،  "وٌقول الناس أنها كانت فً جدال كبٌر مع ماٌكل، والآ

ٌدة إذا كان لدٌها معلومات حول مكان ما فً سترلسو". فاقترحت قابلا: "إذاً ٌمكن أن تكون مفٌدة بالنسبة لنا". فرد علً العقٌد سابت."ربما تكون مف
ى المنزل هذه ماٌكل، و مع ذلك فؤنا أعتقد أن ماٌكل هو الذي كتب تلك الرسالة" . فقلت له: " و أنا أٌضا أعتقد ذلك ، ولكننً لست متؤكدا، وسؤذهب إل

لت: "ٌمكنك أن تؤتً أٌضا، ولكن ٌجب علٌك أن تنتظر خارج اللٌلة."  فحذرنً سابت قابلا: "لا، لا ٌجب ان تفعل ذلك أبدا ، دعنً أنا أذهب بدلا منك ." فق
"أنا اصدق هذه البوابة بٌنما أذهب انا إلى داخل المنزل بمفردي." فقال لً سابت: " أنا لا اصدق هذه المرأة وأنت مجنون إن قررت الذهاب!". فقلت له: 

إلى إنجلترا، ونحن لٌس لدٌنا الكثٌر من الوقت. فكل ٌوم نترك الملك سجٌنا فان  المرأة، وسوف أذهب" وأضفت قابلا: "إما أن أذهب إلى المنزل، أو أعود
ه ذلك. لذا على هناك المزٌد من الخطر، لذا ٌجب علٌنا التحرك وبسرعة،". وبدأ العقٌد سابت ٌدرك متى ٌمكنه أن ٌقول لً ما ٌجب القٌام به ومتى لا ٌمكن

 مضض اتفق معً.

7- half past eleven that night, we got on our horses and soon arrived 
outside the gate to the house, carrying our guns. It was a very dark night. 
''I'll wait for you here, outside the gate," said Sapt. "Good luck." 

I opened the gate and I found myself in a leafy garden. I saw the statue of 
the horse and walked across the garden with the gun in my hand. I 
followed the directions given in the letter and, although it was dark, I soon 
arrived at the summer house. When I went inside, I heard a woman's voice. 
"Shut the door," the woman whispered. I did as she asked and then looked 
around the room, which was lit by a small candle. It was almost empty 
except for a small iron table and two chairs. In the soft light, I could just 
see Antoinette in front of me and her servant behind. 

الساعة الحادٌة عشرة والنصف من تلك اللٌلة، ركبنا خٌولنا وسرعان ما وصلنا خارج بوابة المنزل، نحمل سلاحنا. وكانت لٌلة مظلمة جدا.  . وفً تمام7
عبر  فقال لً العقٌد سابت: '' سؤنتظرك هنا، خارج البوابة، حظا سعٌدا". فتحت البوابة ووجدت نفسً فً حدٌقة مورقة. ورأٌت تمثال حصان ومشٌت

اد . وعندما الحدٌقة ومسدسً فً ٌدي. تابعت التعلٌمات والإرشادات التً كانت بالرسالة، على الرغم من شدة الظلام، وسرعان ما وصلت إلى المكان المر
. كانت دخلت سمعت صوت امرأة ٌهمس قابلا: "أغلق الباب". فعلت ما طلبت منً ونظرت فى ارجاء الغرفة، التً كانت مضاءة بواسطة شمعة صغٌرة

 الغرفة شبه خالٌة باستثناء طاولة حدٌدٌة صغٌرة وكرسٌٌن. وخلال هذا الضوء الخافت رأٌت انطونٌت ومن ورابها خادمتها.

8-"We have little time," Antoinette said. "Listen! I know who you are 
and I know you're not the King. You're Mr Rassendyll. I wrote that 
letter to you at the Duke's orders. In twenty minutes, three men will 
be here to kill you." 
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"Or I'll kill them! I suppose they're three of the Duke's Six Men?" 
"Yes, you must leave here before they arrive, so listen carefully! The 
plan is to kill you and to take your body into the old town. It'll be 
found and Michael will arrest Colonel Sapt and Captain Fritz von 
Tarlenheim for murdering you. Then a messenger will be sent to 
Zenda and the real King will be murdered too. The Duke will then 
become King. Do you understand?" 
"Oh, yes, I understand. It's a clever plan. But why are you helping 
me?" 
"I don't like to see people being killed. Now go. But remember, you're 
never safe in this city. You have guards following you, don't you? 
Well, Michael's men are following them. If you're alone, then you'll 
die. Now go quietly this way past the summer house for about a 
hundred metres. There you'll find a ladder against the wall. Climb it 
and run as fast as you can." 

رسالة لأنه فقالت لً: "لدٌنا القلٌل من الوقت"، وأضافت قابلة: "اسمع! أعرف من أنت وأنا أعلم أنك لست الملك. أنت السٌد راسندل. كتبت لك تلك ال. 8
خاصة الدوق؟" فقالت بؤمر من الدوق فً غضون عشرٌن دقٌقة سٌكون هنا ثلاثة رجال لقتلك". فقلت لها: "أو أقتلهم أنا! أظن أنهم ثلاثة من الرجال الستة 

ذلك ٌتم العثور على  لً: "نعم، وٌجب أن تغادر هذا المكان قبل وصولهم، لذا علٌك الاستماع بعناٌة! فالخطة هً قتلك، وإلقاء جثمانك فً البلدة القدٌمة. بعد
الملك الحقٌقً أٌضا. حٌنبذ سوف ٌصبح الدوق هو جثتك ومن ثم ٌعتقل ماٌكل كلا من سابت وفرٌتز وٌتهمهم بقتلك. ثم ٌتم إرسال رسول إلى زندا و ٌقتل 

فت" أذهب الآن. الملك. هل فهمت؟ " فقلت لها: " نعم، أفهم. أنها خطة ذكٌة، ولكن لماذا تساعدٌنً؟" فقالت لً: "أنا لا أحب أن أرى الناس ٌقتلون" وأضا
لك؟ حسنا، رجال ماٌكل ٌراقبونهم ، وٌنتظرون اللحظة التً تكون فٌها ولكن تذكر، انك لن تكون أبدا آمنا فً هذه المدٌنة. لدٌك حرس ٌتبعك، ألٌس كذ

ما ٌمكن" بمفردك لٌقتلوك . الآن اذهب بهدوء من هذا الطرٌق المجاور للمنزل لحوالً مابة متر، وهناك ستجد سلم على الجدار. تسلقه ثم اركض بؤسرع  

9-"And what will you do?"      -"I also have a game to play. I'll tell the 
Duke's men that you never came. If the Duke doesn't find out what 
I've done, we may meet again." 
"Thank you. You've helped the King tonight," I said. "But before I go, 
tell me something: Do you know where he is in the castle?" 
"Yes, I do know. Inside the castle there's a door on the right, and 
behind that – but listen! They're here! It's too late for you to escape!" 

I looked through a gap in the summer house door and saw three men 
standing outside. Then I heard a voice, which spoke in English: 
"Are you in there, Mr Rassendyll?" 

I did not answer. 
"We want to make you an offer," the voice said."Will you let us in?" 
"Do not trust them," said Antoinette quietly. 

ى هنا، وإذا لم ٌكتشف الدوق ما قمت به، قد أراك مرة أخرى." . فقلت لها: "وماذا ستفعلٌن؟" فقالت لً: "لدي حٌلة. سؤقول لرجال الدوق انك لم تؤتى إل9
فقالت لً: "نعم  فقلت لها: "شكرا لك. لقد ساعدتى الملك هذه اللٌلة". وأضفت: "لكن قبل أن أذهب، قولى لً شٌبا: هل تعرفٌن أٌن مكان الملك فً القلعة؟"

اسمع إنهم هنا فات الأوان بالنسبة لك لتهرب!" نظرت من خلال فجوة فً باب البٌت أعرف، داخل القلعة هناك باب على الٌمٌن، ووراء ذلك ... ولكن 
حن نرٌد أن ورأٌت ثلاثة رجال ٌقفون فى الخارج. ثم سمعت صوتا، ٌتكلم بالانجلٌزٌة: "هل أنت هناك، ٌا سٌد راسندل؟" لم أرد علٌهم. فقال الصوت: "ن

انطونٌت بهدوء: "لا تثق بهم".نقدم لك عرضا. هل تؤذن لنا بالدخول؟" فقالت لً   

10-"Stand outside and talk," I called. "I won't let you in." 
"That's a good idea," said the voice, who I thought must be Detchard. 
"Is that Mr Detchard?" I asked. 
"Our names are not important. We can offer you a safe journey to the 
border and fifty thousand English pounds," he continued. 
"That sounds a generous offer," I said, but of course I did not trust them 
at all. "Give me a minute to think." Then I told Antoinette and her 

servant to stand close to the wall, away from the door. 
"What are you going to do?" Antoinette asked. 
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"You'll see." 

I picked up the iron table and held it by the legs so it was in front of me. 
Then I said, "Gentlemen, I'd like to accept your kind offer. Perhaps 
you can open the door for me." 
"Why don't you open the door yourself?" said Detchard. 
"Very well, but it opens outwards," I explained. "You'll need to step 
back or the door will hit you." 
I pretended to try and open the door, and called out,"I can't open it." 
"Then I'll open it," called Detchard. 

أنت فقلت للصوت: "قف مكانك وتحدث فلن أسمح لك بالدخول." فقال الصوت الذي اعتقدت انه بالتؤكٌد دٌتشارد: "هذه فكرة جٌدة،". فسالته: "هل  .ٓٔ
هذا عرضا  جنٌه انجلٌزًٌ"،. فقلت له: "ٌبدو ٓٓٓٓ٘السٌد دٌتشارد؟". فقال لً: " الأسماء لٌست مهمة، نحن ٌمكن أن نوفر لك رحلة آمنة إلى الحدود و

عٌدا عن الباب. سخٌا،" ولكن بالطبع لم أكن أثق بهم على الإطلاق. "أعطنً دقٌقة للتفكٌر." ثم قلت لأنطونٌت وخادمتها أن ٌقفا على مقربة من الجدار، ب
أمامً. ثم قلت: "أٌها السادة، أود  فسؤلتنً أنطونٌت: "ما الذي تنوي القٌام به؟" فقلت لها . "سترٌن". التقطت الطاولة الحدٌدٌة من الساقٌن، وجعلتها

تح إلى الخارج"، قبول عرضكم السخً، إذاً تفضلتم بفتح الباب لً" فقال لً دٌتشارد: "ولماذا لا تقوم بفتح الباب بنفسك؟"  فقلت لهم"حسنا جدا، ولكنه ٌف
أحاول فتح الباب، ونادٌتهم بصوت عالً "لا ٌمكننً فتحه." وأضفت قابلا: "ستحتاجون إلى التراجع قلٌلا وإلا سوف ٌصطدم الباب بكم." تظاهرت بؤننً 

 فقال دٌتشارد "سؤحاول فتحه".

11-As Detchard was walking up to the door, I moved quietly to the back of 
the summer house. It took him a few seconds to open the door, but as 

soon as he did, I ran at him as fast as I could holding the table in front of 
me.  
There was a terrible noise as all three men fired their guns at once, but I 
was protected by the table top. The men were all standing on the steps up 
to the summer house, so as I ran out, the table top hit them and they all 
fell down the steps. Before I knew what was happening, I too was falling 
down the steps, but as I was on top of the men, I managed to get up fastest 
and run away, firing my gun behind me. 

أن فتحه، وبٌنما كان دٌتشارد ٌسٌر إلى الباب، انتقلت بهدوء إلى الجزء الخلفً من المنزل. استغرق الأمر منه بضع ثوان لفتح الباب، ولكن بمجرد . ٔٔ
واحدة، ولكننً  تقدمت نحوه بؤسرع ما ٌمكن وأنا امسك بالطاولة الحدٌدٌة أمامً . كان هناك صوت ضجٌج رهٌب عندما أطلق الرجال الثلاثة نٌرانهم دفعة

وقبل أن  كنت محمً بالطاولة الحدٌدٌة. كان الرجال جمٌعا على مقربة من الباب وعندما انطلقت نحوهم وأنا امسك بالطاولة سقطوا جمٌعا على الأرض.
ران من مسدسً خلفى.أدرك حقٌقة ما ٌحدث وجدت نفسً أٌضا اسقط علٌهم من شدة اندفاعً ولكن سرعان ما قمت ولذت بالفرار ، وأنا أطلق النٌ  

12-There were angry shouts and more shots. I remembered what 
Antoinette had said about a ladder and soon found it and climbed over the 
wall in seconds. Running along the outside of the wall, I heard more shots 
but realised they were being fired by Sapt, who was trying to get into the 
gate. 
"Sapt! It's me, let's go!" I shouted. 
"You're safe!" he cried in surprise. 
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"I have a fine story to tell you about a table!" I told him, as we jumped 

on our horses and rode quickly back to the palace. 
ارج ، . كان هناك مزٌدا من صٌحات الغضب والطلقات النارٌة. تذكرت ما قالته لً أنطوانٌت عن السلم وسرعان ما وجدته وقفزت من فوق الجدار للخٕٔ

"سابت! أنه سمعت طلقات أكثر ولكن أدركت أنه ٌجري إطلاق النار علٌهم من قبل العقٌد سابت، الذي كان ٌحاول الوصول إلى البوابة. فصحت فٌه قابلا: 
!"أنا، هٌا نذهب!" . فصرخ مندهشا: "أنت آمن!" فقلت له ونحن نركب الخٌول مسرعٌن نحو القصر: "لدي قصة جمٌلة لأقصها علٌك تتعلق بطاولة   

13-The next day, Sapt read me the latest report from the Chief of Police. 
"Some interesting things have been happening this morning," said 
Sapt. "The police report says that the Duke of Strelsau left the 
capital by the road to Zenda. An hour later, he was followed by De 
Gautet, Bersonin and Detchard, who had a bandage around his arm," 

I was pleased that my shot the night before had been a good one. 
"Finally, listen to this: the people of the capital are not happy that 
the King has yet to marry the Princess. Some people say that if they 
do not marry soon, it would be better if the Princess married the 
Duke of Strelsau. However, the King is having a ball tonight for the 
Princess." 
"I don't know anything about a ball," I said. 
"Oh, it has all been prepared," said Fritz, "by me." 
"Listen," said Sapt. "You must ask the Princess to marry you tonight." 
"I can't do that," I said. "It wouldn't be fair to the Princess." 

شٌاء وفً الٌوم التالً، قرأ  لً العقٌد سابت آخر تقرٌر امنً من ربٌس الشرطة. فقال سابت وهو ٌقرا التقرٌر: " لقد حدث هذا الصباح بعض الأ. ٖٔ
رد ، الذي كان االمثٌرة للاهتمام. التقرٌر ٌقول أن الدوق غادر العاصمة متجهنا إلى زندا. وبعد ساعة، عاد الدوق ومعه كل من دي جوتت  ،بٌرسونن ودٌتش

لعاصمة لٌس ٌضع ضمادة حول ذراعه" كنت سعٌدا بؤن طلقتً اللٌلة الماضٌة قد أصابت احدهم. وتابع سابت حدٌثه قابلا: "وأخٌرا، استمع إلى هذا: شعب ا
لأمٌرة من الدوق. ، ورغم ذلك فان الملك سعٌدا لأن الملك لم ٌتزوج الأمٌرة وٌقول البعض أنه إذا لم ٌكن الزواج قرٌبا، فإنه سٌكون من الأفضل إذا تزوجت ا

سابت: "اسمع  سٌقٌم حفلة رقص للأمٌرة اللٌلة ". فقلت له: "أنا لا أعرف أي شًء عن حفلة الرقص هذه". فقال فرٌتز"أوه، لقد تم الإعداد لها" فقال لً
فٌه ظلم للأمٌرة ".فقلت له: "لا أستطٌع أن أفعل ذلك ف ٌجب أن تطلب من الأمٌرة الزواج منك هذه اللٌلة."  

14-That evening, the ball was a great success. After we had eaten, I sat 
with the Princess and some of my other guests in a small room by the 
palace gardens. The servants brought us coffee and we had time to talk. 
"You've been King for a few weeks now," said the Princess, "Everyone 
says you've done a very good job. I'm very pleased for you." 
"You know, someone once said to me, 'a person who has a position in 
society has responsibilities.' Recently I've realised how true this is." 
"Haven't you always thought that?" asked the Princess. 
"No, when I was younger, I didn't think I needed to worry about 
society, I thought that was someone else's job," 
The Princess looked very surprised. "But you always knew that you 
would become King. How could you think that was someone else's 
job?" 

نا . كانت الحفلة  ناجحة جدا .وبعد تناول الطعام ، جلست مع الأمٌرة وبعض ضٌوفً الآخرٌن فً غرفة صغٌرة بجوار حدابق القصر. جلب الخدم لٗٔ
كل ٌشهد لك بالكفاءة. وأنا سعٌدة بك". فقلت لها: "ذات مرة القهوة وكان لدٌنا الوقت للحدٌث. فقالت لً الأمٌرة: " أنت الملك لبضعة أسابٌع حتى الآن وال

ً قال لً شخص إن الشخص الذي لدٌه مكانة فً المجتمع علٌه أٌضا مسإولٌات ولقد أدركت مإخرا مدى صحة ذلك". فسؤلتنً الأمٌرة: "الم تفكر ف
جة للقلق بشؤن المجتمع، لأنه مهمة شخص آخر،" اندهشت الأمٌرة للغاٌة. ذلك؟". فقلت لها " لم أفكر فً ذلك، فعندما كنت صغٌرا، لم أكن أعتقد أننً بحا

 وقالت: "لكنك كنت دابما على علم أنك ستصبح الملك. فكٌف ٌمكن أن تعتقد أن هذا العمل مهمة شخص آخر؟"

15-Once again, I had made a mistake in what I said. But suddenly, instead 
of saying something to cover up my mistake, I wanted to tell the Princess 
the truth. She was kind and clever and she was going to marry the King. 
She should know what had happened to her future husband, and she 
should know all about my game. I decided I had to tell her everything. 
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"Flavia," I said quietly, so none of the other guests could hear, "there's 
something you should know. I'm not really ... " 

But I never finished the words I wanted to say because at that moment, we 
heard footsteps in the garden outside the room. I looked up and jumped 
with fright, because a face suddenly appeared at the French window 

وذكٌة  . مرة أخرى، ارتكبت خطؤ فً ما قلته. ولكن فجؤة، وبدلا من أن قول شًء للتغطٌة على خطؤي، أردت أن أقول للأمٌرة الحقٌقة. وكانت عطوفة٘ٔ
أن تعرف ما حدث لزوجها فً المستقبل، وأنها ٌجب أن تعرف كل شًء عن قٌامً بدور الملك. فقررت أننً لابد أن كما أنها كانت ستتزوج الملك. لذا ٌنبغً 

لم أكمل ما أقول لها كل شًء. فقلت لها بهدوء لكً لا ٌسمعنً احد من الضٌوف الآخرٌن: "فلافٌا هناك شًء ٌجب أن تعرفٌه، إننً حقا لست...... ..." 
نه فً تلك اللحظة، سمعنا صوت خطى فً الحدٌقة خارج الغرفة. نظرت إلى أعلى وقفزت من شدة الخوف، لأن وجه ظهر فجؤة من أردت أن أقوله لها لأ

 النافذة الفرنسٌة.

16-I relaxed when I saw that the person looking in on us was Sapt. "I 
apologise, but there's someone who wants to see you, sir," he said to 

me, but I could tell from his eyes that he was angry. How long had he been 
listening to my conversation with the Princess? Had he heard that I was 
about to tell her the truth about who I really was? 
We returned to the ball where the Princess went quickly away with her 
servants and I was welcomed by other important people at the ball. I 
realised then that my game had gone too far to go back: I could not tell 
anyone who I really was or they would think I was mad. Sapt had stopped 
me from saying too much to the Princess, and Sapt's plan really was 
working. 

سٌدي،"  . شعرت بالهدوء عندما رأٌت أن الشخص الذي كان ٌنظر من النافذة هو العقٌد سابت. فقال لً: "معذرة ، ولكن هناك من ٌرٌد أن ٌقابلك، ٌاٙٔ
قد استمع إلى حدٌثً مع الأمٌرة؟ و هل سمع أننً كنت على وشك أن اكشف لها عن  ولكننً ٌمكننً أن أدرك من عٌنٌه انه كان غاضبا. ترى كم من الوقت

رحلة ٌستحٌل حقٌقتً؟ عدنا إلى الحفلة وأسرعت الأمٌرة مع خدمها وقام بعض الناس المهمٌن بالترحٌب بً. ثم أدركت أن قٌامً بدور الملك قد وصل إلى م
عن حقٌقتً وإلا سٌعتقد أننً مجنون. لقد منعنً العقٌد سابت من التحدث كثٌرا مع الأمٌرة، وقد كان التراجع عنها  : فؤنا لا ٌمكننً أن اخبر أي شخص 

 محقا.

17-The next morning, Sapt and I sat in my room thinking about what to do 
next. 
"Do you realise," I said, "that everyone really thinks I'm the King, even 
the Princess? I could even arrange for the Duke and the real King to 
be killed." 
"This is all true," said Sapt. "So will you do such a thing?" 
"Of course not. I shouldn't be here, pretending to be anything. It isn't 
fair for the people of Ruritania and it isn't fair for the Princess, 
either. We can't wait any longer," I said. "We must go to Zenda and 
rescue the King." 
"You're a good man," said Sapt. 

أننً الملك،  وفً صباح الٌوم التالً جلست، أنا والعقٌد سابت فً غرفتً لنفكر فٌما ٌجب القٌام به بعد ذلك. فقلت له: "هل تعلم أن الجمٌع ٌعتقد حقا. 7ٔ
ء؟" فقلت له: حتى الأمٌرة؟ إننً ٌمكننً أن ارتب للتخلص من الدوق والملك الحقٌقً معا" فقال لً: "هذا كله صحٌح ولكن هل ستفعل مثل هذا الشً
الانتظار أكثر من "بالطبع لا. لا ٌنبغً لً أن افعل ذلك، فلٌس ذلك من العدل لشعب رورٌتانٌا كما انه لٌس من العدل للأمٌرة"، وأضفت قابلا: "لا ٌمكننا 

 ذلك، ٌجب أن نذهب إلى زندا وننقذ الملك." فقال لً: "أنت رجل صالح".

First, however, I needed to see Princess Flavia again. If I could not tell her 
the truth, I could at least warn her that the situation in Ruritania was not 
as good as she believed it to be. I visited her in her palace later that day, 
and she asked her servants to bring me some coffee. Then she told me that 
she had received two letters. One was from Michael, who had invited her to 
visit Zenda. Then she showed me the other letter.  
"I don't know who this one's from," she said. 
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I immediately knew who it was from: the writing was the same as the letter 
I had received. It was from Antoinette de Mauban and it read: 

You do not know me, but I do not want you to fall into the power of the Duke. 
Do not accept any invitation from him and do not go anywhere without many 
guards. Show this letter, if you can, to the leader of Ruritania. 

ٌتانٌا لٌس جٌدا فً البداٌة ، كنت بحاجة لمقابلة الأمٌرة فلافٌا مرة أخرى. فإذا لم أستطع أن أقول لها الحقٌقة، فعلى الأقل اخبرها بؤن الوضع فً رور. 8ٔ
أنها قد تلقت رسالتٌن.  كما ٌبدو لها. فقمت بزٌارة لها فً قصرها فً وقت لاحق من ذلك الٌوم، وطلبت من خدمها أن ٌحضروا لً بعض القهوة. ثم قالت لً

صاحب  احدهما من ماٌكل، ٌدعوها لزٌارة زندا. ثم بٌنت لً الرسالة الأخرى. وقالت لً: )أنا لا أعرف من صاحب هذه الرسالة" علمت على الفور من
فٌننً ، ولكن أنا لا أرٌد منك أن تقعً فً الرسالة: إنها انطونٌت دو موبان لأنها بنفس خط الرسالة التً تلقٌتها منها. وتقول فً رسالتها: "أنتً لا تعر

لك(.قبضة الدوق. لا تقبلً أي دعوة منه ولا تذهبً لأي مكان دون حراسة مشددة. أعطى هذه الرسالة إلى زعٌم "قابد" رورٌتانٌا ، إن استطعت ذ  

"Why does it say 'the leader' and not 'the King'?" she asked. 
"You must do as the letter says," I said, not answering her question. 
"I'll order guards to watch you." 
"Do you know who sent this?" she asked. 
"A friend of mine. Today you must say you're ill so you can't go to 
Zenda." 
"So you don't mind making Michael angry?" she asked. 
"I don't mind anything if you're safe," I said. 

سؤطلب فتساءلت الأمٌرة: "لماذا تقول 'زعٌم' ولٌس 'ملك'؟". فقلت لها: "ٌجب أن تفعلً كما تقوله الرسالة"، ولم ارد على سإالها. فقلت لها: ". 9ٔ
لً لا حراسة مشددة لحماٌتك." فسؤلتنً: "هل تعرف من الذي أرسل هذه الرسالة؟". فقلت لها: "صدٌق لً، والٌوم ٌجب أن تقولً أنكً مرٌضة وبالتا

 ٌمكنك الذهاب إلى زندا". فقلت لً: "ألٌس لدٌك مانع من إغضاب الدوق ماٌكل ؟". فقلت لها: "أنا لا أمانع أي شًء ٌحافظ على أمنك".

I had an idea about who would be the best guard for Princess Flavia, and I 
immediately visited Marshal Strakencz, who I knew I could trust. I asked 
him to guard the Princess and not to allow any of the Duke's men to visit 
her. I told him I was worried about the Duke's ambitions, and he did not 
look surprised. 
"I'm leaving Strelsau for a few days," I told him. "Every evening, I'll 
send you a message. If you don't get a message for three days, you 
have the authority to say that you are now the head of Strelsau. You 
must then ask the Duke to allow you to see the King. If he doesn't 
allow you to see the King in twenty-four hours, you must say that the 
King's dead. Then you must tell the people of Ruritania who their 
new ruler will be. You do know who that will be?" 
"Princess Flavia, of course," he answered. 

تش، الذي كنت أعرف أننً ٌمكننً أن أثق به  وطلبت منه . فكرت فٌمن سٌكون أفضل حارس للأمٌرة فلافٌا، وعلى الفور قمت بزٌارة المشٌر ستراكنٕٓ
ؤغادر حراسة الأمٌرة وعدم السماح لأي من رجال الدوق بزٌارتها. وقلت له إننً قلقا بشؤن طموحات الدوق، ولم ٌندهش بقولً هذا.   وقلت له: "س

نً لمدة ثلاثة أٌام، لدٌك السلطة أن تقول أنك الآن ربٌس العاصمة العاصمة سترلسو لبضعة أٌام وكل مساء سوف أرسل لك رسالة، وإذا لم تصلك رسالة م
ملك قد سترلسو. و ٌجب علٌك أن تطلب من الدوق أن ٌسمح لك أن ترى الملك، وإذا لم ٌسمح لك بذلك فً أربع وعشرٌن ساعة، ٌجب علٌك أن تعلن أن ال

ثم سؤلته " أتعرف من سٌكون ؟ " فؤجابنً قابلا "الأمٌرة فلافٌا، بطبٌعة الحالمات، ثم ٌجب أن تعلن لشعب رورٌتانٌا عن حاكمهم الجدٌد من سٌكون"   
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Questions & Answers 
 
1- Why did Princess Flavia advise King Rassendyll to be careful at the 
end of his visit to her?  

  - Because she knew that the King was in danger فظٟ فطظو because Duke 

Michael wanted to take the crown اٌزبط. Michael might try to kill the King. 
 
2- What had Rassendyll always wanted in life? 
   - He had always wanted to have a quiet life. 
3-  
4- Why did Rudolf Rassendyll sometimes make big mistakes as a 
King? 
  - Because he wasn't the real King. He was just pretending to be the King. 
He didn't know the rules. 
 

5- How would Rassendyll's growing popularity اعثيح هرسايرذج with the 
people of Ruritania help him? 
  - His growing popularity would make people forgive his occasional bad 
decisions. 
 
6- Rassendyll has never liked responsibilities. Now he has many. What 
responsibilities does he have? 

  - He has to act ٠زٖوف like the King. He has to run ٠ل٠و the country. He has to 

try to rescue ٠ٕمظن the real King from Michael. He has to meet very important 

people and hold important meetings. He has to sign ٝ٠ٛلظغ ػٍظ very important 

documents ٚصبئك. He has to care about the poor people in his country 
 
7- Why does Rassendyll become good at pretending he has forgotten 
rules or people he has met? 
- When he makes a mistake in pretending to be the King, he has to cover it 
up by pretending that he has forgotten something or someone. 
  
8- Why was the drawbridge at the Castle nearly always kept up? 

  - The drawbridge اٌغَظو at the castle was nearly always kept up to prevent 
anyone from entering the Castle. 
9- Who were the only two people who can give permission to anyone 
to go into the building? 
  - They were Duke Michael and Rupert Hentzau. 
 
10- What does Sapt mean when he says "You'll probably stay there 
forever if you do"? 
  - He means that Rassendyll will either be imprisoned in Zenda or killed 
there if he goes. 
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11- Why does Sapt have Rassendyll followed everywhere? What does he 
mean by "If you disappear, the game's over"? 
  - He has him followed to protect him from Michael‘s men. If they can kill or 
kidnap Rassendyll, they will kill the real King and make Michael the King. 
Rassendyll‘s game of pretending to be King would be over. 
 
12- What did Sapt do to protect Rassendyll from Michael and his men? 
  - He ordered six men to follow him wherever he went in the capital. 
 
13- According to Sapt, what would happen if Rassendyll was killed? 
  - The game would be over. That meant that Michael would also kill the King 
and take the crown. 
 
14- Who writes a letter to Rassendyll and what does it say? Who does he 

suspect يشك really wrote it? 
  - Antoinette de Mauban writes a letter. It tells him to come to a certain 
place in a summer house in a garden late at night. He suspects that Michael 
wrote the letter. 
 
15- What did Antoinette de Mauban ask Rassendyll to do in her letter? 
  - She asked him to come to the summer house because she wanted to tell 
him something very important about his life. 
 
16- Why didn't Colonel Sapt want Rassendyll to go to the summer 
house? 
  - He thought that the letter Rassendyll received from Antoinette de Mauban 

was actually written by Michael and that there was a trap ِٖظ١لح to kill 
Rassendyll. 
 

17- Why did Rassendyll insist يصر علي on going to the summer house to 
meet Antoinette de Mauban? 
  - He believed that she had information about Michael. He thought that 

every day they left the King imprisoned ًِٛؾج, there was more danger. 
 
18- What was Duke Michael's plan to trap and kill Rassendyll? 
  - He ordered Antoinette de Mauban to write a letter to Rassendyll asking 
him to meet her at the summer house. Michael planned to send three of his 
men to kill Rassendyll there. 
 
19- If Michael's plan to kill Rassendyll at the summer house succeeded, 
what would he do after that? 
  - Rassendyll's body would be taken into the old town. Sapt and Fritz would 
be arrested for murdering Rassendyll. Then, Michael would send a message 
to Zenda and the real King would be killed too. Finally, the Duke would 
become the King. 
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20- According to Antoinette de Mauban, why did she want to help 
Rassendyll? 
  - She said she didn't like to see people being killed. 
 
21- When Rassendyll talked to Detchard at the summer house, what did 
Detchard offer him in order to leave Ruritania? 
  - He offered to give him 50,000 English pounds and a safe journey to the 
border.  
 
22- Why didn't Rassendyll accept the offer made by Detchard? 
  - Because he didn't trust them at all. He knew it was a trap to kill him. 
23-  
24- How did Rassendyll come out of the summer house alive? 
  - He held the iron table in front of him to protect him and he rushed out of 
the door and knocked the three men down. He ran quickly away. 
 
25- What did the report of the police chief say? 
  - It said that Duke Michael left the capital to Zenda followed by three of his 
Six Men. The report also said that people believed that if the King and 
Princess Flavia didn't marry soon, it would be better if the princess married 
Duke Michael. 
26- Why did Detchard have a bandage around his arm? 
  - He was shot during the fight with Rassendyll at the summer house the 
night before. 
27- Why have they prepared a ball for the Princess? 
  - They want to make the people happy and make them think that the King 
wants to marry the Princess. They want Rassendyll to ask the Princess to 
marry him. 
 
28- Why did Rassendyll think it wouldn't be fair for Princess Flavia if he 
asked her to marry him? 
  - Because he wasn't the real King. 
 
29- What mistake did Rudolf Rassendyll make while he was talking with 
Princess Flavia after the ball? Why was it a mistake? 
  - He made a mistake when he said that when he was young, he didn't need 
to worry about society and that he thought that was someone else's job. 
Flavia was very surprised as she thought he was the real King and he should 
have always known that he would become King.  
 
30- Why did Rassendyll want to tell Princess Flavia the truth about 
himself? 
  - Flavia was Kind and clever and she was going to marry the King. She 
should know what happened to her future husband and should know about 
Rassendyll's game.  
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31- What happened when Rassendyll was about to tell Flavia the truth 
about himself? 
  - He heard footsteps outside the room. He saw Colonel Sapt who appeared 
suddenly and told Rassendyll that someone wanted to see him. 
 
32- Why did Rassendyll realise that his game (pretending to be the King) 
had gone too far to go back?  
  - Because he couldn't tell anyone who he really was or they would think he 
was mad. In addition, he wanted to save the King. 
 
33- Why did Rassendyll think that pretending to be the King was unfair? 
  - Rassendyll didn't believe he was doing the right thing. He thought that he 
had deceived the people of Ruritania and Princess Flavia. 
 
34- The day after the ball, the Princess received two letters. What were 
they and who were they from? 
  - One was an invitation from Michael for her to visit him in Zenda. The 
other was a warning not to accept any invitations from Michael and not to go 
anywhere without many guards. It was from Antoinette de Mauban. 
 
35- What did Antoinette de Mauban warn Flavia not to do in her letter 
to her? 
  - She warned her not to accept any invitation from Duke Michael and not to 
go anywhere without many guards. 
 
36- Who did Rassendyll think would be the best guard for Princess 
Flavia? Why?  
  - Marshal Strakencz would be the best guard for Princess Flavia because 
Rassendyll trusted him. 
37- What did Rassendyll ask Marshal Strakencz to do to protect Princes 
Flavia?  
  - He asked him to guard her and not to allow any of the Duke's men to visit 
her. He also told him about the Duke's ambition. 
 
38- What would Marshal Strakencz do if he didn't get a message for 
three days from Rassendyll? 

  - He would have the authority اٌَظٍطخ to be the head of Strelsau. He had to 
ask the Duke to allow him to see the King. If he didn't see the King in twenty-
four hours, he had to say that the King was dead dead. Then he had to tell 
the people of Ruritania that their new ruler would be Princess Flavia. 

 

Quotations 
1- "I can't say. But think what your life means to the people of Ruritania." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Princess Flavia said this to the King (Rudolf Rassendyll). 
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2- Where was this said? 

     - It was said at Princess Flavia's palace. 
3- What did the speaker mean when he/she said 'I can't say'? 
     - She could not say why the King should be careful. She knew that the King's life 

was in danger because he had enemies who wanted to get rid of him. 
 

2- "How on earth had I got myself into such a situation?" 

1- Who said this?  
     - Rudolf Rassendyll. 

2- Which situation was the speaker referring to? 
     - Pretending to be the King of Ruritania. 
3- What was wrong with 'such a situation'? 

     - Pretending to be a King was hard work for him.  He wasn't used to such hard 
work. He always wanted to have a quiet life. Moreover, as a King, he had many 

responsibilities. 
 
3- "That's not normal. No one goes into the building without the permission of 

Rupert or Michael." 

1- Who said this to whom? 

     - Colonel Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- What wasn't normal at the Castle of Zenda? 
     - The drawbridge was nearly always kept up to prevent anyone from going into the 

building. 
3- Why wasn't anyone allowed into the building? 
    - No one was allowed into the building because the King was held prisoner there. 

They didn't want anyone to try to set the King free. 
 

4- "You'll probably stay there for ever if you do." 

 1- Who said this to whom?  
     - Colonel Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

 2- What did the speaker mean when he said this? 
    - He meant that if Rudolf Rassendyll went to Zenda, Michael and his men would kill 
him. 

 3- Why did the addressed person want to go to Zenda? 
     - He wanted to go there to rescue the King who was held prisoner there. 
5- "I don't need such help. I can look after myself." 

1- Who said this to whom?  
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Colonel Sapt. 

2- What did the addressed person do to help the speaker? 
    - He ordered six men to follow the speaker wherever he went in the capital. 

3- Did the speaker really need 'such help'? Why? Why not? 
    - Yes, he needed such help because Michael and his men wanted to kill him and the 
King to take the crown. 
6- I've heard that she came to Ruritania with her servants as a guest of Michael." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rudolf Rassendyll received a letter from Antoinette de 

Mauban. 
3- How could that woman be useful to Rudolf Rassendyll and Sapt? 
    - She could give them information about Michael and help them to set the King free. 
7- "I don't believe this woman and you're mad to go." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
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     - Colonel Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

2- Who was 'this woman'? 
     - The woman was Antoinette de Mauban.  
3- Why did the addressed person want to go to see 'this woman'? 

    - As he believed that she might have information about Michael and the King 
8- "Listen! I know who you are and I know you are not the King." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Antoinette de Mauban said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Where and when was this said? 

     - This was said at Antoinette de Mauban's house when Rudolf Rassendyll went there 
after receiving a letter from her asking him to come to her house. 
3- Who was the real King and where was he at that time? 

     - Rudolf Elphberg was the real King and he was held prisoner at the Castle of Zenda. 
 

9- "The plan is to kill you and to take your body into the old town." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Antoinette de Mauban said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

2- Who was going to kill that person and why? 
     - Duke Michael was going to kill Rassendyll because he wanted to take the crown. 

3- Why would they take that person's body into the old town? 

- The body would be found there and Michael planned to arrest Colonel Sapt and 
Captain Fritz for murdering Rudolf Rassendyll. 
10- "I understand. It's a clever plan. But why are you helping me?" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Antoinette de Mauban. 

2- Which plan was the speaker talking about? 
     - He was talking about Duke Michael's plan to kill him and the King to take the 
crown. 

3- Why was the addressed person helping the speaker? 
11- "We want to make you an offer. Will you let us in? We can offer you a safe 
journey to the border and fifty thousand English pounds." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - One of Michael's Six Men said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

2- Why did Michael make this offer to Rudolf Rassendyll? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll was pretending to be the King and the real King was held 
prisoner. Michael wanted to get rid of both of them in order to get the crown. 

3- Did the addressed person accept the offer? What happened after that? 
     - He pretended that he had accepted the offer. He asked one of Michael's Six Men to 

open the door. He used an iron table to protect himself as Michael's men fired their 
guns at him and he managed to escape. 
12- "But you always knew that you would become King. How could you think that 

was someone else's job?" 

1- Who says this to whom? 
    - Princess Flavia says this to ―King‖ Rassendyll. 

2- Where are they? 
    - They are at the ball in the palace. 

3- This was said in reaction to the other person's words. What did the other 
person say before this? 
    - He said that when he was younger he didn‘t think he had any responsibilities to 

society. 
13- "It isn't fair for the people of Ruritania, and it isn't fair for the Princess, 

either. We can't wait any longer. We must go to Zenda…." 

 1- Who said this to whom?  
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     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Colonel Sapt. 

 2- What did the speaker mean that it was not fair for the people of Ruritania and 
the Princess? 
     - He meant that it was not fair that he pretended to be the King. 

 3- Why did the speaker want to go to Zenda? 
     - To rescue the King who was held prisoner there by Duke Michael. 
14- "I do not want you to fall into the power of the Duke. Do not accept any 
invitation from him and do not go anywhere without many guards." 

 1- Who said this to whom? 

    - This was said by Antoinette de Mauban in her letter to Princess Flavia. 
 2- Where was the addressed person supposed to go? 
    - She was supposed to go to the Castle of Zenda. 

 3- What did Rudolf Rassendyll advise the addressed person to do? 
     - He advised her to say that she was ill and that she couldn't go to Zenda. 

 

Find the mistake in each sentence and correct it 
1-  Rassendyll was sad to say goodbye to Duke Michael and his men. 

     Rassendyll was sad to say goodbye to Princess Flavia. 

2-  No one goes into the castle without Rupert or Rassendyll's permission. 
     No one goes into the castle without Rupert or Michael's permission. 
3-  The letter tells the King to come to the summer house with a friend. 
     The letter tells the King to come to the summer house alone. 
4-  Rassendyll tells Sapt he must wait outside the summer house. 
     Rassendyll tells Sapt he must wait outside the gate to the garden. 
5-  Michael plans to kill Rupert, arrest Sapt and Fritz, and kill the real King. 

     Michael plans to kill Rassendyll, arrest Sapt and Fritz, and kill the real King. 
6-  Rassendyll runs out the door holding a chair to protect himself. 
     Rassendyll runs out the door holding a table to protect himself. 
7-  Detchard is wounded in the leg by Rassendyll's bullet. 
     Detchard is wounded in the arm by Rassendyll's bullet. 
8-  Rassendyll is about to tell the Princess that he is not the real King but Fritz interrupts him 
to stop him. 

     Rassendyll is about to tell the Princess that he is not the real King but Sapt interrupts him 
to stop him. 
9-  Duke Michael invites the Princess to visit him in Zenda but the other letter and Sapt tell 
her not to accept the invitation. 

     Duke Michael invites the Princess to visit him in Zenda but the other letter and Rassendyll 
tell her not to accept the invitation. 

10-  Rassendyll shot Rupert Hentzau while escaping. 
       Rassendyll shoots Detchard while escaping. 
11-  Sapt receives a letter from Antoinette de Mauban. 
       Rassendyll receives a letter from Antoinette de Mauban. 
12-  Rassendyll orders Sapt to guard the Princess. 

       Rassendyll orders the Marshal to guard the Princess. 
13-  Flavia tells Rassendyll Michael's plan. 
       Antoinette de Mauban tells Rassendyll Michael's plan. 
14-  Rassendyll tells the Marshal he is leaving Zenda. 
       Rassendyll tells the Marshal he is leaving Strelsau. 
15-  Rassendyll nearly tells the Princess lies about the King. 
       Rassendyll nearly tells the Princess the truth about the King. 

16-  Sapt will be arrested if Fritz is killed. 
       Sapt will be arrested if Rassendyll is killed. 
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Homework  ((A)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1-Why did the princess tell Rassendyll to be careful? 

2- What resposibilties did Rassendyll have in Ruritania ? 
3- Why did Rassendyll succeed in playing the king's role? 
4- Because of his growing poularity, what did Rassendyll hope the people of 
Ruritania would do? 
5- Why was Sapt sure that the king was at the Castle of Zenda ? 
6- Was Rupert an important person ?If yes, how did you know ? 

7- Why did Rassendyll want to go to Zenda ? 
8- Why did Sapt warn Rassendyll of going to Zenda without planning? 
9-  Why did Antoinette send her first letter to Rassendyll ? 
10- What did Rassendyll decide to do after reading the letter?Why? 
11- Why did Antoinette want to help Rassendyll ? 

12- What did Michael plan to do with Rassendyll,Sapt,Fritz and his brother? 

13- What did Detchard offer Rassendyll at the summer house? 

14-Why do you think Rassendyll pretended that he had accepted the offer? 

15- How did Sapt make sure that the king was still alive ? 

16-The iron table was more useful than guns in the battle between Rassendyll 
and Michael's men.  Show how  

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- " Do you think the king is definitely there? ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What was the listner's reply? 
  c)What was the occasion ? 
2- "You'll probably stay there forever if you do ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)When does "there" refer to? 
c)Of what did the speaker warn the listener?  
3- " I don't need such help I can look after myself. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Why did the speaker say that? 
c)What did that indicate about the personality of the speaker ? 
4-"Because I have ordered the to follow you " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Whom was the speaker talking about? 
 c)Why were they ordered to follow the listner? 
5-" I've heard that she came to Ruritania with her servants as a guest of 

Michael. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What did "she" refer to? 
c)What did she want from them? 
6-"I don't like to see people being killed" 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What was the listner trying to escape? 
 c)What was the listner's reaction? 
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C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-The princess told Rassendyll to be brave as his life meant a lot to the people of 
Ruritania . 

2- Three of Michael's six men were guarding the king at the palace. 
3- No body was allowed into the castle without Michael's or Antoinette's permission. 

4- Sapt didn't want Rassendyll to go to Flavia's house. 
5- Fritz ordered six men to follow Rassendyll everywhere. 
6- Antoinette asked Rassendyll to meet her at light house. 
7- Sapt encouraged Rassendyll to go the summer house. 

8- Michael planned to kill Sapt and take his body to the old town. 
9- Rassendyll held the iron door to protect himself. 
10-The king hoped that Rassendyll would disappear. 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- How did Rassendyll play a trick on Michael's men? 

2- What did the Chief of Police report to the king (Rassendyll)? 
3- What did Sapt ask Rassendyll to do during the ball ? 

4-Rassendyll showed that he was a man of principles. Discuss 
5-Why was Rassendyll against asking the princess to marry him? 
6- What mistake did Rassendyll make while talking to Flavia at the ball? 
7- Why couldn't Rassendyll tell Flavia he wasn't the real king? 
8- Flavia received two letters. From whom and what was in each letter ? 
9- What did Rassendyll advise her concerning Michael's letter? 

10-How did Rassendyll try to ensure Flavia's safety during his absence ? 
11- Why was the Marshal chosen to look after Flavia while the king was away 
12- Who would be the new ruler if it became sure the king was dead ?  

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "Every day we leave the king imprisoned there is more danger. 
We must move quickly” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)Where was the king imprisoned? 
  c)How would they move quickly ? 
2- "Listen I know who you are and I know you aren't the king  ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where were they? 
 c)Why did the speaker want to meet the listner? 
3- "Well, Michael's men are following them. If you are alone,then you'll die.” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What does " them " refer  to ? 
 c)Why did Michael want to kill the listner ? 
4-"Do not accept any invitation from him and don't go anywhere 
without many guards " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
 b)What does " him" refer to? 
 c)Why did the speaker send that to the other person? 
5-"I can't do that, it wouldn't be fair to the princess." 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
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b)What does "that" refer to ?  
c)Why wouldn't " that " be fair to the princess? 
6-"I have a fine story to tell you about a table. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Which story did the speaker refer to? 
 c)What was the occasion? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- Rassendyll ran quickly away firing his gun behind him and injuring 
Detchard's leg. 
2- The report said that Michael left the capital and went to Paris. 
3- Fritz stopped Rassendyll from saying the truth to  the princess. 

4- Rassendyll told Flavia to pretend that she was busy so as not to go to Zenda. 
5- Antoinette was asked to stand close to the door to be safe. 
6-Michael was seen leaving Strelsau with a bandage on his arm. 
7-Rassendyll could kill both Rudolf and and Michael and became the Duke. 

8- Rassendyll didn't mind anything in return for Flavia's money. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

make a move against ٠مَٛ ثزؾون ٙل stab ٓ٠طؼ 

legally ٟٔٛٔثْىً لب ride off ٠ٕطٍك ثؾٖبٔٗ ثؼ١لا 

blame ٠ٍَٛ / ٠ٛثـ deceive ٠قلع 

go hunting ٠ن٘ت ١ٌٍٖل encouragement رْغ١غ 

a large party of ِٓ ِغّٛػخ وج١وح spy ًٍٛعب 

a hunting trip هؽٍخ ١ٕل wicked ّو٠و 

relative  أؽل الألبهة chains ل١ٛك 

set (him) free ٖ٠ؾظوه stone pipe أٔجٛة ِٓ ؽغو 

duties ٚاعجبد weight  ًصم 

criminal َِغو moat ٟفٕلق ِبئ 

uncover ٠ىْف attack ُ٠ٙبع 

forgive ٠َبِؼ secretly ٍوا 

the woods اٌغبثخ openly ػٍٕب 

brave ّغبع betray ْٛ٠ق 

clear ٚاٙؼ otherwise ٚإلا 

rudely ثٛلبؽخ miracle ِؼغيح 

rude ٚلؼ call out to ٠ٕبكٞ ثٖٛد ػبي 

in public ػٍٕب messenger هٍٛي 

step ٛ٠قط bullet هٕبٕخ 

1. It was nearly time for us to make a move against Duke Michael. I was 
with Marshal Strakencz who I had to trust to keep the future of Ruritania 
safe. "You must promise that you'll protect Princess Flavia from the 
Duke." I told him. "As you know, his mother was not royal and he can 
only legally become King if he marries the Princess."  

Chapter 6 
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"I promise." Marshal Strakencz said, bowing. 
"Now I'll write down what I've just said. But my finger still hurts."  
"Yes, sir," he said, watching me write."The writing's a little different 
from your usual. I hope people know it's a real order from the King."  
"I trust you" I told him and he smiled. 
"The Princess will be safe with me." he said. 

المارشال ستراكنتش الذي لم أجد أفضل منو لمحفاظ عمى مستقبل  كنت مع .لقد حان الوقت تقريباً بالنسبة لنا لاتخاذ خطوة ضد الدوق مايكل
عائمة الممكية وانو يمكن  فقط أن يصبح ممك "يجب أن تعدنى أنك ستحمى الاميرة فلافيا من الدوق. فكما تعمم, لم تكن والدتو من القمت لو:  .روريتانيا

 ".الآن سأكتب ما قمت تواً, ولكن لا يزال إصبعي يؤلمنى" "أتعيد بذلك",ستراكنتش وىو ينحنى:  فقال المارشال  ."بصورة قانونية إذا تزوج الأميرة
قمت لو:  ".وآمل أن يعرف الناس انيا أمر حقيقى من  الممكالكتابة مختمفة قميلا عن المعتاد منك,  "نعم, يا سيدي, وىذهفقال وىو يشاىدنى أكتب: 

 .فابتسم قائلًا: "الأميرة ستكون آمنة معي" "أنا أثق بك"

2. I returned to the palace and told Sapt and Fritz to get ready to go to 
Zenda. There was only one thing left for me to do before we went. I went to 
tell Flavia that I was leaving Strelsau to go hunting. "So you'd prefer to 
hunt animals than do your duties in the capital?" she asked quietly. 
"The thing I hunt is a very big animal," I explained. "Because I'll be 
hunting Michael."  
The Princess looked very worried. "This'll be dangerous!" she said. "If I 
don't come back, you must become Queen for me." She then stood tall 
and said, "I don't really know what's going on, but I'll do whatever is 
right for Ruritania. If that means becoming the Queen, then so be 
it."  
"Thank you," I said. "Let us hope that it's not necessary." I knew, 

however, that this was more than possible. 
ذىبت لأخبر فلافيا اننى سأترك  لم يكن ىناك سوى شيء واحد يجب عمي القيام بو قبل ذىبنا, زندا, ان يستعدوا لمذىاب إلى عدت إلى القصر واخبرت فريتز وسابت

"الشيء الذى سأصطاده ىو حيوان فشرحت ليا:  "لذلك تفضل أن تصطاد الحيوانات عمى ان تقوم بواجباتك في العاصمة؟"سألتنى بيدوء:  .لمذىاب لمصيد سترلسو
ثم وقفت .. وقالت:  لم أعود, يجب أن تصبحى ممكة مكانى." "إن "سوف يكون ىذا خطير!"بدت الأميرة قمقة لمغاية وقالت:  ".كبير جدا, لأني سوف أصطاد مايكل

"شكرا لك وكن دعينا نأمل أن ذلك ليس قمت:  "."أنا لا أعرف حقا ما يجري, ولكنى سأفعل كل ما ىو فى صالح روريتانيا, فإذا كان ذلك يعني أن أصبح ممكة, فميكن
 .كنت أعرف, مع ذلك, أن ىذا كان أكثر من ممكن ".ضروريا

3. About eight kilometres from Zenda, on the opposite side of the town to 
where the castle stands, there is a leafy wood on a low hill. On top of the 
hill is a large, modern country house called Tarlenheim which belongs to a 
relative of Fritz. He does not often visit the house, so when Fritz asked if 
we could use it for a hunting trip, he happily agreed. 
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وعمى قمة التل يوجد بيت  .زندا, وعمى الجانب الآخر من المدينة إلى حيث تقع القمعة, ىناك غابة مورقة عمى تل منخفض عمى بعد حوالي ثمانية كيمومترات من
الذي ينتمي إلى أحد أقارب فريتز والذى كان لا يزور البت في كثير من الأحيان , حتى انو عندما سئمو فريتز عما اذا كان  سمى تارلينييم وريفى حديث وكبير ي

 .يمكننا استخدامو لرحمة صيد, وافق دون تردد
4. So the next day, Sapt, Fritz and I set off from the capital and arrived at 
the country house at about midday, with a large party of servants and ten 
brave and strong gentlemen that I trusted. We had told these men that 
Michael had tried to kill me and that a good friend of the King's was held 
prisoner in the castle. They knew it was our job to set him free, and being 
brave and loyal, they did not need to ask any more questions. However, it 
did not take long for Duke Michael to hear about our arrival, and after 
only an hour, we were visited by three of his famous Six Men: the 
Ruritanians Lauengram, Krafstein and Rupert Hentzau. I am sure they 
knew that we were not really there to hunt animals but had a much bigger 
plan. 

من  وعشرةة من الخدم الريفي نحو منتصف النيار, وكان معنا مجموعة كبير  في اليوم التالي, أنطمقنا ان وسابت وفريتز من العاصمة ووصمنا إلى المنزل لذلك,
وقد أخبرنا ىؤلاء الرجال أن مايكل حاول قتمي وأن صديق مقرب من الممك تم سجنو في القمعة, وعمم الرجال ان ميمتنا  والاقوياء الذين أثق بيم, الرجال الشجعان

فقط,  طويلا حتى سمع الدوق مايكل عن وصولنا, وبعد ساعةذلك, لم يمر وقتا  ىى اطلاق سراحو, ولأنيم شجعان ومخمصين فمم يمجئوا إلى طرح أسئمة أكثر. ومع
نا لم نكن ىناك حقا لاصطياد وقام بزيارتنا ثلاثة من رجالو الستة المشيورون وىم الروريتانيين: لوينجرام وكرافستين وروبرت ىنتزو, وكنت واثقاً من أنيم يعرفون أن

 .الحيوانات ولكن لدينا خطة أكبر من ذلك بكثير
5. The youngest and strongest of the three, Rupert Hentzau, told us how 
sorry the Duke was that we could not stay in his mansion, but 
unfortunately the Duke and many of his servants had a dangerous illness, 
so it was best if we stayed away. His speech was formal and polite, but I 
did not believe a word he said. "I'm sorry to hear this," I said to them. "I 
hope my brother feels better soon. And what of your friends De 
Gautet, Bersonin and Detchard? I heard that Detchard was 
injured?" 
 Rupert smiled at me and said, "You needn't worry, Detchard will be 
fine." 
"Good. Perhaps you would like to stay and eat with us?" I said. 
"You're very kind," said Rupert, "but unfortunately we have important 
duties and need to get back to at the castle." "Of course you do,"  
I laughed. "Thank you for coming. I look forward to seeing you all 
again." When they had gone, Sapt said, "That Rupert's the worst 
criminal of them all!" 

لدوق والعديد من خدمو أصيبوا بمرض نستطع الاقامة في قصره, ولكن لسوء الحظ فا ىنتزو, كيف كان الدوق مستاءاً أننا لم أصغر الثلاثة وأقواىم , روبرت اخبرنا
قمت لو: "أنا آسف لسماع ىذا, آمل أن أخي يشعر عمى نحو  .لذلك كان أفضل لو بقينا بعيدا. كان خطابو رسمياً وميذباً, ولكنى لم أصدق أى كممة مما قال خطير,

ابتسم روبرت في وجيي, وقال: "لا داعي  "دى تشارد أصيب؟ : دى جوتيت ودى تشارد وبيرسونين؟ سمعت أن أفضل في وقت قريب. ولكن ماذا عن اصدقائك
فقمت: "جيد, ربما كنت ترغب في البقاء وتناول الطعام معنا؟" فقال روبرت: "أنت رقيق جدا, ولكن للأسف لدينا واجبات ." لمقمق, سوف يكون دى تشارد عمى ما يرام

عندما ذىبوا: "  سابت وقال ."عل ذلك, شكرا لكم عمى حضوركم, وأتطمع إلى رؤيتكم جميعاً مرة أخرىضحكت وقمت: "بالطبع ستفف ".ميمة ونحتاج ان نعود الى القمعة
 "!روبرت ىذا ىو أسوأ ىؤلاء المجرمين

6. That evening, I set off for Zenda with Fritz. Our journey, we knew, 
could be a dangerous one, but my face was covered and we felt safe 
because there were many people on the roads. We did not go near the 
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castle, however, but went to the inn where I had stayed on my first night 
in Ruritania. "I've been here before," I told Fritz. 
"Won't they recognise you, then?" he said.  
"Of course. Just do as I say and everything will be fine." 

وكانت رحمتنا, كما نعرف, يمكن أن تكون خطيرة, ولكنى قمت بتغطية وجيي وشعرنا بالأمان لأن الكثير من الناس   .في ذلك المساء, أنطمقت الى زندا مع فريتز
لقد كنت " قمت لفريتز:  .نا إلى الفندق الريفى حيث كنت قد قضيت ليمتى الاولى فى روريتانياكانوا فى الطرقات, ومع ىذا نحن لم نذىب بالقرب من القمعة, ولكن ذىب

 ".فقمت: "بالطبع, فقط افعل كما أقول لك وكل شيء سيكون عمى ما يرام "ألن يتعرفوا عميك؟"ىنا من قبل" فقال: 
7. I kept the coat over my face as we entered the inn and we asked to have 
a meal in a quiet room at the back. When the owner's daughter brought 
us our food, I uncovered my face so she could see me. "You're the King!" 

she cried, almost dropping our plates. 
"I remember you when you stayed with us. I told my mother you 
weren't really an Englishman and that you were the King! I'm sorry 
if we said anything bad when you stayed with us." 
"I'll forgive you if you promise to help us," I said. I explained that I 
wanted to see Johann. "He never comes here any more," she explained. 
"He works at the castle now." 
"But you're still friends and you must ask to see him," I told her. "Tell 
him to meet you tomorrow night at ten o'clock, then bring him to 
our house. And tell no one that you've seen the King. Do you 
understand?"  
"You won't hurt him, will you, sir?" 
"Not if he does as we ask," I promised. 

ي حتى تتمكن من كان معطفى عمى وجيي عندما دخمنا النُزل وطمبنا تناول وجبة في غرفة ىادئة في الخمف, عندما جاءت ابنة صاحبة النُزل بطعامنا كشفت وجي
أتذكر عندما بقيت معنا. قمت لأمي أنك لم تكن حقا رجل إنجميزي وانك كنت ممك! أنا آسفة إذا  قالت:"أنت الممك!", و تقريبا اسقطت الاطباق, و " فصرخت: .رؤيتي

فأوضحت: "إنو لم يعد يأتي أبدا الى  .وأوضحت أننى أريد أن أرى جوىان .فقمت: "سوف أغفر لك إذا وعدتِ أن تساعدينا" ."قمنا أي شيء سيئ عندما بقيت معنا
قمت ليا: "لكنكم ما زلتم أصدقاء ويجب عميك أن تطمبى رؤيتو, قول لو أن يأتى لمقائك ليمة الغد في الساعة العاشرة, ثم أحضريو  ".عة الآنىنا, انو يعمل في القم

 .طمبو"فوعدتيا: "لن أفعل ذلك اذا فعل ما أ "أنت لن تضره, أليس كذلك يا سيدي؟" "الى منزلنا, ولا تخبرى أحداً أنك قد رأيتِ الممك, ىل تفيمين؟
8.She agreed happily, and after our meal we returned to Tarlenheim late 
that night. As we got off our horses, Sapt ran out of the house and cried, 
"So you're safe!" 
 "We're fine. Why shouldn't we be?"  
"It seems that it's dangerous to ride in this area unless you're in a 
large group. One of our men, Bernenstein, went out alone in the 
woods today. He saw three men in the trees and one shot him. He's 
upstairs in bed with a bullet in his arm. The next bullet could be for 
you." 

وعندما كنا ننزل من عمى خيولنا, خرج سابت مسرعاً من المنزل وصاح: "إذاً  .تمك الميمة وجبتنا عدنا إلى تارلينييم فى وقت متأخر منلقد وافقت وىى سعيدة, وبعد 
رجالنا,   ىب احدأن ركوب الخيل في ىذا المنطقة أمر خطير إلا إذا كنت في مجموعة كبيرة. فقد ذ يبدوفقال: " "نحن بخير, فمماذا لا نكون؟فقمت: " أنتم فى أمان!"

السرير وىناك عيار ناري في ذراعو.   الأشجار واحدىم أطمق عميو النار. انو بالطابق العموي في وىو بيرننستين, وحده في الغابة اليوم, ورأى ثلاثة رجال بين
 "الرصاصة القادمة قد تكون لك.

9. We thought that we would be safe in the country house, but I was 
wrong. The next day, I was resting in the living room when Rupert visited 
the house alone. "I have a message for you, Rassendyll," he said. "If 
you do not know how to address the King, my brother must find 
another messenger," I replied coldly. 
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"Why do you continue to pretend?" he laughed. "We all know who you 
are." "But you can't say that in public, can you? Because then people 
would know you've kidnapped the real King. You know the game's 
not finished yet, and until it is, I will choose my own name," 
 I said. "So, what is your message?"  
"The Duke offers you more than I would. He offers you a safe 
journey to the border and a million gold pieces."  
"Tell the Duke that I refuse his generous offer. How's his prisoner, 
by the way?"  
"He's still alive," said Rupert. "Good, now go from here, while you 
can," I said. 

وقال:  .لمنزل وحدهكنا نظن أننا سنكون في مأمن في المنزل الريفي, ولكن كنت عمى خطأ, ففي اليوم التالي, كنت أستريح في غرفة المعيشة عندما زار روبرت ا
لماذا الاستمرار في التظاىر؟ فضحك وقال: " يفية التعامل مع الممك فعمى أخي أن يجد رسولًا آخر"فأجبت ببرود: "إذا كنت لا تعرف ك "لدي رسالة لك, يا راسندل"
قد اختطفتم الممك الحقيقي, أنت  لكن لا يمكن ان تقول ىذا عمى الملأ, أليس كذلك؟ لأن الناس سوف تعرف عند ذلك انكمفقمت: " ".ونحن نعمم جميعا من أنت
دوق يقدم لك أكثر مما اتوقع, انو يعرض عميك رحمة آمنة الى الحدود "ال "تختار اسمى, ولكن, ما ىي رسالتكم؟ , وحتى يتم ذلك سوفتعرف ان المعبة لم تنتو بعد
نا فقال روبرت: "مازال حياً." فقمت: "ممتاز, الآن أذىب من ى "قل لمدوق أننى أرفض عرضو السخي. كيف حال سجينو, بالمناسبة؟" ".و مميون قطعة من الذىب

 حيثما استطعت."

10. Rupert gave me a cold look and asked his servant to prepare his 
horse. I followed him out of the house, and just as he was about to climb 
on his horse, he stopped and said, "Let's shake hands." He stepped 

nearer to me and suddenly stabbed me in the shoulder with his knife. I 
cried out, but Rupert rode off fast before I could do anything.  

 "صافحنت دعنا: "توقف, وقال حصانو, عمى الصعود كان عمى وشك بينماالمنزل, و الى خارج  , اصطحبتوحصانو أن يعد خادمومن  وطمب باردة نظرة لي روبرتنظر 
 .فعل أي شيء قبل أن أتمكن من بسرعة ىرب روبرت صرخت, ولكن, سكينب ىفي كتف نىطعن فجأةى و خطى ناحيت

11. Although my shoulder hurt, I was lucky it was not a bad injury, 
though I was angry at letting myself fall for such a trick. I was put to bed 
and told to sleep, which I did for several hours. When I woke up, it was 
dark and I found Fritz beside me. "The doctor says your arm will soon 
be better," he said. "And the good news is that your plan has worked, 
for the girl's brought Johann to the house. He's downstairs right 
now, and the strange thing is that I think Johann's happy to be 
here," said Fritz. "He seems to know that if Michael's plan is 
successful, he'll be in trouble because he knows too much." 

ى كنت غاضبا اننى تركت نفسي أسقط فى خدعة من ىذا القبيل. حُممت الى عمى الرغم من أن كتفي كان يؤلمنى, كنت محظوظا أنيا لم تكن إصابة سيئة, ولكنن
ان ذراعك سيصبح  السرير وطمبوا منى ان انام, وىو ما قمت بو لعدة ساعات. وعندما استيقظت, كان المكان مظمماً ووجدت فريتز بجانبي. فقال: "يقول الطبيب

فتاة قد جمبت جوىان الى المنزل. انو بالطابق السفمي في الوقت الحالي, والغريب في الأمر أننى أعتقد ان أفضل قريبا, والخبر السار ىو أن خطتك بدأت تعمل, فال
 جوىان سعيد لوجوده ىنا, يبدو انو يعمم انو اذا نجحت خطة مايكل, سوف يكون ىو في مأزق لأنو يعرف أشياء أكثر من اللازم."

12. This made me think that Johann would be more useful to us than I 
had first thought. Surely with the right encouragement, he would make the 
perfect spy for us? I went downstairs and asked to see Johann. The guards 
had brought him in with his hands tied behind his back. I sat him down in 
a chair, where he sat looking sad and afraid. As we talked to him, we 
understood that Johann was a weak man but not a wicked one. He said 
he worked for Michael because he was afraid of him not because he liked 
him, and he seemed happy to tell me Michael's secrets. 
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الجاسوس المثالي بالنسبة لنا؟  سيكون, مناسبال رغيببالتأكيد مع التو عتقد في البداية. أ نتوىان سيكون أكثر فائدة بالنسبة لنا مما كججعمني ىذا أعتقد أن 
. وفخالو  نحزال يبدو عميو حيث جمس وىوعمى كرسي,  وجمستأيداه مكبمتان خمف ظيره. و بو  واوىان. وكان الحراس أتجرى أأن  تمطابق السفمي وطمبلذىبت 
أسرار  وىو يخبرنىليس لأنو يحبو, وبدا سعيدا  افو. وقال انو كان يعمل لمايكل لأنو كان يخاً ليس شرير  وىان كان رجلا ضعيفا ولكنوجتحدثنا إليو, فيمنا أن  وعندما
 مايكل.

13. He told us that there were two small rooms inside the castle, which 
you could only reach by crossing the drawbridge. The rooms were cut into 
the rock below the ground. One room had no windows, so it was always lit 
by candles. Behind it was a second room with a small window, where the 
King was kept in chains. From the window, a large stone pipe led down to 
the castle moat. The first room was always guarded by three of the Six 
Men. They were told that, if some people attacked the first room and it 

was in danger of being taken, Detchard should go into the other room and 
kill the King. The body would then be put down the pipe and the weight of 
his chains would keep the body under water. Calling out to the other men, 
Detchard would then escape down the same pipe and swim across the 
moat. The other two men would then follow him and the Duke's horses 
would take them to safety. So anyone searching the castle would find 
nothing: just an empty room. 

 في الصخر تحت الأرض. واحدةمنحوتة غرف هى فقط عن طريق عبور الجسر المتحرك. و  هماداخل القمعة، والتي يمكن أن تصم تينصغير  تينقال لنا ان هناك غرف
كان  من النافذةو في سلاسل. مقيداً الممك وا يحتفظون بنافذة صغيرة، حيث كانبغرفة ثانية هناك كان  خمفهاالشموع. و ب نوافذ، لذلك كانت مضاءة دائما ليس لها منهما

لستة. قيل لهم أنه إذا هاجم بعض الناس الغرفة خضع لحراسة ثلاثة من الرجال اتالغرفة الأولى دائما  تخندق القمعة. كانكبيرة من الحجارة تؤدى الى  هناك ماسورة
ثقل و  لينزلق من خلال الماسورةالجسم يوضع قتل الممك. وبعد ذلك يالى الغرفة الأخرى و  دى تشارد ذهبي، يجب ان ن يتم الاستيلاء عميهاخطر ا هناكالأولى وكان 

الرجمين وخيول الدوق سوف  ثم يتبعهسبح عبر نفس الخندق. يو  ماسورةإلى أسفل ال تشارد دىهرب ي، و ثم ينادى عمى باقى الرجالالجسم تحت الماء.  سيُبقىغلال الأ
 جد شيئا: مجرد غرفة فارغة.لن يالقمعة يقوم بتفتيش إلى بر الأمان. لذلك فإن أي شخص  متأخذه

14. "What if many men attacked the castle?" I asked. 
"They have another plan," he explained. "If the castle's attacked by a 
large group of soldiers, they would do the same thing, but one of the 
Six Men would take the King's place. So when Michael arrived at the 
castle, he could say that he was only keeping one of the Six Men as 
prisoner because he'd been rude to Antoinette de Mauban. No one 
would believe that the King was ever there."  
"It's a very clever plan," said Sapt angrily. "It means that if we attack 
the castle quietly and secretly, or openly with a great army, the 
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King will still be dead before we can save him. Rassendyll, I think 
that this time next year, you'll still be King." 

 ونفعمسي يم كبيرة من الجنود, فإن من قبل مجموعة القمعة تجمو ى اذا خطة أخرى, لدييم" فشرح لى: "القمعة؟ العديد من الرجال ىاجم ماذا لوسألتو: "
ست ال واحد من كان فقط متحفظاً عمىىو  انو سيقول القمعة إلى مايكل يصل لذلك عندما .الممك يحل محلس ست رجالال واحد من نفسو, ولكن الشيء
 "انيا " فقال سابت بغضب:ىناك أي وقت مضى كان أن الممك يعتقدأن  حدموبان, و عندىا لا يمكن لأ دي أنطوانيت مع وقحا كان لأنو سجينك رجال

, انقاذه قبل أن نتمكن من ميتا فإن الممك سيكونعظيم  جيش نامعو  فى العمن أو ,يةوسر  ىدوءفى  القمعةىاجمنا  أنو إذا يجدا, وىذا يعن ذكية خطة
 ."الممك زالتكون لا ت سوف الوقت من العام القادم, ىذافى أعتقد أن أسمع يا راسندل 

15. My pulse quickened at the thought of remaining King forever. But 
without proving that Michael had killed the real King, the Duke would still 
be there, in his castle, waiting for his opportunity to take my place. I 
would never be safe. "Does the King know about Michael's plan?" I 

asked Johann.  
"Yes, and so does my brother, Max. He helped to put up the pipe to 
the prison window. It's not easy to sleep at the Castle of Zenda 
because no one feels safe. Everyone in it is a criminal, except the 
King." 

 فً هناك الدوق سٌظل ، فإنالحقٌقً الملك قتل كان قد أن ماٌكل باتإث لكن من دون، إلى الأبد الملك عندما افكر اننى سؤبقى تسارعٌ قلبى نبضكان 
 أخً كذلكنعم، و"فقال:  "؟ماٌكل خطة عنشٌباً  عرف الملكٌ هل": وهانج سؤلتفى أمان أبداً" كون أ لن، مكانً لاتخاذ فرصته ، فً انتظارقصره
، ونمجرم هناك الجمٌع .ٌشعر بالأمان لا أحد هلأن زندا قلعة فً امان تن لٌس من السهل. السجن فى وضع الماسورة عند نافذة ساعد فقد ماكس

 ".الملك باستثناء

16. "Thank you, Johann," I said to him. "You can go back to the castle 
now. If anyone asks you if there is a prisoner in the castle, you can 
say there is. But if anyone asks you who the prisoner is, do not 
answer. We can help you if you keep your promises, otherwise you'll 
never be safe again." Johann bowed to me as he left. We hoped he could 

be trusted. 
 "So, what are we going to do now?" asked Sapt. I thought long and 
hard. "There are two ways in which the King can come out of Zenda 
alive," I said. "One is if we have a miracle, and the other is if one of 
the Duke's men betrays him." 

 ، ولكننعم هناك ٌمكنك أن تقول ،عةفً القل سجٌن ان هناكلو  أي شخص سؤلكإذا  .الآن إلى القلعة ٌمكنك العودة، وهانا جٌ شكرا لك،" :قلت له
 وهانج انحنى ".مرة أخرىفى أمان تكون  فلن ، وإلاوعودكفٌت باذا و ساعدكنٌمكن أن  ، ونحنلا تجبف السجٌن هو من أي شخص سؤلك إذا

لإخراج  ٌقتانطرهناك "م قلت: بجدٌة ثطوٌلا و فكرت"الآن؟ الذي سنفعله ما"إذاً، ٌصح وثوقنا به، سؤلنى سابت:  ان كنا نؤمل، وهو ٌغادر أمامى
 ."ٌخونه على استعداد ان الدوق الرجال إذا كان أحد ىه خرىوالأ معجزة، اذا كان لدٌنا هو ، الاولىحٌاً  زندا من الملك

Questions & Answers 
 

1- Why did Rassendyll, Sapt and Fritz decide to make a move against 

Michael?  ٠زقن إعواء ٙل 

   - Because the King was imprisoned ًِٛؾج and they wanted to save him. 

 
2- Who did King Rassendyll trust to keep the future of Ruritania safe? 
   - He trusted Marshal Strakencz. 

 
3- When could Duke Michael legally تطريمح ارعيح become King? 
   - He could only legally become King if he married Princess Flavia. 

 



 

- 118 - 

4-  What must Marshal Strakencz promise King Rassendyll to do? 
  - He must promise to protect Princess Flavia from Duke Michael. 

 
5- What reason did Rassendyll give Princess Flavia for leaving 

Strelsau? What did he ask her to do if he didn't come back? 
  - He told her he was going to hunt a big animal — Michael. He told her 
she must become Queen if he didn't return. 

 
6- What did Rassendyll ask Flavia to do if he didn't come back from 

Zenda? 
  - He asked her to become the Queen of Ruritania. 

 
7- Who accompanied اصطحة King Rassendyll to Zenda? 

  - Sapt, Fritz, a large party ِغّٛػظخ of servants and ten brave and strong 
men that he trusted accompanied him to Zenda. 

 
8- What did Rassendyll tell his men about their mission ِّٙخ? 
  - He told them that Michael tried to kill the King and that a good friend of 
the King's was held prisoner in the Castle and it was their job to set him 
free. 

 
9- Where did Rassendyll and his men stay for their hunting trip? 

Where was it and who did it belong to? 
  - They stayed in a country house called Tarlenheim. It belonged to a 

relative of Fritz. It was on a hill ًرظ on the opposite side ًاٌغبٔظت اٌّمبثظ of the 
town of Zenda from the castle. 

10- Who visited King Rassendyll at the country house of Tarlenheim? 
  - Three of Michael's Six Men visited him. 

 
11- According to Sapt, who was the worst criminal of Michael's Six Men? 
  - Rupert Hentzau was the worst criminal of them all 

 
12- What reason does Duke Michael give for not visiting "King" 

Rassendyll or inviting him to his castle? 
  - He says that he and some servants have a serious sickness.  

 
13- Why did Rassendyll and Fritz go to the inn at Zenda? Who did they 

talk to there and what did they say? 
  - They went to meet Johann. They talked to the innkeeper‘s daughter and 
asked her to have Johann meet them the next night. 

 
14- Who was Bernenstein? 

  - He was a trusted ِؾً صمخ gentleman who helped to save the King. 
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15- What happened to Bernenstein while Fritz and Rassendyll were out? 
  - He was shot in the arm while he was out in the woods. 

 
16- Rupert Hentzau told Rassendyll about Michael's new offer to him. 

Illustrate. 
  - Michael offered Rassendyll a safe journey to the border and a million gold 
pieces. 

 
17- How was Rupert Hentzau able to trick يخرذع Rudolf Rassendyll and 

injure him at Tarlenheim? 

  - He pretended that he wanted to shake hands with ٠ٖظبفؼ Rassendyll. He 

stepped فطب nearer to ِٓ ثبٌموة Rassendyll and suddenly stabbed him ٕٗٛؼ in 
the shoulder with his knife. 

 
18- What message did Rupert Hentzau bring the next day? How did 

Rassendyll reply? What happened when Rupert was leaving? 
  - The Duke offered Rassendyll a safe journey to the border and a million 
gold pieces. Rassendyll refused. As Rupert was leaving, he stabbed 
Rassendyll in the shoulder with a knife. 

 
19- What do they learn from Johann? 
  - They learn where the King is being kept in the castle and the Duke‘s 
plans. 

 
20- Why would Johann be in trouble if Michael's plan to kill the King 

succeeded? 
  - He would be in trouble because he knew too much. 

 
21- How could Johann be very useful to Rassendyll? 
  - As Johann worked at the Castle of Zenda, he would make the perfect spy 
for Rassendyll. 

 
22- According to Johann, why did he work for Michael? 
  - He worked for Michael because he was afraid of him not because he liked 
him. 

 
23- Where was the King kept at the Castle of Zenda? 

  - The King was kept in chains ًٍٍلا in a room with a small window. 

 
24- What would happen if some people attacked the Castle? 
  - Detchard would kill the King and the body would be put down the pipe 
and the weight of his chains would keep the body under water. 

 



 

- 111 - 

25- What was the plan if Michael's men were attacked? How would they 

kill the King and what would they do with the body? 
  - They would kill the King and then put him into the pipe. The chains would 

keep the body under the water of the moat ٟفٕلق ِبئ. The guards could then 
go out the same pipe and swim across the moat to escape. 

 
26- What would happen if the Castle was attacked by a large group of 

soldiers? 
  - Michael's men would kill the King and put him down the pipe leading to 
the moat. One of Michael's men would take the King's place. So, it would 
seem that Michael was keeping one of the Six Men as a prisoner because he 
had been rude to Antoinette de Mauban. No one would believe that the King 
was ever there. 

 
27- Why do they send Johann back to the castle? 
  - The Duke would look for him if he were missing. They also hope they can 
trust him and get more information from him. 

 
28- According to Rassendyll, there were two ways in which the King 

could come out of Zenda alive. Illustrate. 
  - One way was to have a miracle and the other way was if one of the Duke‘s 
men betrayed him. 

 

Quotations 
1- “You must promise that you’ll protect Princess Flavia from the Duke.” 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Marshal Strakencz. 

2- Why do you think Princess Flavia needed protection from the duke? 
- The Duke could only legally become King if he married the princess as his mother 
wasn‘t royal. The Duke might force the Princess to marry him. 

3- What was the addressed person‟s job? 
- He was an important person in the Ruritanian army. 

 
2- "The writing's a little different from your usual. I hope people know it's a real 
order from the King." 

1- Who says this to Rassendyll (the King)? 
    - Marshal Strakencz says this. 
2- What does he think is the reason that the handwriting is different? What is 

the real reason? 
    - He thinks it is different because the King has injured his hand. The real reason is 

that Rassendyll is not the real King. 
3- Why is it important hat the handwriting be the same? 
    - So that people will know that it is a real order from the King. 

 
3- "So you'd prefer to hunt animals than do your duties in the capital?" 

1- Who says this to Rassendyll? 
    - Princess Flavia. 
2- When does the person say this? 
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    - The day after the ball, when Rassendyll is saying goodbye to go to Zenda to hunt 

Michael. 
3- What "animal" is Rassendyll going to hunt? 
    - He's going to hunt Duke Michael. 

 
4- "I don’t really know what’s going on, but I’ll do whatever is right for 

Ruritania.” 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Princess Flavia said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rudolf Rassendyll told Flavia that he was going to hunt 
Michael and that if he didn‘t come back, Flavia would become the Queen of Ruritania. 

3- When could Duke Michael legally become king? 
     - He could legally become King if he married the Princess. 

 
5- "And what of your friends De Gautet, Bersonin and Detchard? I heard that 
Detchard was injured.” 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Rupert Hentzau. 

2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rupert Hentzau went to Tarlenheim to see Rudolf Rassendyll. 
3- Where and when was Detchard injured? 

     - He was injured at the summer house when Rudolf Rassendyll shot him as 
Michael‘s men were trying to kill Rassendyll. 
 
6- "That Rupert is the worst criminal of them all.” 

1- Who said this to whom? 

     - Colonel Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Who was Rupert? 
     - He was one of Michael‘s Six Men. 

3- Why did the speaker believe that Michael‟s men were criminals? 
     - They were loyal to Michael. They would do whatever Michael asked them to do. 
They would even kill for Michael. 

 
7- "He never comes here anymore. He works at the Castle now.” 

1- Who said this to whom? 
      - The hotel owner‘s daughter said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Who does “he” refer to? 

      - It refers to Johann Holf. 
3- What did the addressed person want the speaker to do? 

      - He wanted her to bring Johann to him because he wanted Johann to work as a 
spy for him. 
 

8- "He‟s upstairs in bed with a bullet in his arm. The next bullet could be for you.” 
1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Colonel Sapt said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 

2- Who was the speaker talking about? Who shot that person? 
   - He was talking about Bernenstein, one of Rassendyll‘s men. One of Michael‘s men 

shot 
3- Who do you think would try to kill the addressed person? Why? 
     - Michael and his men would try to kill Rudolf Rassendyll as this was part of 

Michael‘s plan to become the King. 
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9- "I have a message for you, Rassendyll." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rupert Hentzau said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Where were they? 

    - They were at Tarlenheim. 
3- What was the message? 

    - Michael offered Rassendyll a safe journey to the border and a million gold pieces. 
 
10- "If you do not know how to address the King, my brother must find another 

messenger." 
1- Who doe, Rassendyll say this to? 
    - Rassendyll says this to Rupert Hentzau. 

2- Where are they? 
    - They are at Tarlenheim. 

3- Why does he say this? 
    - He says this because Hentzau has addressed him as ―Rassendyll‖. 
 

11- "Why do you continue to pretend? We all know who you are.” 
1- Who said this to whom? 

     - Rupert Hentzau said this to Rudolf Rassendyll. 
2- Why did the speaker say this? 
     - He said this because Rassendyll wanted Rupert to address him as a King. 

3- What was the purpose of the speaker‟s visit? 
     - Rupert brought a message from Michael to Rassendyll. Michael offered Rassendyll 
a safe journey to the border and a million gold pieces. 

 
12- "You know the game‟s not finished yet, and until it is, I will choose my own 

name.” 
1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Rupert Hentzau. 

2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rupert went to see Rudolf Rassendyll at Tarlenheim to give 
him a message from Michael. 

3- Why did the speaker say the game hasn‟t finished? 
     - Rupert asked Rudolf Rassendyll to stop pretending that he was the King as 

everybody knew who he was. Rudolf believed that Michael couldn‘t say in public that 
Rudolf Rassendyll wasn‘t the King as people would know then that he had kidnapped 
the King.   

 
13- "The Duke offers you more than I would. He offers you a safe journey to the 

border and a million gold pieces. 
1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rupert Hentzau said this to Rassendyll. 

2- Why did the Duke want that person to leave the country? 
    - He wanted him to leave the country so that he could become King after getting rid 
of the King. 

3- Did the addressed person accept or refuse the offer? 
     - He refused the offer. 

 
14- "Tell the Duke that I refuse his generous offer. How‟s his prisoner by the 
way?” 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Rupert Hentzau. 
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2- What was that offer the speaker refused? 

     - Duke Michael offered Rassendyll a safe journey to the border and a million gold 
pieces. 
3- Who was the prisoner and where was he? 

     - The prisoner was King Rudolf Elphberg and he was imprisoned at the Castle of 
Zenda. 

 
15- "Good, now go from here, while you can.” 
1- Who said this to whom? 

     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Rupert Hentzau. 
2- What does the phrase “while you can” mean? 
     - It means that if Rupert didn‘t do away, Rassendyll would kill him. 

3- What terrible thing did the addressed person do before riding off? 
     - He pretended that he wanted to shake hands with Rassendyll, and then he 

suddenly stabbed him in the shoulder with his knife. 
 
16- "They have another plan."  

1- Who said this to whom? 
  - Johann said this to Rassendyll 

2- Who were they talking about? 
  - They were talking about the Duke and his men. 
3- What plan was the speaker referring to? 

    - If the castle's attacked by a large group of soldiers, Michael's men would kill the 
King and put him down the pipe leading to the moat. One of Michael's men would take 
the King's place. So, it would seem that Michael was keeping one of the Six Men as a 

prisoner because he had been rude to Antoinette de Mauban. No one would believe that 
the King was ever there. 

    
17- "Rassendyll, I think that this time next year, you'll still be King." 
1- Who says this? 

    - Colonel Sapt. 
2- What has he just heard? 
    - He has just heard the Duke‘s plan for killing the King and hiding the body. 

3- Why does he think Rassendyll will still be King after a year? 
    - Because the Duke‘s plan is very clever and he will kill the King whether he is 

attacked by a small group or a large one. 
 
18- "Does the King know about Michael's plan?" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rassendyll said this to Johann. 

2- Did the king know about Michael's plan? 
  - Yes, he did. 
3- According to the speaker, there were two ways in which the King could come 

out of Zenda alive. What were they.? 
    - One way was to have a miracle and the other way was if one of the Duke‘s men 

betrayed ْٛ٠ق him. 

 
19- "We can help you if you keep your promises, otherwise you'll never be safe 
again." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Johann Holf. 

2- Which promises was the addressed person asked to keep? 



 

- 114 - 

    - Johann promised Rudolf Rassendyll to help him rescue the King, Rudolf Elphberg, 

who was held prisoner at the Castle of Zenda. 
3- Why did the addressed person agree to help the speaker? 
     - Johann agreed to help Rassendyll because he didn‘t like Duke Michael as he 

thought that the Duke and his men were criminals. 
20- "There are two ways in which the King can come out of Zenda alive." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
    - Rassendyll said this to Sapt. 
2- When was this said? 

  - This was said when Sapt asked what they were going to do after knowing the Duke's 
plans to get rid of the king. 
3- Mention the two ways in which the King can come out of Zenda alive? 

      - One way was to have a miracle and the other way was if one of the Duke‘s men 
betrayed him. 

Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-  Rassendyll had to trust Rose to keep the future of Ruritania safe. 
 Rassendyll had to trust Marshal Strakencz to keep the future of Ruritania safe. 
2-  Marshal Strakencz promised to protect Countess Amelia from the Duke. 
 Marshal Strakencz promised to protect Princess Flavia from the Duke. 
3-  Duke Burlesdon cannot legally become King unless he marries Princess Flavia. 
     Duke Michael cannot legally become King unless he marries Princess Flavia. 
4-  Rassendyll's writing was the same as the real King's writing. 
     Rassendyll's writing was different from the real King's writing. 
5-  Princess Flavia wrote some orders for Marshal Strakencz. 
     Rassendyll wrote some orders for Marshal Strakencz. 
6-  Rassendyll said that he was going to hunt a very big animal, by which he meant Colonel 
Sapt. 
 Rassendyll said that he was going to hunt a very big animal, by which he meant Duke Michael. 

7-  Fritz owned the country house called Tarlenheim. 
     Fritz's relative owned the country house called Tarlenheim. 
8-  Detchard, Sapt, Fritz and ten gentlemen went to Tarlenheim. 
     Rassendyll, Sapt, Fritz and ten gentlemen went to Tarlenheim. 
9-  The ten brave and strong gentlemen knew that Rassendyll was not the real King. 
     The ten brave and strong gentlemen know that Rassendyll was the real King. 
10-  Rassendyll told his men that Fritz had tried to kill him. 
   Rassendyll told his men that Duke Michael had tried to kill him. 
11-  Sapt believed that Detchard was the worst criminal of Michael‘s Six Men. 
   Sapt believed that Rupert Hentzau was the worst criminal of Michael‘s Six Men. 
12-  Rassendyll took Sapt to dine at the small hotel he stayed at on his first night in 
Ruritania. 
       Rassendyll took Fritz to dine at the small hotel he stayed at on his first night in 
Ruritania. 
13-  The innkeeper's son said that she thought Rassendyll was the King when he stayed with 
them. 
       The innkeeper's daughter said that she thought Rassendyll was the King when he stayed 
with them. 

14-  Rassendyll asked Fritz to bring Detchard to the Tarlenheim country house. 
   Rassendyll asked the Fritz to bring Johann to the Tarlenheim country house. 
15-  Bernenstein was shot by the king's men while in the woods 
       Bernenstein was shot by the Duke's men while in the woods 
16-  Bernenstein was shot in the shoulder while in the woods. 
       Bernenstein was shot in the arm while in the woods. 
17-  Duke Michael visited Rassendyll at Tarlenheim. 
   Duke Michael didn't visit Rassendyll at Tarlenheim. 
18-  The Ruritanian Six Men visited Rassendyll at Tarlenheim. 
        The Ruritanian three Men visited Rassendyll at Tarlenheim. 
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Homework  ((A)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- From whom did Rassendyll ask the Marshall to protect the Princess ?  

2- Why did the Duke want to marry the Princess? 
3- What did the Marshall notice when Rassendyll wrote his order? 
4- Where did Rassendyll ( the pretend king) tell the princess he was going? 
5- What did Rassendyll ask Flavia to do if he didn't come back? 
6- Where was the Tarlenheim castle? 
7- Who did the Tarlenheim house belong to? 

8- Who did Rassendyll take with him to the Tarlenheim  house? 
9- What did Rassendyll ( the pretend king ) tell those men? 
10- Show that the men whom the pretend king took with him brave and loyal . 
11-Who arrived at the Tarlenheim house to visit Rassendyll? 
12- Why couldn't the Duke host the king ( Rassendyll ) at his mansion? 
13- What did Rassendyll think of Rupert's talk to him? 

14-What was Sapt's opinion of Rupert Hentzau ? 
15- Why did Rassendyll feel safe when he set off for Zenda with Fritz? 
16-Why did Rassendyll uncover his face in front of the owner's daughter? 
17- How was the owner's daughter mistaken about Rassendyll ? 
18- Why did the owner's daughter apologize to Rassendyll? 
19- What condition did Rassendyll  ask her to achieve to forgive her? 

20- Why did the girl agreed happily to bring Johann to the king ( Rassendyll )? 
21- Why did it seem dangerous for Rassendyll to ride in that area alone? 
22- Why was Bernenstein shot? 
23- Why weren't they safe in the country house ? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "You'd prefer to hunt animals than do your duties in the capital. ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What did the speaker blame the listner for?  
  c)What did these words show about the speaker ? 
2- "If I don't come, you must become queen for me.” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Why might the speaker not come? 
c)Did the other person agree on what was said 
3- "I heard that Detchard was injured. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)When was Detchard injured? 
c)What did the speaker's words aim at ? 
 
4-"I'm sorry if we said anything bad when you stayed with us." 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Why did the speaker apologize? 
 c)On what condition would the other person forgive him/her? 
5-"He never comes here any more. He works at the Castle now. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)About whom were they talking? 
c)Why did the other person need him? 
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6-"I have a message for you." 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What was in that message? 
 c)What was the listner's response? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- Rassendyll told the Princess that he was going to hunt Sapt 
2- Rassendyll asked the princess to be a king if he didn't return 
3- The Princess promised to do the right thing for England 
4-Abouit 12 kilometre from Zenda there was a leafy wood on top of a hill 

5-The Tarlenheim house belonged to Sapt 
6- The Tarlenheim house was far from Zenda. 
7- The Tarlenheim house was on a mountain top 
8-Rassendyll went to the house with a large party of servants and 15 gentlemen 
9- Rassendyll told the men that the king was held prisoner 
10-The three foreigners visited Rassendyll 

11- Rupert told Rassendyll that the Duke couldn't host him as he was travelling 

12- Rassendyll asked about the injured De Gautet 
13- Rassendyll and Sapt went to the inn 
14- Rassendyll asked the girl to bring him her mother 
15- Sapt was angry that Rassendyll was safe 
 . 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- Why did Rupert ask Rassendyll to stop pretending ? ( it was a comic scene ) 
2 –Although Rupert knew Rassendyll's game , Rassendyll was confident. 

Illustrate.  
3- What was the 2nd offer which Rupert told Rassendyll about? 

4- Why did Rassendyll refuse the 2nd offer ? 
5- What would happen if Rassendyll accept the offer ? 

6- Rupert Hentzau was treacherous غلاه and trustless. Explain. 

7- How was Rassendyll lucky when Rupert stabbed him ? 
8-Why was Johann happy to be in the country house ( to help Rassendyll ) ? 
9- Johann was a weak man not a wicked one ,How did that help Rassendyll? 
10- What did Johan tell them about the real king's place inside the castle? 
11- How could these rooms be reached ? 
12-Why was the first room always guarded by three men of the six men? 

13- Why was there a pipe from the window of the king's room? 
14- The pipe had many uses for Michael's men. Discuss.  
15- What was the 2nd plan to get rid of the king if many people attacked the 
castle? 

16- Why would one of the six men take the king's place? 
17- How was Sapt being frustrated by Michael's clever plan? 

18- Why was Rassendyll's pulse quickened at the thought of remaining king 
forever? 
19- Who knew about Michael's plan other than his men? 
20-What did Johann say about his brother Max? 
21-Why wasn't it easy to sleep at the Castle of Zenda? 
22-What orders did Rassendyll give Johann after thanking him? 
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23- According to Rassendyll how could the king come out of Zenda alive? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "He never comes here any more. He works at the castle now. ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)About whom was the speaker talking? 
  c)Why did the speaker ask about " he" ? 
2- "Let's shake hands. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where was the speaker at that time? 
c)What did the speaker do then? 
3- "But you can't say that in public, can you? ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What couldn't the listner say in public?? 

c)What criminal act ِٝػًّ اعواdid the listner do before leaving? 
4-"They have another plan. " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does " they" refer to ? 
 c)What was the other plan? 
5-"We can help you if you keep your promises ,otherwise you will 
never be safe again. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What promises that the addressee could keep? 
c)Do you think the addressee would be helpful or not? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- Bernenstein saw four people in the trees  
2- The three people shot Bernenstein and he had a bullet in his leg. 

3-The second bullet could be for Sapt 
4- Fritz asked Rassendyll to end the pretence as he was known by all 

5 – Rassendyll told Rupert that they couldn't say that in secret 
6- Rupert offered Rassendyll 1000 pieces of gold to leave Ruritania. 
7- Rupert told Rassendyll that the prisoner was dead 
8-Rupert stabbed Rassendyll with a knife in the chest 
9- Rassendyll was happy at letting himself fall to such a trick 
10-Johann was sad to be there in the house of Rassendyll 

11- Rassendyll wanted Johann to be their spy in the king's palace 
12-Johann told Rassendyll that the king was imprisoned in the first room. 
13 The king would be killed and his body would float in the moat. 
14-Sapt and Rassendyll were surprised by the king's clever plan 
15-The king could be saved by three ways . 
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injured ِٖبة catch up with ٠ٍؾك ثظ 

woods اٌغبثخ set the king free ٠ؾوه اٌٍّه 

was relieved ّؼو ثبلاهر١بػ bravely ثْغبػخ 

injury إٕبثخ reward ِىبفأح / ٠ىبفأ 

serious فط١و work against ٠ؼًّ ٙل 

act out a war ٠مَٛ ثؾوة murderers َاٌمزٍَخ 

hill ًر messengers ًٍه 

boots ؽناء arrange a date ٠ؾلك ربه٠ـ 

take off )٠قٍغ )اٌؾناء great joy فوؽخ ػبهِخ 

stab (him) to death ٠طؼٕٗ ؽزٝ اٌّٛد furious ّل٠ل اٌغٚت 

giant pipe ُأٔجٛة ٙق at once فٟ اٌؾبي 

fasten ٠ضجذ whichever came first أ٠ّٙب ؽلس أٚلا 

row ٠ُغلف ثبٌمبهة act as a spy ًٍٛ٠ؼًّ وغب 

whistle َٖفو ٠ُ remaining ٓاٌجبل١ 

several shots ػلح ٍٛمبد cry out for help ٠ٖوؿ ٍٛجب ٌٍَّبػلح 

loud cry ٕوفخ ػب١ٌخ meanwhile فٟ أصٕبء مٌه 

towards  ٖٔؾٛ -رغب weapons أٍٍؾخ 

step back ٠قطٛ ٌٍقٍف surely ثبٌزأو١ل 

pull up ٍٟ٠َؾت لأػ look ahead َ٠ٕظو ٌلأِب 

wave a sword ٠ٍٛػ ثب١ٌَف shortly afterwards ثؼل مٌه ثفزوح ل١ٖوح 

heavy hearts لٍٛة ؽي٠ٕخ go free   ٠ٖجؼ ؽوا 

at least ًػٍٟ الأل surrender ٍَُ٠َز 
look into the matter ٌَّأٌخ٠جؾش الأِو أٚ ا  get rid of ِٓ ٍٔ٠زق 

1-The next day, three pieces of news arrived at the Tarlenheim country 
house where we were staying. The first was that people of Strelsau had 
heard I was badly injured while I was hunting in the woods, and they were 
worried. Secondly, the Duke also thought I was badly injured, although he 
understood better how I had got my injury. I heard this from Johann, who 
I now trusted and had allowed to go back to Zenda. Thirdly, Marshal 
Strakencz told me that Princess Flavia had ordered him to take her to see 
me. 

صابة شدٌدة فً الٌوم التالً، وصل ثلاثة اخبار الى المنزل الرٌفً تارلٌنهٌم حٌث كنا نقٌم، كان الأول أن الناس فى سترلسو قد سمعوا اننى أصُبت أ
طٌرة، على الرغم من أنه ٌفهم بشكل كبٌر بٌنما كنت أصطاد فً الغابة، وانهم ٌشعرون بالقلق، وكان الثانى أن الدوق أٌضا أعتقد اننى أصبت بجروح خ

 كٌف حدثت لى هذه الإصابة، سمعت هذا من جوهان، الذي أثق فٌه الآن، ولذلك سمحت له أن ٌعود إلى زندا، أما الثالث فقد أخبرنى المارشال
 .ستراكٌنكز أن الأمٌرة فلافٌا قد أمرته أن ٌؤتً بها لرإٌتً

2-When the Princess arrived at Tarlenheim, she was relieved to see that my 
injury was not serious. However, Johann told us shortly afterwards that 
the King was looking weak and ill, and we realised that we had to do 
something quickly. We could not wait any longer or he would surely die.It 
was perhaps the strangest thing in the history of any country, that the 
King's brother and a pretend King, near a quiet country town during a time 
of peace, acted out a war for the life of a sick King, with just a few people 
knowing about it. 

Chapter 7 
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مٌرة الى تارلٌنهٌم، شعرت بالارتٌاح عندما رأت أن إصابتى لم تكن خطٌرة. ولكن جوهان أخبرنا، بعد ذلك بقلٌل، أن الملك ٌبدو ضعٌفا عندما وصلت الأ
فً  ومرٌضا، وادركنا أنه علٌنا أن نفعل شٌبا بسرعة. فنحن لا ٌمكن أن ننتظر أطول من ذلك وإلا فمن المإكد أنه سٌموت. وربما كان أغرب شًء

خ أي بلد، أن شقٌق الملك وشخص ٌتظاهر أنه الملك، بالقرب من بلدة رٌفٌة هادبة خلال وقت السلم، ٌخططون لحرب من أجل حٌاة ملك مرٌض، تارٌ
 مع عدد قلٌل من الناس ٌعرفون هذا الأمر

3-That night, after Princess Flavia had gone to bed, I changed my clothes 
and went outside to join Sapt and Fritz with seven men. We all had 
weapons and we rode our horses into a wet, windy night, taking a quiet 
back road towards the Castle of Zenda. It took us about an hour to get 
there. A few hundred metres from the castle, we asked the seven men to 
wait with the horses while we continued on foot up the hill to the moat 
around the castle. Here, Sapt tied a rope to a tree and I took off my boots, 
using the rope to climb down into the water. 

لابسً، وذهبت إلى الخارج للانضمام إلى ثابت وفرٌتز مع سبعة رجال. وكنا جمٌعاً فً تلك اللٌلة، بعدما ذهبت الأمٌرة فلافٌا الى النوم، بدلت م
ى هناك. مسلحٌن، تحركنا بخٌولنا فى لٌلة رطبة وعاصفة، أخذنا طرٌق خلفى هادئ متجهاً نحو قلعة زٌندا. استغرق الأمر منا حوالً ساعة للوصول إل

الرجال السبعة الانتظار مع الخٌول بٌنما واصلنا سٌرنا على الأقدام من أعلى التل إلى الخندق  وعلى بعد بضع مبات من الأمتار من القلعة، طلبنا من
 المابى حول القلعة. هنا، ربط ثابت حبل فى شجرة، وخلعت حذابً لاستخدام الحبل للنزول إلى أسفل فى الماء

4-Although the night was windy and wet, it had been a warm and sunny 
day and the water was not cold, and I swam without difficulty round the 
castle walls. I could hear voices inside the castle, but it was so dark that I 
did not think anyone could see me. I remembered what Johann had told 
me and thought I must now be near to the window to the King's room. 
Then I saw the giant pipe that led from his window to the moat, and I was 
about to go nearer when I heard a noise. 

ول جدران القلعة. كنت على الرغم من أن اللٌل كان عاصف ورطب، فقد كان ٌوماً حاراً ومشمّساً لذلك لم ٌكن الماء بارداً، وسبحت دون صعوبة ح
اعتقدت أسمع أصواتاً داخل القلعة، ولكن كان المكان مظلماً لذلك لا أعتقد أن أي شخص كان فى استطاعته أن ٌرانى. تذكرت ما اخبرنى به جوهان و

نافذة غرفته بالخندق، وكنت على وشك  انه من المإكد اننى الآن بالقرب من نافذة الغرفة التى بها الملك. ثم، رأٌت الماسورة العملاقة التً كانت تصل
 الإقتراب اكثر عندما سمعت ضوضاء

I now saw there was a boat next to the pipe, and in the boat was a guard 
carrying a large gun. I went up to the boat as quietly as I could, then I saw 

that the guard was Max Holf, the brother of Johann. He was breathing 
slowly and deeply and I saw that he was asleep. I swam slowly and silently 
up to him and, though I hated to do it, this was war, so I stabbed him to 
death. 

بندقٌة كبٌرة. ذهبت إلى القارب بهدوء ما أمكننى، ثم رأٌت أن الحارس الآن رأٌت ان هناك قارب بجوار الماسورة، وفً القارب كان هناك حارس ٌحمل 
كان ماكس هولف، شقٌق جوهان. أنه كان ٌتنفس ببطء وعمق، وفهمت أنه كان نابماً. سبحت ببطء وفً صمت حتى وصلت عنده، وعلى الرغم من 

 كراهٌتً للقٌام بذلك، لقد كانت هذه حرب، لذلك طعنته حتى الموت

5-Now I had time to look carefully at the pipe. I soon realised that the 
bottom of the pipe was not fastened to the wall and I could see light coming 
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from its far end. I tried to push it, and although the pipe was very heavy, it 
moved just a little. Then I heard voices: one was the King, and the other 
was a man with an English accent. It was Detchard. 
"Time for your sleep," said the Englishman. 
"Why doesn't my brother kill me now?" said the King in a weak voice. 
"The Duke doesn't want you to die, not yet anyway. Sleep well!" said 

Detchard. Then the light disappeared and I could hear a door being locked. 
Now all I could hear was the King, quietly crying. 

رى ضوءاً قادماً الآن لدى الوقت لفحص الماسورة بعناٌة. سرعان ما أدركت أن الجزء السفلً من الماسورة لم ٌكن مثبتا فى الجدار، واستطعت ان أ
الملك، من طرفها البعٌد. حاولت أن ادفعها، وعلى الرغم من أن الماسورة كانت ثقٌلة جداً، فقد تحركت قلٌلاً فقط. ثم سمعت صوتان: كان أحدهما 

ٌقتلنً أخً الآن؟". فقال  والآخر كان رجلاً بلهجة إنجلٌزٌة. إنه دٌتشارد. قال الإنجلٌزي: "حان وقت نومك". وقال الملك بصوت ضعٌف: "لماذا لا
أسمعه  دٌتشارد: "الدوق لا ٌرٌدك أن تموت، لٌس بعد على أي حال. نم بشكل جٌد! ". ثم اختفى الضوء وسمعت صوت بابٍ ٌقفُل. الآن كل ما ٌمكن أن

  كان الملك، ٌبكً بصوت منخفض

6-I realised nothing more could be done that night, so I climbed in the boat 
with Max dead at the bottom and rowed back to the rope. The wind was 
blowing hard now, so I did not worry that anyone would hear the boat. 
When I arrived next to the rope, I tied it round Max's body and asked Sapt 
to pull it up. Then I climbed back to my friends. Sapt whistled for our 
seven men to come and get us with their horses, but as they got nearer, we 
heard several shots and loud cries, and then a voice callout, "They've got 
me, Rupert! There are seven of them. Save yourself!"  

ننى فعل أى شا آخر فً تلك اللٌلة، لذلك قفزت فً القارب مع ماكس وكان مٌتاً فوضعته فً الجزء السفلً، وجدفت عابداً مرة أخرى أدركت أنه لا ٌمك
إلى الحبل. كانت الرٌاح تهب بشدة الآن، حتى أننى لم أقلق من أن أي شخص قد ٌسمع القارب. عندما وصلت إلى جوار الحبل، ربطته حول جسم 

ن ثابت أن ٌسحب القارب لأعلى. ثم تركته عابداً مرة أخرى إلى أصدقابً. قام ثابت بالصفٌر لرجالنا السبعة لٌؤتوا وٌؤخذوننا بخٌولهم، ماكس، وطلبت م
 ولكن عندما اقتربوا منا سمعنا عدة طلقات وصرخات عالٌة، وبعد    ذلك صاح صوت: "لقد اصابونى ٌا روبرت! وهناك سبعة منهم. أنقذ نفسك

7-We were running towards our men when a horse arrived with Rupert 
Hentzau on it. It was so dark that he did not see us, so I took a large stick 
and ran forward towards the horse's head. Now, surely we had him! But he 
was too quick. He waved a sword at me and cut my stick in half. I stepped 
back, and before we knew it, he had disappeared into the night. 
I later found out that Lauengram and Krafstein were both killed by our 
men, although the fight had cost us three of our own men. We went home 
with heavy hearts for our friends, worried about the health of the King, and 
angry that Rupert had escaped. 

نحو كنا نجرى نحو رجالنا عندما وصل حصان علٌه روبرت هٌنتزو. وكان المكان مظلماً حتى أنه لم ٌرانا، فؤخذت عصا كبٌرة، وركضت إلى الأمام 
كنا منه! ولكنه كان سرٌعاً جداً. فقد لوح بسٌفه فً وجهً، وقطع عصاى  نصفٌن. أخذت خطوة إلى رأس الحصان. الآن، كان من المإكد أننا تم
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الرغم من أن  الوراء، وقبل ان نعرف ما ٌحدث، كان قد اختفى فً الظلام. اكتشفت فٌما بعد أن لوٌنجرام وكرافستٌن كلاهما قد قتُل بواسطة رجالنا، على
رجالنا. ذهبنا الى المنزل بقلوب موجوعة بسبب اصدقابنا، ٌساورنا القلق بشؤن صحة الملك، وغاضبٌن من أن روبرت هذه المعركة قد كلفتنا ثلاثة من 

  قد هرب

8-The next day, I received a visit from the Chief of Police in Strelsau. He 
told me that the British Ambassador had reported that an Englishman 
called Rassendyll had disappeared near the town of Zenda. They had found 
his bags at a nearby train station, and a man called Mr Featherly from 
Paris believed he was travelling with Madame de Mauban. He asked if I 
knew the lady. 
"Yes, I do," I replied. "I believe she and her servants were guests of 
Duke Michael." 
"I see," said the policeman. 
"Go back to Strelsau and tell the Ambassador what you know. I'll 
look into this for you," I told him. "Return in two weeks and I'll tell 
you what I've found." I wanted to have at least two weeks without any 

more difficult questions. My game had almost been discovered. 
ل قد اختفى وفً الٌوم التالً تلقٌت زٌارة من "ربٌس الشرطة" فً سترٌلسو. واخبرنى أن "السفٌر البرٌطانً" أبلغه أن رجلاً إنجلٌزٌاً ٌدعى راسٌندٌ

د وجدوا أمتعته فً محطة قطار قرٌبة، وأدعى رجل ٌدعى السٌد فٌزٌرلً من بارٌس أنه كان مسافراً مع مدام دي موبان. وسؤل قرُب مدٌنة زٌندا. وق
"علٌك ان  إذا كنت أعرف السٌدة. فؤجبته: "نعم، أعرفها. أعتقد أنها وخدمها كانوا ضٌوفاً عند الدوق ماٌكل". فقال الشرطً: "أفهم ذلك". فقلت له:

سترٌلسو وتخبر السفٌر بما تعرفه. سوف ننظر فً هذا من اجلك ". "سنعود فً غضون أسبوعٌن، وسوف أخبركم ما قد وجدت". أردت أن تعود إلى 
  ٌكون امامى على الأقل أسبوعٌن دون أي أسبلة أكثر صعوبة. تقرٌبا قد أكُتشفت لعبتً

9-But with the policeman in town that day, there could be no more fighting 
around the castle, and Rupert clearly felt safe enough to ride out on his 
horse. When I saw him, I quickly caught up with him. He looked surprised 
to see me. 
"How's my brother today?" I asked him. 
"He's well," he replied. "He hopes he'll soon be in Strelsau." 
"Rupert, you're young. Why are you doing this? If you let your 
prisoner go free, I can help you," I said to him. "You don't have to work 
for my brother." Rupert looked ahead of him and said nothing for a 

minute, then he spoke quietly. 
ماً ن لدى الوقت لفحص الماسورة بعناٌة. سرعان ما أدركت أن الجزء السفلً من الماسورة لم ٌكن مثبتا فى الجدار، واستطعت ان أرى ضوءاً قادالآ

ملك، المن طرفها البعٌد. حاولت أن ادفعها، وعلى الرغم من أن الماسورة كانت ثقٌلة جداً، فقد تحركت قلٌلاً فقط. ثم سمعت صوتان: كان أحدهما 
". فقال والآخر كان رجلاً بلهجة إنجلٌزٌة. إنه دٌتشارد. قال الإنجلٌزي: "حان وقت نومك". وقال الملك بصوت ضعٌف: "لماذا لا ٌقتلنً أخً الآن؟

ا ٌمكن أن دٌتشارد: "الدوق لا ٌرٌدك أن تموت، لٌس بعد على أي حال. نم بشكل جٌد! ". ثم اختفى   الضوء وسمعت صوت بابٍ ٌقفُل. الآن كل م
  أسمعه كان الملك، ٌبكً بصوت منخفض

10-"You may be right. Attack the castle bravely. I'll tell you when. 
But Fritz and Sapt must die, and so must Michael and the King. That 
will leave two men alive: you and me. You'll stay as the King, and I'll 
have a reward." 
"Would you really work against Michael?" I asked him. 
"He's not a good man," he replied. "He makes me angry. I nearly killed 
him myself last night. Think carefully about my plan." With that, he 

rode off down the road. 
لعة بشجاعة. سؤقول لك متى. ولكن ٌجب أن ٌموت فرٌتز وثابت، وكذلك ٌجب أن ٌموت ماٌكل والملك. وهذا سوف ٌترك قد تكون على حق. هاجم الق"

، أنه رجلان على قٌد الحٌاة: أنت وأنا. ستبقى انت كملك، وسآخذ أنا المكافؤة" سؤلته: "هل حقاً ستعمل ضد ماٌكل؟". فؤجاب: "انه لٌس رجل جٌد
 .وشك قتله بنفسً اللٌلة الماضٌة. فكر بعناٌة فى خطتً". وبعد ذلك، انطلق بحصانه فى طرٌقهٌجعلنً غاضبا. وكنت على 
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11-Later that day, Sapt could see that I was deep in thought, but I did not 
tell him what I was thinking. There was a knock at the door and a boy 
brought me a message. It read: 
Johann will take this letter for me. I warned you before. The Duke 
discovered that I helped you that night in the summer house. He is 
now keeping me a prisoner in his mansion because he cannot trust 
me. Please, if you can, rescue me from this house of murderers. 

Antoinette de Mauban 
ً ٌحمل فً وقت لاحق من ذلك الٌوم، لاحظ ثابت اننى كنت مستغرقا فً الفكر، ولكنى لم اخبره فٌما كنت افكر. كان هناك طرقاً على الباب، إنه صب

لدوق أننى قد ساعدتك فً تلك اللٌلة فً المنزل رسالة لً. كانت الرسالة تقول: ٌوهان سوف ٌؤخذ هذه الرسالة من اجلى. لقد حذرتك من قبل. اكتشف ا
طوانٌت دو الصٌفى. وهو الآن ٌتحفظ علً كسجٌن فً قصره نظراً لأنه لا ٌمكنه الوثوق بى. من فضلك، إذا كنت تستطٌع، انقذنى من بٌت القتلة هذا. أن

 موبان

12-What could I do? Time went on and I knew that, for now, I could do 
nothing to help either Madame de Mauban or the King. I soon heard that 
the people in Strelsau did not like the fact that I had been away from them 
for so long. To keep them happy, my messengers told them that Flavia and 
I had arranged a date for our wedding, news which was greeted with great 
joy. 

ناس فً ماذا ٌمكن أن أفعل؟ مضى الوقت وكنت أعلم أنه، الآن، لا ٌمكننى أن أفعل شٌبا لمساعدة مدام دي موبان أو الملك. وسرعان ما سمعت أن ال
نى و فلافٌا قد رتبنا موعد زفافنا، وهو الخبر الذي قوبل سترٌلسو لم ٌقبلوا حقٌقة بعدى عنهم لفترة طوٌلة. وللحفاظ على سعادتهم، أخبرهم رُسلى أن

 .بفرح عظٌم

13-Not everyone wanted to know this news, however. Johann told me that 
the Duke was furious to hear about the wedding. At the same time, the 
King had become so ill that the Duke had asked for a doctor to examine 
him. The doctor advised him to set the King free at once, but the Duke 
refused, adding that the doctor would have to stay with him until he was 
better or died, whichever came first. Johann also told us that Antoinette de 
Mauban was helping to look after the King, who was guarded by two of the 
remaining Six Men at all times 

بح ومع ذلك لٌس الجمٌع كان ٌرٌد أن ٌعرف هذه الأخبار، أخبرنى جوهان أن الدوق كان غاضباً عندما سمع عن حفل الزفاف. وفً الوقت نفسه، أص
باً لفحصه. نصحه الطبٌب بؤن ٌحرر الملك فى الحال، ولكن الدوق رفض، مضٌفاً أن الطبٌب سٌضطر ان ٌبقى الملك مرٌضاً جداً حتى أن الدوق طلب طبٌ

ممن تبقى  معه حتى ٌتحسن او ٌموت، أٌهما ٌؤتً أولاً. اخبرنى جوهان أٌضا أن أنطوانٌت دو موبان تساعد فى العناٌة بالملك، الذي كان ٌحرسه اثنان
 .الأوقاتمن "الرجال الستة" فً جمٌع 

14-Although Johann did not want to return to the castle, we paid him well 
to go back and act as our spy. I found out from Johann where all the 
people stayed at night in the castle and the mansion, and who had the 
keys to the doors. 
"I'll give you fifty thousand pieces of gold if you do what I ask you 
tomorrow night," I told Johann. 
 "I hear there are new servants at the castle. Do these servants know 
the King's a prisoner there?" 
"No, they don't know who the prisoner is," he answered. 
"So if they saw me, they'd think that I was the King?" I asked. 
"Yes, they would, sir." 
"Good. Tomorrow night, give this letter to Antoinette de Mauban. 
Then, at two o'clock in the morning, open the front door to the 
mansion. Ask no more questions. Now go." 

ن أن جوهان لا ٌرٌد العودة إلى القلعة، دفعنا له جٌدا لكى ٌعود وٌتصرف كجاسوس لنا. اكتشفت من جوهان اماكن اقامة جمٌع الناس على الرغم م
الغد، اثناء اللٌل فً القلعة والقصر، ومن لدٌه مفاتٌح الأبواب. قلت لجوهان: "سؤعطٌك خمسٌن ألف قطعة من الذهب إذا فعلت ما أطلب منك لٌلة 
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ى، ن هناك خدم جدد فً القلعة. هل ٌعرف هإلاء الخدم ان الملك سجٌن هناك؟ " فؤجاب: "لا، لا ٌعرفون من هو السجٌن". سؤلته: "إذاً لو رأونسمعت أ
أفتح  اً،لظنوا اننى الملك؟". "نعم، سوف ٌظنون ذلك ٌا سٌدي." "جٌد، لٌلة الغد أعطً هذه الرسالة إلى أنطوانٌت دو موبان، ثم، فً الثانٌة صباح

 الباب الأمامً للقصر، ولا تطرح مزٌد من الأسبلة، اذهب الآن

15-When he was gone, I told Sapt and Fritz about my plan. It was our only 
chance to save the King. Sapt would take some men to the front door of the 
mansion. When Johann opened the door, they would quickly enter and tie 
up the servants if they did not want to help the King. At the same time 
Madame de Mauban would cry out for help from her room. The Duke 
would surely come to see what was happening, and we could take him. 
Then there would only be two men left guarding the King, so we would 
need to move quickly before they hurt him. 

للقصر.  عندما سمحت له بالانصراف، اخبرت ثابت وفرٌتز عن خطتً. أنها فرصتنا الوحٌدة لإنقاذ الملك. سٌؤخذ ثابت بعض الرجال إلى الباب الأمامً
ة وٌربطون الخدم إذا لم ٌرٌدوا مساعدة الملك. وفً الوقت نفسه سوف تصرخ مدام دي موبان من غرفتها عندما ٌفتح جوهان الباب، سٌدخلون بسرع

 للحصول على مساعدة. سٌؤتً الدوق بالتؤكٌد لمعرفة ما ٌحدث، وعندها ٌمكننا أن نؤخذه. ومن ثم لن ٌبقى هناك سوى رجلان فى حراسة الملك،
  وهوعندها علٌنا أن نتحرك بسرعة قبل أن ٌإذ

16-Meanwhile, the house at Tarlenheim was to be filled with lights and 
music so that people believed we were having a ball. Marshal Strakencz 
would guard the house and the Princess and if, the next day, we had not 
returned, he would then march to the castle and ask to see the King at 
once. If the King was not there, he would quickly take Princess Flavia back 
to the capital where she would become Queen. 

ٌُملأ المنزل فً تارلٌنهٌم بالأضواء والموسٌقى لكى ٌعتقد الناس أن هناك حفلة. سٌقو م المارشال ستراكٌنكز بحراسة وفً الوقت نفسه، ٌجب ان 
، فعلٌه أن ٌعود المنزل والأمٌرة وإذا لم نعود، فً الٌوم التالً، سوف ٌسٌر بالجٌش إلى القلعة وٌطلب ان ٌرى الملك فً الحال. وإذا لم ٌكن الملك هناك

 سرٌعاً بالأمٌرة فلافٌا إلى العاصمة حٌث ستصبح ملكة

17-So that night, at midnight, Sapt took his men to the mansion. I rode 
alone a different way to the castle, with clothes to keep me warm, weapons 
and a rope. Half an hour later, I was back by the moat. I left my horse and 
gun in some trees, tied some rope to another tree and climbed down into 
the water once more. I swam back to the pipe below the window, but now 
the pipe was fastened to the wall and no light showed. I looked up at the 
mansion and saw that the lights were on in the windows to the Duke's and 
Madame de Mauban's rooms. 

للٌلة، فً منتصف اللٌل، أخذ ثابت رجاله إلى القصر. انطلقت وحدى فى طرٌق مختلف للقلعة، مرتدٌاً ملابس تبقٌنى دافباً، ومعى أسلحة لذا، تلك ا
وحبل. وبعد نصف ساعة عدت الى جوار الخندق. تركت حصانى وبندقٌتى بٌن بعض الأشجار، وربط بعض الحبل فى شجرة أخرى، وقفزت فً الماء 

بحت مرة أخرى إلى الماسورة أسفل النافذة، ولكن الآن تم تثبٌت الماسورة على الجدار ولم ٌظهر أي ضوء. نظرت إلى القصر ورأٌت أن مرة أخرى. س
 .الأضواء كانت مضاءة فى نوافذ غرفتى الدوق ومدام دي موبان

18-Then I heard voices and I saw Rupert walk towards the castle onto the 
drawbridge with De Gautet. "Let's go across before they lift the 
drawbridge for the night," Rupert said. They walked across and shortly 

after, the bridge went up. A few minutes later, Rupert returned alone. He 
looked around him and then quietly climbed down some hidden steps to 
the moat and swam across. Then he climbed some steps opposite and 
disappeared back into the mansion. What was he doing? It seemed that I 
was not the only one who had a plan for that dark, warm night. 

قلعة على الجسر المتحرك مع دي جوتٌت. وقال روبرت: "دعنا نعبر قبل أن ترفعوا الجسر المتحرك ثم، سمعت أصواتاً ورأٌت روبرت ٌسٌر نحو ال
الخفٌة لهذه اللٌلة". عبروا الجسر، وبعد فترة وجٌزة، رُفع الجسر. وبعد بضع دقابق عاد روبرت وحده. نظر حوله ثم بهدوء نزل على بعض السلالم 

لالم المقابلة واختفى مرة أخرى داخل القصر. ماذا كان ٌفعل؟ ٌبدو أننى لم أكن الوحٌد الذي لدٌه خطة لتلك إلى الخندق وسبح عبره. ثم تسلق بعض الس
 اللٌلة المظلمة الدافبة
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Questions & Answers 
 
1- What three pieces of news arrived at Tarlenheim the next day? 

- The people of Strelsau heard that the King was badly injured ِٖبة while 
hunting.  

- The Duke thought he was badly injured.  

- The Princess ordered Marshall Strakencz to take her to Tarlenheim to 

see the King (Rassendyll) as she heard that he had been injured. 

 
2- Why was Princess Flavia relieved  ارعرخ تاسذيرا when she arrived at 

Tarlenheim? 
 -She was relieved to see that the king's (Rassendyll's) injury was not 
serious.  

 
3- Why did Rassendyll and the others have to do something quickly? 

- Because Johann told them that the King (Rudolf Elphberg) was looking 

weak and ill. They could not wait any longer or he would surely ثبٌزأو١ل die. 

 
4- Who went with Rassendyll to the Castle of Zenda? Why? What did 

they take with them?  
 - Sapt and Fritz with seven men went with Rassendyll to the Castle of 

Zenda. They wanted to see it so that they could make plans to rescue ٠ٕمظن 

the King. They all had weapons أٍٍؾخ and horses.  

 
5- Where did Rassendyll ask the seven men to wait? 
 - He asked them to wait with the horses at about a few hundred metres 
from the castle. 

 
6- How did Max Holf, the brother of Johann, meet his end? ٌٗمٝ ؽزف 

- He fell asleep while he was guarding the King‘s prison. So Rassendyll 
stabbed him to death. 

 
7- Why did Rassendyll kill Max Holf? 

- He was guarding the King‘s prison. Rassendyll killed him because that 

was a war for the King‘s life and Max was working for the enemy ٚػل. 

 
8- What did Rassendyll realise when he looked at the pipe? 

- He realised that the bottom of the pipe was not fastened ِضجذ to the wall 
and he could see light coming from its far end. 

 
9- Why would no one hear the boat when Rassendyll rowed back to 

the rope? 

-   - Because the wind was blowing hard. 
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10- How did Rassendyll get rid of يرخلص هن Max's body? 

- He tied the rope round Max's body and asked Sapt to pull it up. 

 
11- Why did the seven gentlemen go with Rassendyll, Sapt and Fritz to 

the castle? What did they do? 

- They went to protect the horses and the others in case هثّظب the Duke‘s 
men attacked. They fought with the Duke‘s men and three of them were 
killed. 

 
12- Why did Rassendyll and the men return home with heavy hearts? 

- Because three of Sapt's men were killed. They were worried about the 
health of the King, and angry that Rupert had escaped. 

 
13- Why was the Chief of Police looking for Mr Rassendyll? 

- Because he disappeared. His family did not hear from him. The British 
ambassador reported Rassendyll missing. 

 
14- What did Rassendyll tell the Chief of Police to do so that the game 

of replacing the king wouldn't be discovered?  

- He told him to go back to Strelsau and tell the Ambassador what he 
knew. He asked him to return in two weeks to tell him what he had found. 

 
15- What did Rassendyll ask Rupert to do when they met near the 

castle of Zenda?  

-  He asked him to let the king go free and stop working for Michael.  

 
16- Rassendyll met Rupert the next day while they are were riding. 

What plan did Rupert offer to Rassendyll? 

- He offered to help him attack the castle. But Sapt, Fritz, Michael and 
the King had to die. Then Rassendyll could stay as King and Rupert would 
be given a reward. 

 
17- What did Rupert Hentzau think of Michael?  

- He thought that Michael was not a good man. Michael made him angry 
and Rupert nearly killed him.  

 
18- Why was Antoinette de Mauban being kept as a prisoner of the 

Duke? 

- Because he discovered that she helped Rassendyll in the summer 
house. He also could not trust her. 

 
19- Why did Antoinette de Mauban send a message to Rassendyll with a 

boy? 
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- Because the Duke was keeping her a prisoner in his mansion because 
he couldn't trust her. She asked Rassendyll to rescue her from that house 
of murderers. 

 
20- How did the people in Strelsau react when Rassendyll and Flavia 

arranged a date for their wedding?  

- They were very happy.  

 
21- What was Michael's reaction سد فعرل when he heard that Rassendyll 

and Flavia arranged a date for their wedding?  

- - He was very furious.  

 
22- Why did the Duke ask for a doctor to see the real king? What was 

the doctor's advice? 

- Because the King had become so ill. The doctor advised him to set the 
King free at once, but the Duke refused. 

 
23- A doctor had been brought to see the real King in his prison. Why 

didn't Duke Michael let the doctor leave? 

- Because the doctor would tell people that the King was a prisoner. 

 
24- Who was helping the doctor to look after the king at the castle?  

-  Antoinette de Mauban was helping the doctor to look after the king at 
the castle.  

 
25- Who was guarding the king at the castle?  

-  Two of Michael's six men were guarding him.  

 
26- Why did Rassendyll and his men pay Johann well?  

- He paid him well to go back to the castle and act as their spy.  

 
27- What secrets did Johann tell Rassendyll? 

- He told him where all the people stayed at night in the castle and the 

mansion اٌمٖو, and who had the keys to the doors. 

 
28- What did Rassendyll offer Johann? Why? 

- He offered Johann fifty thousand pieces of gold to open the front door to 
the mansion at 2 o'clock in the morning and to give a letter to Antoinette de 
Mauban. 

 
29- What was Rassendyll's plan to break into the castle and rescue the 

king? 

-   - At midnight, Sapt would take some men to the front door of the 
mansion. When Johann opened the door, they would quickly enter and tie up 
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the servants if they did not want to help the King. At the same time Madame 
de Mauban would cry out for help from her room. The Duke would come to 
see what was happening. They would kill him. Then they would go to the 
king's room and rescue him. 

 
30- Why did Rassendyll ask Antoinette de Mauban to cry out for help at 

two o'clock in the morning? 

- So the Duke would go to help her. At the same time Johann would open 
the front door to let in Sapt and Fritz with their men. 

31- Why was the house at Tarlenheim to be filled with lights and music? 

- So that people would believe Rassendyll and his men were having a 
ball.  

 
32- What was Marshal Strakencz's role in Rassendyll's plan to save the 

king?  

- He would guard the house and the Princess and if, the next day, they 
had not returned, he would march to the castle and ask to see the King at 
once. If the King was not there, he would quickly take Princess Flavia back to 
the capital where she would become Queen. 

 
33- How did Rassendyll go to the castle? What did he take with him? 

- He rode alone a different way to the castle, with clothes to keep him 
warm, weapons and a rope. 

 
 
34- Why did Rupert Hentzau swim across the moat to go back to the 

mansion? Why didn't he use the drawbridge? 

-   - The drawbridge had been pulled up for the night. He was doing 
something secret, so he did not use the bridge. 

 

Quotations 
1-  “We couldn't wait any longer or he would surely die.” 

   1- Who said these words? 
      - Rassendyll said these words. 
   2- Where were these words said? 

     - These words were said at the country house "Tarlenheim". 
   3- Who 'would surely die' and why? 

       - King Rudolf Elphberg, who was held prisoner in the castle, would surely die 
because he was looking very weak and ill and he needed to be set free at once.  
 
2-  “Why doesn't my brother kill me now?” 

  1- Who said this to whom? 

     - The king said this to Detchard. 
  2- Why did the speaker's brother want to kill him? 
     - Michael wanted to kill his brother to take the crown. 

  3- Who want to rescue the king? 
     - Rassendyll, Sapt, Fritz and other men want to rescue the king. 
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3- "The Duke doesn't want you to die, not yet anyway. Sleep well!" 

   1- Who said this to whom? 
      - Detchard said this to the king. 

   2- Where was this said? 
      - At the castle of Zenda. 

   3- What was the addressed person doing there? 
      - He was held prisoner at the castle of Zenda by Duke Michael. 
 
4- "Go back to Strelsau and tell the Ambassador what you know. I'll look into 
this for you." 

1- Who does Rassendyll say this to? 

    - Rassendyll says this to the Chief of Police of Strelsau. 
2- What is it that Rassendyll will look into? 

    - Rassendyll will look into the case of the missing Englishman Mr Rassendyll. 
3- Why doesn't he want the Chief of Police to investigate about the missing man? 
    - Because he might find out that Rassendyll is pretending to be the King. 

 
5- "Would you really work against Michael?"  

  1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rassendyll said this to Rupert Hentzau. 
  2- Would that person really work against Michael? Why? Why not? 

     - Yes, he would. He didn't like Michael and said that he was not a good man. He said 
Michael made him angry and that he had nearly killed him the night before. 
  3- What did the speaker ask that person to do before that? 

     - Rassendyll asked Rupert to let the imprisoned King go free. 
 
6- "He makes me angry. I nearly killed him myself last night. Think carefully 
about my plan. " 

1- Who says this to Rassendyll? 

    - Rupert Hentzau says this. 
2- Who is the person talking about? 
    - He is talking about Duke Michael. 

3- What is the person's plan? 
    - He will help Rassendyll attack the castle. Hentzau will decide the time. But Sapt, 

Fritz, Michael and the real King must all die. Then Rassendyll will remain King and 
Hentzau will have a reward (and escape). 
 
7- "The Duke discovered that I helped you that night in the summer house." 

   1- Who said this to whom? 

       - Antoinette said this in her letter to Rassendyll. 
   2- How did the speaker help the addressed person before? 
      - She warned him against Michael's plan to kill him. 

   3- How did Michael punish that person? 
       - He kept her a prisoner in his mansion. 
 
8- "He is now keeping me a prisoner in his mansion because he cannot trust 
me." 

   1- Who said this to whom? 
      - Antoinette de Mauban said this in her letter to Rassendyll. 
   2- Who was keeping that person a prisoner? 

      - Duke Michael was keeping that person a prisoner. 
   3- Why was that person kept a prisoner? 



 

- 129 - 

      - Because Duke Michael discovered that she had helped Rassendyll in the summer 

house, so he couldn't trust her. 
9- "Please, if you can, rescue me from this house of murderers." 

   1- Who said this to whom? 

       - Antoinette de Mauban said this in her letter to Rassendyll. 
   2- Which house did the speaker refer to? 

      - Michael's mansion. 
   3- Why was that house called 'house of murderers'? 
      - Because Duke Michael and his men were planning to kill the king. Michael also 

kept Antoinette de Mauban a prisoner because she helped Rassendyll at the summer 
house. 
10- "I hear there are new servants at the castle. Do these servants know the 

King's a prisoner there?" 

1- Who says this to Johann? 

    - Rassendyll says it. 
2- What does Johann answer? 
    - He answers that the servants do not know that the prisoner is the King. 

3- Why is that important? 
    - Rassendyll wants to know if the servants will think he is the King (and obey him or 

surrender ٍَُ٠َز to him when he attacks the castle). 
11- "Tomorrow night, give this letter to Antoinette de Mauban." 

  1- Who said this to whom and where? 
     - Rassendyll said this to Johann at the country house 'Tarlenheim'. 

  2- Where was Antoinette at that time? 
     - She was kept a prisoner at Michael's mansion. 

  3- What did the speaker ask Antoinette to do? 
     - He wanted her to cry out for help from her room at 2 o'clock in the morning and 
Johann would open the front door to the mansion at the same time. Sapt and his men 

would go into the mansion and save the King. 

Find the mistake in each sentence and correct it 
1- The Duke knew that Max Rolf injured Rassendyll.                        ( Rupert Hentzau) 
2- The false King' was weak and ill.                                                 (true) 
3- Rupert Hentzau was asleep in the boat and didn't see Rassendyll.                (Max Rolf) 
4- One of Rassendyll's men called out, "They've got me, Rupert!"               (the Duke’s) 
5- Two of Rassendyll's men were killed.                                                         (Three) 
6- The British king reported that an Englishman had disappeared near Zenda.   (Ambassador) 

7- Rassendyll does not want the Chief of Police to ask about him because he might discover the 
truth about the duke.                                                                       (the King) 
8- Rupert offers to help attack the castle, but the King, Rassendyll, Sapt and Fritz must all die.     (Michael) 

9- Antoinette de Mauban asked Rupert Hentzau to rescue her from the Duke.  (Rassendyll) 
10- Rassendyll told Johann to open the front door of the mansion at midnight. (at two in the morning) 

11- The Princess went to Tarlenheim to see the King.                                          (the King) 
12- Duke Michael offered to help Rassendyll remain King.                         (Rupert Hentzau) 
13- Rassendyll killed Max Holf in the ship.                                                (boat) 
14- Rassendyll and his men went to the castle to kill the King. (rescue) 
15- The house at the stone lodge was filled with lights and music.  (Tarlenheim) 
16- Rupert Hentzau believed Rassendyll travelled with Madame de Mauban. (George 
Featherly) 
17- Chief of Police was looking for a missing Frenchman.                             (Englishman) 
18- Rupert Hentzau was seen by Sapt crossing the drawbridge then swimming back.  (Rassendyll) 

19- De Gautet was seen by Rassendyll only crossing the borders.      (drawbridge) 
20- Lauengram was killed by Michael's men. (Rassendyll's) 
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Homework  ((A)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1-What were the three pieces of news which arrived at the Tarlenheim country house? 

2- Why was the Princess relieved when she saw the king's injury? 
3- What was the bad news about the real king ? 
4- Rassendyll ,Sapt and Fritz were loyal to the king. Discuss 
5- What did Rassendyll consider the strangest thing in the history of any country? 

6- The water was not cold so it helped Rassendyll. Illustrate. 
7- Why couldn't anyone see Rassendyll although he heard their voices? 
8-What did Rassendyll see from the window? 
9- How did Rassendyll justify his killing Max Holf ( Johann's brother )? 
10- What did Rassendyll find the pipe like?  
11- Show that the king was in despair in his imprisonment. 

12- What was Detchard's answer to the king's question? 
13-How did Rassendyll go back to the place where Sapt was waiting ? 

14- Why was it difficult for anyone to hear the boat? 
15- What did Rassendyll do to Max's body? 
16- What happened when Sapt whistled to the seven men to come and get them? 

17- Why couldn't Rupert see Rassendyll or Sapt ?                    

18- Why did Rupert manage to escape from them? 
19-The seven men were loyal and brave. Illustrate. 
20-The murder of the three men wasn't the only sorrow for Rassendyll.Explain. 
21-Why did the Chief of the Police in Strelsau visit Rassendyll (the pretend king)? 
22- What did Mr Featherly tell the police about Rassendyll? 
23 – What did Rassendyll tell the Chief of the Police about Antoinette de Mauban? 

24-What did Rassendyll ( the pretend king ) order the Chief of the Police to do? 
25- How did  Rassendyll feel after the visit of the Chief of the Police? 
26- What did Rassendyll try to persuade Rupert to do ? 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- " Why doesn't my brother kill me now?” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)Why did the speaker's brother want to kill him? 
  c)Who wants to rescue the king ? 
2- "I believe she and her guests were guests of Duke Michael. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Who were they talking about? 
c)What happened to the woman after that? 
3- "Return in two weeks and I'll tell you what I have found” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What did the addressed person want the speaker to find? 
c)Why did the speaker want two weeks ? 
4-"He's well. He hopes he'll soon be in Strelsau " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Who was the speaker talking about? 
 c)What did the sentence"he hopes he'll soon be in Strelsau" mean? 
5-"They've got me , Rupert! There are seven of them. Save yourself" 

a)Who said these words ?  
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b)Who caught the speakers? 
c)How did the listener save himself ? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-Four pieces of news arrived at the Tarlenheim country house. 
2-People of Strelsau heard that the king was badly injured and they were pleased 
3- Sapt told me that Princess Flavia had ordered him to take her to see me 

4-The Princess was worried to see that my injury wasn't serious . 
5-I joined Sapt and Fritz with eight men. 
6-Rassendyll used the robe to climb down into the castle. 
7-I saw the giant tree that led from his window to the moat 
8-The guard in the boat was Detchard 
9- I stabbed him to life 

10-The top of the pipe wasn't fastened to the wall 
11- "Why doesn't my brother save me now?" said the king in a weak voice 
12-Rassendyll ran towards the horses head with a large sword. 
13- Rupert cut Rassendyll's stick with his knife. 

14-Lauengram and Krafstein were killed by Sapt 
15- We went home with lucky hearts for our friends. 

16- Two of Rassendyll's men died in the fight 
17-The British ambassador had reported that a German man called Rassendyll 
disappeared . 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- Rupert had no principles   ِجبكٞء  and a bloody man .Discuss. 
2-Why was the relation between Michael and Rupert not a good one ? 
3-Do you think Rassendyll would agree to Rupert's wicked plan to be king? 
4- What could  Sapt see when he met Rassendyll on that day? 

5- Why did Antoinette send Rassendyll that 2nd message? 
6- Duke Michael couldn't trust Antoinette de Mauban any more. Illustrate 
7- What did Rassendyll feel after reading Antoinette 2nd message ? 
8 –Why were the people in Strelsau angry with the king ( Rassendyll )? 
9- What did Rassendyll do to keep the people in Strelsau happy ? 
10- How did the people in Strelsau receive the news of the wedding ( marriage(اٌيٚاط?    

11- According to Johann , How did Michael receive the wedding news? 
12- Why did Michael ask for a doctor to examine the real king? 
13- What did the doctor advise the Duke after examining the real king? 
14- How did the Duke punish the doctor for his honesty ? 
15-  How far was Antoinette de Mauban kind? 
16-Why did Rassendyll and Sapt pay Johann well? 

17- How far was Johann's information important to them? 

18- Why did Rassendyll offer 50 thousand pieces of gold? 
19- How was Rassendyll cunning and wise when he planned to save the king? 
20- Why was Johann asked to open the front door at two o'clock  in the morning? 

21- What role could Antoinette de Mauban play in Rassendyll's plan? 
22- What was the Marshall role in that plan ? 
23-When did Rassendyll begin his plan? How? 

24- What did Rassendyll see when he was in the moat? 
25- What was the strange thing Rassendyll noticed about Rupert? 
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B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "You'll stay as the king and I'll get a reward. ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What was the speaker's plan? 
  c)Did the addressed person agree with that plan? 
2- "How 's my brother today? ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where were they ? 
c)About whom was the speaker asking? 
3- "Let's go across before they lift the drawbridge for tonight. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)What did the speaker do, which was surprising? 
c)What did Rassendyll understand from the speaker's strange behaviour? 

4-"So if they saw me, they'd think that I was the king." 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does " they' refer to? 
 c)What was the occasion? 
5-"Tomorrow night, give this letter to Antoinette de Mauban. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Where was Antoinette at that time? 
c)What did the speaker ask Antoinette to do? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-"If you let your prisoner go free , I will kill you." Said Rassendyll 

2- Antoinette asked Rassendyll to rescue her from the hotel 
3-The Duke set a date for the wedding ceremony . 
4-Johann took a present to Antoinette de Mauban 
5-The Duke became so ill that a doctor was fetched 

6- Rupert made an evil plan to be king 
7- Rupert wanted Sapt and Fritz to be dismissed 

8- Antoinette de Mauban was rewarded by Michael 
9- The Duke was delighted to hear about the wedding 
10- Antoinette de Mauban was helping to kill the king 
11- They paid Johann to return to the castle and work as their doctor. 
12- Rassendyll would give 100 pieces of gold to Johann. 
13-Johann was asked to close the front door 

14- Antoinette would cry for pain from her room. 
15-The Marshall would take Flavia to Strelsau to be a servant 
16-Four of the remaining famous six were guarding the king. 
17-If the tree was lifted , no one could enter the castle 
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moat ٟفٕلق ِبئ chained ُِم١ل 

drawbridge عَو ِزؾون break free ٠زؾوه 

mansion لٖو reach forward َ٠ّل ٠ل٠ٗ ٌلأِب 

punish ٠ؼبلت push hard ٠ٚغٜ ثْلح 

treat ًِ٠ؼب lay on the floor ٗ٠ولل ػٍٟ الأه 

a sword fight لزبي ثب١ٌَف moan ٖٚ٠زأ 

strike his sword ٗ٠ٚوة ث١َف frightened-looking ٠جلٚ ػ١ٍُٙ اٌقٛف 

spy  ًٍٛعب unhurt غ١و ِٖبة 

search ِ٠فز point a gun at ٌٟ٠ٖٛة َِلٍب ا 

unlock ٠غزؼ ignore ً٘٠زغب 

position ٚٙغ/ِىبٔخ lean heavily on ٌٟ٠َزٕل ثْلح ا 

approach ِٓ ٠مزوة coach ًػوثخ رغو٘ب اٌق١ 

nonsense ولاَ فبهؽ bow ٟٕ٠ٕؾ 

beat ٠ٙيَ/٠لق excuse ػنه 

judgment ُؽُى party ِغّٛػخ 

the appointed time اٌٛلذ اٌّؾلك for the good of ٌٖبٌؼ / ٌٍّٖؾخ 

run off ٠غوٞ ثؼ١لا/٠ٙوة get off his horse ْ٠ٕيي ِٓ ػٍٟ اٌؾٖب 

1-It was cold waiting in the water of the moat, so when Rupert disappeared 
into the mansion, I slowly climbed out and waited by the drawbridge gate 
next to the castle. Now only Detchard, Bersonin and De Gautet were left to 
protect the King in his prison. If only I had the keys to the King's room, but 
I knew I had to be patient. 

بوابة الجسر المتحرك بجوار خارج ببطء وانتظرت لل تالقصر، قفز داخلعندما اختفى روبرت  ولذلكفً مٌاه الخندق،  ناانتظار اثناء اً ردابالجو كان 
أعلم أنه  ى كنتمفاتٌح غرفة الملك، ولكنمعى كان تمنٌت لو  ،ت لحماٌة الملك فً سجنهدٌتشارد وبٌرسونٌن و دي جوتٌبقى الآن فقط  ،بجوار القلعة
 .تحلً بالصبرٌجب علً ال

2-It was a quiet night and it was about one o'clock in the morning when 
there was a loud noise from the mansion. I looked up at one of the 
windows and saw a shadow walk across the light. A woman's voice cried, 
"Help! Michael, help me!" It was Antoinette de Mauban. This was exactly 

what I had asked her to say in my message to her, but it was around an 
hour too early, before my friends had reached the front door to the 
mansion, and before Johann had time to open it. 
I pulled out my sword and stood ready for what might happen. Then I 
heard her calling again. 
"Help, Michael! It's Rupert Hentzau!" called Antoinette. 

 ، ورأٌت ظلنوافذنظرت إلى أعلى فً أحد ال ،فً الصباح عندما كان هناك ضجٌج مرتفع من القصر الواحدةحوالً  ت الساعةلقد كانت لٌلة هادبة، وكان
منها  تطلب هذا بالضبط ما قدكان أنطوانٌت دو موبان. و تكانلقد ماٌكل!"  ٌا ًن! ساعدالنجدة" :مرأةإ وصاحت ،سٌر على الأقدام عبر الضوءٌ إنسان

وهان لج أن ٌحٌن الوقتأصدقابً إلى الباب الأمامً للقصر، وقبل أن ٌصل قبل وكان ساعة،  جداً لنحو كراً ه كان مبفً رسالتً لها، ولكن هأن تقول
 !"نه روبرت هٌنتزوإماٌكل!  ساعدنى ٌا" قابلةً: مرة أخرى تنادىهبة الاستعداد لما ٌمكن أن ٌحدث. ثم سمعتها على أُ  تقفو، وىسٌف تلفتحه. سحب

3-Michael must have heard Antoinette de Mauban call out, because I then 
heard him running to help her with his servants. There was now a loud 
argument. 

Chapter 8 
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"This woman's been writing secret letters to Rassendyll!" I heard 
Rupert call out. "She needs to be punished!" 
"She's my guest," I heard Michael say. "It's you who needs to be 
punished!" 

There was a shout and a noisy sword fight began in the room. It was hard 
to see what was happening, but briefly I saw Rupert and Johann through 
the window. "That's for you, Johann!" Rupert called, striking his sword at 
him. "I know you're Rassendyll's spy!" 

What had happened to Johann? What if he had been hurt? How could he 
open the door for our men? From the noises in the room, it seemed that 
Rupert was now fighting many men. Surely he would be caught. However, 
at the next moment, there was a loud cry and Rupert jumped out of the 
window and down into the moat below, where he swam away. Somehow, he 
had escaped. 

سمعت  ،عالٍ  بصوتٍ  جدالن كان هناك الآو ،خدامه هو ولمساعدتها  ٌجرى ته بعد ذلكسمع نى، لأنتستغٌثأنطوانٌت دو موبان سمع أن ماٌكل  لابد
ٌحتاج إلى معاقبة!"  هو منأنت و ،تىنها ضٌفإ" :قولٌماٌكل  تسمعو" تها!معاقب ٌجب رسابل سرٌة إلى راسٌندٌل! ت"هذه المرأة كتب ٌقول:روبرت 

 صاحوهان من خلال النافذة. وجوبرت ورأٌت ر فقطرى ما ٌحدث، ولكن أمن الصعب أن كان سٌف فً الغرفة. بالخ وبدأ قتال صاخب اوكان هناك صر
ب ٌصأوهان؟ ماذا لو أنه جراسٌندٌل!" ماذا حدث للؤنا أعلم أنك كنت جاسوس ف. "هسٌفه فً وجهوكان ٌلوح بوهان!" ، ٌا ج"هذا لك، قابلاً:  روبرت

ٌتم  وفكثٌر من الرجال. ومن المإكد أنه ستل الآن اقٌالغرفة ٌبدو أن روبرت كان  داخلفتح الباب لرجالنا؟ من الضجٌج من مكن تٌسبؤذى؟ كٌف 
الخندق أدناه، حٌث أنه سبح بعٌداً.  إلىإلى أسفل ثم ة، كان هناك صرخة مدوٌة وقفز روبرت من النافذة لٌات. ومع ذلك، فً اللحظة الالقبض علٌه

 .هربوبطرٌقةٍ ما، 

4-A minute later, De Gautet appeared in front of me, so I struck him with 
my sword and he fell to the ground. Quickly I looked through his clothes 
for the keys: there were three. 
At last I could enter the room where the King was being kept prisoner. 
Opening the first door, I found myself at the top of some steps which led 
into a cold, dark room. The only light came from a small candle in one 
comer. As I walked down the steps, I could just hear voices coming from 
the room where the King was kept, behind a second door. 

Carefully walking towards the door, I stepped back quickly when it was 
suddenly opened. Now I could hear Detchard speaking: "We mustn't kill 
him yet or there'll be trouble." When a person appeared, I struck him 
with my sword. It was Bersonin, who fell heavily to the ground.  

 لمفاتٌح: كان هناك ثلاثةلأجد املابسه  بحثت فى ةسرعوب مٌتاً، سقط على الأرضف، ىبسٌف تهضرب لذلك جوتٌت أمامً،وبعد دقٌقة واحدة ظهر دي 
الباب الأول، وجدت نفسً فً الجزء العلوي من بعض  تفتحعندما أدخل الغرفة حٌث كان ٌجري الاحتفاظ بالملك السجٌن.  نى أنٌمكنأخٌراً . مفاتٌح

فقط كنت ، وبٌنما كنت انزل على السلالم. زواٌامن شمعة صغٌرة فً أحد ال كان قادماً باردة. الضوء الوحٌد و مظلمةإلى غرفة  كانت تإدىالتً  سلالمال
فتحه تم  مالخلف بسرعة عندلطوت مشً بعناٌة نحو الباب، خَ وبٌنما كنت أباب ثانً.  خلفالملك، ب ٌحتفظونأسمع أصوات قادمة من الغرفة حٌث 

 آخر فضربته ا ظهر شخصهسوف تكون هناك مشكلة". وعند إلاقتله الآن وأن نستماع إلى حدٌث دٌتشارد: "لا ٌجب الا ت منمكنتفجؤة. والآن 
  .فجؤة رضالأعلى  سقطالذي وكان بٌرسونٌن، لقد . ىسٌفب

5-Understanding there was danger, Detchard closed the door fast: now 
surely he was alone in the room with the King and, remembering their 
plan, I knew the King was in real danger. 
Taking one of the keys, I quickly unlocked the door to the second room and 
opened it nervously. I think I expected to see the King had already been 
killed, but once inside the room I was relieved to see that Detchard was 
being held by the King's doctor. The King, weak from illness and chained in 
one comer, looked on in fear. The doctor was too weak to hold Detchard for 
long, and before I could help him, Detchard broke free and killed the poor 
doctor with his sword. 
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الملك كان فً أن عرفت ف ،خطتهم ت أنافً الغرفة مع الملك وتذكّر وحده: الآن بالتّؤكٌد كان هو أغلق الباب سرٌعاً ، هناك خطر عندما أدرك دٌتشارد أن
كان قد قتُل بالفعل ولكن عندما رى الملك أأن  تتوقّعى عتقد أنن. أبعصبٌة ةغرفة الثانٌالباب  تسرٌعا فتحو  من المفاتٌح اً واحد ت. أخذىخطر حقٌق

كان مقٌداً بالسلاسل فى أحد و المرضمن  اً الملك ضعٌفكان . فقد انتابنى شعور بالارتٌاح عندما وجدت طبٌب الملك ٌمسك بدٌتشاردالغرفة دخلت 
، فر دٌتشارد وقتل الطبٌب ساعدتهمع ٌوقبل أن استط ،طوٌلة بدٌتشارد لفترةأن ٌمسك  ولكن الطبٌب كان أضعف مننظر فً خوف. وكان ٌ الزواٌا،

 .المسكٌن بسٌفه

6-Detchard turned to me and said, "At last!" I held up my sword and it 

was lucky that Detchard did not have a gun. We began to fight. He was a 
much better swordsman than me and knew all the tricks: he smiled when 
he cut me on the arm, and I would soon have died if the King had not 
helped me. 
"My cousin Rudolf!" he cried, as if he only now realised who I was. He 
reached forward and pushed the legs of a chair into Detchard's body. 

"Push hard!" I called "Push against his legs!" 

With the legs of the chair against him, Detchard found it hard to stand up. 
This made him angry, and he struck the King hard with his sword, but as 
he did so, he fell over the doctor's body. It was easy for me to kill him as he 
lay on the floor. 

كثٌر ب اً أفضل منىتل. كان مبارزاقنتبندقٌة. بدأنا معه كن ٌأن دٌتشارد لم من حسن الحظ وكان  ىسٌففرفعت  ،"أخٌراً!وقال: " ناحٌتىإستدار دٌتشارد 
"، كما لو !عمً رودولفابن " لذى صاح قابلاً:ا الملك نىت إذا لم ٌساعدومال من قرٌباً كنت ، وىذراعأصابنى فى  عرف كل الحٌل: ابتسم عندمافهو ٌ

 رجلى الكرسى وبوجوددفع ضد ساقٌه!" ، إ!بقوةدفع إ"نادٌته: . دفع جسم دٌتشارد برجلى كرسىإلى الأمام، و أنتقل. من أكونأنه أدرك الآن فقط 
كان ٌفعل ذلك، سقط على جسم الطبٌب.  عندمابسٌفه، ولكن  ضربة قوٌة ضرب الملكفجعله هذا غاضبا، ودٌتشارد صعوبة فً الوقوف. وجد ضده، 

 .رقد على الأرضلأنه كان ٌقتله أن أكان من السهل لً ف

7-Was the King dead too? I ran to where he lay. How happy I was when the 
King moaned, so I knew he was alive. but before I could help him I heard 
Rupert somewhere outside the King's prison calling out, "Come on, 
Michael! Let's fight!"  

I tore a piece from my shirt to make a bandage for the cut on my arm, and 
quietly opening the prison door, I looked out. The drawbridge was now 
down once more. Rupert stood in the middle of the bridge with his sword, 
while the door to the mansion at the other end of the drawbridge was 
guarded by some very frightened-looking servants, as well as Johann, who 
I was pleased to see was unhurt. Then Antoinette de Mauban angrily called 
out from behind the servants, "The Duke's dead, you've already killed 
him!" 
"Dead!" called Rupert. "That's good. Then I'm your leader now. Put 
down your weapons and do as I say." 

 تهساعدمن ممكن أتكان على قٌد الحٌاة. ولكن قبل أن أنه  فعلمتالملك،  تؤوهعندما  تىداسعكم كان ا؟ً جرٌت إلى حٌث كان ٌرقد. أٌضالملك هل مات 
 صابةضمادة للإ كى اعملل ىقطعة من قمٌص قمت بتمزٌق!" تلاتقماٌكل! دعنا نٌا "هٌا،  قابلاً: الملك ٌنادي سجن سمعت روبرت فً مكان ما خارج

قف فً منتصف ٌروبرت كان مرة أخرى.  موضوعاً ن . كان الجسر المتحرك الآللخارجنظرت وباب السجن بهدوء،  تذراعً، وفتح التى كانت فى
 ىوهان، الذجوكذلك  خدم ٌبدو علٌهم الرعب،بعض ال ٌحرسهالقصر فً الجانب الآخر من الجسر المتحرك  المإدى الىالجسر بسٌفه، بٌنما كان الباب 

فصاح " بالفعل! هتالدوق، لقد قتللقد مات " :خدامالمن وراء  ةً ضباموبان غ وأنطوانٌت دصاحت لم ٌصب بؤذى. ثم أن أراه وكان من دواعً سروري 
 ." ما أقول وافعلاو تكمأسلحضعوا  ،الآن كمأنا زعٌم ، إذاً هذا أمر جٌد، !تقولٌن مات" :روبرت
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8-Instead of putting down their weapons, however, the servants allowed 
Antoinette de Mauban to walk onto the bridge, and she was pointing a gun 
at Rupert. But before she had time to shoot – if, indeed, she planned to – 
Rupert once again jumped quickly into the water below the bridge. 
More loud voices were heard and I realised that Sapt and his men must 
have finally arrived at the front door, on the other side of the mansion. 
Feeling confident that the King would be safe, I ran after Rupert and also 
jumped into the water. He swam faster than I could with my wounded arm, 
and he quickly swam to where the rope was tied to the tree above the 
moat. He looked surprised but pleased to see the rope and quickly climbed 
up. I was, perhaps, a minute behind him and once at the top of the rope, I 
could see him running off into the forest. At one stage I saw him look back 
at me. I thought I saw him waving, as if it were a game, as if he knew I 
would never catch him. 

روبرت. ولكن قبل تجاه بندقٌة ب تصوبالسٌر على الجسر، وكانت بنطوانٌت دو موبان لأح اسمبال ، بالرغم من ذلك،الخدمقام  بدلاً من وضع أسلحتهم
قفز روبرت مرة أخرى بسرعة فً الماء تحت الجسر. سمعت أصوات أكثر، وأدركت  – ذلك ع، تعتزم، فً الواقتإذا كان –طلق النار تالوقت لٌحٌن أن 

روبرت  خلف تركضففً مؤمن،  أصبحأن الملك فى ثقة الب تلجانب الآخر من القصر. شعرلوصلوا أخٌرا إلى الباب الأمامً قد أن ثابت ورجاله 
بدت إلى شجرة فوق الخندق.  مربوطاً  الحبل كانع ذراعً الجرحى، وبسرعة سبح إلى حٌث م نىسبح أسرع مما ٌمكنكان ٌالماء.  فىأٌضا ت وقفز
الجزء العلوي من الحبل،  عندما وصلت الىدقٌقة واحدة، وب. وكنت، ربما، وراءه لأعلىبسرعة  صعدلرإٌة الحبل و اً سروره كان مالدهشة ولكن علٌه

لعبة، كما  ا فى، كما لو كنلى رأٌته ٌلوح أظن أننى. ناحٌتىنظر إلى الوراء ٌ هحلة من المراحل، رأٌتفً مروالغابة.  داخلٌلوذ بالفرار أراه أن  أستطعت
 .اً بدأه بأمسك  نى لنلو كان ٌعلم أن

9-We both ran, further and further into the forest of Zenda, until I heard 
another cry. What had Rupert done now? Soon I discovered that he had 
found a boy riding to market, and had quickly pulled him from the horse 
and taken his place. Rupert was trying to get the boy to be quiet by giving 
him some money, and this gave me time to catch up with him. 

"Stop!" I shouted. 

He looked at me and smiled. 
"What did you do at the castle?' he asked. 
"I made sure that you are the last of the Six Men," I told him. 
"Do you mean that you got inside the King's prison?" he asked with 

surprise. 
"I did." 
"And what's happened to the King?'" 
"He was hurt, but he's alive," I told him. 
"Why didn't you follow my plan?" he said. "We could have worked well 
together." 
"Get off your horse and fight like a man," I said. 

إلى  حصان متجهاً ركب ٌأنه وجد صبً  سرعان ما اكتشفتوزٌندا، حتى سمعت صرخة أخرى. ماذا فعل روبرت الآن؟  ةفً غاب كلانا أبعد وأبعدركض 
ٌُهدأ. كان روبرت ٌحاول هالحصان بسرعة وأخذ مكان فوق ه منجرالسوق، وقد  الصبً بإعطابه بعض المال، وهذا أعطانً الوقت للحاق به.  أن 

سؤل فنت آخر الرجال الستة"، أ كن أن"لقد تؤكدت م :فعل فً القلعة؟". قلت لهكنت ت"ماذا  :". نظر لً وابتسم. وتساءلمكانك! "قف قابلاً: صرخت
على قٌد الحٌاة"  هب، ولكنٌصلقد أ" :الذي حدث للملك؟" قلت له فعلت". "ومانعم داخل سجن الملك؟". " وصلت الىأنك ذلك ٌعنً هل " :باستغراب

 ."رجلك قاتلنىو كحصانفوق  نزل منأ" فقلت:نحن ٌمكن أن نعمل معا بشكل جٌد."  ؟تى"لماذا لم تتبع خط :قالف

10-I ran at Rupert with my sword, but still on his horse, he easily pushed 
me away with his own sword. I ran at him again and managed to cut his 
cheek, but now he rode at me with his sword held high. I would surely 
have been killed, but at that moment there was a shout as Fritz arrived on 
another horse carrying a gun. Rupert stopped and looked at us. He 
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understood that he could not fight us both, so he turned the horse and 
rode away as fast as he could. 
"Go after him!" I said to Fritz. 

But Fritz was looking at me, not at Rupert. "Sir, you don't look well," he 

said, and I suddenly felt very weak. Fritz got off his horse and ran up to me 
as I fell to the ground. 

"Is the King safe?" I asked him weakly. 

"Thanks to you, he is," said Fritz. "But you're injured. Here, let me help 
you." 
Next to us, the young boy looked on with wide eyes. "Isn't that the King?" 
he said, pointing at me. Fritz ignored him. 

 همن قطع خده، لكن تمكنباتجاهه مرة أخرى، وت تدفعنً بسهولة بعٌداً بسٌفه. ركضفلا ٌزال على جواده،  ه كان، ولكنىروبرت بسٌف ناحٌة  جرٌت  
. ٌحمل مسدساً وكان على حصان آخر  فقد وصل ة، ولكن فً تلك اللحظة كان هناك صرخكان من المإكد اننى سؤقُتلسٌفه.  اتجه ناحٌتى شاهراً الآن 
ه!". ولكن فرٌتز خلفذهب أ" :رٌتزفلبؤسرع ما ٌمكن. قلت  وهرب ولذلك استدار بحصانه، معاً  تنامحارب هٌمكنلا فهم أنه  قد. وٌناروبرت ونظر إل توقف
 ناحٌتى فقد كنتعن جواده وركض  جداً. ترجل فرٌتز أننى ضعٌف." ، وفجؤة شعرت بخٌر"سٌدي، أنت لا تبدو  :روبرت. وقالولٌس ل، الً ٌنظركان 

، وقرٌب مناساعدك. " أ لى أنسمح، اهٌابجروح.  مصاب كولكن .كذلك، هو بفضلك" :الملك؟". قال فرٌتزهل نجى " :ضعفبسقط على الأرض. سؤلته أ
 .فرٌتز تجاهلهولكن الملك؟".  ألٌس ذلك هو" :مشٌراً إلً عٌون واسعة. وقالٌنظر الٌنا بالصبً  كان

11-After a long rest, I felt strong enough to walk back, leaning heavily on 
Fritz's arm. I later learnt from Fritz and Antoinette de Mauban what 
happened that night at the castle and the events leading up to it. A few 
months earlier, the Duke had met Antoinette de Mauban in Paris and had 
asked her to Ruritania to see the coronation. She respected the Duke and 
was pleased to be his guest. However, some of the Duke's servants told her 
servants about the Duke's ambitions to be King. She did not like his evil 
plans and decided to warn me of everything he wanted to do. 

When the Duke found out that she had warned me in Strelsau, he tricked 
Antoinette de Mauban by inviting her and her servants to his castle. Once 
she was there, he made sure they could not leave in order to stop her 
telling anyone about his plan. 

اع فرٌتز. علمت لاحقاً من فرٌتز وانطوانٌت دو بشدة على ذر أستندت، لأعود سٌراً بما ٌكفً  أننى أصبحت متماسكاً بعد استراحة طوٌلة، شعرت و
طلب منها الدوق أنطوانٌت دو موبان فً بارٌس وقابل بضعة أشهر فً وقت سابق، منذ موبان ما حدث تلك اللٌلة فً القلعة والأحداث التً أدت إلٌها. 

لخدمها ح ٌصربالت وقالد خدمبعض قام . ومع ذلك، ة علٌهفتكون ضٌأن سروره م كانتتحترم الدوق، و كانتإلى رورٌتانٌا لرإٌة التتوٌج.  أن تحضر
 نىحذرت هاأن وقعندما اكتشف الدومن كل ما ٌرٌد أن ٌفعل.  نى، وقررت أن تحذرٌرةالشره خططتقبل أن ٌكون الملك. لم  الدوق فىطموحات  عن

من أن  لكى ٌمنعهامغادرة المن أنها لا تستطٌع  تؤكداك، هن وعندما وصلتإلى قصره.  هاوخدم تهافً سترٌلسو، خدع أنطوانٌت دو موبان بدعو نحنو
 .خطته عنأي شخص تخبر 

12-Luckily, with Johann as our spy, Antoinette was still able to send us 
letters and we could use her position in the castle to help us. Somehow, 
however, Rupert discovered that she was helping us, so he wanted to 
punish her; by chance he chose the very night that we were attacking the 
castle. 

When Michael came to see what was happening, Rupert killed him in the 
fight that followed. Rupert, it seemed, believed that without the Duke, I 
really would stay as the King and somehow reward him for his evil work. 
He did not understand that I was pretending to be the King for the good of 
Ruritania: he believed I wanted to be King forever. 

فً القلعة لمساعدتنا. ومع  كانهاعلى إرسال رسابل لنا وٌمكننا استخدام م ةً ال قادرزتأنطوانٌت لا كانت وهان كجاسوس لنا، وجود جلحسن الحظ، مع 
بمهاجمة  فٌها نحنقمنا من قبٌل الصدفة أنه اختار اللٌلة ذاتها التً و؛ ولذلك أراد أن ٌعاقبها، نها كانت تساعدنااكتشف روبرت اوبطرٌقة ما، ذلك، 
كملك سؤظل أنا بالفعل ، وقدون الدبعتقد أنه أ روبرتأن دث، قتله روبرت فً المعركة التً تلت ذلك. ٌبدو عندما جاء ماٌكل لمعرفة ما كان ٌحو .القلعة

كون ملكا إلى أٌعتقد أننً أردت أن كان رورٌتانٌا: أنه  خٌرالملك ل نىأتظاهر بؤنكنت  نىٌفهم أن معلى عمله الشر. أنه ل هكافؤسوف أوعلى نحو ما 
 .الأبد
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13-Because Johann was helping the Duke, he could not open the front 
door for Sapt and his men at two o'clock, and it took a long time before 
they could finally enter the mansion. This they did just as Rupert was 
escaping from Antoinette de Mauban. Soon Sapt found the King lying in 
his prison, hurt but still alive. He was carried with his face covered to the 
mansion, where Antoinette helped to look after the poor King until another 
doctor could arrive. Meanwhile, Fritz came to look for me, knowing that I 
must have run off into the forest after Rupert. 

وا اخٌراً من مكنتوقتاً طوٌلاً قبل أن ٌذلك ، واستغرق الثانٌة صباحاً فتح الباب الأمامً لثابت ورجاله فً لم ٌستطع أن ٌ، وقلأن جوهان كان ٌساعد الدو
 كان مصاباً فً سجنه،  مُلقى على الارضملك السرعان ما وجد ثابت وهروب روبرت من أنطوانٌت دو موبان.  أثناء هفعلوهو ما القصر. وهذا  لودخ

طبٌب آخر. ومن  وصولحتى  مسكٌنالملك الب فى الاعتناءإلى القصر، حٌث ساعدت أنطوانٌت تم نقله، ووجهه مغطى، لا ٌزال على قٌد الحٌاة.  هولكن
 .روبرت وراءإلى الغابة  نى أنطلقتعلم أنعندما ، ٌبحث عنىناحٌة أخرى، جاء فرٌتز 

14-Back at the castle, Colonel Sapt had to ask Johann and Antoinette de 
Mauban to guard the secret about the real King. His men and the servants 
thought that the King had been injured while rescuing the prisoner, who 
had gone after Rupert Hentzau. News was sent to Tarlenheim to tell the 
Princess that the King was hurt but alive, and that she should wait at 
Tarlenheim for him. The people of Strelsau also heard that the brave King 
had fought with his brother because he had kept a prisoner in Zenda who 
was a friend of the King. The Duke had tried to kill the King, who was 
injured, but the evil Duke had died. 

 هرجاله وخدامفالملك الحقٌقً.  سر أن ٌحفظواوهان وانطوانٌت دو موبان ج أن ٌطلب منالعقٌد ثابت  اضطر، مرة أخرى القلعة وعندما كانوا فى
 أصٌبالأمٌرة أن الملك  لإخبارالأخبار إلى تارلٌنهٌم تم إرسال روبرت هٌنتزو.  وراءالذي ذهب وقاذ السجٌن، أن الملك قد أصٌب أثناء إن ونٌعتقد
ً لأنه قد أبقى سجٌن أخوهقاتل مع تشجاع السترٌلسو أن الملك فى فً تارلٌنهٌم. كما سمع الناس  هأن تنتظر علٌها على قٌد الحٌاة، وأنه ٌنبغً هولكن  ا

 .توفًالدوق الشرٌر قتل الملك، الذي أصٌب بجروح، ولكن ٌ وق أنللملك. حاول الد ن صدٌقاً الذي كاوفً زٌندا 

15-However, Princess Flavia did not want to wait at Tarlenheim and asked 
Marshal Strakencz to take her to Zenda at once so she could see the King. 
Her coach was approaching the castle as Fritz led me back from the forest. 
When we saw the coach, I quickly hid behind a tree, but we did not realise 
that the boy whose horse Rupert had taken had followed us. He was very 
excited and called out, "Princess! The King's here, behind this tree!" 
We tried to keep the boy quiet, but it was too late. The Princess's coach 
had stopped and I could see the Marshal leaning out of the coach window 
to talk to the boy. 
"What you say is nonsense," called Strakencz. "The King's injured in 
the castle." 
"No, really, he's here. He fought a man who took my horse." 

الملك. كان  من رإٌةمكن فى الحال لكى تتالمشٌر ستراكٌنكز أن ٌؤخذها إلى زٌندا  فطلبت من ،الأمٌرة فلافٌا الانتظار فً تارلٌنهٌم لم تُرِد ومع ذلك،
صاحب درك أن الصبً نلم  نات بسرعة خلف شجرة، ولكنببتخأ، وكبغابة. عندما شاهدنا الممن ال عابداً بىفرٌتز  عندما كانٌقترب من القلعة موكبها 

، ولكن اً هذه الشجرة! " حاولنا إبقاء الصبً هادب خلفالأمٌرة! الملك هنا، أٌتها " نادى:جداً و نفعلاً اتبعنا. وكان مكان قد روبرت  هخذأالحصان الذي 
، "ما تقوله هو هراء :ستراكٌنكز قال للتحدث إلى الصبً. المركبةاستطعت أن أرى المشٌر ٌمٌل من نافذة لأمٌرة ووكب اوقف متالوقت كان قد فات. 

 ." ىحصانخذ رجل الذي أالهنا. لقد حارب إنه فً القلعة". "لا، حقاً،  مصاباً  الملكٌرقد 

16-At this moment, Sapt rode out of the castle to meet the party. 

"This boy says the King's over there behind that tree," said Strakencz 
to Sapt with a strange look. 

"No, he's in the castle behind me," said Sapt with a smile. 

"Please, come and see if you don't believe me," said the boy. 

The smile disappeared from Sapt's face and he looked worried, before 
quickly saying, "I'll go." 
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"Let me come, too," said the Princess. 
Sapt thought for a moment, then said quietly, "Then come alone." 

The Princess was helped down from the coach. She then walked with Sapt 
across the grass towards me. I sat down behind the tree, putting my hands 
over my face. Fritz put his hand on my shoulder. 

لملك هناك خلف تلك الشجرة.". أن ا"هذا الصبً ٌقول  :نظرة غرٌبةبقال ستراكٌنكز إلى ثابت ف. لمقابلة الموكبالقلعة  منثابت  خرجفً هذه اللحظة، 
بدا .". اختفت الابتسامة من وجه ثابت ونىصدقت، تعال وانظر إذا كنت لا وك"ارج :قال الصبًف.". ىفً القلعة خلف إنه "لا، وهو ٌبتسم:قال ثابت ف

." كوحد تعالى إذاَ تً أٌضا.". فكر ثابت للحظة، ثم قال بهدوء، "آ"اسمح لً أن  :الأمٌرة ت". وقالرى"سوف ا :قول بسرعةٌقلق، قبل أن ال علٌه
ضع ٌده ٌفرٌتز وكان ٌدي على وجهً.  اً ضعاخلف الشجرة، و الساجكنت مع ثابت عبر العشب تجاهً.  سارت. ثم من الحافلةلتترجل الأمٌرة  واساعد

 .على كتفً

17-When Princess Flavia saw me, she ran up and cried, "It is you! Are you 
hurt?" I said nothing, so she looked at Sapt and said, "What's this game 
you're playing?" 
"This is not the King," said Sapt quietly. 
"What do you mean it's not the King?" said the Princess. 
"This is not the King," said Sapt again. 
"He is the King!" cried Flavia. "It's his face! Rudolf, look at me! What's 
happening?" 
Looking into her eyes, I said, "Forgive me, Madame. I'm not the King." 

The Princess looked surprised, then frightened, and I could see she did not 
know what to say. 
"Come," Sapt said gently to the Princess. "It's time you came into the 
castle. We have much to discuss." 

I watched as she walked away. Now my game was nearly at an end. 
"ما هذه  ت:ثابت، وقالنظرت الى  لذلكشًء،  أىقل لم أ؟ " ل انت مصاب! هأنت "أنه صاحت:ونحوى ت ضفلافٌا الأمٌرة، ركرأتنى الأمٌرة عندما 

"هذا لٌس الملك.".  :قال ثابت مرة أخرىفؤنه لٌس الملك؟". بالأمٌرة "ماذا تقصد  تك.". قال"هذا لٌس المل :قال ثابت بهدوءف؟" ونهاتلعب اللعبة التً
، أنا لست الملك." سامحٌنى سٌدتى" :قلتوفً عٌنٌها،  تلً! ما الذي ٌحدث؟ " نظرإ نظرأ! رودولف، هأنه وجه، "أنه هو الملك! :فلافٌافصاحت 
". ه.اقشننالقلعة. لدٌنا الكثٌر ل لتدخلىلقد حان الوقت عالى، "ت :قول. قال ثابت بلطف للأمٌرةتا أنها لا تعرف ماذ فهمتو وخافتالأمٌرة أندهشت 

 .تهاتقرٌبا فً نهاٌ تىلعب تمشى بعٌداً. الآن كانوهى ت هاشاهدت

18-All that day Fritz and I waited in the forest while the Princess stayed in 
the castle with the King. That night, when it was dark, Fritz led me to the 
castle where I stayed, unseen, in the rooms that had been the King's 
prison. 

Johann brought me food and told me what he knew. The King was getting 
better and had seen the Princess with Sapt, and Marshal Strakencz had 
returned to Strelsau. Johann also said that everyone was talking about the 
strange prisoner of Zenda and who he could be. Some said he was an 
English friend of the King's who had heard about the Duke's plans, so the 
Duke had locked him up to stop him from speaking to the King. 

فرٌتز إلى القلعة حٌث أخذنى الظلام،  حلفً تلك اللٌلة، عندما والأمٌرة فً القلعة مع الملك.  تبقٌ بٌنمافرٌتز فً الغابة أنا و ذلك الٌوم، انتظرت طوال
الأمٌرة  رأى، وٌتحسنما ٌعرفه. الملك كان كل طعام وقال لً وهان جلب لً الج. فٌها ، فً الغرف التً قد تم سجن الملكبعٌداً عن مربى الجمٌعمكثت، 

ٌمكن أن  ومن الغرٌب اروهان أٌضا أن الجمٌع كان ٌتحدث عن سجٌن زٌندجمع ثابت، وقد عاد المارشال ستراكٌنكز إلى سترٌلسو. وقال حٌث أتت 
 .منعه من التحدث إلى الملكلكى ٌ الدوق لك حبسهولذ، الدوقالذي كان قد سمع عن خطط وٌكون. البعض قال أنه صدٌق إنجلٌزي للملك 

 19-Later that evening, Fritz came to me and said the King wanted to see 
me. So I went to his room, where he was lying in bed with a doctor next to 
him. He looked weak and tired, but smiled when he saw me. 
"Cousin! My friend! You're injured, too. We're always the same, you 
and I!" 

I smiled and bowed down before him. 
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"I want to thank you," he said. "I hoped that tomorrow, you'd come 
with me to Strelsau and tell everyone about the brave things that 
you've done, but Sapt tells me that this isn't possible."  
"He's right, sir. My work in your country is complete." 

"Very well, I'll return to Strelsau alone. People know that the King 
was injured, so they won't be surprised to see me looking a little 
different. But you've taught me something, cousin Rudolf. You've 
shown me what a true King should be," he said. 
"I'd happily help you again, sir," I said. And I meant it, thinking that 

perhaps I would need to. Nobody knew where Rupert had disappeared too, 
and the thought of the man who had almost beaten me still makes my 
heart beat louder in my chest. 

 كان. هراجوبطبٌب  وهناكفً وقت لاحق من هذا المساء، جاء لً فرٌتز وقال أن الملك ٌرٌد أن ٌرانً. فذهبت إلى غرفته، حٌث كان ٌرقد فً السرٌر 
 :أمامه. وقال انحنٌت، وت، أنت وأنا!" ابتسممثل بعضنا. نحن دابماً ت أٌضاً صدٌقً! أنت أصب !ى"ابن عم آنى:ضعٌفا ومتعبا، لكنه ابتسم عندما ر

، ولكن ثابت ٌقول أن هذا غٌر االذي قمت به ةتؤتً معً إلى سترٌلسو وأخبر الجمٌع عن الأشٌاء الشجاعس أمل أن غداأكنت ، "أرٌد أن أشكرك
كان قد . الناس ٌعرفون أن الملك دىملً فً بلدكم ." "جٌد جداً، سوف أعود إلى سترٌلسو وحعلقد أكتمل ممكن". "أنه على حق، سٌدي الربٌس. 

 الملكعلٌه قد بٌنت لً ما ٌنبغً أن ٌكون لرودولف.  ىابن عمٌا ، ما شٌباً  نىعلمت كقلٌلاً. ولكن اً مختلفوأنا أبدو ً تلرإٌ واندهشٌلن  ولذلكصٌب ، أُ 
لا أحد ٌعرف أٌن ف. أضُطر لذلكربما  نىأن ودار فى فكرىعنً ذلك، كنت أك مرة أخرى، ٌا سٌدي.". وتساعدن سؤكون سعٌداً إ" :قلتُ ف.". الحقٌقى

 .فً صدري ٌنبض بصوت أعلىلا ٌزال ٌجعل قلبً  كان ،تقرٌبا هزمنىلرجل الذي التفكٌر فى ااختفى روبرت، و

20-"The Princess has asked to see you, too," said the King. "She can 
come in now." 
"Does she know everything?" I whispered, before she arrived. 
"She does," the King answered. 

The Princess came into the room and I bowed down to her. 
"It seems you've tricked me," she said, but not unkindly. 
"I would like to apologise to you for this," I said. 
"You don't need to apologise. I should thank you for all you've done 
for Ruritania," she said. 
"I've learned all about duties and responsibilities," I said to her. "It's a 
lesson I'll never forget." 
"And we'll never forget how you've helped the King," she replied. 

The King smiled, then closed his eyes and fell asleep, and the doctor said it 
was best if I left him. 
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I bowed and left the people who would shape the future of Ruritania, not 
knowing that I would never see the King, the Princess – or Rupert – ever 
again. 

الأمٌرة دخلت .". نعم" :ؤجاب الملكفتعرف كل شًء؟".  هىهل و" :قبل وصولها تتؤتً الآن." همس قد .أٌضاً ، تراك"الأمٌرة طلبت أن  :وقال الملك
بل "لا تحتاج إلى الاعتذار.  :قالتفن هذا".. ع "أود أن اعتذر لكِ  :.". قلتُ تنىك خدعأن"ٌبدو  بؤسلوب لٌس بالخشن قالت:لها.  حنٌتإلى الغرفة وأن

". اً بدأ اهأنه درس لن إنس، "لقد تعلمت كل شًء عن الواجبات والمسإولٌات :رورٌتانٌا.". قلت لهامن أجل أن أشكرك على كل ما قمت به  ٌجب
. وذهبت هوقال الطبٌب أنه من الأفضل لو تركتوغط فً النوم،  هالملك، ثم غلق عٌنٌانتسم الملك.".  تلن ننسى ابدأ كٌف ساعد نحن"و :فؤجابت

 أي وقت فىمرة أخرى  –أو روبرت  –والأمٌرة أرى الملك، سوف أأن كنت  عرفأمستقبل رورٌتانٌا، لا  ونشكلسٌالناس الذٌن  ت، وتركٌتانحن
 .لاحق

21-A few hours later, Sapt and Fritz bowed down to me as I got on a train 
at a small station near the border with Ruritania. The other passengers on 
the train must have thought an important person in a large coat and hat 
was about to leave their country, but it was only I, Rudolf Rassendyll, an 
English gentleman. 

الركاب ومن المإكد أن على متن قطار فً محطة صغٌرة بالقرب من الحدود مع رورٌتانٌا. أمامى عندما صعدت ت وفرٌتز ثابانحنى بضع ساعات، وبعد 
، رودولف راسٌندٌل، انا فحسبعلى وشك مغادرة بلدهم، لكنه كان كان  قبعةمعطف كبٌر و ٌرتدى اً مهم اً شخص قد لاحظوا أنالآخرٌن على متن القطار 

 .إنجلٌزي رجل

When I finally returned to England, I had some explaining to do. My 
brother Robert and his wife Rose told me that everyone had been looking 
for me. And Rose was very disappointed when I told her I had not written a 
book. 
"At least the ambassador has a job for you soon," she said. "He now 
knows which country he'll be sent to." 
"Where's that?" I asked. 
"Ruritania. Sir Jacob Borrodaile is to be the British Ambassador in 
Strelsau." 
"I don't think it'd be a good idea for me to work there," I said. 
"But you promised you'd take the job!" cried Rose. 
"You're right, but please look at this," I said, showing them a 

photograph in a newspaper which showed the King's coronation. There was 
I, with Sapt, Fritz, Michael and the Princess. Robert and Rose looked at it 
in amazement. 
"Yes, you look very like the King of Ruritania," said Rose. "But this is 
just an excuse. You could have become an ambassador yourself one 
day! If you don't go, you'll never be anyone important!" 

 أصٌبت روزً. وعن ونٌبحث واأخً روبرت وزوجته روز  أن الجمٌع كانأخبرنى . أن أقدم بعض التوضٌحاتلً علترا، كان جعندما عدت أخٌرا إلى إن
 هأنه ٌعرف الآن البلد الذي  سوف ٌتم إرسال، السفٌر لدٌه وظٌفة لك ما زال قلالألى ع" :قالتفكتب كتاب. أ أننى لمها أخبرتعندما كبٌرة بخٌبة أمل 

كون فكرة جٌدة بالنسبة تس ا"لا أعتقد أنه :فً سترٌلسو". قلتُ  ٌكون السفٌر البرٌطانًسردٌل وب بوجاكسٌد ال؟". "رورٌتانٌا. ذلك"أٌن  :". سؤلتٌهإل
لهم صورة فً إحدى الصحف  أظهرتهذا". ل ىنظرأ، ولكن ةمحق "أنتِ قلت: !". وظٌفةهذه ال ستقبل كأن ت"ولكنك وعد :لً للعمل هناك". بكت روز

ملك بجداً  تبدو شبٌهاً "نعم،  :روز تفرٌتز وماٌكل والأمٌرة. نظرروبرت وروز إلٌها فً ذهول. وقالو مع ثابتكانت صورتى ظهر تتوٌج الملك. تالتً و
 ".أي شخص مهم أبداً  ن تكونلتذهب،  لم! إذا اً ماٌوماً صبح  سفٌرتأن  كمجرد ذرٌعة. ٌمكن هولكن هذ، رورٌتانٌا

22-I knew, however, that I did not need to go. I had been something far 
more important than an ambassador: I had been a King. I remembered and 
understood those words Rose had said to me all those months ago: a 
person with a position in society has responsibilities. But even without a 
position in society, we all have a duty to help other people when we can, 
and we all become better people for doing so. 

روز لً التى قالتها تلك الكلمات  توفهم تلم أكن فً حاجة للذهاب. لقد كنت شٌبا أكثر أهمٌة من سفٌر: لقد كنت ملك. تذكر نىأن عرفت هذا،مع و
 مكانة فً المجتمع لدٌه مسإولٌات. ولكن حتى بدون مكانة فً المجتمع، علٌنا جمٌعا واجبشخص ذو  أى: التى مضت تلك الأشهر طوال
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Questions & Answers 
 
1- Where did Rassendyll wait for it to be two o'clock? 

  - He waited by the drawbridge gate ثٛاثخ اٌغَو اٌّزؾون next to the castle. 

 
2- Why couldn't Johann open the door for Sapt and his men as 
planned? 
  - He was helping the Duke in his fight with Rupert. He was also injured. 

 
3- Rassendyll has asked Antoinette to cry for help at two o'clock. Why 

does she do it earlier? 

 - Because she is being attacked by Rupert. He wants to punish ٠ؼبلظت her 
for writing to Rassendyll. 

 
4- Why did Rupert strike his sword at Johann? 
  - Because he believed that Johann was Rassendyll's spy. 

 
5- Who killed the Duke? 
  - Rupert Hentzau killed the Duke. 

 
6- How did Rassendyll get the keys to the King's prison? 
  - He took them from De Gautet‘s clothes after he had killed him. 

 
7- Why was it lucky that Detchard did not have gun? 
  - If Detchard had had a gun, he would have shot Rassendyll dead. 

 
8- What did the doctor do to save the King's life? 
  - He held Detchard for some time. He was too weak, so Detchard broke 
free and killed the doctor with his sword. 

 
9- How did the king help Rassendyll in the fight against Detchard? 
  - He helped Rassendyll by pushing a chair into Detchard as he was 
fighting. This made him lose his balance and fall over the doctor‘s body. 
Then it was easy for Rassendyll to kill him. 

 
10- How did the King get hurt? 
 -Detchard struck the King hard with his sword. 

 
11- What would have happened if the King hadn't helped Rassendyll? 

Why? 
  - Detchard would have killed Rassendyll because he was a much better 
swordsman than him. 

12- What happened to Rassendyll before he killed Detchard? 
  - Detchard cut him on the arm. 
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13- Why did Rupert ride away instead of fighting Rassendyll? 
  - Because Fritz came with a gun and Rupert knew he couldn‘t fight both of them.  

 
14- What did Rupert do when Antoinette pointed a gun at him? 
  - He quickly jumped into the water below the bridge. 

 
15- How did Rupert manage to escape after he had killed Michael? 
- He jumped out of the window down into the moat below and swam away. 

 

16- How did Rupert get a horse to escape? 
  - He took a horse from a boy in order to escape. 

 
17- Rassendyll would surely have been killed if it hadn't been for Fritz. 

Explain. 
  - Rupert would have killed Rassendyll if Fritz hadn't arrived on a horse 
carrying a gun. Rupert understood that he couldn't fight both men, so he 
escaped. 

 
18- Why did Duke Michael invite Antoinette de Mauban to Ruritania? 
  - He invited her to attend the coronation. 

 
19- What did the Duke do when he found out that Antoinette had 

warned Rassendyll in Strelsau? 
  - He tricked her by inviting her and her servants to his castle. Once she was 
there, he didn't let her leave in order to stop her telling anyone about his 
plan. 

 
20- How could Antoinette continue to send letters to Rassendyll 

although she was locked in the castle? 
  - She could do that with the help of Johann who worked as a spy for 
Rassendyll. 

 
21- What did Sapt ask Johann and Antoinette to do? 
  - He asked them to guard the secret about the real King. (He asked them 
not to tell anyone that the King was a prisoner in the castle). 

 
22- What were Sapt's men told about the King's wound? 
  - They were told that the King was wounded while he was fighting to rescue 
his friend who was a prisoner in the castle. 

 
23- What were the people of Strelsau told to justify the King's injury and 

Michael's death? 
  - They were told that the brave King had fought with his brother because he 
had kept a prisoner in Zenda who was a friend of the King. The Duke had 
tried to kill the King, who was injured, but the evil Duke had died. 



 

- 144 - 

24- How did the boy make a problem for Sapt, Fritz and Rassendyll? 
  - The boy ran out and said the King was behind the tree, but Strakencz and 
the Princess thought that the King was in the castle. Sapt had a problem to 
explain this.  

25- Why did Sapt tell the Princess to come alone to see the King behind 

the tree? 
  - He asked the Princess to come alone because he didn‘t want Marshal 
Strakencz to know about Rassendyll. 

 
26- Why did Sapt have the real King taken from his prison with his face 

covered?  
  - Sapt didn't want his men or the servants to see who the prisoner really 
was.  

 
27- What did Sapt's men and the servants think happened to the King 

and to the prisoner?  
  - They thought that the King was wounded in the fight to rescue the 
prisoner, and that the prisoner went after Rupert Hentzau.  

 
28- Who did the people of Strelsau think Rassendyll could be? 
  - They thought he could be an English friend of the King's who heard about 
the Duke's plans, so the Duke had locked him up to stop him from speaking 
to the King. 

 
29- Why did Rassendyll wait in the forest until dark to go to the castle? 
  - Rassendyll waited until he could go into the castle under the cover of 
dark. He didn‘t want anyone to see him. 

  
30- Why was the King very grateful to Rassendyll? 
  - Because he saved his life and taught him how to be a real King. He also 
helped to stop people thinking badly about the King. 

 
31- Why was the Princess grateful to Rassendyll? 
  - She was grateful to him for all he had done for Ruritania and the King. 

 
32- Why did Sapt tell the King that it wasn't possible for Rassendyll to 

go back to Strelsau? 
  - Because that would cause problems as people would mistake him for the 
King since he looked exactly like the King. 

 
33- Why did Rose feel very disappointed with Rassendyll? 

  - Because he had not written a book and he refused to work with Sir Jacob. 

 
34- Why did Rassendyll refuse to work for Sir Jacob? 
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  - Sir Jacob was going to be the ambassador to Ruritania and there would be 
problems as Rassendyll looked like the King. 

 
35- How did Rassendyll realize at the end of the story that Rose was 

right about taking responsibilities? 
  - He understood that a person with a position in society has responsibilities 
and that even without a position in society; we all have a duty to help other 
people when we can and we all become better people for doing so. 

 
36- What did Rassendyll learn from his adventures? 
  - He learnt responsibility, how to do the right thing. 

 

Quotations 
 
1- “This woman's been writing secret letters to Rassendyll! She needs 
to be punished!” 

1- Who says this to whom? 
    - Rupert Hentzau says this to Duke Michael. 
2- Who is "this woman"? 
    - “This woman” is Antoinette de Mauban. 
3- What is the speaker doing while saying this 
    - He is attacking Antoinette and fighting with Duke Michael. 
 
2- "She's my guest. It's you who needs to be punished!" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Michael said this to Rupert. 

2- Who was the guest? 
     - Antoinette de Mauban. 

3- Why did the speaker want to punish the addressed person? 
     - Because Rupert attacked Antoinette as he believed she was helping Rassendyll. 

 
3- "We mustn't kill him yet or there'll be trouble."  

1- Who said this to whom? 
- Detchard said this to Bersonin. 

2- Where was this said? 
- This was said in the castle. 

3- What happened after that? 
- Rassendyll killed both of them 

 
4- "Come on, Michael! Let's fight!" 

1- Who said these words? 
      - Rupert Hentzau said these words. 

2- Where was that person standing? 
      - He was standing on the drawbridge between the castle and the mansion. 
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3- Did Michael come out to fight that person? Why? Why not? 
     - No, he didn't because he was dead. 

 
5- "Dead! That's good. Then I'm your leader now. Put down your 
weapons and do as I say." 

1- Who says this to whom? 
    - Rupert Hentzau says this to the Duke’s servants standing near the door of the 
mansion. 
2- Where is the speaker? 
    - He is standing on the drawbridge (between the mansion and castle). 
3- Do the people obey him? What happens? 
    - No, they don’t obey him. They let Madame de Mauban try to shoot him. 
 
6- "I made sure that you are the last of the Six Men." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rassendyll said this to Rupert Hentzau. 

2- Where was this said? 
     - This was said in the forest of Zenda. 
3- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rassendyll chased Rupert in the forest to kill him after he 

had killed the rest of Michael's Six Men. 
 
7- "Why didn't you follow my plan? We could have worked well 
together." 

1- Who says this to whom? 
    - Rupert Hentzau says this to Rassendyll. 
2- Where are they and what has just happened? 
    - They are in the forest near the castle. Rupert has killed the Duke; Rassendyll 
has killed the others of the Six Men and rescued the King. 
3- What was the plan that wasn't followed? 
    - Rassendyll would attack when Rupert said to. The King, the Duke, Sapt, and 
Fritz would all die. Rassendyll would remain the King and Hentzau would be 
rewarded. 
 
8- "Thanks to you, he is. But you're injured. Here, let me help you." 

1- Who said this to whom and where? 
     - Fritz said this to Rassendyll in the forest of Zenda. 

2- What did "Thanks to you" mean? 
     - It meant that the King was safe thanks to Rassendyll's help. 

3- How was the addressed person injured? 
     - He was injured when Detchard cut him on the arm while Rassendyll was trying 

to save the King. 
 
9- "What you say is nonsense. The King's injured in the castle." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
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     - Strakencz said this to the boy whose horse had been taken by Rupert. 

2- What did the addressed person say before this? 
     - He said the King was behind a tree in the forest of Zenda. 

3- Was the addressed person right? Why? Why not? 
     - He was not right. He thought that Rassendyll was the real King. 

 
10- "He is the King! It's his face!" 
1- Who said this to whom? 
      - Princess Flavia said this to Sapt. 

2- Where and when was this said? 
     - This was said in the forest of Zenda when they met Rassendyll and Sapt told the 

Princess that Rassendyll was not the real King. 
3- Why did most people think that Rassendyll was the real King? 
     - He looked so much like the King. 

 
11- "Cousin! My friend! You're injured, too. We're always the same, you and I!" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - The King (Rudolf Elphberg) to Rassendyll. 

2- Where and when was this said? 
     - They were in a bedroom in the mansion when Rassendyll went to see the King. 

3- How were both men injured? 
     - They were both injured by Detchard when Rassendyll tried to rescue the King. 

 
12- "People know that the King was injured, so they won't be surprised 
to see me looking a little different." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Elphberg (the King) said this to Rassendyll. 

2- Where and when was this said? 
     - They were in a bedroom in the mansion when Rassendyll went to see the King 

3- What were the people told about the King's injury? 
     - They were told that the brave King had fought with his brother because he had 

kept a prisoner in Zenda who was a friend of the King. The Duke had tried to kill the 
King, who was injured, but the evil Duke had died. 

 
13- "But you've taught me something, Cousin Rudolf. You've shown me 
what a true King should be." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Elphberg said this to Rassendyll. 

2- How did that person teach the speaker what a true King should be? 
     - He took his responsibilities as King seriously and tried to run the country well. He 

risked his own life to rescue the King. He could have remained King. 
3- Where did the addressed person go after that? 
     - He went back to England. 

 
14- "I would like to apologise to you for this." 
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1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rassendyll said this to Princess Flavia. 

2- Where and when was this said? 
     - This was said in a bedroom in the mansion when Rassendyll went there to see the King. 

3- Why did the speaker apologize to the addressed person? 
     - He apologized because he tricked her when he pretended to be the King and she 

thought he was the real King. 
 
15- "I should thank you for all you've done for Ruritania. And we'll 
never forget how you've helped the King." 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Princess Flavia said this to Rassendyll. 

2- What did the addressed person do for Ruritania and the King? 
     - When Michael kidnapped the King, Rassendyll agreed to pretend to be the King 

to stop Michael from taking the crown. He also risked his life and saved the King from 
death. 
3- Where was this said? 
     - In the mansion. 

 
16- "I don't think it'd be a good idea for me to work there." 
1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rudolf Rassendyll said this to Rose. 
2- Which job did the speaker refuse to do? 
     - It was the assistant to the new British ambassador in Ruritania. 

3- Why did the speaker refuse that job? 
    - He knew it would cause problems for him to be in Ruritania because he looked 
so much like the King of Ruritania. 
 
17- "But you promised you'd take the job!" 

1- Who said this to whom? 
     - Rose said this to Rassendyll. 

2- When was this said? 
     - This was said when Rassendyll came back from Ruritania. 
3- What did the addressed person promise to do? 
- He promised to work for Sir Jacob who was going to become an ambassador. 
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Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1- Antoinette de Mauban called for help at the appointed time. (almost an hour 
early) 

2- Johann was seriously hurt in the fighting. (was not) 
3- When Rassendyll enters the prison, De Gautet and Hentzau were there. (Bersonin 
and Detchard) 

4- The doctor tried to protect the Duke.  (the King) 
5- The Duke's servants did not accept Detchard as their leader. (Rupert) 
6- Rassendyll did not wound Rupert before he escapes. (managed to cut Rupert‟s 

cheek) 
7- Rupert thinks that if the Duke was dead, Robert would remain King and reward 

him. (Rassendyll) 
8- Johann and Rose knew that the prisoner was the King. (Antoinette) 
9- Rassendyll spends the day in the mansion in the room with the King. (in the 

forest) 
10- The King wants Rassendyll to come to Zenda. (Strelsau) 

11- Back home, Rassendyll agreed to work with Sir Jacob Borrodaile. (refused) 
12- Rupert and Michael fought when Rupert wanted to punish Johann. (Antoinette) 
13- The Duke invited Antoinette to his hunting lodge and doesn't let her leave. (castle) 

14- The Duke took a horse from a boy in order to escape. (Rupert) 
15- Rupert stood on the bridge and called to Michael, not knowing he was alive. (dead) 
16- Rupert discovered that Antoinette was helping Detchard. (Rassendyll) 

17- The Duke invited Antoinette to Ruritania for the funeral. (coronation) 
18- The Duke learnt that Antoinette warned Rupert in the summer house. (Rassendyll) 

19- Rassendyll returned to Germany but told his family nothing of his adventure. 
(England) 
20- People were told that the rescued prisoner was a friend of the Duke. (king) 

21- Rassendyll went to Strelsau and rescued the King. (Zenda) 
22- Sapt's men were told that the King was killed while fighting to rescue the prisoner. 

(wounded) 
23- De Gautet, Bersonin and Detchard were killed by the Duke. (Rassendyll)  
24- Marshal Strakencz brought Antoinette from Tarlenheim to see the King. (the 

Princess) 

25- Rassendyll taught the King how to be a pretend king.                                (real) 

Homework  ((A)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1- What did Rassendyll do after Rupert disappeared into the mansion? 

2- Who were left to protect the real king? 
3- Why did Antoinette give a real cry at one o'clock in the morning? 
4-How did Rassendyll get ready after the cry? 
5- Why did Rupert go to Antoinette room? 
6- What was Michael's reaction to Rupert's accusation about Antoinette? 

7- How did the argument between Michael and Rupert end? 

8-Why did Rupert strike his sword at Johann? 

9- Why was Rassendyll worried about Johann's life after that stab ٛؼٕخ ? 
10- How far was Johann's life important to Rassendyll ? 
11- How did Rassendyll make use of killing De Gautet? 
12-Why was Rassendyll relieved when he opened the 2nd door? 

13- The brave doctor paid his life for his honesty and his loyalty .Illustrate . 
14-Why couldn't the king help the doctor? 
15- How was Rassendyll lucky when he fought with Detchard? 
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16- Why was it dangerous to fight against Detchard? 
17- But for the king's help, Rassendyll would soon have died. Discuss 

18- Why was Rassendyll happy when he heard the king moaning  ٓ٠ئ? 
19- How was Antoinette was about to kill Rupert? 

20-When did Rassendyll decide to chase Rupert? 
21- Why did Rupert swim faster than Rassendyll? 
22- How did Rassendyll catch up with Rupert? How was Rupert a kind thief? 

23- Why did Rassendyll tell Rupert that he was the last of the Six Men? 

24- How did the arrival of Fritz save Rassendyll from certain death ِٛد ِؾمك? 
25- Rupert was wise when he didn't fight with Rassendyll in the forest. Discuss. 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "Help. Michael! It's Rupert Hentzau! ” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)Why did the speaker ask for help? 
  c)What did Michael do? 
2- "She's my guest. It's you who needs to be punished. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Who was the guest? 
 c)Why did the speaker want to punish the addressed person? 
3- "We mustn't kill him yet or there'll be trouble. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where was this said ? 
c)What happened after that ? 
4-"What did you do at the castle?  " 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Where were they? 
 c)How did the listener escape death? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-Rassendyll hid his horse in the trees and waited near the inn 
2-Antoinette cried for help when Michael went into her room. 
3- After a sword fight Rupert managed to save Michael 
4-Detchard was a much better gunman 

5- After killing De Gautet , Rassendyll took the locks 
6- The doctor saved the Duke when he held Detchard 
7- Rassendyll killed the three Ruritanian of the famous Six 
8- The king helped Rassendyll to kill De Gautet  
9- Sapt saved Rassendyll from certain death. 
10-Rupert stabbed Johann accusing him of being a servant 

11-Sapt helped Antoinette to send letters to Rassendyll 

12- Johann fought the Duke and killed him . 

Homework  ((B)) 
A) Answer the following questions: 
1-Why didn't Fritz obey Rassendyll to go after Rupert? 
2-Why was the boy surprised when Rassendyll ask about the king?  
3- Why did Antoinette change her attitude towards the Duke? 
4-Why did the Duke decide to punish Antoinette de Mauban? 
5- How did the Duke trick Antoinette de Mauban? 
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6- How was Antoinette still able to send letters to Rassendyll ? 
7- Why did Rupert choose the wrong time to punish Antoinette? 

8- How did Michael meet his end? 
9- What wrong idea did Rupert have about Rassendyll? 

10- Who looked after the poor king? 
11-What did Colonel Sapt ask Antoinette and Johann to do? 
12- What did his men and the servants think about the king's injury? 

13-Whydid n't the people of Strelsau sympathize with ٠زؼبٛف ِغ the Duke's 

death? 
14- Why did Rassendyll hide behind a tree when he was with Fritz? 
15- Why did the Princess look surprised , then frightened? 
16-Where did Rassendyll stay in the castle? 
17-According to the people, why did the Duke lock the prisoner of Zenda up? 

18- Who objected to the king's idea to take Rassendyll to Strelsau? Why? 
19-Why did the king think that people wouldn't be surprised to see him 
different? 

20-Give four reasons why the king greatly indebted ِٓل٠ to Rassendyll? 

21-What made Rassendyll's heart beat louder in his chest? 
22-The Princess wasn't angry with Rassendyll despite tricking her. Discuss. 
23- What was the lesson that Rassendyll would never forget? 
24-What did Rassendyll teach the king? 
25-What did the train passengers think when Sapt and Fritz bowed to Rassendyll? 

26-Why was Rose disappointed? 

27-Which  country would Sir Jacob Borrodaile work in? 
28-What excuse did Rassendyll give for not accepting the job in Ruritania? 
29-Why did Rassendyll realise that he didn't need to be an ambassador there? 
30-Rassendyll became wise after his experience as a king. Illustrate. 

B) Read the following quotation and answer the questions: 
1- "Thanks to you,he is. But you're injured. Here, let me help you.” 

  a)Who said these words to whom? 
  b)What did ' Thanks to you' mean? 
  c)How was the addressed person injured ? 
2- "This boy says the king's over therebehind that tree. ” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)When and where was this said ? 
c)Was the boy right ? Why ? Why not ? 
3- "I would like to apologize to you for this.” 

 a)Who said these words to whom? 
 b)Where and when was this said? 
c)Why did the speaker apologize to the addressed person? 
4-"He's right,sir. My work in your countryis complete." 

 a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)What does "he" refer to? 
   c)What was the occasion? 
5-"But you promised you'd take the job. " 

a)Who said these words ? To whom ? 
b)Which job did the speaker refer to? 
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c)What made the listener change his attitude towards the job? 
C) Find and correct the mistake in each of the following sentences: 
1-Flavia and a doctor were looking after the king 

2-People knew that the king fought Michael to save an enemy of him. 
3- Flavia ordered The Marshall to take her to Strelsau to see the king. 

4- The boy whose horse Rassendyll took followed him 
5- Rassendyll sat behind a wall so as not to be seen by the Princess 
6-The boy told the Princess about Sapt's hidden place. 
7-Sapt told the Princess that Rassendyll was the real king 
8-Rassendyll stayed unseen in the rooms that had been the Princess's prison 
9-Rassendyll apologized for insulting the Princess. 

10- The Princess thanked Rassendyll for what he had done for Paris. 
11-Rose was happy when Rassendyll told her that he didn't write a book 
12-Sir Jacob 's work as an ambassador would be in France 
13-Rassendyll accepted to work with the ambassador in Ruritania . 

 

 
 
 
 

                                                                              
 
 
 


